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GETTING READY FOR NATIONAL HEALTH INSURANCE:
- SHORTCHANGING CHILDREN

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 1975

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuBCOMMITTEE ON OVERSIGHT AND INVESTIGATIONS,

ConrpurrTee oN INTERsTATE AND FoQREIGN COMMERGE,
Washington, D.C.

" The subcommittee met at 10 a.m., pursuant to notice, in room 2123,

Rﬁyburn House Office Building, Hon. Richard L. Ottinger, presiding
[Hon. John E. Moss, clmirmanf. L
Mr. Orringer. The Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations
of the Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce is resuming
hearings today on the subject of “Getting Ready for National Health

° Insurance: Shortchanging Children” by indicating that it is a most

auspicious time to hold a hearing concerning child health, since
October is “Fmmunization Action Month” and yesterday was “Child
Health Day for 1975.”

I note in the Proclamation of Declaration for Child Health Day
the President indicates that, thanks to vaccines, poliomyelitis is no
longer the widespread crippler that it once was. Children can now
be protected against measles and the risk of death or brain damage
resulting from this disease. .

Tmmunization against rubella not only protects young children, but
also protects pregnant women from contracting the disease and risk-
ing the mental health of their unborn children. There is no better

. example of effective cost control and human benefits than to uncover

and treat a preventable disease early.

For example, the National Communicable Disease Center, for a 5-
year period, estimated that immunization efforts averted 10 million
cases of measles and 3,200 cases of mental retardation. It also estimated
that immunization saved 973 lives, 555,000 hospital days, 291,000 years
of life, 1.6 million work days, 32 million school days, and $423 million.

I, therefore, find it very appropriate for us to convene this hearing
today to look at how the Government assists in preventive medicine
programs. Now that we do have certain new technologies, snch as
vaccines, are they heing utilized to the extent necessiiry to protect our
people and reduce long-run health costs?

During these hearings, we wil look at aspects of preventive health
and communieable diseases. We hope to find ont why approximately
5 million of the Nation’s 1- to 4-year-old children are insufficiently
immunized. Why is that of 14 million preschool children in this
country, one out of every three is insufficiently immunized?

I find it inexcusable that in 1973 50 children died and more than

(1)
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40,000 youngsters developed complications, including bruin damage,
due to measles.

As the President’s proclamation points out, one of the greatest
success stories in American medicine hus been the determination of the
causes and the development of immunization by vaccine for polio.

Surveys now indicate, however, that in 1964, 88 percent of Anieri-
can preschoolers were protected against polio. In' 1973, that figure
dropped to 63 percent. The figure is even lower—upproximately 51
percent—ifor nonwhite preschool children living in the central cities
of ninjor metropolitun areus.

This set of hearings on “Shortchanging Children” is geared to
acquire information and to explorve the gaps in onr current health care
delivery system. The purpose is to assist. in developing the bases for
new legislation and better implementation of current legislation,

We intend, as part of an over-ull study of “Getting Ready for
National Health Insurance,” to he able to gather information that
may help this subcommittee, and particularly the Health and the
Environment Subcommittee chaired by my able collengne, Paul
Rogers, as they begin to consider the need for new national health
insurance legislation,

These hearings will foens npon the quality of care and the ntilization
of services in the child health aren,

We will hear from citizens who have had firsthand experiences as
well as experts from Government and the Held of medicine,

It is in the spirit of gathering information and developing recom-
mendations to help insure consumers of health care hetter quality in a
rost-cffective manuer that T open these hearings.

We have schednled for this morning five witnesses: Dr. Frederick
Green of Washington, D.C.: My, and Mrs, John Maguire. Yeadon, Pa.:
Dr. Gerald Hans of Boston: and Congressman Ralph Metealfe of this
committee, a Member of Congress: and Dr. Wilbur Cohen. former See-
retary of Health, Education, and Welfare,

Tn order to he able to have the committee hear from all of these wit-
nesses, T am going to trv to set pretty firm limits for each witness, about
20 minutes total per witness, to make sure we get everyvbody in. T hope
the witnesses will do what theyv ean to accommodate us in that regard.

Our first witness is Dr, Frederick Green, T understand that he is ac-
companied by theee parents. Tf they would like to, they may accomn-
pany vou to the witness table,

T would appreciate it if yon would identify them,

STATEMENT OF FREDERICK C. GREEN, M.D., ASSOCYATE DIRECTOR.
CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL NATIONAL MEDICAL CENTER; DIREC-
TOR, OFFICE OF CHILD HEALTH ADVOCACY: AND PROFESSOR OF
CHILD HEAITH AND DEVELOPMENT, GEORGE WASHINGTON -
UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE, ACCOMPANIED BY MRS.
PAMELA SPEAKS, MRS, PATRICIA YOUNG, AND MRS. IRENE
DRIVER, AND THEIR CHILDREN
Dr. Greex, Thank yon very much, Mr, Chairman. and members of

the subcommittee, T am pleased to have the opportunity to appear here
this morning—-the day after Child TTealth Day. which was declared
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by Presidentinl proclamation—to discuss a situation which is, in my
opinion, & national disgrace. I am referring to the failure of Wedernl,
State, and loeal governments to implement a program whieh would
assure better health care for all chil({rcn in this country—purticularly
those at gravest risk. Perhaps the content of this testimony will make
some of yon uncomfortable, but it is our hope and intention to speak
in the best interest of our children and to give voice to the critical con-
cerns of those we serve. Aecompanying me today to aid me in this
presentation are three families—families that are currently forced to
cope with the devastating consequences of our societal neglect. Later
in this testinony, you will have an opportunity to meet. and talk with
them.

My name is Frederick C. Green. I am a pediatrician, currently serv-
ing as associate director, Children’s Hospital Nutional Medical Center;
director of the hospital’s office of child health advocacy : and professor
of child lealth and development, George Washington University
School of Medicine, Washington, D.C.

I have had the unigne opportunity of serving not only the individual
needs of children us a pediatrician in private and institutional practice
in New York City, but also of serving the collective needs of our Na-
tion’s children ns the Associate Chief, Children’s Burean, OCD, HEW
from Augnst 1971 until my resignation in June 1973.

Throughout my career;-I have become intimately fumiliar and in-
creasingly distressed with the physical, social, intellectual, and emo-
tional wastage resnlting from the unconscionable high incidence of
uncorrected correctable deficits among children in this country.

The early periodic screening, dingnosis, and treatment program
(EPSDT) is potentially the most comprehensive program of preven-
tive health care for children ever undertaken by the Federal Govern-
ment. The program was mandated by Congress in response to the need
for eliminating health-related causes of disability and dependence
among the Nation’s poorest children. EPSDT provides for the identi-
ficution and prevention of correctable physical deficits through the
provision of early detection, dingnosis, and treatment services.

Inthe EPSDT gnidelines issued by the Department of Health, Edu-
cation, and Welfare, the following screening services were reconi-
mended : Taking a medical history and performing a physical exaini-
nation; assessing inmunization status; screening for dental, hearing,
and vision problems; screening for anemia, lead poisoning, sickle cell
disease, and trait, bacteriuria, and tuberculosis.

These generul services provide a superficial method for detecting
the presence or absence of pathology which then mmst be further ex-
plored through the diagnostic and treatment phases of the program.
The gmidelines also recommend a developinental assessment; however,
the nature of this component is currently the subject of fervent na-
tional debate. T will expand on this issue later in my testimony.

In spite of the clear intent of Congress to insure basic health protec-
tion for the Nation’s needy children, the EPSDT program has en-
countered formidable obstacles. Although the program was enacted
into law Jannary 2, 1968, HEW did not release regulations and ve-
quiremnents until Jate in 1971; these became effective in February 1972.
Shortly thereafter, Congress levied a financial penalty—1 percent of
State AFDC funds—in an effort to speed implementation and make

8
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.
States more accountable for the program. Yet, one year later, in March
of 1073, 28 States still had either no program at all or programs rated
s having major problems,!

It is apparent that there is a need for a penalty provision fo ssure
State complinnee, 1t is unfortunate that ennbling a generatian of
children to reach their full potential as productive members of soviety
has not. proven to be an adequate incentive for State governments,
However, although the earrot lIms proven insuflicient, I questian Con-
rress choiee of a stick, When we penalize States by withholding wel-
ave panynients, we are actually penalizing the very people whom we
have agreed are most in need of help,

In effect, we are saying that if States fail to deliver one type of hu-
man service, we will' reduce their capability for providing another.
Surely, it would be more rational to penalize States by withholding
funds allocated for purposes other than direet human services. such
as moneys for highway construction or capital improvements,

Turther evidence of the ineffectiveness of both the State programs
and the congressional penalty can be found in the available data on the
number of children served by EPSDT,

Considering only those who quality for medieaid, there are approxi-
mately 13 million children eligible for EPSDT services, Of thase, only
15 pereent (LY million) had been screened by the end of 1974, Of the -
small percentage of children who were sereened, nearly one-half were
found to need additional diagnostic and treatement services, Due to
inadequate ease reporting procedures in the States, there are no reli-
able data concerning the number of children who actnally reeeive
adequate followup.?

Many States have argnéd that the fignres reported for EPSDT
services do not reflect the actual nnmber of children receiving such
services from other public or private providers, However, these elaims
are refuted by a recent evaluation report on four EPSDT research
and demonstration projeets funded by the Social and Rehabilitation
Service. These projects provided EPSDT dervices to all children
regardless of medieaid eligibility statns, They found that over 90
percent of the problems identified were ecither new or previously
known but not under eare.? . _

The large proportion of problems in the Intter category previously
known but not under eare nnderscores the lack of adequate referral
and follownp procedures and need for formalized aceountable case
monitoring mechaniss, _

Findings from those projects also clearly indicate that medieaid
eligibility alone is not a clear predictor of the mimber of disabilities
that will be found in a given population of children, Tt is estimated
20 to 40 percent of all children in low-income families suffer from one
or more chronic conditions and that only + out of every 10 of these
children are under treatment. Further. although 97 percent of all
children require some dental care hefore the age of 6, 40 percent. of all

t Enrly and Periodle Sereening. Diagnosis, and Treatment: Conference Proceedings.
The Human Services Institute for Children and Pamilles, Inc., Arllngton, Va., June 18,

1974,

2 Medicald's Early and Perindic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment I’rogram. DHEW.
Mimeographed. Washington, D.C., Aug. 1. 1974,

3First Quarterly Evaluation Report of the EPSDT Demonstration Projects. Dickson.
H.D., ot al.. University of Texas Health Sclence Center at San .Antonlo, San Antonlo,

Tex., Nov. 20, 1974,
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children in low-income families reach the age of 17 without any profes-
sional dental cure.*

In spito of this evidencee of need, only about half of the Nation's 25
million low-income—that is, poor and working poor—children are
eligible for medicaid and EPSD'T services, The remainder ave ineligi-
ble; yet many are too poor to pay for preventive care, Indeed, in this
time of rampant inflation and high nnemployment, the working poor
often cannot even atford oceasional episodic eare,

On this point I find it necessary to express a personnl bias, It is my
belief that certain basic ¢hild healtl services are a vight aud shonld be
universally available, Yet onr history of legislative protection for
families in need has been_charaeterized by exclusivity rather than
inclusivity, Wo have excluded children by income, by race, by geogra-
phy, by age—by just about every characteristic that would enable us
to distinguish one child from aunother,

It is sudly ivonic that we penalize those who are actively trying to
progress from welfare dependence to gainful employnient. by effec-
tively denying them n means of nssuring good health, T recognize that
national health insurance in some form is likely to hecome a reality in
the not too distant future. However, while the bureancratic wrangling
over costs, niethods, and feasibility continnes, the 12 million children
from low-income families wlo are not cligible for medicnid wait in a
vacuum. They wait at risk of permanent disability due to conditions
which the medical profession has long been able to prevent or amelior-
ate.

One out of every ten children in the UTnited States suffers from some
form of communication disorder. Of these, over half have some type
of speech pathology ; a third have severe learing impairment : and the
remainder are totally deaf.® Untreated conununication disorders liter-
ally isolate a child from his environment and render him unable to
carry out the myriad learning tasks of childhood,

The prevalence of vision deficits is relatively low among preschool-
age children, affecting approximately 5 percent of this population,
However, 1 out of every 4 school-age children has some kind of visual
handicapping condition,

The incidence of anemia also varies with the age of the child with
the highest prevalence rates occurring during the first 4 vears of life,
As reported to the 1970 White House Conference on Children, the
incidence of anemia is highest among children from low-income
families. For example, alinost half of all 2-year-olds in the lowest
income quartile and over a third of those in the lower middle quartile
were found to be anemic, For children between the ages of 2 and 6, the
reported prevalance rates were somewhat lower; however, it renins
that nearly 1 out of every 5 of these children was diagnosed as
anemic.’ :

¢ Medlcald’s Early and Periodic Screening, Dia o08is, and Treatment Program, DHEW,
Mlmeographed, Washington, D.C., Aug, 1, 1974, £ &ra

3 Learning to talk: Speech, hearing, and language problems in the preschool child,
DHEW Natlonal Institutes of Health Public Health Service, Washington, D.C, 1970,

¢ A Guide to Screening: EPSDT Medicald, Frankenburg, W, K. and North, F, A,, DHEW,
Social and Rehablilitation Service, Washington, D,C.. 1074.

* Profiles of Children: The 1070 White House Conference on Children and Youth, U'.8,
Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C., 1070.

10
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Though the prevalence rates for a symptomatic urinary teact infestion
duo to bacterial is substantinlly Tower than that for anemia, such in-
foctions placo children at visk for developing Yomnunom kidney
damage. At least 5 peveent of all girls will acquire bucteriuria duving
thair elementary and secondary school years.® Moreover, this condition
is frequently recurrent. Two of the parents heve today huve agreed
to share with us some insights into the lives of childron who have
experienced kidney failuve,

T'he alarming incvease in the numbers of children who are inade-
quately hmmunized agninst childhood infectious disenses has H)rom sted
o nationwide campaign to reverse the trend. October has been
designated “Tmmunization Month® by the Nutional Center for Disenso
Control. Tt is known that 2 out of every 5 children 1 to 4 yours of nge
have no protection or inndequate protection ngainst poliomyelitis und
measles, In central city areas coutaining {!)ovorty pockets, the situa-
tion is even more alarming—scarcely half of the children are com-
pletely immunized.®

The high incidence and drastic consequences of lend poisoning have
prompted nany urban areas to initinte locally fun:led lead screening

rograms, Such an effort has been spearheaded in the District of

“olumbia by the Committee for L.E.A.D.. which operates under the
auspices of the Office of Child Health Advocacy, Children's Hospital
National Medieal Center, Sinee the beginning of the committee’s of-
forts, the incidence of elevated blood lead levels has decreased slightly
each year, Nevertheless, in fiscal year 1974, 16 percent of the more than
14,000 children screened had elevated lead levels, Nationally, 600,000
children still carry undue body loads of lead absorbed from a polluted
environment, Tach year 300 to 400 children die of lead poisoning, and
an additional 6,000 suffer irreversible nsental retardation and danlage
to the central nervous system.'® The mother of one of these children
is with us today.

While child abuse and neglect is not directly addressed in tlhe
EPDST guidelines, the carly and continued healtl assessments offered
by this program provide a critical opportunity for reaching and help-
ing children who are victims of this tragedy. The provisions of the
Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act, signed into law on Jan-
uary 31, 1974, reflect the growing national concern over the frighten-
ing increase in the numbers of brutalized and abunsed children.

Although there is substantial evidence of underreporting of child
abuse, estimates range from 60,000 ! to between 250,000 and 400,000 **
cases each year, Of these between 200 and 400 children are killed.!?

While it is obvious that the EPSDT program offers an unprece-
dented opportunity for impacting on the physical health status of
children, the program guidelines also address the need for screcning

*“A 10-Year Study of Bacterlurla !n Schoolgirlz: Final Report of Bacteriologlc,
}J;glgglzc.aan’(l llgl;gienllologlc Findings.” Kun!n, C. M., the Journal of Infectlous Diseases.
"'-'i'mmjml'zitaon ‘Against Disease: 1072 DHEW, Center for Disease Control. Atlanta,

a.. 1972,
10 Statistics and _Epldemiology of Lead Polsoning. DHEW, Office of Child Development,
Washington, D.C., Fehruary 1972. .
!t Helping the Battered Child and His Famlly. Kempe, C. H. and Helfer, R. E., T. B.
Lippincott Co.. Philadelphia, Pa., 1072,
m‘;;z]{‘h;nl.\rrq.\-th of the Battered-Child Syndrome.” Newherger, E., Current Medical Dialog,
12 4Chlld Abusre and Neglect: A Priority Prohlem for the Private Physlclan.” Green,
F. C., Pedintric Clinics of North America. 22:320-339, 1975,
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to identify possible development diffienltios, In developing n rationalo
for this compouent, HIEW has stated that 14 percent of all school-
children suffer some form of emotional dysfunction, vanging from
sevorely psychotic—0.8 percent-—to mildly disturhed—10 percent.
An additional 3 percent are said to he suffeving from mental disahili-
tics such ns mental retardation. seizure disorders, nenromotor disn-
bilities, and school-learning problems. Though these datn reflect seri-
ous need for various types o%‘ therapentic and specinl education serv-
ices, the isaies surrounding the inclusion of n developmental sereening
component in RPSDT are extraordinarily complex and envrently the
subject of intense debate,

We recognize the need for a replicable screening instrument. for
measuring developmental differences that is sensitive to the widely
varying child-rearing practices and cultural backgronnds of ehildren
in this country. Some developmental landmarks—Ilargely physical abil-
itics, such as the attainment. of gross and fine motor skills—ean he con-
sidered cnlture-free. However, at present we do not have a reliable
sereening instrument for assessing such qualities as “intelligence and
learning ability™ or “cmotional stability and social coping” among
all children in anr multifaceted society.,

Further, there is an inherent danger in any sereening process which
i8 particularly relevant to developmental sereening: People tend to
think of screening ns o form of diagnosis. Tt is not. § creening is simply
a convenient way of sorting out individnals who have some likelihood
of pathology in a given arca. Commonly, screening is done by non-
professionals. and there is a danger that children who fail a given

rocedure will be labeled as suffering from the suspeeted condition.
£t mo om{;lmsiz(? that screening is not a Iabeling process. Diagnosis
is required before a condition is identified and labeled. Morcover, diag-
nosis should always he prescriptive—that is, diagnosis for treatment
of the condition identified, rather than for attaching a label to the
condition,

It is necessary, then. to proceed with extreme cantion. It is impera-
tive that we do not attempt to mandate program efforts that are in
advance of our knowledge. We must avoid the truly tragic conse-
quences of inappropriately labeling large numbers of children being
developmentally retarded or having learning disabilitics.

Should developmental screening be undertaken, it is critical that the
labeling phenomenon be avoided. that diagnosis be in the hands of
professionals, and that treatiment be made readily available. Further,
such an effort should only be undertaken in the context of identifying
the strengths as well as the weaknesses of a child, with prescribed
treatment that capitalizes on the first while offering remediation for

“the second. Having said that. I do not mean to imply that we should

discontinue those cfforts at diagnosing and treating children with psy-
chosocial or learning deficits that are within our present capabilities to
correct.

The foregoing has onutlined the extent of the problems to be con-
fronted—both in terms of the health status of children and in terms
of the administrative difficulties encountered in program development.
If the EPSDT program is to realize is potentiall.)the first step is to as-
sure that the program becomes a viable and effective resource for medic-
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aid-eligible children. When this is accom lished, there will be a cor-
responding improvement in the quality of care accorded all children
through a ripple effect. We must. then, examine some of the specific
major difficulties which have impeded implementation of EPSDT.

Ti the wake of Federnl efforts to decentralizo control of spending
programs in favor of State management and accountability, we find
woeful chaos in many hnman service programs. Formula grants re-
quiring proof of implementation of specified services are often ap-
Fortioned without adequate assistance or gunidelines to enable States to

ollow through with acceptabie delivery mechanisms. The EPSDT
prograim is a partienlar case in point. Tt requires the delivery of serv-
ices—typically nnder sponsorship of the State pnblic health agency.
The services are to be directed toward a specified popnlation— nsnally
identified throngh the State welfare agency. Finally. the services are
to bo reimbursed with Federal moneys and matching funds which are
generally funneled throngh the State fiscal offices. That sneh an ar-
rangement. shonld prove dysfunctional is not. surprising. That the
regional HEW offices should be forced to engage in costly honse to
house surveys to determine whether or not services are being delivered
rather than conducting administrative andits is also not surprising.

In Jannary 1975 the Comptroller General issned a report to the
Congress concerning improvements needed to speed implementation
of BEPSDT."* Among the general problemns identified in the report
were

Tnadequate ontreach techniques:

Lack of ntilization of allied health professionals:

Inadequate procednres for periodic npdating of screens: and

Inadequate follow-np mechanisms.

The Federal policy of giving the States a free hand in administering
EPSDT has produced not one program bt 50 Jdifferent programs. Un-
fortunately. most of these programs share at least two regrettable
characteristies. First. many States. in an effort to redunce costs. have
snbscribed to the philosoplhy that requiring frequent recertification for
eligibility will rednce ntilization of services. Thns. costs are controlled
by reducing services—a philosophy of questionable propriety, The
negative consequences in terms of availability. accessibility. and con-
tinnity of care within the EPSDT program for cach participating
child ‘are obvions. T submit that. at & minimum, ench clild shonld be
guaranteed continuity of care throngh a single screcning, diagnosis.
and treatment sequence. Failure¢o diagnose a condition after screening
and failure to treat after dingnosis becanse of shifting eligribility statns
is medically and ¢thically intolerable.

The second area of similarity among the programs is the meneral
failire on the part of State agencies to ntilize competent area resonrees
to implement the program. Instead. there is a trend toward the develop-
ment of separate frecstanding clinics to carry out EPSDT functions
which conld easily be incorporated by existing facilities. In pursnit
of the pork barrel. some State agencies have gone to trnly ineredible
lengths to avoid contracting for services from existing resources. Fix-
amples include requiring that all sereening be conducted at desigmated

1 Improvements Needed To Speed Implementation of Medicald's Early and Periodic
Kereening, Diagnosls, and Treatment Program. Comptroller General of the United KRtates,
DHEW. Social and Rehabllitntion Service, Washingten. D.C., January 9. 1075,
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State-operated clinics, failure to utilize other federally sponsored serv-
ices such as children and youth projects, and failure to establish for-
ma] fee-for-service protocols that would enable the private sector to

-~render needed diagnostic and treatent services.

The net effect of these policies has been longer waiting lists for ding-
nostic and trentment services from “approved” providers. With
luck—the reasoning goes—eligibilty will run out before the child
reaches the top of the list. It is essential that these. problems be ad-
dressed and remedial action taken. It is essential that States be made
accountable for children in need of eare.

I therefore submit. to the subcommittee the following observations:

It is imperative that States be required to assign responsibility for
conducting the EPSDT program to a single State ageney or depart-
ment, and stringent penalties which do not impinge on human services
shonld be enforced for those States which fail to comply.

The State ageney or department should be in direct receipt of Fed-

~oral funding for the program. subject to regional administrative re-

view, and have nccess to ndequate technical assistance from the Federal
Government thronghout implementation of the progran.

Accountability for service delivery is not incompatible with the con-
cept of stage-managed programs. In addition. States should be re-
quired to provide adequate assurances that those indeed are actually
being served and that continnity is maintained thironghont the screen-
ing, diagnosis. and treatment process.

Federal guidelines should require that States make adequate nse of
existing health care resources.

Adequate Federal regional staff should he assigmed to provide
proper monitoring of State programs.

We at Children's Hospital National Medical Center, in recognition
of both the potentinl and shortcomings of the EPSDT progmm, are
currently in active pursuit of private funding to establish a collabora-
tive service integration project (CSIP). This project will seck to
develop ways of caping with the identified problems associated with
the delivery of EPSDT services and to maximize the ntilization of
existing community resonrces.

Planning for the CSIP has been a cooperntive effort hetween the
hospital, the Distriet of Columbia Department of Human Resources.
and other public'and private purveyors of cure. This effort is evidence
of the concern we at the local level and in the private sector feel for
children such as these before yon today.

In smmmary, we have briefly reviewed some of the pressing social,
economic, and administrative aspects of ehild health eare. in general,
and the EPSDT prograni., in particular, It is essential, however, that.
we do not allow the individual child to hecome obseured in a maze of
percentages, conditions. eategories. and eriterin.

In order that we might, for the moment, consider the individual and
personal consequences of inadequate health protection. I have brought
with me todav three children whose lives have been drastically altered
and whose potential for contribnting to the growth of society has been
incalculably impaired. Each of these children conld have heen spared
his or her handicapping condition through early detection and rapid
and full treatment. As we consider each child in ‘turn, let us remember
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that we possess the techmology to have avoided these devastating
CONSeQNENCes.

Towonld like to imtroduee Irene Driver. On my vight, Mes, Driver
and ite dangliter, Judy, who Iis a very serions chrome renal disability
that requires renal dialysis and a kiduney transplant.

Unfortunately, the child’s condition has deteriorated to the point |
that she was nnable to aecompany us today. Her condition is the direct
result of an undetected prolonged nrinary tract infection.

Mrs. Patricia Yonng on my left, and her son. Eddie. who has a
serions hearing impairment that was snspected by the mother at 6
months of age but was not professionally corroborated amd treated
until mueh later thns leading to serious developmental impairments.

Third, Mrs, Pamela Speaks and her two (‘hi](‘l‘(‘ll. Yvette and Ella.
were found to be suffering from lead poisoning. and it was only de-
teeted throngh o rontine health assessment.

Mr. Cliairman, these are the parents,

Thank you very nmeh for your attention.

Mr. OrriNeer, Thank you very mneh, Dr. Green.

That is a very poignant andsinformational statement yon Irave given
to the conumittee.

Becanse of the time shortage, we only have about 10 mimntes for
questioning.

M. Schiener. do you have any questions?

My, Seirerer. No, Mr. Chairman.

I appreciate the witness’ statement very mmeh. It was very
thoughtful,

Mr, Orrizaer. Congressnun Sharp?

M. Snare. Mre. Chairman, T will withhold questions,

Mr, OrmiNcer. Congressman Santini.

Mr. SantiNe Dr, Green. do yon limve an speeifie recommendations
within the broad scope of your exeellently cousidered and evaluative
testimony ?

D Greex. Sir, the major recommendation that T inake is, first of all,
that there be adequate funds anthorized and allocated to the various
States and stiffer penalties apply to States that fail to comply with
the EPSDT component of the medieaid program,

I do feel that there is a eritical need from what 1 understand of
further monitoring stafl in HEW regional offices to make snre that
this program is functioning effectively.

My, Sanmixt, Tn your judgment, right now we have the legal ma-
chinery and authorization to do the job if we provide the funding
and oversight to implement it?

D, Greex. T believe so. sir. As long as there is a real comuntment
to do the job. '

Mr. SaxtiNn Thank you very mneh, Dr, Green.

You have done a superh job,

Mr. OvminGer, Mr, Segal has a question.

Mr. Sesan. Dr, Green. in your statement von say that 1 out of every
10 children is suffering from communication disorders, partienlarly
hearing. Conld yon deseribe the kind of conseqnences that sometimes
come from undetected liearing disorders and the difference it mukes
from an early sereening toone later on?

15 ¥



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

11

Dr. GreeN. Yes, sir; I will be glad to.

An undetected hearing problem may delay normal language de-
velopment as well as eventnally lead to a perceptual disorder that
will reflect itself in the child's capacity to work in school. Once they

. are labeled “dull” or “EMR" (educably mentally retarded) on the
basis of a perceptual deficit, which is all too connon, 90 percent of
" children so labeled and put in so-called slow learning classes are

doomed tostay in snch classes. .

I think that when perceptual deficits are not recognized early on,
not only the hearing but the visnally impaired as well as those suffer-
ing moderate or mild brain damnage, it impacts negatively on their
capacity to take full udvantage of the educational system to prepare
them for a productive role asan adnlt.

M. SkGar. In following throngh on that point, you noted that there
were about 11 million children last year ont of un eligible popnlation of
13 million eligibles nnder EPSDT who had not been screened.

Would it be a fuir statement to say a‘)pmximatoly 1 out of every 10

‘'of those would sutfer some kind of anditory hearing deficiency when

screecned ? .
Dr. Green. They will perhaps suffer some form of perceptual

deficit, whether it is anditory, visnal, or central nervous system,

To say exactly anditory wonld not be, T am snre. qnite accurate,

Mr. SkGaL. It wonld be a fair conclusion to draw that it may very
well be 1 million children who would have one of these deficits that
could be treated earlier if screened appropriately nunder this program?

Dr. Greex. Absolutely.

Finaly. in responsc to Mr. Santini‘s question regarding further
legislative initiatives, there must be strengthening also of the ont-
reach programs of EPSDT to make snre all the children who are
eligible to participate are really brought into the system.

Mr, Orrixger. Mr. Wander. do yon have any questions?

Mr. Woux~ber. T have one question,

Dr. Green. what. in your opinion. would constitute an effective ont-
reach program?

You in(fi("atod the need for one in yonr statement. .

Dr. Greex. I feel an effective ontreach program is one in_which
individnals from the neighborhood in which the health facility 1s
located are trained to go into the community to identify children at
risk and bring them into the health system. Snch comnnity visiting
may also be carried ont by community health workers, physicians
nssistants, nurse practitioners, visiting imrses. social workers, and
other allied health professionals. . .

In essence, a structured method of going out. identifying and bring-
ing children into the health system. .

Mr. Wu~NpER. Thank vou. Mr. Chairman, .

Mr. SaxTivi. Mr. Chairman. T would like to have these children

presented.
Mr. Orrinaer. T was going to do that, myself. ) .
Were the problems of the families before von picked np in the
sereening process under this program or were they picked np or iden-

tifierd in some other way?
Dr. Gregx. Could T ask my parents to respond to that?
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Mrs. Speaks; would you respond to the question of how your chil-
dren were identified as having lead poisoning? ’

Mrs, Seeaks. They were identitied when I took them to the elinic for
lead poisoning. becanse they always took sick and they conld hardly
hewranything [ said. ' '

Mr. Ormixaer, How did you find ont that it was lead poisoning that
was their problem?

Mrs, Seeaks. At the Children's Hospital elinie,

Mr, Orrsaenr, What about the other parents who are here?

Mrs. Youna. My son was more or less sereened throngh me at homne.

Dne to the fact that T had had one normal child, 1 eonld tell that
this child was not normal in that he did not respond to me as children
do, babies do. Tt was through iy watehing and looking and secing that
he did not develop normally as faras his response to e,

It was then that 1 decided to point this ont to his pediatrician who
then thought that perhaps there was a hearing loss. This is how it all
came abont,

My, Orrixaer. Were vou aware that thete was a sereening program?

Mrs. Yorsa, No.

First of all. neither dea fuess nor any of these problems ever entered
my mind at all exeept for the fact that T knew that there was some-
thing wrong.

I was not aware of any screening that conld have heen done on him
sooner.

Mr. Orrxaen, M, Driver,

Mrs, Duiver. My daughter has 2 renal problem, When her problem
acenrred. she was about 5 vears old, and I carrvied her to the elinic
regmlarly. They said too mueli protein, This private doctor told me
it cleared up.

Two yemrs ago, I earried her to the hospital. They told me her
kidneys' were alimost complotely gone. We tried to put her on the
machine. Tt didn't work, Then they said they had to flush her kidneys.
She was almost on the eritieal list,

Then, finally, about a couple months after that they put her on
medicine and a diet. a real expensive diet, and medicine. They bronght
her back into the hospital, They pat a shot in her arm. removed her
kidneys.

She has hiad a renal problem sinee the day she was 5 years old.
TF she had staved in the elinie, probably she wouldn't have the prob-
lem now,

Mr. Ornixcer. The. doetor said that if this had been identified
earlier von wouldn't have had to have the transplant.?

Mrs. Duver. T don't know whether she would have had to have the
transplant but she could have been treated with the diet. )

Now. if she had been in the elinie, where she conld go to the elinie
regularly with her problem, when she first started having the prob-
lem. then they wonld have known: T really believe they would have
known, that she had a kidney disease, .

Nobody ean tell e that kidney disease happens overnight. and you
go to the doctor and they tell yon don’t have any kidneys: they are
already gone. T will never believe that,

Mr. Ornxcer, T want to thank von all very muel: for being with
us. T wish we could spend more time at it,
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Thank you very much for being with us.
Mr. Saxtizr. Could I ask one quick question ?
How simple a screening process wonld it have been to have detected
the particular ailment of these children beforchand and what are the
—-~cost-factors involved ?
Dr. Green. The cost factor for checking urine wonld be roughly
35 to 40 cents a visit. The problem is continuity. '

" I think what we have \lmre is the need for continuity, ongoing eval-
uation, rather than this haphazard episodic kind of care, and this
iswhat EPSDT is to do.

The screening for hearing test can be done by nudiometry for a very
small amount of money once there is an audiometer available.

Screening for lead poisoning costs roughly in a private laboratory
about $8 per screen. It can be done now in the Department of Fluman
Resources here in the District. free of charge. to any parent, regard-
less of socioeconomic status.

So, the cost of sereening is minimal, It is the after effects. -

Mr. Orrivger. Thank you.
Next we will hear from Mr. and Mrs. John Maguire of Yeadon,

STATEMENT OF MR. AND MRS. JOHN MAGUIRE, YEADON, PA, AC-
COMPANIED BY MICHAEL T. McDONNELL, JR., AND DENNIS
HAGERTY, COUNSEL

Mr. McDoxyeLL. My name is Michael MceDonuell. T am attorney for
the Maguires in a civil matter out. of which this arose,

I would like to introdice to von my clients.

This is Ann Maguire, sitting to my immediate right: John Maguire,
her husband. and the father of Christine and Christine is sitting to
the right with the blond hair,

This is Dennis Hagerty, who is also an attorney. who will introduce
himself,

Mr. Hacerry. Mr. Chairman and members of the snbcommittee, I
am Dennis Hagerty. also for the Maguires. a lawyver in Philadelphia,
member of the National Advisory Council and consnltant. to the {’ms-
ident’s Council on Mental Retardation.

Mr. Orrineer. We are very pleased to have yon here.

We also would appreciate it if you could submit your statement. for
the record [see p. 1(5 and jnst describe to us informally tlie informa-
tion that you have for us if you would like.

Go ahead.

Mrs. Macuire. Right ITonorable Representatives of the Congress
of the United States, members and staff of the Subconunittee on Over-
sight and Investigations of the Conimittee on Interstate and Foreign
Commerce, distinguished guests :

My name is Ann Magnire (nee DiDonato). T was born Febrnary
24,1938. T am 37 years old. T graduated from high school in 1955 from
the West Catholic Girls High Selwool in Philadelphia, Pa.

Throughout my school years. T was an above-avernge student. I have
a snperior IQ. T have passed civil serviee tests for seeretarial positions
and worked in that position with the Inspector of Naval Material in
the city of Philadeiphia.

80-800 0—75%— —-2
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My parents are both living, and my father’s name is William Di-
Donato and my mother's is Annn DiDonato (nee Pollitt). Both
my parents were born in the United States and are citizens of the
United States, attended school and were raised in the city of

_Philadelphia. ... e

Mg father retired from Gulf Oil in Philadelphia in 1973. My mother
had been and continues to be a housewife. They are both in good lhealth
and fully functional.

I am one of two children, with a sister named Joan Ference, 41, born
February 3, 1934. She issimilarly in good health.

My husband, John Maguire, is employed as a steamfitter with
Philadelphia Electric Co. and hus been so employed for 16 years. He
is in excellent healtly, is present with me this morning, und has no
physical disabilities known to me. He is the son-of Mary and John
A. Maguire, now deceased, both citizens of the United States and of the
city of Philadelphia, Pa.

He knows of no living relative of his father, other than his annt
who is in good bealth and alive. His mother’s family, of whon there
areonesister und five brothers, are all well.

On December 29, 1956, 1 married my lusband in St. Lawrence's
Cluirch, Upper Darby, Pa. We took up residence together with my
purents at my home in U pper Darby, Pa. .

My first son was due 10 months after my marriage and was delivered
at thie community hospital for the Upper Darby area. that is, Delaware
County Memorinl Hospital. I was a fee-paying patient of a doctor
whose specialty was limited to obstetries, one Dr. K. Earl Trout, with
offices in Springfield, Delaware County, Pa.

I had ul‘ the approved prenatal enre and preseriptions which were
then nsed. T followed my doctor’s recommendation in regard to diet.
I do not know of any failure on my part to follow a good srenatal
vegime and believe that T did all that was suggested by the p 1ysician
for my own well-being and that of my haby.

John was full term and in ohvious good health at the time of delivery.
He was attractive and 8 pounds, 8 onnces. John is a vietim of PKTI.
John is now 18 years old and a full and complete life is totally denied
to him hecause of the retardation as a direct result of the PKT disease.

John's care was undertaken by Dr. Charles McCutehen. a general
practitioner. and I followed all recommendations made Ly him to the
letter with regard to every aspect of infant eare.

At the time of John's birth. we lived at my parents” home. my hus-

hand then being in the service. T thus had present my wother, who had

cared for both wyself and my sister and was familiar with the cave
of 1 healthy child. having eared for hoth myself and my sister.

Tt-was apparent to her and to myself that John was not making prog-
ress physically but was. in fact. having what appeared to be con-
siderable physical diffienlty for a newhorn.

Just to recite a few observable problems and not so as to exclude
others, T was. at all times. aware and made aware by my mother that
there was a peculiar odor on John's diaper at changing.

This observation was. to my knowledge, a coinmon one by anyone
who, during that period, came to change this child. whieh inclnded my
husband, my father. and my sister, who lived in the neighborhood

and was frequently there.
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1 also observed a rash which 1 had little success in controlling, no

matter what was used.
John, being the first born, was watched by the many adults in our

home and strongly.enconraged.to do such things as walking, stand--

ing, and any other behavior that would indicate his reaching devel-

. opmental milestones.

However, he would pass the time period for reaching such mile-
stones and invariably be much, much }uter in reaching them than was
expected of him becanse of his size and general appearance, which
continued to be and is to this date, physically attractive.

Mr. SaxtiNi. What is PKU?

Mrs. Macuke. Phenylketonuria.

Mr. SaxmiNi. For the ordinary lawyer, what does that mean ?

What happens physically?

Mr. Maguigre. Phenylketonuria is an inherited digestive disorder
in which the body lacks a chemical necessary to convert one animo
acid—cheniical—phenylalanine ; to another amino acid ; tyrosine. Due
to the inability to change the phenylalanine into the next chemical,
tyrosine, the body accimnlates an excessive amount of phenylalanine.
This acid builds™up in the blood and leads to destruction of certain
brain tissue.

PKTU is the abbreviation for phenylketonnria. This is the disease,
itself.

Mr. Suare. Conld that be discovered by a simple test after the
birth?

Mr. McDoxNELL. Yes; a Heal test.

Mrs. Macuige. John's developmental milestones were all very, very
late. He walked, sat, talked. and ate long after what shonld have been
the time for him to do these things.

I was. of course, conscions of these becanse T had girl friends of
my age having babies of their own who would bring their babies around
and they could do more than my John could do even thongh they
were younger. .

I continned regmlar visitations to Dr. McCutcheon and explained
to him thronghont this time my observations which are not limited
to those mentioned above.

I. of course, could recite numerons other observations which were
equally and timely reported to the physician.

John, in addition to being “cared for” by Dr. McCuteheon, was
only 1 month old when he was returned to Delaware County Memo-
rinl Hospital becanse of diffienlty with his howel movements. At that
time, all the manjfestations of PKU disease were plainly visible,
together with the bowel complication, which is also a symptom of
the disease. , ) i )

Despite all these carcful efforts throughout his childhood into his
pubertal period and throngh and into adolescence. the disease went
undetected by his treating physicians, who. at age 2. became a gen-
eral practitioner by the name of Dr. James Dunn.

At age 4. he was hospitalized for a hernia at Delaware County
Memorial Hospital. At age 5, he was hospitalized for tonsils at the
same hospital. At all times. hoth by history and by appearance, being
blond. fair and blue eyed. he was a victim of the disease known

as PKU.
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ITis eare continmed in the professional responsibility of Dr. Dunn
throngh and into 1967 when, at the birth of his sister, the care was
tiansferred to a gentleman who held himself ont as o pediatrician.

e This gentleman’s nnme is John Bomberger. .

He: too, was a member of the stafl’ of Delaware County Memorial
Hospital.

John wis never diagnosed at all on the basis of his own symptoms.
In fact, he wonld have gone undingnosed perhaps forever, were it
not for the dingnosis made by a Dr. Eleanor Gordon at Kencrest
of his brother, William.

From infancy through childhood throngh adolescence and into
young manhood, this disease was undiagnosed.

= Mr, Orriscer. Mrs, Maguire, beeause of our time limitations, I
think we would use the time better if we conld have yvour statement
in the record.

If yon conld summarize the problems you had and use the little
time for exchange. I think it would he better than going through the
statement. Otherwise, all the time will be used in reading the state-
menit. We do have that and it will be made a part of the record.

T wondered if von could tell us in just 2 few words about the prob-
lems that. your other children did experience. Then we would have an
opportunity to have some questions from the committee,

Mrs. Maguire. William is now 16 years old. He is severely retarded.
He is in Spring City. in the Pennhurst State School and Hospital for
the Mentally Retarded.

Mr. OrriNcer, He has the same problem with PKU?

Mrs. Macuire, Christine has the-same problem. She was horn in 1967.
She was tested for PKU at the Delaware County Hospital ut it was
not picked up. She is now in the special education classes and does
have brain dnmage.

| Testimony resumes on p. 20|

[ Mrs. Magmire’s prepared statement follows:]

STATEMENT oF MRS, JouN MAacUIrk, YEApoN, [a,

My name is Ann Magnire (nee DiDonato), 1 {ens born February 24, 1938. 1 am
37 yveanrs old, T gradunted High School in 1995 from the West Catholie Girls Tlizh
School in Philadelphia. Pa. Thronghoul my seheol yeurs 1 was an above-nvernge
student. I have a superior 1Q. 1 hnve pussed eivil service tests for secretarial
positions and worked in that position with the Tuspector of Naval Material
in the City of Philadelphia.

My putents ate both living and wmy father's nawme is Willlam DiDonato
and my mother's is Annn DiDonato (nee Pollitt). Both my parents were born in
the United States and nre citizens of the United States, attended sehool and were
raised in the City of Philadelplia. My father retired from Guif Oil in Philadel-
phia in 1973. My mother had been and continues to be o housewife. They are bhoth
in good health and folly funetional.

;T am one of two ehildren. with a sister nutmed Joan Ferenee. 410 born Febru-
ary 3. 1934, Khe is similarly in good health,

My hushand John Magnire is employed us a steam fitter with Philedalphia
Electrie Compnay and has been so employed for 16 years, Ile ix in excellent
health. is present with me this morning and has no physieal disabilities known
to me. e is the son of Mary and John A, Maguire, now decensed, hoth eitizens
of the United States and of the City of Philndelphin, P'a.

He knows of ne living relative of his father. other than his Aunt whe is in good
health and alive. His mother's family. of whom rthere are one sister and four
brothers. are all well.
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On December 20, 1956, I married my hushand in St. Lawrence's Church., Upper
Darby, Pa. We took up residence together with my parents at my home in Upper
Darby, Pa. My first son was due ten months-after my marringe and was de-

-livered at the community lospital for the Upper Darby area. L.e. Delawure

County Memorial Hespital. I was a fee paying patient of a doctor’s whose )

* "specialty” was limited to olistetries, one Dr. E. Earl Trout, with offices in" Spring-

field, Delawnre County, I’a. 1 had all the approved prenatal eare and presceriptions
which were then used. I followed my doctor's recommendation in regard to diet.
I do not know of any failure on my part to follow n good prenatal regime and
believe that I did nll that was suggested by the physician for my own wellheing
and that of my baby.

Jolin was full term and in obvious good health nt the time of delivery. Ile was
attractive and 8 lbs. 8 oz. John is a victim of PKU. Joln is now- 18 years old
and o full and complete life is totally denied to him because of the retardation
as a direct result of the PKU disease. John's eare was undertnken by Dr.
Charles McCutchen. a general practitioner and I followed all recommendations
made by him to the letter with regard to every aspect of infant eare.

At the time of John's hirth? we lived at my parents’ home, my hushand then
being in the service. I thus lind present my mother. who cared for both myself
and my sister and was familinr with the care of a healthy child, having cared
for both myself and my sister. It was apparent to her and to myself that John
was not making progress physically, but was, in fact. having what appenred to
be conslderable physical difficulty for a newborn, Just to recite a few observable
problems and not xo as to exchide others, I was, at all times. aware and nade
aware by my mother that there was a peculiar odor on Johin's diaper at changing.

This observation was, to my knowledge, a common one hy anyone who, during
that period. cnme to change thix child, which included my husband, my father,
and my sister, who lived in the neighhorhood and was frequently there.

I nlso observed a rash which I lhad little success in controlling. no matter
what was used. '

John, heing the firstborn, was wiatched by the many adults in our home and
strongly encournged to do such things as walking, standing and any other le-
havior that would indicate his reaching developmental milestones. However, he
would pass the time period for reaching such milestones and invariably by
much, much later in renching them than was expected of him because of his size
and general appenrance, which continued to he and is to this date. physically
attractive. John's developniental milestone were all very. very Iate. He walked.
sat. talked, and ate long after what should have heen the time for him to do
these things. I was, of course, consclous of these hecause I lind girifriends of
my age having babies of thielr own who would bring their habies around and they
could do more than my John could do even though they were younger.

I continued regular visitation to Dr. McCutlieon and explained to him through-
out this time my observations which are not limited to those mentioned above.
I. of course, could recite numerous other observations which were equally and
timely reported to the physician,

John, in addition to being “cared for” by Dr. McCutheon, was only one month
old when he was returned to Delaware County Memorinl Hospital hecause of
difficuity with his bowel movements. At that time, all the manifestations of PKU’
disense were plainly visible, together with thie howel complication. which is also
a sympton of the disease.

Despite all these careful efforts throughout his childhood into his pubertal
period and through and into adolescence, the disease went undetected by his
treating physicians who, nt nge 2, became a general practitioner by the name of
Dr. James Dunn. At age 4. he was hoespitalized for a hernia at Delaware County
Memorial Hospital. At age 5. he was hospitalized for tonsils at the same hospital.
At all times. both by history and by appearance. being hlond. fair and hiue-eyed.
he was a victim of the disense known as PKU. |

Hise care continued in the professional responsibility of Dr. Dunn through and
into 19687 when. at the birth of his sister, the care was transferred to n gentleman
Iv;hn held himself out as a pediatrician, This gentleman’s name is John Bom-

TRer. ’

He, too. was a member of the staff of Delaware County Memorinl Hospital.

John was never diagnosed at all on the hasis of his own symptoms. In fact.
he would have gone undignosed perhaps forever if it were not for the resuilt
of n diagnosis made hy a Dr. Eleanor Gordon at Kencrest of his hrother. William.

From infancy through childhood through adolescence and into young manhond.
this disense wns undiagnosed.
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This disease, which is the most common inherited disease cansing retardation,
was missed by the hospital, the authorities in the schools, wheo were allegedly
in charge of rununing special classes, the county who was aware of his siblings'
profound retardation requiring commitiment and the entire family hackgronnd,

including John's slowness and placemeut in retarded programs.

The ‘effect. of the degrée of retardation in John has destroyed not just his
prospect for a normal life, but anlso for the opportunity to engage in life, liberty
and the pursuit of happiness,

Perhaps the greatest burden Joln has had to earry thronghout the years is
hisx normal appearance. This appears to be contradictory. However, it must be
recalled that there is no notice to anyoue denling with John as of his slowness,
In fact, he is inordinantly attractive. Thus, the expectation level of the persons
dealing with him is set at the level of his appearance to them which signifies
to them normal, at least average, behavior. Thus, John, thronghout his school
years, has had the crushing burden of dealing with his peers who expeet him
10 be able to do the things that they do. adults and tenchers with the same
expectations. and a future of similar expectations from employgers.

There is no doubt that the almost continuous failure of John to reaeh the ex-
pectation that people put into his appearance has been, perhaps, the most invidi-
ous injury of all, He is slow academically, athletically, soclally and economically.
His horizons for social completion, i.e. datinge and family, are not only diminishe,
but virtually eliminated in an npper-middle ineome, predominantly above-nvernge
intelligence people in which he has continually had to compete.

His economie ‘horizons are equally dimmed since he is not only mentally re-
tarded, but, together with that, suffers from diminished reflexes and frequent
inappropriante emotional hehavior.

1t i not unfair to suggest that the responsible persons have destroyed not just
John's social and econonie herizons, but also perhaps the most important horizon,
Le. his emotionnt adjustment and place in society. He will be constantly. as he
has in the past, presiimed normal and an expectation level developed that in no
way John ean ineet and the failure of which will be met with, as it has in the
past, desperate injury to him and his family and obviously to society as well.

The second born child of our marringe was Willinm, born June 260, 1959, William
was, it birth, 7 1bs. 5 oz, and was born at Delaware County Memorial Iospital
Willlam is noy 16 years old. Willinm is profoundly retarded and a resident of
Pepnhurst State School, Spring City, Pennsylvania. William has been iastitution
alized from age § and has spent time at the following loeations: Pry Home in
West Sunbury, ’a.: Kenerest, Phoenixville, "1, and Pennhurst School. Spring
City. o, William was also seen for purposes of treatment and/or evaluation and/
or hoth at the following Pennsylvanin and New Jersey Hospitals: Delaware
County Memorinl Hospital ; Children's Hospital of 1*hiindelphin ; Butler Memo-
rinl Hospital. Butler, I'n.: Children’s Seashore Hospital. Atlantic Clty, New
Jersey.,

The doctors, as in Johr's case. included my obstetrician. Dr. Trout ; thereafter,
the below named doctors, inter alin, at different times: Drs. Dunn, Scott, Baker,
Turnblacer, Rookbinder, Fmbrie, Ashbaugh, and other staff physicinns of the
various hefore-referred to hospitals.

Rilly was, is and always has been a classic PKU victim in both clnical and
laboratory teris. Shortly after birth, he manifested an extremely. distinet decline
of all his physical and mental capacities. manifesting itself particularly in an
inability to turn over or sit up until months heyond the wllestones, Tiis hody
wits covered with a rash which was totally nuncontrollable. His hair was blonde.
his diaper smeiled. Tt was apparent, especially to me, as well as to my wife and
my mother in law that the baby was not making progress and. in fact. was
maturing very little in the way of good responses,

We went to the doctor to complain. We took the bahy to the hospital for indi-
cated surgery. We did everything told to us by the medical people to attempt to
contain the obvious decline of this child without avail, We were eriticized for our
spoiling the child and thereby causing some of the symptoms which we noted
and described ahove and which must. have been noticeable to the attending phys-
ieian because they would ocenr in his presence as well.

I was so concerned with the progress that [ demanded that n referral
be made to a physician associated with Children's Hospital of Philadelphia so
that T conld get some confirmation of what was happening to my boy. This wns
done and still no one mentioned either the word retardation or the canse of it.

I was at all times encouraged to continue doing what I had done previousiy,
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I did not hear the word retarded from any of the physicians until Dr. Dunn
finally told me, by Inadvertence, that one of the reasons why 1 was having difti-
culty controlling Billy was that he was, in fact, retarded. Again, no effort had
been, theretofore, made to my Kknowledge to ascertain the reason for snch
retardation. ) o ) —

Billy's retardation was of such level that it was impossible for me to continne
to care for Billy at home in any way. Thus, the County of Delaware, in ’enn-
sylvania, was contacted for assistance in finding a suitable residence for Billy
at a private care center where his condition could be looked after.

In fact. what ocenrred was that he was warehoused in enstodial care in
Western Pennsylvania at a home which had no physicians on its stnff. whose
proprietor had no training whatsoever in mental retardation on a professional
and. indeed. on any level. Despite this, the warehousing contimied for a period
of 7 years when it was terminated only hecause Billy got a eritical illness which
necessitated his immediate hospitalization.

Billy's sitnation is different than John in every axpect in that he has never,
at any thne. been able to do even the more basic things, such as clothe. feed
or see to his own elimination. Indeed. the entire time he was at the I'ry Home
he was not trained in any wny and was and has continned to wear a diaper.

The single effect of the govermuental ngency. who together with the henlth
care facility’s removing Billy from both the Home and the neighborhood was
to assure that diagnosis would not be made of his condition and thereby
immedately advising us ns to the presence of the disense in our family. This,
of course. prevented any poxsibility of detection of the disense and the institn-
tion of treatment and care of my after-born children, of which there were four
in number.

Billy was the genesis. however. of the discovery of the disease upon immedinte
observation by Dr. Gordon at Kenerest in Montgomery County, 1’a. What was
not done theretofore, was done by Dr. Gordon. viz. the detection of PKU, The
Instunt 1 was informed by Dr. Gordon of the possibility of a disense which, had
it been treated. could have been cured. as the source of the problem in my three
children. I was, of course, determined that if it was within my capacity, this
would never happen to any parent again angwhere in the world,

I had three unaffected children between Billy and Christine who sits with
me here today. Christine, at the time of her hirth. as had John and Rilly. was
a perfectiy normnl chiid. They were not only normal. but they were physicaily
attractive and obviously in good health being of fmll term and weight,

The same symptomology which had been observed by me in the two earlier
children. i.e. John and Biily. was immnediately observed by me in Christine.

Christine was born May 7. 1967, at Delaware County Memorial Hospital, She
was delivered by Dr. Trout who had delivered my prior chiidren. She was. from
birth, placed in the care of a pediatric specialist by the name of Dr. John
Bomberger. Dr. Bomberger and the hospitnl were charged with compliance with
the then-existant testing system for the disease known ns PKU in Pennsylvania
wlhiich provided niternate testing methods. Christine's original text was not done
as required by the statute prior to her discharge from the hospital at birth,
but was done as a result of n caliback made by the hospitai to my wife and a
request that she be returned to the hospital for this specific purpose. As requested,
we delivered Christine to the hospital for the test. It was done and I was of
the impression that the test had exonerated Christine frow the disease,

However, with the contimiing decline of Christine. as had her brother John
particnlarly. together with all the symptomology. T was continnously concerned
and contimously reminding the physician that 1 had other children who had
returdation problems and that the appearance of this child indicated to me that

..she was much iike hier brothers who were retarded.

However. I was not ever. at any time. made aware of the aature of PKU
or the symptomology and/or the hereditary nature of the disease.,

Indeed. up untii the thme of the discovery by Dr. Gordon, there was a totai
lack of communication with me at all as to the possible causes. if any, of
retardation in two siblings.

I assure this panel that had any information been given to me as to even
a scintilla of possibiiity of heredity in the disense pattern. I would have in-
vestigated it fully and would certainly have discovered within the famiiy {hat
a maternal cousin’s children were victims of PKU but had been detected and
timely treated for the disease.

This gap in investigatory procedures was at every level. physteian, hospital,
public service agency, and social service agency. No one, at any time, broached
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with me the possibility that there could be a familiar connection with the
problem my children were having and. indeed. ever even suggested that there
was a cnre for the affliction which we. my children and 1. have now suffered.
If any pattern is wmore apparent. it ix that Christine will suffer at least as

~ el as John has on the social and economice lndder.

1 have tried to avoid this continuing tailure to meet challenges by eontinning
to confine her to schools for retarded children, bmt because of her normal
brothers and-sisters, she is constantly confronted with and has to deal with
problems which are beyond her cnpacity to solve.

It is my opinion that all of iy chitdren were and are and always have
been normal in every aspect of their lives. with the exeeption of this disease.

There is not any reason for me to believe that the appropriate treatment
at the appropriate time would 1ot have left my ehildren normal children in
every respect.

The children’s parents were and are totally commited to their personal well-
peing and wonld have followed a diet to absolute letter. Iudeed. the first oppor-
tunity that I was ever given to observe the dietary program was not given to
me locally, but in Dr. Guthrie's clinic in Buffalo. N.Y.. where 1 was tremendous-
1y Impressed with the total effort to both discover mind cure this most pernicious
disease. . .

In conclusion, if my testimony before this Comnittee hasx any purpose at
all. it is my honest hope that its pnrpose will be to set up a continuing sereen-
ing and follow-up effort of all retarded chillren everywhere to discover the
basis for their retardatlon and to exclude s a possible basis PKU.

Indeed, there should be a national commitimment to the similar prevention of
this horrifying illness by a mandatory deteetion and program of follow through
on diet whicli conld and should be modeled after the program 1 had pleasture
to witness in Buffalo.

I am prepared now to answer anhy questions relating to the statement I
have just read.

Ilowever, 1 am certain this Conmittee nnderstands the purpose of my pref-
ace and the limitations contained therein, T will consult with my attorney in
regard to answering questions placed by the Committee.

APPENDIX A

Gentlemen : T regret that both my statement and my answers to questions
will be lnited, to some extent. in my testimony before you thix morping due
to the existence of litigation.

I cannot and will not speak to any of the issues involved in the litigation.
T will be required to consult with counsel on itny question prior to answering
it and will reserve iy right to do so.

This is done not simply in my own interest, but primarily in the interest
of the three affected children in my honsehold who have a signiticnnt part of
their economic future dependent upon the outcome of the civil litigntion and
whose rights T cannot and will not waive,

With those limitations. T will attempt to fully and completely answer your
questions and trust that 1 will answer fully completely any questions asked
by von.

Mr. Orriscer. We thank you very much for this testimony.

Mr. Schener, do yon have any questions?

Mr. Senrrer. No qhiestions,

Mr Orriscer. Mr. Sharp?

Mr. Suane. Did you say Christine was tested for PKU

Mus. Macrime, Yes. she was.

Mr. Siane. Was it diseovered in the first test?

Murs. Macuare, No. it wasn't.

Mr. Snare. Would this suggest if you had done this test again
within a reasonable period of time vou might have discovered it then?

Mrs. Macrine, The test enme back negative. They said there was
no reason to test her again.

Mr. Snane. Is the test for PKU now standard in that hospital?
Was it not for the first ¢hild?
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Mrs. MaGuire. It was not for the first child. It was for Christine.

Mr. Macuire. Mr. Sharp, when Christine was born, she was
released from the hospital. The hospital had found out that the test
had not been done. So, they had her come back.

. Now, this test is nsually done around the third or fourth day. If it is

done on the first day. results can be negative. She was out 2-days. No.
the sixth or seventh day it would be more natural for it to show up
and the test was negative.

Mr. Snare. Thank youn very much.

Mr. Orrixaer. Mr. Santini,

Mr. Saxnxi I appreciate your sharing vour experience with us.
It helps us to form a better educated judgment on the practical prob-
lems we are facing here as well as the legislative problem.

Mr. OrmiNaer. Mr. Segal.

Mr. Sear. I would like to ask, with your permission, that there be
inserted in the record articles, one describing mass screening for ge-
netic disense and another article describing neonatal screening for
phenylketonuria, indicating that more than 10 percent of the infants
with PKU today are not sereened and not being detected properly by
screening; and related articles on inborn genetic sereening,

Mr. Orrixeer. Without objection, it is so ordered.

[ Testimony resumes on p. 38.]

[ The articles referred to follow :]
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Mass Screening for Genetic Disease

ROBERT GUTHRIY  State Unireeaity of New York, Bugalo

Autnmatioit has already brought vur screening capability to the point where the same
specinien can be used to detect u numiber of hereditary aminuacidurias in addition to
vae. Yet application falls far bekind: only six laboratories in the U. 8. now do
wuch attomated multiple testing. Regionalizing the effort could close this gap -
and involve practically no increase in cost over thay of screening for s alune

It is now some Bye years since masy screening of neanates
for phenylketinuria became routine thruughout the United
States. The tests have been niade legally mandatiry in 43
states and are carried out voluntarily in the wther seven,
thereby cosering an estimated 90% of the 3.5 million in
fants bern annually in thiy (auntry; similar measures are
under w3y in at teast 15 ather nations. All told, these
«reening programs sdd up ta perhaps the mast extensive
esercise in P i dicine since the develop

polio vaccive.

Gisen 2 puhlic heaith effort of this magnitudr, 2 review
of the results would be appropriate in any case. But such
a3 resiew weemy especially desirable now, the light of
wome current effarts tu discontinue scteening programs
under the guise of 2 misnne
1 shall demonstrate, # a1 screening has proved itvelf not
merely » medical but alwn an economic succesn figured
in the maoat hard naeed budRetan terma: the sunce of
preve tion that saves an €xp ive pound of ] iy
It is alses. an we ate leaming, a pratype of other mass
screenink programe that can pay nre modest, but o
Leas eal, medic at and econemic dividends 1a che prevention
of genetic divease.

The firat test for pat wan. of cotree, the well-knuwn
“hlue diaper™ tests which dependy on the reaction hrtween
fertic chlaride and the phenylpyruvic acid in the urine of

3n affrcted infant. With the aid of this prwedures 3 num.

ber of cases of ¥at were detected. These were treated by
meams of 3 low-plienylalanine diet, with results that were
wimewhat #quisecal hut encouraging Howerer, this test
w3y unsuitable in many ways. First, it usaally gave posi-
tive results at best no carfier than aboue 3 twenth after
birth, uwing b the delay in rise of seeum levels of phe-
nylalanine 1o the uint where ity mrtabelic product would
show up in the urine; thus therr was rravin to sivpect that
by the time treatment could be initiated the infant might
already have suffered sme degrer of irreversible brain
damage. “Then, ity wuccess av 3 Maw wreening deviee de
pended heavily on the conprratun uf untrained or inex-
perirnced individuals - parents, public health nurees, etc.

27

- who wwuld have only the most eneral motion of what
10 Mask for. since their chances uf having seen another
case of this rare condition wete remaote.

In the late 1950 my asenciates and 1 were asked t0
run tests on serum phenylalanine levels 16 moniter the
dietury treatment of two PAT patients. Dissatisfied with
esistiog p d which were cumb: and contly,
we devised the bacterial inhibitiun test, which is neither.

This pracedure ernplays cultures of Bavillus subtilis in
an ager medium. Normally. this organism is capable of

dea-uwrxu.um-d»n—mhucu.
wdees begme with the arrvol by mail of Blood mmples like those
thoun ahote. on & revent Thurday & total of 137 arnved ot the
New York Sete health department's laboratory 10 Auffabs

Hospital Pracace June 972 93



Fults s pape®s - cutaaming the bloool sampd
foo panch

hewn 48 par ghs

senthesine heny Ll onne twhahoat

rrqutes e growth o, by of the o
h epeand L
atabrgue of e

disanr et

thie Ll anine

(PN

covntal m
kel v that ahr
topttinr When o Slter
prage ¢ disonpergnated with v ooum

Bliasd tromn i affrend o adoad os

e i

alay e

!

e cang

e

shetis alanine (ifuares

the mediam, pesdiscng s e o f

& the diee By pe

Lrawtl enrren,

ng the o

propriatety adp
a of the kbt the test

toute sensibive e yrtually the <t
range of enjier il kel e
€ the roae
othe

tenteatias, the wylth
gruth heang
atwmntof phenvlabaning pre

S
sennn
fresh, e trat bl be appdies

prropua teatal
"

Tav wae santade tetnanad o the

a blrsl il mer wenl v b

s
eavs bain, wath saatiples e vesadd 10
banhe~ at centeal Three
My e te Bt an e Bath celiabel

LEWFTINTN

v oand ecneng, an sdvantage sl
trady euggested by teals with yrine

wpregn el filop Fuusthes

papers

ORNUE N CL R

<M agatal

[

.
[T T TR

u
& Lt o dowd Bt et bds t
ca b o uhi ko e

23

e -

hd

it
tye

I
Ay 3 e

LU TN ang ~stamdanid

NI T )

edalen e By ity pnheod from,
e agarinated e, ad epe b
Hocebning eatheg tan the o gatis

aetf, for wciting ™t medinm This
iretatnt” ayfian shviated
the  stenle

oy Bsirpus
prrccansty

snd

[EIE, U
needrd 4o mamtan the yaltn
peefoesn the 1ot

Tt 1s this ont 1ty e ber oo 1
neatlh
I ha.

standacal nuethod e
o teges

g
twlf

ated rebiatle s am 1t ades

1 (qrantit

Teen T g e dinease st b A

Hrier

e e Bl 1y b e
Tore tigte
(L2 T I

e

o v gl degl b e

wd Aown

N NN
L C T NPVITRY LR PP
it te b dhewt e o et Dopem
larths, angdyane & groe frequenay
vallawing Lo vanangrnty g o sane
e b than e e hondied of
parpislatict [Yongh s incidence 1
foat s emifiantiv, |tk o
et tho paes

et doal b

e ats

matrs bt

v outnr teding (he

itinbonraty, that b

W e vty b

might
Asthenas lous
At At ape
nenalbe Bow e udenie of eat

e Fat bt the tewr 1o
. jorteal 1
nedd al wfanes, S0 S

devs e peomatares oy, alider, mon,

w,

st 1o e unan

sreind ot

ERTRSE I

b gueatny

RURR

28

gt dhiengind pray ontor P Stins
o prange
ot B ar the Lo r b

wilinm teaye

e uts rupls

vaaking e enbde e el tea
st feis WMy b ur aware

S the peetiad agnafi s of jur
runles jbembalause feaete O

aalby e ey ESREINE mo
Wi randerrd o gne et but the
neabny beved Bae ote beon
weent £ the poant whers new the
dpastrd s £ g b at b

fante with evely onrrding 1 nugtd

Wi an de s apected
o

0 oengrct e

A teet this v

ey

o e aans Y

vtoae fd tear we

rtrat oA aegm caves by
temapose wtnilcase U Ees Nane
I PATTL Arnhaitienty bs el

L eme s vt hae b e apiatent that

1t wtuern

theee vo b herprorer
inhenstedd Such of the eney
ammie hydeavbor tthe fundsme ntal
abadrfestan e 80 b ol
1 the atan cand #3001
with the rpimie defrol, as

el

b hene
setn eyl
wfaure
Toading

drtenmnert by pliensbaban

testa, weme 2900 maentan phiendal
e serutn ey ele of betwren Koyt
g warval et

e hoare bera o netdernd

[

andd L7y
it .

i we
hentgn
OF s cirse we capmt be cortan thy

theesr 1

wondil gtoow g retanded,
“tibe tovenrnative Cune ety
o phemdal

LI

vrre "ty g al®

amine ntahe ot e
Bat 11 s sigmfioant that

AL ey



cwih Ty th vhe

LIRS

o wred 1,0 e

en

Vs,
£,

Goravnarny,
os e ond the U S
TN cotundedd gt ebione

ot ramde s

o

e With AW abanenr

ORIIRPILUNT

evebet o mdisdudle with seun,
Sl e e oge Bt e
e Rt e ey

s oane . g

et e

[T

at the

I e een
st b

[ESETRINN

ther o
PR NIT DN 3
st e W R e F o
oty s g e the
A T LI ST
ENTETITRE 3 R

24
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apparatus, tesitng must he dime on 3
large walr: 3 minimum of SHW)
hirths 3 year This cansnitutes a pawre:
ful atgument fnr reguemalization nf
erENInE prRFANTS: en the salulimn
o tests based nn dtied blosd spats.
which can be niasted 1t the testing
center, thete is no goed teaann why
any heprital stealil fmd it neresvary
te cates on ity omn, amall sale,
woeening program  The centraliznd,
conenlidated programs alw possess
altantages frow the standpunnt of
A1 metale A pitegram caering only
2 few theasand turthe pee srear can
tun fur seiertl vears without
tnemng upt S single true cse of can
o that the persnnrl eyl mas
suquere the freling they e engag-d
in a penatless everive When the

an

wrerening head teahien the Jevel of
3000 e MRk pet ven hanever,
the rapertatile aumber of Cases will
preante gl eviden - that the pre
Lin goef rming oy aliatie peophe

futn famnon

1t w ald s
wtigatest thit the ot of wrrening o
fikrly to e nuarhedls lewerrd by eien
h 1 argamisation of these
Pragtams The mam cat fator s
nd will remnn, the actual gathering
{ specimens amil the nevessacs falliw
uts on pesitiee teats, the ar nual priwess
tively nunar atem B

w howeser to

Foeet tath

wang 1 oa el
thorities in New Zealand, far esample.
find thut with aneeniated aiptipment
the eante teating load  some 30000
W Zealand hinks per srar, play
wrvertt thausamd othees maled in
1stands - can be
n, wlse

Froon saruus P
rasle tandied by one pet
w ok anlades preprating and "eed
g™ the utture teas s, plaing the test
dise s on theon, st eranding the veults
v e & of mies screening will

antinne te test, as thes do now, on
the denponsteated fat that pres-ntion
i« rheaper than nanpesyention

The antanatel equipinent grew
wut uf the Gruding that the inbibition
away prewemdure can e adaptnd o the

© drtection of several other heeeitury

inneacidemias srpls bs varving the
inhitntar dissolved in the cnltner
niedium These domditions  incdude
valtremia, 1y eemia, histiditemia,
hemins atinmitia tin which we test for
pineruiat, and mapls  swrap
srine disease  flemineniiad - With
autemation, all these tests plus the
plvenstalamne test ean be cartied out

e thi

26

a1 no mote cost than the batier alone,
unantmated.

The miachine, called 4 punch
indesrr. hamlles test spevimens in
hatches of 56, B autmnaticatly s be.
ont four Ve tndde dises fronr cach sprot
nren blad sprst and transfees chen o
predetermined locations en fon o
ferent cultute trass, eath containug
& ittt inhibitor  in rachvase, of
suurse, the aatie spatial bwatien for 3
given spevimen The ieting atray is
conmpletad atth fuut o
i oemh curner, as a cheek
{ the medin, and a now of
ng 1 12 contnd thas across the cen
ter of the trar, which cmtain bled
Claken from the “rared™ Inatles of
3 bland bank ) leaded with sereral
wandatd concentratoas of the aminne
and in question Ino ek tesnng.

il dises, e
wny

farnnty

evample, we sise dises with normal,
208,05,%, 10, 12 and M gt e
b of these produces a giemth zne
m the cultate f diffeting wadth, am
prositinres n the test specinens can be
approvtanls quantifird immeduateh
by sisual canparisen with the cangr
oof vonten] dines

el the samr mnchanized it
cotiire 1an be used fot latgs soale test.
Mot Bortieantdt athiee nietaboli defeots,

Rues 1vam

Chaet teohmicsan §mees
\Bows ane poutne TRE 7
o ¥ eom top. halo’ e
poce s wite d the eual inhdune

vhing

o modiam Bt 8o miame onteol dras with bnasun o ianteation

31

opgrath ot Boonbetili by the .thynadalangny g,

theugh the bisdegin and  chemical
ratwattales differ sumewhar Galacre.
wenia, i instance, can he drte ted
by the metabalite inhilntion asedy lest,
hete employing 8 mutint sirain of
£ cnli U'The prmciple for this test
was suggesint by BDr Kenneth 1'ai
xen, Riswell Park Memorial $matic
tare, Buflaliy NV This urganism
has the sanie metabidu defect ay
human gali inemivs, s that gelac
toes (ot galatiwe- 65 plussphate, dn an
« o fornt of the disease ) acunn.
la.  in the cells, mhibiting growtl
The shiasetrs uf the “sone uf inhibi
toon® tas upgresed B the “gene uf
grwth” in the teats des.nibed eatlierd
iy pregratuenal to the anteunt of galae
tose 1n the spevimen dise The sanie
test can detect Valinemia, sne £ aoft
wtowtlh is whibited by saline sl
Gialavtnenda of wne tspe can alw be
draignesed by the Bratlestest wbuhis
«hemical rather than bodiggic and
measutes  FRZYIME  amNin directly
rathet than the sccamalation of an
wametalmlised sabnttate The Rentler
teat innhies 3 traten between the
ensvnie gabactase ntidglteansfeease,

resent 10 noenial entheosyces, and o
wnibietiy sutntrate, the product of
whish is fharescent. For the test,

.
o« o o o -
o o e e ®
« o o o o
R
i
.
H

o agar teay that, offrs mrubatnm mernipht,
N o guiemg fedlou ap of the miant Fhic can be wen tn
" ndveater that shesylalmine 1 blovd ample

ot
phe nylalunins
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Shotio abert s e vovtlte ot wilditisenad Fun t sl nhebubion wiys tay
Feany at 3t ware ool wah b aglilamne topeaad gy, b e for mepde o
L A T A Y IV NV N S S S

tilod specimen dia s are placed, b
the satme oa hine 0 “dimples e o
lasti tran, ra b o nhich serves i
“tfret an s nonnatuse fest tube bor the
tention A sobntin of the wlsirate .
adkled .l afret nbation, o fnlire
to Huoresce preants tie enes e defioen
crlis

Direct avaans of etizvme activin
are geerally comsslered supere 1
assavs uf the rngvrae sulatiate, ame
thes weasaer the metabedi defron
el rather than its tsequences
Unfuetunately, huwever, ensvine a
savs canaat be performed anoeae,
since the enavme i uestiets is fand
wnly in the liver Severad other mleorm
ervars, bemever, recemble alactine

maa i that the “nussing” engvitie
a tnninal vnstituent of erythre v,
and is oot destreved by drang. so that
s presence s abweice san be dete ted
1 bloed spot wanples

Turn of these teats, deieliped
Dr. William Murphes 10 war Labura.
turies, are o the Engyine Auvotenph
Asway bie, emplaing mutant stoaine
of B rubssin. One strain, for evample,
FequIres eogenous srginine for
grmwth, it cannat prdnee the amine
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wal from o medion Gatating she
wibmirate ottt il N

neve FLentuin the

b ernthioe ey,
e angmsnesico e aond vase,
bl Bibrtates arginme from that

subsirate, peennthing the e gamans 1y

ke IF the rganistns fab 1o genw,
the rtigy e 1s abment from the speve
men, W
inlual sutete from argininesu
acnluris A sianlar test wnl o ohf

ferrmy b tenal aean cun detnt b
wetier uf oot U pluspdite e
rheralase, ahich i the underhing
ilefrt o erstic nhinia Altgether,
wttie 20 diferent cnzante ataties
can beadetected an dned bled Fromm

normal weenates e one or another
weans For st of these there are
av et o known istatnes of oo
wetnal abwenee o amactnity of the
cuzarties ol s there hae fween
o attempt t adapt the tests to mase
screrning.

tn additwin 80 climesl conditions
grduced Iy rtizy e deficiencies, thers
are alée canditions resnlting from a
defisiency in att enzyme inhiebiter Re.
venthy, Dr Murphey has ddevelaped
two simple abd accurate Ruciescent
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bite s aiael
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§ et e e wth
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By gt o

opn t tests, applnahle t the dried
sports oF Dlwad, for mbnsted deficien
vies of enzvime whibutors One oF
thesr, inbenite] a0 Mendehan aune
I vt tran, e hetnbitany
Jrina, avses aterd wah

i

AN
adefiienoy s U esterase mhibitar
Altheangh several butudied coses e
beett hisimd 10 the hitrrature, 1hiaes
pewletn soreening reveals at G be o
ey e ondition The semoomb v
ition, @ antitrapsin defiormo, in
feertmd v a Mendelian tmoessine tra,
sppears o be mre frequent, ane it
bas bern s Laoied 10 be ssww tacnd with
atleast 175 ar 3% af all v sves of em
phyvsina It van aho b asewiated
with infantile Jiver disease s true
frequene s 1emsine o be determined,
sitwe toutine soreening of aewliorns
£ thisymbitien has oty just begun

§t is hikely thut wther enzamie de
finettcies euist but are suffiiently un.
cummon th hase thus far evaped de
tectiotr Alternatively, such defects
comld b not uie cnmon hut avsiated
with little v o impairment of physin
lgae Functiom This apprars to be the
cave, fur exvample, 10 1nany er it
types of ghnura, several caves of



whirh have bern tiscinered acujent.
alh it the conttse of
investigations  Bevause o liniead and
reseannh attention has, for by
reawiny, beett finsed on panin
eeeory of neetabrdism, we have d
(LY ed nany auenalies whose
func tional ety ure bniare 1r be
nigt Yer § believe that with increas
g Aemlrdyge it wilt levome: 1.
ay Liaerad suspevtedd awere than i)
vears agw, that pathelgic wlean
cirats are in faut sonly evageratsens
of the ignate cheniical differrmces
prresent in alb of us.

Recently, o practicsd mwethad of
uning the newborty dried ilisal st
dor specimen ) in Mass sorectung for
sickte celt hetmogtobin aml other hem-
oglabin variants has heen deselnped
1 Michaed Garew  innur labora-
tory . This methid ases dises punched
and placed by the punch-indes ma-
«lune in the dimples in the plastic
dimple-teay. ‘These discs are then
elined in the dimples, after which the
eluates are used fur rlevtnploretic
separation of heneglobin hands in
vellulose acetate steipn. A fsdlon-up
poaedhire, naing aar electrogitogesis,
van differentiate the o~ heterozygnte
from the v honmeygote Using this
prvedute, filter paper sproitiens fn
the w1 test can be screened by o
Tabairatory aleeady performing muiti-
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ple tests am tlie specinoens at a mate-
rlal cont ol $1.03 pet spromen The
captal investiient for epmparent s
less thun $ FOURY o womite the cupa
ity fur seeening wp o LOONNOO
Speiliens et year

This scteening procedure is the fiest
ce to he deseloprnd by sur labaoraton
vhint paetmiss aletes tiom of the “carries™
heterun e Wasy s reening 1t
alws the first pricetun e develiped suy
where, i oie Anom lelge, that peronts
detec tinn of & hewnglibin in the wew
Ioratinfant

N % Fer g, N prte
of the presemce it winh specigens of
masre than 9075 Fetal henoglobn, Be.
canve of the tvent swrrased interest
N pirevention and treativent of sickle
celt dineane within the United States,
it i hoped that this test will reeive
& large seale arial in the eear future,

During the just five vears the
sreening  lalssratones  collabuorating
with me have denuinstrated that, with
autamation, six i eight of the tests
described alnne can be oarried out at
little imirease in tant mver the single
PR test, odiding o sufficient ot
ume of specimens are available. The
nunmtuin iy appresimarely 25,000
ear; inreasing vadune further
v the 1ont amd prcluces ither
atdvantages. Fur these teason, we
have ervently been projuising deselop-

Tetruan

PR
an

Dunng Pregramy

ment uf nunlbel, ur demunstration .
gimal™ centers for inburn erturs of
metubndivg

th “reonal® program, | mean, fint
af all, one in whirh a sufficient mmber
of newhatn spevimens ate wreened
daity 1o perrit applivation of thee
mietheads of autamarnin aleeads iontine
in 4 nuntber of lab s for e
prrjuee of vareving o at beast 8 of
the 1.3 tests avaitubte.
n more unpeatant for such o
progtanm is clee an i
win heturen the steeinng cent
the Medial follow up and tattage
ment of the cases detected in sreet:
mg. Severnl prggrams with these fra
tuees have been deseloped in the past
few seuars in Farope and in New Zea
Tatd. In Fat, althonigh apprisinnately
24 multiple-test lubmreatories, using
fost oor maore of my tests un the dried
spots of bl collected fir b1
srecning, have cothe intn esistence
since 1964, alniat all of these are fo
cated in wther countries exeept fur the
wriginal four in the U8, which huve
heen wirking with e as gart of a
joint collatwrative effort. Womever,
the heulth departiments of Ohin and
Marylantl recently puechased o
imles machines and fuiave now begun
rudtiple testing “This iccureed av 2
result of o conference we hield in Feb.
ruary 1974,

At Mae

That contenl 1f phenylatanine
off mental cerurdul
recarth whaty of patiwenr seported foom thiddin by Atan anil
Arus This panient had bome theve chddeen ohise evad i ehisid
For b mpntully ectanded her urne was Wemdhy positite tar phe -
anlheton s, that of the hidibeen negarte Debabid tareaits utin
femond wa erpdunatean ather than hagh itraute ine pheaglataning
fre the nweatal depowny in the shabdeon to the ser phue ot
the audy geaphad ahno oty wesr mande Lo ideterma

sun wy

a tou phenylalantne divt ald cffectio oly eeduce the mather's
wrum Jeveb, thie war woonmplvhid lnvng thiee manths of
hospitahtutum ke ph at lefr eeflect breuches in ta dict
when a might attendant ted ey on the patuent gnd zare hoe
a ghuss of ik When v whiegnently berame pregnant. the
eerntreed the howgural for dietary namtenance durng the lant
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NEONATAL SCREENING FOR I’HENYLKETONURIA
1. EFFECTIVENENS
(Neil A. Holtzmnn, MD; Allen G. Meck : E. David Mellits, SeD)

I'rograms for the detection of phenylketonnria (PKU) were evalnated by sor-
veys of liealth departments and PKU clinies. Effectiveness was measured by
determining (1) tlie proportion of live births screened. (2) the ocenrrence of
PKU infants missed by screening (false-negatives). (3) the proportion of pre-
sumptive positives in whom a diagnosis of PKU wos confirmed by follow.np
studies, and (4) the interval between screening test and follow-np.

More than 109 of infants with PKU are either not bheing screeued or are not
being detected by screening. Infants with PKU who are screened on the first 3
days of life are more likely to be missed than those screened later. The infants
in whom a dingnosis of PKU was confirimed constituted only 5.15¢ of all Infants
with presumptive positive screening tests. Programs differ greatly in the inci-
dence of presumptive positive tests and in the time necessary to follow up posi-
tive tests.— (JAMA 220 :607-670. 1974)

The prevention of retardation due to phenylketonnria (IPKU) renuires initin-
tion of a low-phenylalanine diet early in infancy hefore symptoms are manifest.}
To accomplish this. most states in this conntry have laws that require screening
of all newborns for elevations of blood phienylalnnine values.

This study was undertaken to evaluate the effectiveness of newhorn screening
programs. An idénl program would detect all infants with PKU and a minimal
number of false-positives. In addition. it would permit the initiation of treatment
in time to prevent_retardation. The attainment of perfection is beyond the scope
of any program denling with biological processes and their inherent variation.
The findings. however. indieate imperfections in the progrums that are nmenable
to change.

SOURCE OF DATA AND METHODS

Questionnaires were sent to each state health department in the United States
during 1970, as well as to departments in the provinees of Ontario and Quebec.

Information requested inclnded :

1. Total number of infants screened.

2. Number of infants screened on each day of life during a one-year period.

3. Number of infants in whom results of rontine screening were normal but
in whom a diagnosis of PKU was subsequently made (false-negatives). This in-
formation was also requested in a separate questionnaire sent to PKU clinie
directors.

4. Method of screening and upper limit of normal.

5. Nnmber of infants with elevated levels of phenylalanine screening-test re-
sults. For each infant In which the test result showed an elevated phenylalanine
level. the foliowing was reqnested : sex, age at time of sereening test and resnlt.
follow-up blood phenylalanine test result, nud age at which resnlt was obtained.

8. Number of infants being treated for PKU and having dingnosis as a resnit
of screening.

Only fonr states were able to provide the information requested in items 2 and
5. One additional state provided an estiinate of the number of infants screened
on each day that was based on a sample of 1,000 infants from ten hospitals.
Seven other states and two subdivisions of New York indicated that the indi-
vidual results were available but conld not be analyzed by local personnel. In
order to obtain information in items 2 and 5. one of us (A.G.)M.) visited these
health departments and their screening laboratories. The nmmber of infants
screened on each duy was determined from a raundom sample of 3.000 to 4.000
test resnlts from among all newborn tests performed during a one-year period.
The sample size was selected siich that on any day of life the relative error of
caleniation wonld be no greater than 109, (The formula was

RE=8D/p
SD*=N—n p(l—p)
N—1 n

t Holtzinan NA : Dietary treatment of lnborn errors of metabolism. Ann Rev Ved

21 :335-356 1970,
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where RE iudicates relative error; SD, stundard deviation; n, snmple size; N,
universe size; p, proportion of infauts sereened on a given day. When p is snnll,
the equation can be simplificd, SD=p/n. In order to Himit the stnudnrd devigtion
to 0,0025, for a relative error of 10%, n snmple size of 4,000 is needed when the
smullest proportion of infants sereened on any duy of life Is 0.025 of infants
sereened on all days [0.0026=0,025/4,000]). Birthweight tind tyrosine level,
It avuilabe, were nlso colleeted for all infants whose test results had elevated
PRU levels during the same year,

Live births per yenr were obtnined frum the National Ceniter for Health
Stutisties,?

Completencsg of Screening,—In n oneyenr poriod between 1968 and 1970,
1,167,000 infanes were screened in the 168 states providing information (Cnli-
fornin, Delnwnre, Georgin, Hawnii, Kentueky, Loulsiann, Maryland, Massaehn-
setts, Michigun, Montnnn, Nevadn, New Imupshire, Ohio, Oregon, South Caroling,
and Virginin), Muach of these states hns legislation requiring PKU serecening.
The fufants sereened comprise SS8C of the Hye birthy, For individunl states,
the percentiage sereened ranges from G230 to 103% . The estimates are probably
high becnuse of the inclusion of some repeat tests, The sonthern states hud the
least comprehensive covernge,

Nensitivity of Screening--“The survey showed 23 infuuts from elght states
whose initinl test results were pegative but who were subeguently proved to
have PKU with maximum blood phenylnlnnine lovels in exeess of 20 mg/100 ml,
Elghteen were sereened by the Guthrie bncterial tnhibition assuy, three by
fluorometric assny, and one by enzymatic assay, In one infant, the method was
unknown. The states or elinies reporting these false-negatives reported, over the
same time, 203 patients in whom the dingnosis of PKU wns made as n result
of screening, Thoerefors, in these states aproximntely 929 of infants, with
KU were discovered by sereening. This is a1 maximnm estimnte, ns reporting
of false-negntives is almost cortainly ineomplete,

Fifteen of the 23 false-negntives, or 65.2¢, were sereened on or hefore the
third dny of age (11 on the third day and 4 on the second) nithongh only 4450
of all Infants were sereened by that gee, This is 0 signifiennee difference (ehi
smure, P<.05). (Data on the distributton of infants sereened on ench day of
Hfe was supplied by fonr of the states reporting false-negatives nud eight others, )
Thus the prolmbility of missing n ense of PKU is gregter if sereeniug Is per-
formed early in the neonatal period. Further evidence is presented in Table 1.
The Incidence of PKU among infunts sereened after the fourth day of life is
1.6 times higher than nmong infants sereened earlier.

Female Infants predominate among the fnlse-negntives (14:0). In view of
the excess of male infants with PKU discovered by sereening,’* the ! niting
supports the hypothesis that the discovery of PKU in femnle infunts s more
likely to be missed than in male infants,

Of 15 infants with false-negntive tests in whom the type of feeding nt the
time of the first test wasx known, six were bhreast-fed (405 ). OFf 185 infants
with PKU whose first test showed elevated levels of phenyintanine and in
whom the enrly feeding history was nvailable, 41 (2207) were breast-fed, This
difference is not statistically signifieant.

TABLE 1.—DEPENDENCE OF PKU INCIDENCE ON AGE AT TIME OF SCREENING !

Age at time of sciaening

Otod More than

Group tested days 4 days
Inlants with PKU. . 32 23
Al infants screened Gll.gsg 275, :8!8:

! Data provided by health departments of Delaware, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan,
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York (Buffalo, New York City regions only), Ore n, South Carolina, and Virginia. The dats
is for 1 year between 1968 to 1970 except for Virginia which provided data for 1968 and 1970.

2 Vital Statiatica of the U'nited States: Summaries for 1969, 1970. 'S Natlonal Center
for Henlth Rtatistics, /S Government Printing Office, 1970, 1971,

2 Holtzman NA, et al: Neonatal screening for phenylketonnrla: TIL Altored six ratio;
extent and possthie enases, J Pedintr, to he publisbed.

¢ Dobson J, Williamson M : Provacative observatlons In the I'KU collaborative stidy.
N Engld Med 282 :1104, 1970,

.
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Presumptive Posttive Seoreening Testa—The vast majority of Infants with
elevated levels of phenylalanine on sereening tests have normnl Mewd phenylaln-
nine coucentrntionus by the time of follow-up. Among the U862 Infants whose
phenylinlanine levels were elevated on the first test, 5,002 (85,004) had n phenyi-
alnnine level of less than 6 mg/100 ml on the follow-up; 002 (9.0%). greater
thau 6 but less than 20 me/100 ml; nd 338 (5.1¢5). greater than or equal to 20
we/100 mle (This datn was provided by the health depnrtwments I Alnbawa,
Callfornin, Colorndo, Conneetient, Hnwail, Maryland, Missouri, Nevada, New
Jersey, New York [Buffalo aud New York Clty ounly], Ohlo, Ontario, Quebee,
Rhode Islnud, South Caroling, Tennessee, Texas, Virginla, and Wnshington.)

The Infants with phenylnlnuine concentrntions between ¢ and 20 mg/100 wml
on the first follow-up fall futo two entegories based on additional determinations.
The first category consists of those in whom woderate fuereases of phenylala-
nive will persist while on a normul diet but without visk of retardntion®? (From
other surveys,® oue third of the infants fall into this eategory.) The second lu-
cludes those in whow the plienylalanine concentration will fall within a few
mouths. This group can be further subdivided into infants with and without
assoclated tyrosinewmin, Tyrosine eoncentrations were ceported In 8§ of the
Infants whose pheuylalnnlue level was between 4 aud 20 mg/100 ml on the flest
follow-up exnmmninatlon, In 43.5%, elevated tyrosine levels (greater than 4 wmg/
100 ml) were reported. No tyrosiue lovel elevations were fonud in infauts whose
follow-up phenylalanine value was grenter than or equal to 20 mg/100ml.

Only 5.1¢ of infants with phenylalunine increnses ou servening had blood
phenylalanine levels of grenter than or equal to 20 mg/100 ml on follow-up and
can be considered to have classical PKU. As 2756, of these had phenylnlanine
levels on sereening of 10 mg/100 ml or less® any effort to fmprove specificity by
raising the cutoff level above 4 or 6 mg/100 ml would result in grenter failure
to detect PKU. if ull other factors were Kept constant.

Time Bcefore Follow-1'p.—The length of time between sereening test and fol-
low-up may have some bearing on the prognosixz, Kang et al* report that Infants
trented within the first 3 weeks of life have n botter onteone than those trented
between 3 and 6 weeks of age.

The mean interval between screening test nud follow-up for 1.283 infants
whose initlal phenylatanine concentrntion wax elevated wns 24.9 days, In 22.6%,
the interval wns more thnn 30 days. The interval differed signifienntly in the
11 different programs providing datn (Chi-square equals 106.431: degrees of
freedom. 2G: P<.001).

Variation in Incidence.—In the 31 states (and Ontario aud Quebec) pro-
viding dnta, the menn = standaml deviation of all ineidences of 'KU was 6.7
+ 3.9/100,000 (un=495 phenylketonurics: range. 0 to 19.8/100,000). The mean
incldence 1s close to that predleted from the frequency of the condition nmoug
institutionntizes] mental defectlves” but the range Is surprising. A number
of factors contrilmte to this variatioun:

1. Chance.—For a disxorder as rare ns PKU. more lufants will have to be
gscreened in sowe states hefore the incidence is considered statistienlly relinble.

9. Differences in Diagnoatic Criteria.—The incidence of PKU in iufants known
to hnve a Mood phenylalunine level of 20 mg/100 wl or more prior to treatient
was 5.3/100,000. The incidence of infants being treated for PKU at the time
of the survey wax somewhat higher. (.4/100,000. Some trented infants might
not have had blood phenylalauine levels of 20 mg/100 ml or more prior to
treatment. '

3. Ethniec Variation—States with a large proportion of births in families of
Irish ¥ or Mediterranean deseent ™ might be expected to hinve a higher incidence

sBerman JL. et al: Causes for high phenylmanine with normal tyrosine. Am J Die

Child, 117 :54-66, 1969,

sBerman JL. Ford R: Intelligence quotlents and intelllgence loss In patients with
phenylketonuria and some variant states. J Pediatr 77 :764-770, 1970.

* Levy HL, et al: Persistent mild hyperphenyialaninemia fn the untreated state. ¥ Engl
J Med 285 :424-420, 1971,

" Ciunningham GC: Phenylketonurin testing-—itg vole in pediatrics and public health,
CRC Crit Rev Clin Lab Sci 2 :45-101, 1971, .

? Holtzman NA. Meilits ED. Kallman €: Neonatal screening for rhpn_\-lkpkmmrln: II.
Age dependence of {nltinl phenylalanine In infants with PKU. Pediatrica, 53 1 353-357.

074,
in Kang ES. Sollee ND. Gerald P8 : Results of treatment and termination of the diet in
phenylketonurin. Pediatrica 46 :881-800, 1970,
1 l’l Jorvis G : Phenylpyruvic ollgophrenin. Res Publ Aasoc Rea Nerv Ment Dia 33 :250-282,
163,
13 Cahalane SF: Phenylketonnrin: Mass screening of newborns in Ireland. Arch Dis
Child 43 :141-144, 1968,
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of PKU, Three statex with relatively high Ineldences of PKU  (Connectient,
Massachusetts, and Rhode islnnd) also had relatively hlgh proportions of first
and second generntion 1rish and ltulinns In their populations 1n 1970, but for
the other states, there was no correlation between the incldenee and the propor-
tion of first and second generntion Ieish or Itallans In thelr populatlous,

4, Variation in Laboratory Performance~"1Table 2 indieates the incldeuce of
presuuptive positive Guthrie tests nmong all jnfants sereened at 3 days of age
in those regions in whieh 3 dayn of age was the modal day of sereculng (with
the exception of Massachnsetts {n whleh day 8 was modal and day 3 next), The
high Incldence in Massaehusetts i partly explalned by {ts use of 0 lower ent-off
value (2 wmge/100 mi) than the other states, which employ 1 mg/100 ml with
the exceptlon of Marylnnd, whieh usex § mg/100 ml. Despite thls high cut-off,
Maryland has the second highest incldenee,

TABLE 2.—INCIDENCE OF ELEVATED PHENYLALANINE LEVEL ON GUTHRIE TESTS PERFORMED ON THE 3d DAY

OF LIFE

Number of
Infants with Incidence
elevated Total per
State and year levels screened 100,000
Kontueky, 1970.. ... ... ciieiiiiii e A 21,120 N4
Maryland, 1968, ........ .. s s . 38 25,180 151
Massachusetts, 1970.. .. .. 8 29,470 215
Mlcm’ln. 1968........... 80, 140 11
New York-Buffalo, 1970... 1 9, 465 )
New York City, 1970. 18 , 467 k1)
Oroﬁ?n,'lm ........ . 4 15,893 25
South Carolina, 1970.... Ceiieneeeeiaaneaaaenn 4 i2,615 32

T his survey indientex fonr problems in sereening effectiveness :

1. Infauts Neot Screened.—While virtually all newborns are sereened 1t some
states, fewer than 70% are screened in others, In the states providing data, there
were 147,034 newborns who were not scereened in the year covered by the survey.
As the incidence of PKU, discovered as n resnlt of sereening, in these sne stinies,
In the same year, was 5.4/100,000, approximately elght infants with PKU were
not sereened. (Sixty-three were discovered by sereening.)

2. Barly Age at Screeniug.—There ix a grenter probability of detecting PKU
If screening is performed after four days of age (‘fable 1 and loltzman et
al'"). Uniess it is ncceptubie to miss approximately 5% to 100 of PKU infuntse

the time«dependence of tlie bload phenylalunine concentration of newborn
phenylketonuriex requirex either that infants not be discharged frowm nurseries
before 4 days of age or that those discharged early be screened after nursery dis-
charge, Infants withh PKU screened on the flest four days of life whose sereening
test \’\'ns positive had lower valnes on the sereening test than those screened
later.

3. Delay in Follow-U'p.—In some states, more than 609, of infants with elevated
levels of phenylalanine on sereening-test results were followed up within two
weeks, wherens in others, fewer than 209 were followed up in that time, 1rre-
versible brain damage might ocenr before dingnosis conld he econtirmed in the
phenylketonurics and low-phenylalanine diets instituted. This problem ix even
more severe for disorders such as gnlactosemin and mapie syrup uring disease in
which deatl: In the neonatal period is not unusual. Sereening for these disorders
will not prove heneflcial unless rapid follow-up is assured.

4. Laboratory Performance.—The variation in the incidence of elevated levels
of phenylalanine on scereening tests ('I'nble 2) sugprests that noticeable differences
in the performance and interpretation of the Guthrie bacterinl inhibition nssay
test existx.

The problem of laboratory error is compounded by the faet that in some states
more than one laboratory performs the test. In Californin in 1967, at least 194
laboratoriex performed sereening tests.® Varinbility due to differences in labora-

13 Efron ML: Classical and Mediterranean pbenyiketonurin, in Nyhan W (ed) : Amino
flf"glllilfemhnllnm and Genetic Variation. New York., McGraw-Hiil Book Cu, Inc, 1007,

H-1117.

1 1970 Census of Population: General Social and Economic Characteristics (PC(1])-C).
US Bureaa of the Census. US Government Irinting Office, 1972, Table 49.

3 Cunningham GC : PKU screenlng, Calif Med 10 :11-16, 1069.
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tory methods eonlil be reduesd If fewer Inboratories performed the test and striet
quality eontrol was imposed, Nevernl of the states voporting false-negntives did
not have ecentralized sereenlug or quality control,

In order to faeilitnte evaluntion in future programs, states shonld agree on the
Information required and standardize the forms used,

[#'rom Pectiateie Nows, March 10758}
IMMUNOARNAY USED 10 SCREEN NEWHORNR For IIYPOTHYROIDINM

(World Medical Reports)

NT. Louvis.—Every newborn in the Provinee of Quebee is now being sercened
for hypothyreidism by means of n recently developed inmunoassay that enn meas-
ure thyroxine rapidly nnd aecurntely on the fifth day of life. Dr. Jean H, Dus-
snnlt reported nt the Amertean Thyroid Assoeintion meoting,

From the 40,000 mensnrements made so far, the froqueney of neonatal hypo-
thydroidism appenrs to e nbout 1: 7,000, warranting sueh a wass sereoning pro-
érmn. sald Dr. Dussnult, of I Centre Hospitalier de I'Université Laval, Quebee

ity.

Thyroid hormones are ensential for normal brain development and growth. It
woulil therefore be expected that early trentment of hypothyroidism conld pre-
vent the neuralegle nnd mental defleits secondary to thyroid defleiencey eurly In
lite, he pointed out,

Haowever, hecnuse of the clinieal diffienlties involved in making the diagnosin
of neonatal hypothyroldisin, the disease is seldom detected hefore the third month
of life, after irreversible central nervous system danmage has ocenrred, he said,

USES TIHIYRONINE ANTIRODY

The test Dr. Dunsauit deseribed uses a specitie thyroxine 1) antibody that
enn deteet the hormone in elnate of dried blood spotted on filter paper,

In Quebee, almost every newbhorn {8 sereened for maltlple inborn errors of
metabolism, and the blood is tuken at the time of discharge from the neonatal
unit, The spotted filter paper Is sent to the Central Luboratory of the Quebee
Network for Genetle Mediclne, Dr, Dussault said.

The mean T, concentratlon obtained from the 49,000 measurements has been
1.60 ng/40 ul dried biood,

Whenever the 'Ty value has been found below 0.4 ng, the subjeet has been ime-
mediately recalled for a new blood smnple, If the coucentration is hetween 0,4
and 0.8 ng, the measarement is repented from the original filter paper and only
then, if the value is still below 0.8 ng, is a new sample required. Dr. Dussault
explained.

A total of 0.9% of the subjects screened have heen reealled, he noted.

OBTAIN RERUM

Serum had to he obtained from 109 of this new poputation because of eonfirmed
low T¢ valnes, und then the free thyroxine. triodothyronine, and thyroxine-
binding globulin (TBG) were measured in the serum.

In this wity, seven hypothyroid infants and three with abnormally low TRG
have been deteeted. Dr. Dussault reported.

In all instances, the T concentration in the elnate was below 0.3 ng, he said.

False positives have ocenrred in 0.09% of the mensurements, and this is con-
sidered an aceeptable number, equivalent to about 15 sumples per week out of
1.800. It 1¢ almost impossible to obtain valid data on false negatives, but none 1s
knawn to have oceurred, Dr. Dussanlt said.

In sum, the immunoassay secms to he a8 method of choice for mass sereening of
neonatal hypothyroidism, at a cost of about 30 cents a1 sample, he sadd,

Dr. Dussault’s associates in the study were Dr. Claude Taiberge and I'ierre

Coulombhe,
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[From Medieal World Newa, October 11, 1074)

ZEROING IN ON HYroruyuolntsM Muent BARLIRR

For most hypothyrold infants irreversible brealn damage begink at birth,
and life ix downblil from then on, But a new neonntal sereening test, now heing
nsed In Quebee, pinpoints the dixorder months—even years—nhofore elinieal symp-
toms normally appenr, allowing for prompt treatment.

Endemic golter Is nonexistent in developed natlons, But neonntal hypothy-
roldisnm-~-cretinlsm-—strikes about one in 12,000 Quebece babiex, Dr. Jenn Dussault,
the test's developer, told the Ameriean Thyrold Assoclatlon meeting In St. Louls
Inst month, 1ts primary eanges are congenitnl underdevelopment of the thyrold
ginnd and dyshormonogenesis—though many other contlrmed cises renmin un-
expiained. Its Incldeuce 18 about the same ax that of phenylketonuria, sereening
for whieh Ix mandatory In Quebece and in most of the U8,

“On the basis of our present knowledge, hypothyroldism would be an excel-
lent disease to test for in newborn babies,” conmented Dr. Harvey Iavy, prine
clpnl Investigator at the Massachusetts Metabolle Disorders Detection Prograim.
It appenrs—and we don’t know for sure—that the bables are born normanl and
then develop hreadn damage and other organic problews. Uufortunately, by the
time a ehlld is exhlbiting enoagh elluienl symptoms to be diagnesed by a phy-
siclan, it's often too late for trentment. On the other hand. horwmone therapy 1s
slmple and readlly avallable, 'To minlmize braln damage one would want to hegin
treatment as gsoon as possible after hieth,”

Tiie new test, done a few days after birth, involves radiohiimmunoussay for the
thyrold hormoue, thyroxine, In a pinprick blood spot obtained from n newhorn's
heel. It costs only about 25¢ per test, sinee the spot ean be mnde on the same
filter paper used to test for phenylketonurln, gnlactosemin, and tyrosinemla at
clinics llke Laval University's eentral laboratory of the Quebee Network for
Genetic Medlcine, where Dr. Dussault works.

A normal Infant's thyroxine concentratlon {s about 1.6 ng/40 ul of dried blood.
When the Quebece inhorntory detects a reading less than half that, the orlgiual
sample is retested. 1f the first rending is jess than 0.4 ng, the infant is ilmmedi-
ately recalled for a new blood snmple. In either ense, if the second reading is
agalu below 0.8 ng. the infuné returns to the Laval Unlversity clinle for four
further thyrold function tests. At the present level of efficiency. Dr. Dussauit
says. n hypothyroid infant ean be discovered and begnn on horinone treatments
within the first month of life.

Since last April the Laval University clinic (one of three using the test In
Quebec) has screened about 55,000 neonatal blood snmples, discovering seven Iun-
fants with neonatnl hypothyroidism, The assny has the desirable fault cf over-
sensitivity. Of the first ten positive resalts only six turned out to he true ab-
nornalitles on further testing, and to Dr. Dussanlt’s knowledge there have been
no fnlse-negatives.

The procedure has also been used on an experimental basls by physiclans In
Toronte. After screening abont 1,300 Infauts at the University of Toronto's Mt.
Sinal Hospital, the Toronte team has confirmed the test's accuracy. In thelr
study, four of the 38 Infants who had positive resnlts were abnormal on retest-
ing, and one of these was truly hypothyroid. reports Dr. John O'Donnell, one of
the Toronto investigators.

“As8 soon as we ean get the financial support. we hope to set up a testing pro-
gram in Toronto and eventually on a proviucewlde basis,” adds Dr. Paul Wal-
fish. director of Mt. Sinal'x endocrine divislon.

American neonatologists are also eager to try the new test—but there are
complications. Not used hefore in the U.8.. the sereening program ls still con-
sidered experimental hy most hospitals. even though the same piuprick provides
blood for mandated PKU tests In some states. Dr. P, R. Larsen and a team at the
University of Pittsburgh began using the test Inst month on ahout 500 newborn
babies. "One problem we have is getting a consent form slgned for every sample
we obtain,” he told MWN. "It's quite time-consuuing.”

‘Developing and implementing neonatal screening tests will be easier in Canada
than In the USS., Dr. Levy feels, until this country develops n more centrallized
screenlng system. "Wo need fewer state lahs and more regional labs.” he com-
ments. “The system we have now is wasteful and Inefliclent.”

“Lots of times it's difficult to convinee the government on a purely humani-
tarian basis.” adds Dr. Larsen. *“What we have to do now 1s show on an cconomic
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basis that the cost of screening, say, 10,000 infants to find one with hypothyroid.
ism is so low that it's much better than the alternative—hospitalization in a

- state mental institution.”

[From Pedatric News, March 19731
Wourp SCREEN INFANTS FoR HYPOTHYROIDISM

World Medical Reports

WiINNIPEG, MAN.—Al neonates should be sereened for hypothyroldism because
early dingnosis can lead to prevention of mental retardation in affected children,
Dr. Paul G. Walfish said at the annnal sclentific meeting of the Canadian Society
of Endocrinology and Metaholisn,

Neonatal hypothiyroidism appears to he the most common endocrine-metaholic
cause of mental retardation : its incidence is about twice that of phienylketanuria
(PKU), sald Dr. Walflsh. of the University of Toronto. Mount Sinai Hospital,

A mandatory screening progrom in the provinee of Quebec employs the deter-
mination of thyroxine activity in dried capillary blood obtalned from a heel prick,
Dr. Walfish reported at the meeting.

“In my view. newborn thyroid sereening in this country i< inevitable, and it is
only a question of low it will be organized,” Dr. Delbert Fisher said in an in-
terview with this newspaper.

Dr. Fisher is chairman of an ud hoe committee of the Anterican Thyrold As.
sociation on newborn thyroid screening, and professor of pediatrics and medicine
at the Unlversity of Callfornia School of Medicine, Los Angeles.

The committee has currently adopted u policy of observation and study of the
pilot programs that are now in exixtence, hie said.

‘There are pilot studies in Pittshurgh and Boston io evaluate the dried capile
lary blood method that was origloally described by Drx. Jean Dussault and
Claude Laberge, of the University of Laval, Quebor,

This technique. currently in use in the mandatory program in Quebec. can
detect neonatal hypothyroidism and other causes of low serum thyroxine, but
there are methodologic limitations that contribute to a high rate of false posi-
tive results. Dr. Walfish reported at the scientific session.

Another method, which appears to be more accurate, mensures the level of
thyrold stimulating hormone (TSI in cord blood obtained at the time of placen.
tal separation. Thils approach was first reported in 1974 by Drs. Klein, Agustin,
and Foley, of the University of Pittshurgh. Dr. Walfish said at a press confer-
ence after his presentation.

The dried capillary blond method was used to screen 3.000 infants in Mount
Sinai Hospital. Ot the children screened. 93 were selected for follow-up on the
basis of low thyroxine levels. a follow-up rate of 3¢,

Of these 93 children. 8% were found on further testing to he normal, having
had false positive resuits. Only five children had confirmed low serutn thyroxine
levels.

Causes of low thyroxine levels included three patlents with congenital thy-
roxine binding globulin deficiency. one with nconatal hypothyroidism, and one
with drug-induced hypothyroidism In an infant whose miother was taking
propylithlouracil.

The false positives are the result of sampling and collection errors. errors
induced by high hematocrit. and other methedologic factors. Maternal drug
ingestion and thyroiditis also contribute to false positives,

Fetal prematurity and twinning can contribute to Initial low thyroxine levels,
but there is usually spontaneous recovery.

“For adequnte sensitivity and prevention of false negatives, we feel that the
dried capillary blood method requires n 2-3¢, high follow-up program,” Dr.
Walfish said.

Prelimluary results show that the determination of TSH in cord blood is a
more definitive screening test for neonatal hypothyroidism, Dr. Walfish said.

There is a clear elevation in cord blood TSH levels that is unequivocal In in-
fants witlt hypothyroldism.

Of 800 habies screened. only 1 had to be recalled for a possible underactive
thyroid gland, and that baby did have the dizorder. There were no false positives,

he noted.
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The problem that remains with the TSH test is one of logistics. The sermm
samples must be obtnined under proper conditions and transported to the cen-
tral laboratory for testing. Lowering the rate of recall of infants may be a factor
In matching the additionnl cost of transporting the sernm samples.

LIFELONG TIIERAPY

8pecial lenrning programs or institntionalization of these children should also
be taken into nccount In a cost/benefit ratio of the screening test, Dr. Walfish
commented.

The dlsense usually is not inherited and occurs sporadically, so it is not
possible to identify a high-risk population and screen only those children,

If treatment i3 begun before the fnfant is 3 months old, there is a 70-0%
chance that the baby wlll reach a normaj IQ. If trentment Is deluyed beyond ¢
months, the baby wlll have a 90% chance of being mentally retarded, he said.

The chlldren will require lifelong therapy with thyrotd liormone but this is
simpler than the special diets required afteg identifiention of ¢hildren with PPK{.
There i8 currently no major PKU sereening program on a national basis in the
United States, Dr. Walfish said.

CENTRAL QUALITY CONTROL

The screening programs for PKU In the United States are mostly state-based and
require ench individual physician to ensure that testing is done. There is there-
fore no central quality control of the laboratories doing the testing, and no
guarantee of follow-up and treatment, Dr. Fisher said in an Interview with this
newspaper.

This is the wrong way to approach the problem, he said.

The province of Quebec has set up a central laboratory in which there is
quality control and feedback to physicians, A screening program in the United
States should be efficlently and apbropriately managed so that maximum use of
samples for multiple testing, quality control, and follow-up are bulit into the
system.

Reglonal, governmentally supparted screening lnliorntories (state or federal)
would meet these requirements and provide a structure for incorporating future
screening methods. Dr. Fisher said.

Dr. Walfish's associntes in this study were Dr. J. O'Donnell. and A. Frankl
and G. Shachter.

—
(From the Lancet. Aug. 23. 1075. p. 356]
MAsSs SCREENING FOR CRETINISM

Neonatal feeding difficuities confront the paediatrician daily. Common causes
include birth shock, infection, and jaundice: hut. along with constipation and
respiratory troubles. feeding difficuities may he the presenting clinleal feature
of hypothyroidism. The classic cretlnous facies is seen in only a quarter of
cases dingnosed hefore three months, the proportion jncreasing with incrensing
delay in replancement therapy.’

Cretinism i8 a rare cause of mental retardation but n trentable one. It can bhe
ensily missed until later in the first year of life. and enrly replacement therapy
Is unfortunately essentinl. In n Grent Ormond Street serier} 14 ont of 19 chil-
dren dingnosed and trented before three months of age had 1.Q.'s over 90, wherens
only about n third of those treated later reached this level. These findings are
borne out by Klein and his co-workers? Eayrs?® has shown that thyroxine is
essential for brain maturation in prenatal and early postnatal llife and only
small amounts of thyroxine cross the human placental harrfer.

In the neeonate there is acute release of thrroid-stimulating hormone (T.S.11.)
during the first hours of Ufe. cansing an incrense in all indices of thyroid func.
tion.* Serum protein-bonnd fodine. butnmoi-extractsile thyroxine. ®I-trijndo-
thyronine uptake in erythrocytes or resin (T3 tests), dinlysable thyroxine, and
™I nptake in the thyrold gland should all be raised—i.e.. the normal infant is
hyperthyroid. Rogowski and co-workersS report that the rise in dialysable

1 Raiti. 8.. Newns. G. H. Archa Din. Childh, 1071, 48. 602,

2 Klein, A. H.. Meltzer 8.. Keany, F. M. F. Pediat. 1972. 81. 912.

SEayrs. J. T. Br. med. Bull. 1960, 16, 122, .

¢ Utiger. R. D.. Wilber, J. F.. Cornbathy, M.. Harm. J. P.. Mack R. E. F. clin. Inveat.
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thyroxine parallels the risxe in totnl thyroxine ; therefore the increase in plasma-
thyroxine is not caused by an increase in thyroxine-binding proteins, as has heen
suggested.*

Unti! Intely only small series of infants have been studied. hecanse of the
quantity of blood needed for macromethod testing of thyroid function. But now
micromethods permit testing of large nu, ,bers. The series of Dussault ot al..7 In
Canada. is the largest so far. 47.000 newhorns have heen studled by a cheap.
reliable mleromethod using the T4 test, whieh has revealed an ineldence of
hypothyroidism of 1 in 7000. In 0 smaller series from the U.8.A., Klein and
others * used a T.S.H. screeaing procedure and found an incldence of 1 in 500,
which they compare with the incldence of phenytketonurin in the United States—
1 in 14.300. These figures present n serious cnse for routine screening,

Mr. SreaL, I have one question for Mr. and Mrs. Magnire.

Conld you deseribe very briefly the kinds of tranma and difficulties
in having children with problems of this sort in terms of normal
evervday activities that you enconnter?

Mrs. Macuvire. The biggest problemn is they all conld have been well
because of the diet. Tt is really not easy to have to visit your child at
a State institntion, either. I really don’t know what else yon can say.

Mr. Macuvire. What T think my wife would like to say is that if this
is found out at birth they have a diet. Lofenalac, which is low in
protein but has just enongh protein to supply the daily requirement.

In our son Willinm's ease, he was on a high-protein diet and he was
on a regular normal diet which was high in protein. So. this accelerated
the disense. If this diet had been followed and adhered to. as we would
have done for the first 5 vears of life. after that voun could drop it
and they would be normal.

Mr. Orrixaer. Mr. Wunder.

Mr. We~per. No questions, Mr, Chairman,

Mr. Orrincer. Thank you very much, Mr. and Mrs. Maguire, for
being with ns.

Mr. Hagrrry. Mr. Chairman. you will hear some success stories
thiring your hearings about early sereening and the effect of it in
prevention. Here we don’t have that because of lack of early screening.

One more important thing here was the Jack of amiform testing;
the quality of testing is at issue here, of eourse,

We have the parents of three retamded children who economically
will be disastraus over the lives of these people. The institutionalized
child represents an annunal cost of $20000 and going up annually for
institutional eare for that one child.

The cost of this child in spesial eduecation is fonr times what it would
be for a child in normal edueation.

Those kinds of costs can be projected for these three children for
this family, either tax dollars of the individual family, itself,

Mr. Orrnixaer. What kind of facilities were available for the
Maguires in their community ? '

The children were born in the haspital.

Mr. Haarrry. Mr. Chairman. von would think the facilities were.
adequate to meet the problem and diagnose it early enongh and treat
it. In faet, one child was born after the passage of the mandatory
PKU statute in Pennsyhvania, That is why it is so difficult to under-

¢ Chadd. M. A.. Gray. 0. P.. Davies, ). F. Archa Dia. Childh. 1970, 45. 374,

7 Plll‘?n‘l‘ll:‘)l. I1.. Coulombe, P.. Laberge. C.. Letatle, J.. Guyda, M.. Khoury, K. Pediatrica,
1075, RE. 470,

® Kleln, A, 1i.. Agustin, A. V., Foley, T. I, Lancet, 1974, 11. 77.
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stand why these failures ocenrred. But it oceurred becanse of a lack
of uniformity in testing and a Inck of. ns the doctor testified to
earlier, the ontreach progmms being monitored properly at the
national level.

That brings us to grips with what our national priorities are and
how ean we effectively see the dollars put forward so that these ngents
in Washington can be nsed to the best advantage. T don’t propose we
should go the route of taking moneys from nnother department and
penalizing the State at all.

I do propose fast coming to grips with the States versus o Federal
system problem of priorities and how to deal with themn.

Mr. Suane. Conld T ask counsel further: It disturbs me, although
I understand prior to having the testing there was no way to discover
about the first child. but the same problem with the second and third
child bothers me more heeause obviously actions had heen taken in
the interim. Is there any svstem in that hospital or in the State of
Pennsylvania whereby records are kept so that one would he more
attentive to this problem if it ran in the family or something of that
sort ?

Maybe I don't understand the disease. .

Mr. Hagerry. T assure you. Mr. Sha rp. that after this case went to
suit that they are keeping recowds now that they did not keep before
and they are much more attentive to the problemn.

But. because of the lack of monitoring. the delivery of the testingr,
and hecause of the ongoing review of the eases as the prior witness
testified. the doctor from Whashington here, this is a child who fell
between thegaps even after we had mandatory legislation for PKU
screening.

When a small connty like Delawnre County decides it wants to do
its own lab testing and does not. have the facilities or the munber of
testings per week or per day that Children's Hospital in Philadelphia
wonld have. it tends to let the testing device lie until they have enongh
to send to the lab. That kind of slipshod method lets this thing ocenr,

Mr. Suare. Is your impression that the testing apparatus did not
work properly or just that even if it worked properly the child wonl(
have to be reexamined at some other date ?

Mr. Hacerry. Mr. Sharp. I defer to trial connsel.

Mr. McDoxyeLL. T am going to have to object to that. That may
well be one of the issues in the civil litigation in which we are involved.
I wonld prefer that it not he answere| by myself or opposing counsel
with yonr indulgence.

The economic well-being and entire future of these people are
involved and significant ongoing civil litigation obviously is the
reason for our appearance today. )

Mr. OrTiNger. We certainly wonld not want to interfese with that
litigation. :

Mr. Saxtiyt. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.

The disturbing implication of this kind of testimony is. to my mind.,
asa father of a child who was born with a birth defect, how nuny chil-
dren do we have in State institutions throughont this land whe, with
proper screening, as Dr. Green suggested, would not he there at all?

Have there been any investigations by the Departinent. of Health.
Education, and Welfare to answer that kind of question ?
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Mr. Flacewry. Mr. Santini. the population of State iustitutions. the
facilities for retarded, epileptie or cerebral, is approximately 210.000
thronghont this country. The doctor testified approximately 10 percent
of those conld have been canght in early sereenings, as you are aware.

The majority come from sociveconomic. deprived areas such as the
lead poisoning that yon heard about, when the child eats lead paint,
and that ean rvesult in brain dnmage. and poor diet control in socio-
cconomid iureas.

Yon have 210,000. Ten percent of those wonld probably not have
ocenrred mud would not be permanent if early sereening ware used.

Mr. Saxtint. What is the cost factor for maintaining. if there is a
national average. one child in a State institution for 1 year?

Mr. Hacrrery. Mr. Santini, [ ean’t talk of the national average. Penn-
sylvania is $20,000 per child, ,

When the mandatory regulations go into effect. which are presently
before HEW. it is my opinion the costs will inerease by five to $100.000
per ¢hild per year.

Mr, Orrizcer. We will have representstives from the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare before us tomorrow,

Of comrse. we have with us today, who is more knowledgeable
in this area than anybody else T know. Dr, Cohen, whom we will hear
from later today.

Mr. MeDoxyes, Mr, Chaiviman, to give yon a key to the seriousness
of the incidence of this partienlar disease. this ts the most single
inherited retardation disease which is curable in the Unted States,

T other words, this is a totally curable disease. There is no reason
why any of these thvee children should have had mental retardation.

Mr. OrriNcer. I want to thank you very mneh. T know it must have
been diftienlt for you to come heve. Mr, Tlagerty and Mrs. Magnire,
But I think yon will be of help to us in trying to prevent this kind of
problem for other families in the future,

We doappreciate your being here,

Mr. MoDox~eLL. Thank you.

Mr. OrriNGER. Onr next witness is Dr. Gerald Ilass, Boston, Mass.

He also had with him a family that has experience in this case
vision problems attribntable to lack of sereening.

Dr. Hass, we appreciate your being with us. If you could also submit
z;. st]aggment for ns we would be glad to receive it. Yon proceed as yon

cel best.

Introduee the family that is with you. Thank yon for being with ns.

STATEMENT OF GERALD HASS, M.D., PHYSICIAN IN CHIEF, SOUTH
END COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER, BOSTON, MASS., ACCOMPA.
NIED BY MRS. JOVITA FONTANEZ AND MELINA FONTANEZ

Dr. Flass. Thank you. Mr. Chairman,

I should like to introduce Melina Fontanez on my left and her
mother. Jovita Fontanez.

Mr. Chairman, members of the Subcommittee on Oversight and
Investigation. thank you for the opportunity for appearing before
yon.
© My name is Gerald Hass and I am a practicing pediatrician and
physician-in-chief of the South End Community Iealth Center in
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Boston, Mass, With my collengues, T tnke care of 9000 children in the
inner city of Boston. Most of these ehildven are recipients of medicaid.

I have been practicing medicine for 17 years, am on the teaching
faculty of Boston University and Harvard Medical School and 1 am
a fellow of the American Academy of Pediatrics.

In 1969, together with a group of people in search of better health
care for their children my colleague Mel Scovell and I designed and
founded a neighborhood ‘health center. The South End Community
Henlth Center has for the ‘mst 6 years delivered eare to a mixed ethnie
inner-city connnunity including 70 percent Spanish-Americans. Tn
1975 it was voted the most outstanding health center in Massachusetts.

Our source of funds are principally medieaid earned by sceing
patients.

We are prond of the fact that we are fiseally solvent and this we owe

" to the skill and management expertise of onr cofounder Mel Scovell,

who is now the head of the Massachusetts medienid program and is a
recognized national authority on the management aspects of the deliv-
ery of health ecare.

Your invitation to me specifically requested that T would bring with
me today a patient who would illustrate n medical problem that would
show you a real life situation and how it was handled in onr health
center.

Melina, who is with me now, is 12 vears old next week, and she was
one of our first patients. She had a_condition ealled lnzy eye blindness,
the medical name for which is amblyopin and I am happy to tell you
that she now has excellent corrected vision in hoth eyes,

Melina’s problem was first noted by a school vision sereening pro-
gram and she was referred into a hospital eve department. She i for-
tunately did not follow through at the hospital but. the condition was
again picked up beeause by this time she was in regular pediatric care
in onr henlth center and vision testing wasa part of our eare, We made
sure that she followed through by having her seen by an eye speeinlist
and we emphasized the importance of wearing her glasses which would
correct her condition.

Becanse we found many similar gaps between dingnosis and treat-
ment of eye conditions we developed our own eve eare serviee within
our health eenter, We brought together optomet rists and ophthalinolo-
gists working closely with other health professionals so that children
and adults conld receive the whole range of vision services, We per-
formed screening, diagnosis, and treatment,

Melina was in a system of eare that was able to treat her condition
as well as making sure that she followed through. beeanse she attended
for all her health needs, This is called comprehensive care.

Melina’s mother became very much involved with the health center
eventually becoming the president of our governing hoard. Throngh
her concerns for her child’s health care she developed a real under-
standing of the meaning of comprehensive eare and the importance of
a continnous relationship between a family and their source of health
care.

Dr. James Hughes. a pediatrician in Norwich, Vt.. in his recent let-
ter to the chairman of the Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee,
referred to the concept of every child’s having a medical home.
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This concept. is vividly exemplified by Melina. who untreated would
have lost vision in one eye. Fortunately. Melina had a medical hotne in
onr health center which took responsibility for her total lealth care.

We have seen many examples of this coneept. A boy of 10 with a cleft
pulate nntreated becanse of his parents” fear of hospitals. several girls
untreated with known nrinary tract infections, dozens of infants with
anemia and children with mental retardation.

These examples are not nnique to onr health center. They are com-
mon problems in children everywhere, and they need to be treated.

The responses of many Federal planners to these problems have
been to develop programs that fragment rather than cousolidate care.
Federal legislation for carly and periodic screening, diagnosis and
treatment (EPSDT) was intended to address the health problems of
medicaid children.

EPSDT forces States to separate screening from diagnosis and
treatment by its reporting and tracking requirements.

The establishment of screening programs with referral for detected
diseases may be the easiest way to develop statistics but is not the
kind of health care we wonld want for onr own children.

In those States where EPSDT represents a new and higher standard
of care. one wonld support the imposition of EPSDT. In Massu-
chusetts, however, a literal interpretation of EPSDT wounld resnlt
in fragmented and lower standard of care.

T helieve that a State that has the resonrces to provide a medical
home for every child shonld not be forced to set up a separate and less
than equal health care system for its medicaid children.

Melina was fortnnate because her condition was diagnosed and
treated. On a nationwide seale there are very many children who have
not been treated for their known health problems.

The American Academy of Pediatrics is enrrently foensing on
the status of maternal and child health programs in the United States.
Their findings hear out what I have expressed to yon. T would recom-
ment their report to your subcommittee with other material which
documents my opinions in more detail.

Thank yon for your interest and consideration.

Mr. Orringer. Thank yon very mncl, Dr. Hass.

I am very interested in what you say.

The administration of this EPSDT program is not done in con-
junetion with neighborhood health centers in which diangnoesis is
available immediately to the people whose problems are detected
throngh screening; there is a separate screening process that. is
initiated : is that correct ?

Dr. Hass. In many States this has been the way that EPSDT has
been delivered with its accept on sereening and then referral elsewhere,

This sets up n fragmented health care program. In Massachnsetts,
we have been very fortunate to try to inclnde the screening diagnosis
treatment all at one stop where the patient is nnder rontine regular
care and where all the components are together. This we call health
ecare.

Now. the problem has heen that the Federal regulations for EPSDT
demand screening statistics. Tf yon don’t sercen: that is. if you look
after children properly by giving them proper health care. yon can’t
deliver sereening statist ies,
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. Your own committee sent out a questionnaire asking for screenin
statistics. That was a very tough questionnaire to answer if you looE
after children instead of sereening then:.

You see, this is a paradox. As a consequence, we in Massachnsetts
are potentially in danger of being penalized because instead of screen-
miwe provide comprehensive health eare.

ut we recognize that XPSDT is an attempt to involve States in
providing care and we think that in concept it 1s a good idea; it is the
way that it is carried out that gives us great concern.

Mr. OrriNger. Mr. Scheuer.

Mr. Scueuer. No questions, Mr. Chairman,

Mr. OrTINGER. Mr. Sharp.

Mr. Suare. No questions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. OrriNcer. Mr. Santini.

Mr. SaxTINT. NoO questions,

Mr. OrTINGER. Counsel ?

Mr. Skcar. I would like to ask, Dr. Hass, what would have been the
consequences if the lazy-eye problem of Melina was not treated ?

Dr. Hass. Melina would have suppressed the vision in one eye.

After a period of time, probably 10 to 15 years, she would have been
essentially blind in one eye. '

You may think that is not necessarily a problem because you always
have one good eye. The problem arises if something should ha?'pen
to that good eye in which case she would have been completely blind.
Yet this is a completely reversible and enrable condition if detected
early. That would be under the age of 10 and preferably nnder the age
of six. It is like PKU. It is xo- sthing that is a sure-fire disease to pick
up early with a superb ¢ :

Mr. éx-:c‘\n. How preva. his? Out of approximately 1114 mil-
lion children who were not .. reened last year, how many might yon
expect to be children with lazy eye?

r. Hass. The figures that are given are at least ¢ percent of child-
hood population.

Our figure in our health center is somewhat higher than that. It
is [I)robably around 8 to 10 percent.

tisa familiar condition, by the way, and can be detected in families.

Mr. Sreat. So you are talking about approximately, if extrapolated,
600,000 cr 700,000 children out of the nnscreened population who might,
be expected under normal epidemiological factors to have this disease ?

Dr. Hass. The figure would be of that order.

Mr. SecaL. Thank yon.

Mr. Orringer. Mr. Wunder.

Mr. Wuxnper. Dr. Hass, yon mentioned in your statement a boy
with a cleft palate whose parents were afraid of doctors. Is that a
big part of the problem in light of the fact that we have volunteer

rograms now that there is reluctance on the part of parents to bring
in their children and how do you get at a problem like that?

Dr. Hass. I am happy to tell you that we worked very hard with
this family and were able after something over 6 months of intensive
friendly persnasion, to be able to get. this child operated on.

I saw him recently at 16. His palate is superbly closed, his speech
is good. I think it is a relatively minor problem compared with non-

accessibility of health care.
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The reason I raised this example was that education, understanding,
and trust are essentinl parts of compreliensive health care. You get
to know your patient,

If a cl)lild is being sereened in ESPDT, being sereened by perhaps
a paraprofessional and different person every time, they may never
build up the rapport and trust that is necessary.

My answer to your question is that 1 don’t think they had the op-
portunity of ever having good health care so they never learned to
trust anybody.

We found this particularly in a migrant population who have never
had the opportunity of good care.

I think you have to deliver the good care to make sure that the
things that ave screened ave taken eare of, I agree. you have to screen,
but that should be part of the care: otherwise. von are doomed to
failnre.

Mr. Skcar. Thank you, Dr, Hass,

Thank youn, Mr. Chairman,

Mz, Orniscer. I wonder if Mrs. Fontanez or Melina have anything
they would like to add, having taken the tronble to come,

Mrs. Fontanez, conld yon give us a statement. in terms of low the
health care systen: is available to you und what you feel as a parent
onght to e done to improve the situation?

Mrs. Foxraxez. [ think a migrant fanily, a poor family, and prob-
ably working poor beennse we are not just speaking in terms of medie-
aid patients, we are speaking of working poor who might not be
able to afford health insurance. Thissereening and health care that goes
on at a health center level in a community setting is very important.
There are many folks who. beeause of language problems, do not trnst
the university hospitals or city hospitals heeanse of the eare they have
gotten during the past : they are very dist rust ful,

The health community setting lias comnumity people working there
and in our particnlar liealth center we have bilingual people.

You form a friendly atmospliere so that you do not. feel harassed
if vou come there or if yon come late or if you may not come on your
appointment date,

We try to make sure that the people come on their appointment
date. Many times people liave other priorities come up, working,
going to school, whatever. I helieve that health centers are the only
way to provide good health care.

Mr. OrniNcer. Is Dr. Hass® health center available in your com-
munity ?

Mrs, Foxtaxez, Yes: just down the street from me.

Dr. Hass. T think Melina wants to say something.

Ms, Foxtanez. T want to thank the health center because if it was
not for them. T would be blind right now in one eye,

Dr. Hass. Thank you. Melina.

Mr, Orrivcer, We are very glad too, Melina.

Thank yvou all forbeing with nstoday,

. Dr. Hass. Thank you.

Mr. Orrincer. Onr next witness will be a member of the full com-
mittee. onr distinguished colleague. Congressman Ralph Metcalfe,

We welcome yon before the subcommittee, We will be Pleased
to have your testimony.
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STATEMENT OF HON. RALPH E. METCALFE, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Mr. Mercarre. Mr. Chairman, I would first like to congratulate you
and the members of the subcommittee for holding these hearings toduy.
Preventive child health care, and particularly the KEPSDT program,
is among the most necessary, and sadly, most ignored, of all health
programs,

The importance of preventive health care for children, and especial-
ly for poor children, eannot be overestimated. We have today literally
millions of young people who are sutfering from a desperate lack of
medical attention.

A recent study in New York State, for example, reports that as
niany as 40 percent of the children in school there have not received
necessary polio and rmbella vaccinations,

Hundreds of thousands of children sutfer hearing and eyesight
problems which atfeet their achievements in school, yet are untreated
becnuse they have been undingnosed.

Many children sutfer serions dental problems which will caunse them
great suffering in later life but which are untreated because they too
are undiagnosed.

The apparatus for dealing with these and other child health eare
roblems exists, Mr. Chairman. We are not confronted with the
aborious and time consiming process of writing new legislation,

The Congress, in 1967, saw the need for preventive health care and,
as amendments to the Social Secnrity Act, enacted the enrly and pe-
riodic screening diagnosis and treatment program. The program cullod
for the Federal Department of Health, Education, and Welfare to
establish this program of health screening and treatment for between
10 and 13 million eligible ehildren.

The legislation, Mr, Chairman, required that this program be im-
plemented by July 1, 1969, It was not implemented by July 1, 1969 or
July 1, 1970 or 1971 or 1972, In fact, the program has still not been
fuily implemented.

HEW did not only not implement the program by July 1, 1969 as
required by law, they never even issucd regulations for the program
until February, 1972—more than 214 years after the deadline re-
quired by Congress for full implementation,

This needless and irresponsible delay on the part of HEW dealt
a blow to this program from which it has not yet fully recovered.

The States, in their concern for the cost of the program, made little
or no effort to implement EPSDT as long as HEW in Washington
practiced its policy of benign neglect toward the program and toward
the health needs of more than 10 million children. .

In 1972, I requested that the U.S. General Accounting Office in-
vestigate the EPSDT program to deternine the extent of its imple-
mentation in my home state of Illinois and throughout the Nation.

In January 1975, the GAO issued their report. Their findings and
conclusions made clear that, despite the law and despite the obvious
human need that the program could serve, HEW all but ignored the
existence of EPSDT for more than 5 years.

The GAO reported that. by the end of fiscal year 1973, of the more
than 1.8 million eligible chi?dren living in eight sample States, less

60-800 O - 75 - 4
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than 58.000 had reccived even the minimum screening as required by
tho law. This was a screening rate of abont 3 percent or. to put it
another way. mo:- than 97 percent of the eligible children in these
eight States did not receive the preventive care mandated by act. of
Congress more than 6 years before.

I shonld note here that the (GAO statistics referred to 58,000 dif-
ferent children wha had Dbeen sereened, for the most part, only one
time in the 4 year period since the program was to have been
implemented.

-\ screening manual developed by the Ameriean Aeademy of Pedi-
atries uncler a grant by HEW specifically for EPSDT recommends
that, for preventive health care to be trnly effective, seven complete
physical examination are necessary in the first 25 months alone of
a child’s life. This same mannal recommends additional complete ex-
amtinations be provided approximately once every 2 years thereafter,

In other words. where the GAO indicates that 3 percent of the
eligible children had been screened once in the first 4 years of the
program, HEW"s own mannal recommends to the States fhat as nany
as ecight separate examinations be provided children in that same
period.

To my knowledge. no one, not one single child, has been sereened
that many times in the EPSDT program.

It should be noted that the GAO reported on screenings. or pre-
liminary physical examinations, only. The States and HEW were
unable to provide the GAO with any figures on how many of those
children had actually been treated for illnesses diagnosed during those
scereenings,

In snm, then, the GAO reported that 3 percent of the eligible chil-
dren in this country had received the minimum. limited eare under
this program.

Statistics which HEW has recently made available show . that, in
fisen]l year 1975, EPSDT has shown some improvement, Tf these fig-
ures are accurate, and T must seriously question whether or not they
are, the EPSDT sercening rate has improved to around 12 percent
this year. In other words. of the 13 million eligible children aronnd
the conntry, there were about 1114 million who still received no care
at all under the EPSDT program in fiseal 1975,

The question we must ask is how?

How could a_program this important fall victim to insensitivity,
disinterest, and burenieratic ineptness ? '

HEW. for the first years of the program's existence. acted as if
the program wasn't even there, Whether this was a deliberate flaunt-
ing of the law or simple incompetence, T do not know.

I do know that during the previons administration the deliberate
sabotage of social welfare programs was a common and often stated
policy. T would not be at all surprised if some of those at HEW at-
tempted to do to this program what was done to QOEQ during those
same years. :

Deliberate sabotage or not. HEW clearly did not. provide the States
the necessary guidance for implementing EPSDT. Tt was not until
1975 that HEW provided the States with screening manmals to assist
them with the technical aspeets of the program.
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Many States have had serious préblems in providing effective out-
reach to inform parents of the need and availability of preventive
health care. HEW has not provided incentives to the States for imn-
proving this all important service,

States have also made poor use of available health care personnel.
Many States have insisted on using physicians for all aspects o
EPSDT program although it has been shown that public health
nurses and other allied heaith professionals can performn many screen-
ing functions at less cost and to many more children. Here, too, HEW
has not provided the all important technical assistance necessary to
train ancr roperly use allied health professionals.

HEW has, in fact, been unable to even effectively monitor the
progress of the prograin.

HEW is obli by Federal law to penalize those States which
have not provided effective outreach and sereening programs. The
law states that this penalty is to be 1 percent of the Federal share
of Aid to Fumilies With Dependent Children (AFDC) funds.

This summer, in fact, HEW did penalize eight States a total of
mnore than $3 million. These penalties were assessed in the same inept

manner as the rest of the program had been administered, however.
No recif)ients were even interviewed by the HEW regional office staffs
charged with monitoring the program. No accurate statistics were
ever compiled. In fact, there seems to be no rliyme or reason for the
assessinent of many of these penalties.

My home State of Illinois is a case in point.

Although the HEW region V office in Chicago recoimmended Ilinois
be penalized for noncompliance. its investigation was so shoddy and
poorly documented that HEW General Counsel's office in Washing-
ton had to recommend that the penalty not be assessed until the re-
gional office could get its information straight.

These are but a_few examples of the kind of incompetence that has
marked HEW’s administration vt} . 33PSDT program. :

It has shown by its own examj i+ ttas 2:ceventive child health care
is low on the list of priorities und the States, sadly, have followed that
example.

In the past year. former Secretary Weinberger began to call the
program one of his top priorities. Unfortunately, this change in
rhetoric was not accompanied by a change in actions.

We must make clear exactly who at HEW has been responsible for
the failure of EPSDT. It has not been those persons directly respon-
sible for the program who have wrecked it over these past 6 years,
rather it seems to have been higher level officials of the Social and
Rehabilitation Service and the Medical Services Administration and
those officials of the HEW regional office around the country who have
so badly damaged this program.

I do not know if this attitude will carry over to the administration
of Secretary Matthews. I hope not. If it does. I hope that the Congress
will make 1t abundantly clear to the adininistration that we will not
stand for such flaunting of law and the will of Congress.

It is time that the executive branch understand that they, too, have
an obligation to obey the law.

I would like to conclude by briefly talking about the cost of this
program-—both in human terms and in purely financial ones.
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Unfortunately. the G.AO was unable to provide me with a compiira-
tive vost analysis of the EPSDT program.

HEW. itself. however. has recognized that the program will in
the end provide a net saving to the Govermment in its efforts to pro-
vide health care to low-income children,

Keep in mind that the 13 million children eligible under this pro-
gram are eligible for other medicaid services as well. If the (Govern-
ment does not provide them preventive health care now, it will sooner
or Iater be responsible for providing them with treatment for illnesses
which did not even have to develop, Dr. EIl Newherger of Childrens
Hospital in Boston and one of the {\'ution's most distingnished experts
in the field of child health care, has estimated that a complete preven-
tive child health eare. from the time a mother is 6 months pregnant to
the time the child is 16 years old wonld cost abont $1.000 per child,
Compare that with the enrrent rate of hospital care and the current
cost of drugs. That $1.000. which conld go a long way toward keeping
a child healthy for his entire life. would not even pay for 2 weeks con-
finement at a hospital at today’s prices,

In terms of pure cconomies, which we hear is of primary concern
in these days of talk of Federal deficits and inflation, this program can
represent a substantial savings to the cost of child health eare.

On human terms. and we mmst not forget that we are talking abont
the health and well being of 13 million children, the cost of this pro-
gram's failure is inealenlable.

The cost to our society in children who cannot complete school
simply because they cannot see the blackboard or clearly hear their
teacher is enormons. There are hundreds of thousands of ehildren in
this conntry who will have no chance of making it in society only be-
cause they suffer from easily treated, but undetected. physieal im-
pairments,

Two sets of statistics provide a valuable insight into just how badly
preventive child health eare programs like EPSDT are needed.

The first. provided by the National Center for Social Statisties. in-
dicates that. of those children screened throngh EPSDT, fully 47
Percent of them required o referral toa physician for treatment.

The second. provided by the GAO in its report on Alabama’s
EPSDT program. which, incidentally, was the most successful that
the GAO studied. reports that in that Stafe. among 39.000 children
sereened there were diagnosed more than 40,000 incidences of illness
of impairment. That is, an average of more than one physical problem
identified for each and every child tested,

M. Chairman, it is elear that these children desperately need proper
health care, For low-income c¢hildren, many of whom suffer from
improper diet and poor living conditions, the importance. of preven-
tive health care and regular physiceal examinations cannot he st vessed
enough.

These children need this health eare. They deserve it. Tt is their
right.

The law. cconomics, and our conseience demand that this program
be fully implemented,

I ean only ask how could we have allowed a program of this im-
portanceto fail for so long.
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. I hope that these hearings will provide the answer to that question
and also provide some insight into how we can move ahead to make it
work in the future.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Orrinaer. Thank you very much, Congressman Metcalfe.

The subcommittee is very grateful indeed to you.

The report that you requested from GAO to a large extent raised
the questions that are the foundation of this program.

We are grateful to you for the information you have provided to
the committee.

Mr. Mercanre. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. OrriNGer. Are there any questions?

If not, we appreciate your taking the time to be with us.

Mr. Mercarre. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you, gentlemen.

Mr. OrriNger. Our next witness is Dr. Wilbur J. Cohen, former
Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare.

Dr. Cohen, it is a pleasure indeed to have you here. We look for
ward to any light you can shed on this important problem.

Without objection we will be glad to include your statement in the
record at this point.

Mr. Coxen. Mr. Chairman, I would prefer if you would put mny
entire statement in the record [see p. 51fnnd within the time limit I
prefer to just touch on two or three points and have you ask me any
questions on the general tenor of my testimony.

Mr. Orringer. We will do that and you may proceed.

STATEMENT OF WILBUR J. COHEN, DEAN, SCHOOL OF EDUCATION,
AND PROFESSOR OF PUBLIC WELFARE ADMINISTRATION,
SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK, UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN

Mr. Conex. T presume, Mr. Chairman, that one of the reasons you
asked me to come here is because it is alleged that I am the God father
of this program that you have been discussing today and I accept the
paternity. '

Mr. ScaruEr. I trust the witness’ use of the word Godfather was a
slip of the tongue.

I originally designed this particular screening program as an idea
totry to take a step in the directior of my ultimate gope and that was a
gational health insurance program covering all children in the United

tates. -

I believe the experience that we have had in this program does indi-
cate, first, the soctal and economic value of the general approach and,
secondly, it has identified some of the problems which I think now
would lead us into the direction of strengthening that program and
ultimately absorbing it into a national health insurance program for
children.

In my testimony I suggest that one way, although I don’t think the
only way, would be to take the screening program now, apply it to all
families throughout the Nation whose incomes are below the poverty
threshold, providing that the Federal Government pay 100 percent of
the cost of the program above whatever amounts the States now put
in, that is, to hold the States to the amount of financial aid that they are
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now giving, and then over the course of time hopefully institute a na-
tional health insurance program for all children under the age of 6 to
begin with. ultimately stepping up to age 12 and then to age 16 or 21
in which ultimately then the screening program would be absorbed
into the national insurance program.

Of cowrse. if we were starting from a clear slate. I would not sug-
gest that is the only way to arrive at this conclusion. But I believe
when you recognize all the problems we have in the implementation
of health programs, the cost side, the personnel side, the impact upon
inflation. the lack of resources and facilities and so on, it is important
for us to take what T call an incremental point of view in the develop-
ment. of national health policy. Therefore. I believe that perliaps one
of the best ways to make a step in this whole national health insurance
is not to think of the whole ball of wax at one time for 220 million peo-
ple covering all medical care in 50 States and 3.000 counties with all the .
administrative problems. but. to take a step toward a counterpart to
medicare by a program for children under the age of 6 to begin with,
and put our incremental or inarginal economic resources into this new
program at the present time.

Therefore, T might say that the same recommendation I made in
my recent testimony to the Committee on Ways and Means is that if
you are thinking of a national health insurance program, why not
start with children first?

We have had a lot of experience now in the screening and diagnosis
and treatnent program. We have identified a lot of problems. We need
to train more personnel. But it is within owr administrative ability
over a period of, I think, 4 to 6 years to implement this proposal. That
is the basic tenor of my recommendation.

I also in my testimony feel that this program has indicated the im-
portance of owr continuing on a vigorons, dramatic and comprehen-
sive research program.

I am also very proud of the fact I had a good deal to do as Chair-
man of President Kennedy’s Task Force on Health and Social Security
in 1960 with what became eventunally the National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development.

However, that institute. after about 10 or 12 years. still only gets
about $126 million in the existing budget. I think there has been a sig-
nal failure on the part of the Federal Government to nndertake the
kind of fundamental basic research in the problems of child health
that wonld save millions. I would say potentially, billions of doll-. 3,
in preventing the kinds of problems that you heard about today.

T have in my testimony identified a number of them, taken primarily
from the Department of Health. Education. and Welfare's report, the
Forward Plan for Health. which was just issued. I have included in
my statement about 5 to 6 pages from that report on the research areas
of child health which if T were still Secretary of HEW. I would plow a
great deal more money into the National Institute of Child Health and
Human Development. for that fundamental research coupled simul-
taneously then with a health and medical care program for children
on the preventive. diagnosis, curative, treatment. side, which I think
then would make a real step forward. .

I believe your subcommittee hepefully ought to look at the inter-
relationship of the screening program and the medicaid portion thereof
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in relation to proposals for national health insurance and in relation
to the program of the National Institute of Child Health and Human
Development. That is the basic thrust.of my testimony.

I present. the tigures there which you know very well, that there are
some 10 million children in the United States in poverty: that our in-
fant mortality rates are still higl: that they vary by Sfates. and that,
if we are going to have an effective comprehensive program for deal-
ing with the health of children. we must not. merely correct the defects
thut we found in the sereening program, and I might say T whole-
heartedly concur in the recommendation of the General Accounting
Office with regard to this program. and T would hope that Secretary
Mathews would eliminate the disadvantages—that is the best. word T
can think of—thar have infiltrated into the failure to implement this
program. And I feel that they are largely administ rative.

Now. you asked some questions about that and T only want to finish
with one suggestion. The key reason why this program failed in my
opinion was the failure to take the States into a cooperative relation-
ship in the implementation of the program.

This program is a Federal-State partnership. There might be other
ways and better ways to do it. through national health insurance in my
opinion. but the fact of the matter is that Congress. in 1965, and in
1967. determined that this aspect was going to he n Federal-State
partnership.

But under the leadership of the Department. prior to Dr. Mathews’
coming on as Secretary, there was not. only an unwillingness to work
with the States to accomplish the objectives in the law. but a failure
to communicate with the States, to cooperate with the States in an
effective cooperative program.

In iy opinion, that was the central reason why the program didn’t
make as much headway as T originally thought. it. would when I han-
dled the legislative implementation of this program in Congress in
1967.

[ Testimony resumes on p. 61.]

[Mr. Cohen’s prepared statement and attachment follows ]

STATEMENT OF WILBUR J. (COMEN, DEAN, ScH00L OF EDUCATION. AND PROFESSOR
OF PUBLIC WELFARE ADMINISTRATION, SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK, THE USNIVERSITY
OF MICHIGAN, ANN ARBOR, MicHiGaxn

THE FIVE GIANTS IN OUR LAND

In his famous report issued in 142, Sir (later Lord) William Beveridge sum-
marized many years of research and study on the problems of poverty and family
disintegration by saying:

“. .. Want is one only of five giants on the road of reconstruction and in some
ways the easiest to attack. The others are Disease, Ignorance. Squalor and
1dleness.” !

Despite the tremendous economic and social progress made in the United
States in recent decades. these five ginnts still stalk in far too many American
homes. And it is particularly unfortunate that at the present time we seem to be
quite willing to accept a policy of détente with these giants which are bent on
the objective of family disorganization md dependency.

If we were to adept and implement a nationai policy which had as s national
goal the banning of these ginnts from our land, destroying the weapons they use,

L Social Inuurance and Allied Services, The MacMillan Co., New York, 1942, page 6,
paragraph 8. . .
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and placing control of them under national surveillance with impartial inspectlon
teams, we conld substantially improve famlly life wilthin the next decade.

That is the soal I snggest we work toward ; The eradientlon of want. lgnorance,
squalor. and ldleness, aml the prevention of disease among every child and youth
in the nation.

POVERTY AMONG CHILDREN

The most recent estimates of poverty in the United Statex by the Census
Burean show that for 1974 of the 243 million persons with incomes helow the
poverty Ilne, xome 10.2 million were children under age 18, (For poverty thresh-
holds see Table 1.) :

In 1973. there were 9.5 million children in families with incomes below the
poverty level. Between 1973 and 1974 this figure inereased by 8 percent to 102
million, even though the number of children in the total population decreased.
The poverty rate for children. therefore. increased from 14.2 percent in 1973 to
13.5 pe-peent in 1974

Moxt distressing is the fuct that there has been no continuous decrease in the
number or proportion of children in poverty In the past five years (1970-74) as
there was in the previous ten years (1939-69). There were 17.2 million children
in poverty in 1959, or 26.9 percent of all children. These tigures declined to 9.5
million children in 1969 (and also in 1973) and to 13.8 percent.

In addition. there Is # vers high incidence of poverty among children in fam-
ilies when the head of a family is 2 woman (51.5 percent) and an even higher
percent when the head of the family ix a black woman (65.7 percent ).

The poverty rates for black children were abont 4 times those of white children.

{See Table 2.)
. POVERTY AMONG CIHILDREN BY STATES

Poverty among children varies widely by states and by connties within states.
Table 3 displays the data from the 1970 Census for children age § through 17
which shows the lowest poverty rates ranging from 7.2 percent to 7.7 pervent
in Connecticut and New Hampshire to a high of 41.5 percent in Mississippl.

There were seven states in which there were counties with a poverty rate
above 70 percent. These were Alahama (714 percent). Alaska (93.1 percent),
Georgin (74.6 pervent), Kentucky (71 percent), Mississippi (759 percent),
Tennessee (70.7 percent). and Texas (70.4 percent).

INFANT MORTALITY RATES BY STATES

The infant mortality rate under one year has heen declining for a number of
vears. In 1974 there were approximately 52400 infant deaths resulting in an
infant mortality rate of 16.5 per 1.000 live births. This was the lowest annual rate
ever recorded in the United States and represented a 7 percent decrease from the
17.7 rate for 1973.

The variation by states in 1973 wax from 13.7 in Hawaii to 25.2 in Mississippi.
There were seven states with rates below 15 and 8 jurisdictions with rates nbove

20 as follows:*

Rates helow 15: Rates above 20:

Hawaii oo 13.7 Mississippl cceo oo ___ 25,2
New Hampshire ..~ 14.2 Distriet of Columbia________. 23.1
Wisconsin o 14. 4 Sonth Carolina_____________ 23.0,
Californin _______ . __._- 14.6 Alabama oo 2 2,2
Connecticut ________ . _.__.._. 14.7 Tennessee __w__—an-

Kansas oo 14. 8 North Carolina___.__.

oregon e 149 New MexicOo_ oo oo 20.5

T.onisiana o ____.-__ 20.

MD TO FAMILIES WITIl DEPENDENT CITILDREN

Abont eight million children currently aye receiving welfare payments under
the Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) program. as compired
with the ten million children whose familiex have incomes below the poverty
line. The AFDC program does not generally provide aid to families with children
where there are two parents except iu cases of disability or unemployment of

one of the parents.

2 Monthly Vital Statiatics Report. “Aunnual Summary far the United States. 1974
Yol. 23, No. 13, Mayg 30, 1975, Department of HLENW., National Center for 1llealth

Statisties, p. 15,

e
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AFDC payments vary widely. The average per child payment was $66.08 for
the nation in March 1975 varying from $109.07 in Massiachusetts to $14.35 in
Mississippi®

Standards of assistanee vury widely. In May 1971, the stundard for basie needs
for a family of four withont any itncome varied from $4,356 iIn Indiana to

2,400 in North Carolina.}

IMPLICATIONS OF STATE VARIATIONS

There are other significant variations among the states such as in educational
expenditures per child and physiclans in relation to popnlation. These varia-
tions when considered in relantion to the wide variations tu per capita incomes
among the states indicnte that an effective program to improve the health,
education and welfare of the children of onr natien cannot be achieved in the
near future withiout the substantial finuncial assistance and leadership of the
federn! government and the cooperation of the states.

Ultimately we mnst have a welfure reform plan which will provide some
simplified and equitable mininmun payment to all families with ehildren whose
income is below a minimmn level. In the interim it would be a step in the diree-
tion of broadening AFDC protection to children by amending section 406(a)
of the Socinl Security Act by striking cut the existing linguage which restricts
the program to a needy child “who has been deprived of parental support or
care by reason of the death, coutinmed absence from the home, or physical or
mental incapacity of a parent,” and coupling this with a minimum standard
which would he federally financed.

BCREENING, DIAGNOSIS AND TREATMENT OF CHILDREN FOR NEALTI NEEDS (EPSDT)

In 1966-67, I recommiended to President Johmson the proposal eventually in-

corporated in the Social Seenrity Amendments of 1967 as EPSDT—the Early
Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment Program. This program is in the
Medicnid provisions of the law—title XIX, section 1905 (a) (4) (B) of the Social
Security Act as follows :
“effective July 1, 1969, snch early and periodic screening and diagnosis of in-
dividuals who are eligible under the plan and are under the age of 21 to nscertain
their physical or mental defects, and such health care, treatment, and other
measures to correct or mmeliornte defects and chronic conditions Wiseovered
therehy, as may be provided in regulations of the Secretary ;”

With the experience gained in implementing this program in the past six
years, we should now take steps to strengthen, improve, and expand it.

One way to do this wonld be to amend the existing provisions so that effective
July 1, 1977 it would be made to apply to all families throughout the nation
whose incomes are below the poverty threshhold and provide that the feder:al
gsovernment pay 100 percent of the cost of the program ahove whatever amounts
the states were contributing to this program in the fiscal yoar 1975.

hY
A NATIONAL IEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR MOTIIERS AND CHILDREN

I do not helieve, however, that it is desirable for the long run to have an in-
come conditioned program for health care. T, therefore, view any such program
as a transitional step toward a universal eligibility program hased solely on
residence. I, therefore, favor enactment of a national plan covering initia]l:v all
children under the age of six and prenatal, postnatal and all other medical serv-
ices associated with childbirth, I would extend this program to children up to
age 12 about two years later, and to children up to age 18 or 21, two vears
thereafter. '

In this way, there would be timé to make the necessary plans with all parties
concerned. As this plan expanded. the EPSDT program would contract and
eventually be terminated.

I would not have any co-insurnnce or deductibles under the national health
insurance program for mothers and children. This would greatly simplify the
hookkeeping under the plan. Payments to primary care physicians could he on
a per capita basis thus encouraging preventive care and discouraging unneec-
essary services,

3 Social Security Bulletin, Sept. 1975. p. 54.
4:;geljarc Programa for Familics, Sennte Committee on Finance, July 21. 1971, pp.
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HEALTI! CARF EXPENDITURES FOR CIIILDREN

Children under the age of 19 represented 34.1 of the population in 1974 but
accounted for only 149 percent of all personal health expenditures. As might
be expected. persons age G5 and over were only 10.2 percent of the population
but accounted for 20.5 percent of all health expenditures.®

Per capita expenditures for all personal health expemditures _\_'nried widely with
age. For children under age 19, per capita expenditures in 1074 \\'ere‘ $184, com-
pared to $420 for persons 19-G-4 and $1.218 for person age 65 and over.

From these figures we can drnw a preliminary observation that we could de-
velop a comprehensive health care program for all children in the hnmediate
years nhead at probably around $300 a year per child or about $1.8 billlon for
all children up to the age of six plus the ¢est of prenatal and postnatal care for
approximately 3.2 miltion births per year, probably at a cost of around $2 billion
a year. :

To the extent we could take some or all of the tinancial burden for health care
costs of children off of the young and lower-income families in the nation. we
wonld be making an important contribution to family life in an inflationary
werimd,

! CURRENT HEALTII AND WELPFARE COSTS

Total personal health expenditures in 1974 for children and youth up to age
19 were $13.4 billion of which $0.8 billion was from private and 3.6 billion from
public sources. Federal sources accounted for $2.2 billion and state and local
governments the other $1.4 billion.

In the same year. about $8 billion was expended under the AFDC program
for children on welfare and their parents. of which more than half eame from
federal funds. '

RESHARCH ON PREVENTIVE.HEALTH CARF. FOR CHILDREN

There is an imperative need to continue and extend the research program of
health care for children being conducted by the National Institute of Child Henlth
and ITuman Development (NICHD). Thix Institute created as a result of the
recommendations of the task foree of which I was chairman in 1960 is responsible
for developing new kmowledge that will improve the quality of life for the
nation’s children and ciicourage the quantity of children appropriate to the
nation’s resources,

The mission of the NTCHD is to contribute to the good health of all citizens
through efforts to understand the many factors related to the adaptation of
populations to available resources and the expiansion of knowledge on family
planning. maternal and child health, and human development. The primary
emphasis of Institute efforts is prevention of disense and disability.

I have included as a supplement to my statement the pertinent portions relat-
ing to Child ITealth which apepar in the Forward Plan for Health, FY 1977-81
published in June 1975 by the Department of Iealth, Eduecation. and Welfare
(pp. 85-86 and 227-231).

T wounld like to draw attention to several eritieal pending areas of research
in child health which I helieve merit your strong support,

1. Lowr-birth-iceight infants.—About 240.000 low-hirth weight infants are born
every vear in the United States. A fifth of these children will not survive the first
five months of life. and those that do often sustain Permanent development
impairments. In addition to immeasnrable personal suffering. the cost to society
for medical care in the firet year of life alone will total ahout one hillion dollars.
Research has resulted in the development of early prenatal intervention pro-
grams. improved diagmostic techniques. methods to delay the onset of labor and
special attention to groups such as teenage mothers at high risk for having a low-
birth-weight infant.

2. SIDS.—Among the chief priorities of the NICTID is the eradication of the
tragedy of sudden infont death syndrome (SINS), Tt is the leauling ecause of
@& 1ths among infants between the ages of one month and one year. Between
7 and 10 thousand healthy infants die eaeh year and no apparent cause of death
can be dircovered by the attending physician. Since 1971, the NICHD has spon-
sored research-planning workshops to identify specifie areas of the SIDS prob-

3 Marjorie Smith Mueller and Robert M. Giheon. “Age Differences tn Tlealth Care
Spendine. Fisent Yoar 1974, Social Seeurity Bulletin, June 19735, p, 3.

A Provions sonres, p, 10,
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lem requiring indepth studies. These workshops have suggested speein] emphasis
on abnormal breathing patterns during sleep. and anatomical abnormalities
amoug other suggestive leads for research. In addition to resenrch connected
with the cause of SIDS, considerable activity has been devoted to researeh
involved in counseling and support of families of SIDN victims,

3. Antecedents of developmentul impairment.—I'here nre currently 15 million
Americans who have a birth defect serious enmigh to drastically affect their
lives. Genetic defeets nccount for developmental disabilities in up to five percent
of ali live births. Investigntion sponsored by the NICID has made signitieant
progress in the dingnosis of phenylketonuria, and other diseases, Recent work
in hearing, speech, and language disorders using andiometry has improved the
assessment of very young children who may have an organic basis for future
learning problems. The Institute intends, in the near future, to initinte new re-
search efforts in dyslexia to assist the 15 percent of children who experience
diffienlty in learning to read.

4. Teenage pregnancy—While unplanned and unwanted pregnancies have
declined in the population above 20, they have increased in the reenage gronp.
During the period from 1963-70, over two and one-half million *nnwanted"
babies were born, a signifieant proportion of which were to teenage mothers-
The proportion of all births that are illegitimate doubled between 1963 and 1973
rising from 6.3 to 13.0 percent. Among teenage girls, the proportion of illegitimate
births rose from 18 to 33 percent in ihe same period. Births among ndolescents
contribute heavily to infant mortality and morbidity and to the welfare rolls, One
in four low-birth-weight infunts has a teenage mother. The NICID supports
studies to examine the sexual and contraeeptive patterns of young people and
will contitie to increase knowledge in this area. During the coming year the
Institute will hold a conference to nssess current knowledge and to identify
the maps in understanding of the behavioral and biomedical aspects of teenage
pregnancey.

In order for the NICHD to mount new efforts to solve these important problems
which bear so heavily on the prevention of adult disease, sufficient funds must
be provided. The 1976 President’s Budget for the N1CHD, far from providing an
increase to start new programs. proposes a $20 million decrease, In the light of
the research opportunities that abound in the area of respousibility of the
NICHD. the proposed reduction is nnwise and msound.

I am an enthusiastic and vigorous supporter of the research program of the
NICHD. I strongly recommend that the Institute budget be restored to the 1973
level and that an additional 26 million he provided to begin the “Major Research
Programs for Mothers and Infants” which the Institure has developed. From
a cost-benefit standpoint, this is a sonnd proposal. We stand to save millions in
health care costs for children by the investment of $6 miliion.

A COMPREHENSIVE PROGRAM FOR CIILDREN. YOUTII AND THE FAMILY

As Secretary of Health, Edueation. and Welfare, I developed a comprehensive
program for children, youth and the family, While sever:l of the recommenda-
tions are beyond the jurisdiction of thix Committee, the total program may be
of interest to the wembers of thix Subcommittee and T attack my current revision
for your review,

A CoMPREHENSIVE PROGRAM FOR CHILDKEN. YoUTir axp Toe FaMiLy

By Wilbur J, Colien, Formerly Secretary of Health, Education, s:nd Welfare

1. Extend comprelensive prenatal and postuatal care for all women as part
of a national health insurance program so that insofar as possible every child
will he born weli.

2. Extend comprehensive medieal care to all children with correction of any
disabilities as pnrt of a unational lealth insurance program so that insofar ay
possible every child will have had the opportunity to have any d.suabilities cor-
rected or allevinted before the child goes to schiool.

3. Extend family planning services to all persons who want then: so every
child is horn a wanted child and so that children are spaced to enable parents
to give them the affection. understanding and support they need.

4. Provide for a ealth education program which brings medical, mtritional
and scientific knowledge to every person so that disabilities will be minimized
and the health and nutrition of individuals will he improved.

G0
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5. Provide for the establishment of special pediatri¢ high-risk birth mobile
units to assist in handling births of children with high risks.

6. Develop and extend specal mavernal and child henlth demonstration units
to ussist in reduction in infant and maternal mortality.

7. Provide for maternity leave for women with full pay for three weeks prior
to childbirth nnd seven weeks after childbirth. Provide far one week paternity
leave for men during perlod of birth of the child.

8. Extend preschool programs through the Head Start program, day care of
children of welfare families. and Title I of ESEA so that by 1980 every purent
who wishes his or her child to have preschool experience will be able to do so.

9. Revitalize and strengthen the work of the Prezident’s Commixsion on Mental
Retardation so as to extend preventive, rehabilitation and employment services
for the mentally retarded.

10. Increase the number of Nelghborhood Health Centers so that families may
have prompt and convenient access to primary health care of high quality.

11. Extend and expand the Child Welfure Services pravisions in Title V of
the Socigl Security Act xo that states can improve, strengthen, and extend serv-
ices to protect neglected and abused children. license and inspect child cure insti-
tutions. provide ndoption and foster care services, etc.. so that every child will
have available the services needed.

12, Provide additionnl funds for research, information. and dissemination of
information on Sudden Infant Death Syndrome.

13. Expund the research program of the National Tnstitute of Child Health
and Human Development with a view to preventing disabilities, and assuring
constructive child and parental development.

14. Increase a child’s benefit under the social security system from 759 of
the parent’s benefit to 809 . Omit from consideration of the provision limiting
a child's socinl security benefit up to age 22, if prior period spent in the Teacher
Corps. Peace Corps, military service. or any other approved connnunity service
program. Thus, a person who had spent two years in the 'ence Corps could have
the period of benefits extended to age 24. Increase the miaimmn payment
to a child to $150 a month.

15. Provide in the federal law-making grants to states for dependent children
that the minimum standard of need for each child with no other income shall
be $100 a month.

16. Extend and improve the vocational education program so that cvery hoy
and girl who wishes to learn a relevant skill and develop a career can do so,

17. Develop adequate and diversified summer programs for employment, train-
ing. recrention. and useful experiences for children and south.

1R. P’rovide appropriate means to assist young persons age 14-18 to obtain
paid empioyment. which will assist in developing skills, responsibility and inde-
peaidence and under circumstances which will not discourage their continued
educatioa.

10, Provide additional federal aid for able students to become physicians.
nurses. dentists and other professional members of the health and medical care
system.

20. Encourage bilingnal education and the preservation of cultural traditions
among children and families from non-American hackgrounds.

21. Encourage all children to learn a non-English langtage so that they may
be aide to work with people of other nations, in the furtherance of world peace.
prosperity and cultural inter-change.

22, Intensify efforts to eliminate and reduce the availability of hard drugs:
expand educational programs to disconrage the use of drugs, tobaecco, alcohol
among children and youth. .

a3, Provide for a method of expunging federal and state arrest and conviction
records of individuids for acts performed before age 21 which were not felonies.

24 Tncrease and diversify federal and state financial aid for students to
enter community colleges and universities so that every youth with ability will
hiave an equal chance to enter and continue in post-secondary education.

25. Strengthen the research and services of the Nitional Tnstitute of Mental
Health o as to assist parents, children and youth achieve a state of construe-
tive mental health and well-being.

26. Encourage government agencies to swork with non-governmental agencies
to play an important role in research. demonstration projects. services, and
leadership in working with children. youth. and families, .
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27, Establish by federal and state laws a Chlld, Youth and Family Policy
Act which sets out the importance and priority of strengthening, defending,
and preserving famlly Hfe with rights and responsibilities for children, parents,

and the family.

TABLE 1.—SELECTED POVERTY LEVEL THRESHOLOS [N 1974 BY SIZE OF FAMILY AND SEX OF HEAD, BY FARM-
NONFARM RESIDENCE

Nonfarm,  Farm, female
hea

Family unit Total male head
ed person PO $2, 352 $2,387 $2,002
:ged couple. 2,958 2,984 2,533
, 008 5,040 4,262
P 6, 651 6, 706 5,702

Source: ““Maney income and Poverty Status of Families and Persans jn the United States:"* 1974 (advance report);
current population reports, consumer income, series P60, No. 99, July 1975, table 14, p. 16.

TABLE 2.—POVERTY RATES FOR CHILOREN, 1974

Total White Black

Total, alfages. . ......ooome i iieaaaans PO 1.6 8.9 315

Undar 3 yr. 17.4 13.4 39.9
to5yr.. 16.5 12.4 39.4
GlolZirr_ 16.1 11.6 42.8
14 and 15 yr. 1.1 9.9 39.6
16 to 21 yr.. 12.3 8.9 34.7
S0 17 Yl e 15.3 10.9 41.7

Source: See Table 1—Tabile 19 p. 20.
TABLE 3.—CHILOREN AGED 5 THROUGH 17 IN POVERTY FAMILIES BY STATE, 1970 CENSUS

Low and high Low and high
State county percents State county percents
average —— ———— average ————-———
State_.......oaoo.... (percent)  Low High State........oneenn. (percenl)  Low Hiigh
50 States and District Missouri. . 14.8 4.5 52,2
of Columbia_...... 14.8 1.6 93.1 12.9 5.6 35.6
12.0 2.2 44,6
29.5 15.7 71.4 . . 5.8 17,9
14.6 1.8 93.1 [ New Hampshire. . 1.7 6.3 1.4
17,5 10.7 57.2 | New Jersey.... 8.7 3.1 16.
3.6 12.6 59.2 1 New Mexico.. . 26.3 1.6 65.
12.1 5.7 0| NewYork. ...oueeeee oaoo. 12.2 3.9 21.9
12.3 3,8 2.0 9.0 57.1
7.2 4.9 15. 9.4 45.8
12.0 9.7 9.8 4.1 33.0
18.9 10.4 19.5 8.9 53.1
2.4 6.7 10.3 4.8 21.7
9. 8.8 10.6 3.8 22.3
12.0 4.0 1.0 6.1 14.
10.7 2.3 29.1  339.1 59.
9.0 4.0 18.3 7.4 50.
9.8 5.4 24.8 4.3 70.
1.5 2.2 21.5 3.0 70.
25.1 9.2 10.0 2.6 43.4
30.1 10.7 11.4 1.5 21.0
14.2 9.3 18.2 3.3 51.4
1.5 9 9.3 6.4 24.6
8.4 4.0 4.3 6.7 48.4
9.1 4.2 8.7 3.2 43.6
nn - 9.5 3.8 11.2 4.5 18.4
Mississippioceeenceceen aenns 4.5 14.9 2.2 ...

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Buresu of the Census, ''1970 Census of Population’* (from a special
tabulation). Counts of children in poverty families were divided by the totsl number of children 5 through 17
.. by county and by State.
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Cuip HearTn ExcErPTs—ForwaArp PLAN FoR Heavtu

CiLIl.b NEALTI INITIATIVE

In the aren of child health, the knowledge development. requirements go beyond
the purview of any one Institute or any one Henlth Ageney. Thus, efforts to co-
ordinate resenrch activities which pertain to the health of mothers and ehildren
Lave been intinted that involve several of the Institutes of Ienlth. ADAMEHA,
HD, SRS and SSA. Several intradepartmenta!, intra-Pubiic Health Service, and
intra-NII committees serve ns mechunisms for infirmation exchange and policy
reconnnendation in the aren of maternal and child health. Efforts to improve
the effectiveness of coordination and collnboration mechanisms will continue. If we
trace child health research needs from the inception of the fetus through the
development of the child, the following efforts require special attention :

(@) Fertility Regulation: New and improved methods of fertility regulation
will be explored. This exploration will involve nssessinent of existing contracep-
tive appronches with respect to undesirnble side effects aund ncceptability, and
will 1ook Into pussible menns of overcoming infertility. Continuned support of basie
resenreh in reproductive biology is essentinl in order to provide the knowledge
base for development of safer, more effective, nnd universally nceeptable family
planning techniques.

(b) Pregnancy, Labor and Delivery : Research in this aren should focus on high
risk obstetrical conditions that contribute to infant morbidity and mortality, such
as dinbetes, hypertension and toxemia. 1t is nlso essentinl to determine the wnater-
nal and intra-uterine conditions that are optimal for fetal growth and matura-
tion. To prevent the premature onset of lnbor, research is necessary to determine
why labor begins. Further exploration is needed of the contribution of various
nnalgesic and anesthetic agents administered during labor to the development
of depression of the fetal nervous system, and which can resuit in central nervous
systemn damage.

() Surveillance of Fetnl Well-Being : Improved methods are needed to detect
fetnl pathophysiology. including increasing the number of disenses which can be
dingnosed prenatally with specinl attention to sickle cell disense, cystie fibrosis
and thalassemin. Emphasis shonld be placed on ensuring that the latest develo)-
ments in prenatal dingnoses are disseminated and made available to practitioners.

(d) Infants at Risk : Since low pirthweight infants (5% pounds or less) account
for 60 percent of all infant deaths, it ix imperative that research focus on the
canses of infants being born too soon or too small. Particular emphasis needs to
be given to preventing illnesses in infants weighing less than 2% pounds, such as
hyaline membrane disense and neonatal jaundice, which contribute to infant
mortality and morbidity. The sudden infant death syndrome, which is the major
eanse of denth after the first month of life, continues to require research emphasis.

(e) Nutritionnl Assessinent: Attention needs to be given to the development of
more accurate clinienl tehniques to assess the nutritional status of the preguant
womun, her fetns and of children from one month of age through adolescence.
Research is also needed to determine the relationship of the nutritional status
of children to obesity, hormonal and metabolic disorders, dental caries, muscilo-
<keletal defects and susceptibility to infectious disease. Survey instruments need
to he improved which can be incorporated into ongoing nutrition assessments.

(f) Accident Prevention: Additional research is needed in the areas of toy
snfety. safe pnckaging of drugs, and home and antomobile accident prevention,
since aceidents are the leading cause of death in children after the first year of
life.
(¢) Mental Henlth: The complex questions of the mental health of children
need to be nddressed by research which looks at the 1) biological. behavioral and
sociosenitural aspects of mental illness and behavior and learning disorders,
2) biologieal. psyehological and socinl correlates of development, and 3) psycho-
logieal and emotional preparation for assuming adult roles. ADAMIHA has identi-
fied ¢hild mental health as one of its major cross-cutting research priorities.

B. Child Health

Attitudes toward personal health care are developed at very young ages and
tend to refleet the attitudes of parents and gnardians, Early preventive health
care can play an important part in formulnting a consumer's life-long attitudes
toward henlth and in fruproving later health status. A preventive health care
strategy for children should include the following areas: genetic factors, infant
mortality and low hirth welght. hmuunization. nutrition. dental health.-and

mental health.
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1. Genetie Discases

Genetic conditions are individunlly rare and even in the aggregate occur in
only 3 to 4% of live hirths. but theyv account for approximately one fourth of all
hospital admissions. a mmjor portion of infant and childhood mortality, and an
enormous financial burden in terms of medieal care, provision of special soclal
services. and institutionalization. A )

Recent medical advances have begun'to make inronds on this array of diseases,
Anmiocentesis and genetie counseling permit families to engage in informed
decisions about genetic factors. Screening at birth for PKU and galactosemia,
and appropriate diet therapy for those afllicted. has virtually eliminated these
conditions as causes of mental retardation. Further resenrch to identify causes,
methods of treatment. and prevention of genetie factors should be undertaken.
Efforts should also be minde to extend to the general public currently available
diagmostic, preventive. and therapeutic measures,

2. Infant Mortality and Low Birth Weight Infants

Although the infant mortality his been reduced considerably to a 1974 rate
of 17.3 per 1.000 live births. 109 of the more than 3,000 U.S. counties reported
infant mortality rates above 33.4. The non-white population had almost double
the rate (28.8) of the white (15.2). The prematurity rate, like the infant mor-
tality rate, varies among different population groups. In 1973, for example, 269,
of ull low hirth weight infants were born to teennge mothers.

There is strong evidence of a positive correlation between the receipt of ma-
ternal health care services and the reduction of infant mortality. There is further
indication that health services play a particularly important role in infant mor-
tality reduction in the neonatal period (0-28 days) when % of all infant denths
occur. The non-medieal factors appear to have an effect more on post-neonatal
period (29 days to one year).

A proposed project would target resources for the prevention of infant mor-
tality to those areas of grentest need. Arens would be selected based on a number
of indives including rates of infant mortality and low birth weight infants. Seed
money wonld be awarded to sites to facilitate the process of targeting resources
on the problem of infant mortality.

The contribution of family blanning to improving the health of children is
important. particularly as it relates to reducing the incidence of genetic disease,
infunt mortality. and mental iliness,

PHS will continue its family planning services with emphasis on: optimal
family size based on heaith. economic resources, and family considerations;
birth intervals which promote maternn! and child health: and child bearing dur-
ing those years which pose the lenst risk for the mothers and the best ehnnces
for n healthy bhaby.

3. Immunization :

In spite of the success in recent years in the control and prevention of mensles,
poliomyelitis, and rubella, there is one area of concern which will require specinl
attention: the immunization of preschoolers from low income families. CDC
fmmunization programs will focus on Head Start, EPSDT, Day Care and Neigh-
borhood Health Center populations.

4. Nutrition

Nutritional care, including dietary counseling, should lLe integrated into the
preventive, dingnostic, and restorative health services of all the PHS progran:s
for all family members. However, it is especially important that nutrition serv-
ices for the subsets of the population with high vulnerability to malnutrition
and with special nutritivnal requirements, i.e., pregnant and lactating women,
infants, young children, and adolescents, have priority in efforts to reduce mor-
bidity and mortality rates. Nutrition plays a vital role in the treatment of condi-
tions such as phenylketonuria, maple syrup urine disease, and cardiovascular
disease. Untreated, these conditions seriously endanger health and increase stress
for individuals and families as well as increase costs for long term care.

The health service programs and USDA's Supplemental Food Program (WIC)
and other food assistance programs should coordinate efforts to insure that
women, infants, and children in needy families are authorized to receive supple-
mental foods or other types of assistance,

§. Dental Health
Although a number of oral disease entities impact on children, the most
significant in terms of the number affected are dental caries and incipient
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periodontal disense. The caries process, once initinted, is irreversible and requires
therapeutic intervention to prevent further tissne destruction and nitimate tooth
loss, and to restore normal funetion and appearance. The conrse of periodontal
dlsease dnring childhood, while more wnbtle and less inmnediately visible, sets
the stage for even greater damage to the fatnre orul health statng of the adnit
patient, i.e., potentially total edentulonsness even in the absence of enries. More
importantly, however, the periodontal disense process ix preventable and can he
reserved during ity carly stages in the ehildhood years. Therefore, n speciai foens
on preventing dental disease in chiidren is appropriate. Options inclnde:

Promoting the muintenance of optimal fluoride levels by supporting the instal-
latlon and initinl operating costs of finoridation of community and school water
supplies; identifying those water systems that are either deficient or excessive
In fluoride content: and by monnting n program of continual monitoring of
all publle water systems so that problems ean be quickiy identified.

Promoting pnblic visibility for and increused professional awireness of
recently developed health edneation and preventive care practices by sponsoring
a Nationnl Conference on Dental Health Edneation and Prevention.

Encouraging the expansion of the dental component nnder the BPSDT pro-
gram by sponsoring two-day workshops designed to bring together HIW regional
EPSDT coordinators and dental personnel.

6. Mcntal Health

Bight to twelve pereent of the U.S. population under 18 years is helieved in
need of mental heaith services for peyehotic disorders (inelnding schizophirenia),
behavioral disorders. dppression, arganic disorders. nenrotie and personality dis-
orders, ndjustment reactions and mental deficiencey,

In calendar vear 1475 it is estimated that 00 percent of these mental health
needs will be nnmet. Thns there ix a continning need to focus on child mental
health.

The NIMH will contlnue to promote public education, a primary prevention
device on the psychosocinl dimensions of severe wmental illness, chronic physical
illness, lenrning disorders, ehild abnse, attitndes abont nutrition and food choice,
and infant development. Cooperative activitiex with OMCH and NICHD, di-
rected toward the mental health problems associnted with Sndden Infant Death
Syndrome, will continne. NIMH will develop further the eapmbilities of the
CMEIC in snpport of these efforts. NIMH will foens on developmental assessment
in an effort to assist MSA in developing policy on this matter.

7. HSA Programs

Mothers and children are among the major beneficinriex of the Health Services
Administration’s Bureau of Conmmnity Heatth Services programs designed to
provide high qnality health services primarily to underserved areas. In addition
to specific activities described above, these progriums may provide a range of
preventive, therapentie, and rehabilitntive ambulatory services—as in Commmnity
Henlth Centers—or address health needs of specinl popnlations—such as migrant
and senasonal farmworkers.

A specinl Rural Henlth Initintive to develop health care systems in selected
medically underserved arens with critienl health manpower shortages has been
nndertaken in 1973, ntilizing resonrces of the National Health Service Corps,
Commnnity Health Centers, Appalichian Regional Commission. and the Migrant
Health program. Proposed continnation and expansion to integrate additional
resources in 1976 will increaxe health services delivery capacity to these areas.

8. Exploration of School Based nelivery of Health Care

Current changes in traditional school health programs offer a timely oppor-
tanity for the Public Health Service to explore the possibilities of combining
primary care delivery wlth a focns on preventive medicine for school age children.
Potentially. school-based programs would incorporate preventive medicine as a
fundamental component of pritnary cire enrly in the life evcle of the child. Such
services as preventive dentistry and aceident prevention eonld have a major
impact. (Ultimately, many gchool-based programs may be more amenable to
cost controls and offer slgnificant advantages in terms of the delivery of selected
forms of care.)

Alternatives open to the PHS incinde :

Enconraging communities to combine existing EPSDT programs with their own
school health efforts. ntilizing the experiencex of existing model school health

programs. D -
[ 3
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Examining the relatlonship between National Flealth Insurance proposals and
a variety of school-based health care delivery systems.

Evaluating the possibility of creating a National School Health Service to be
operated by the DIUS at school sites being Federally funded.

Developing a model Child Growth Center that combines medical care, social
services, and educational activities.

9. Euarly Pcriodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

To assure that poor, high-risk ehildren receive important health services the
PHS will work closely with MSA on the conduct of the EPSDYT program.

Becnuse the PHS can only provide direct health services to a very limited
portion of the EPSDT-eligible population, the major contributions of the PIIS
are in other areas. For example, the PHS is undertaking evaluations of screening
procedures to determine their effectiveness, reliabiiity, and overall usefulness:
relevant research from the activities of the NIH are being culled and channeled
to the MSA; ADAMIIA, under an agreement with MSJA, is reviewing the best
current knowledge on developmental assessinent, and ncting as the principal
advisor to MSA in this areu; Inter-agency committees have been estahlished with
PHS participation in each of the Regional Offices to monitor the progress of
EPSDT implementation.

Where PHS-supported health activities are performing the screening or pro-
viding treatment for children scereened throngh other prograws, efforts are under-
way to eliminate the barriers to more cffective program utilization. PHS staff
members are developing management and policy tools for the resolution of finan-
cial problems (particularly Medicaid reimbursement questions) where these have
arisen.

Sonrce: Forward Plan for Hcalth. FY 1977-81, U.S. Department of Health,

s

Education, and Weifare, l'ublic Health Service, June 1975, pp. S5-86, and 277-931.

Mr. Ormixger. We have a lot of indications that the States and the
localities just weren't able, or didn’t assign sufliciently high priority
to allocate funds to this program, that the States in fact had been
cutting corners in the implementation of the program beeause of an
unwillingness or inability to come up with these funds.

That gets more and more severe as we have an economic downturn
in the country. The States are having a lot of problems in meeting
their budgets.

New Yorlk State, as you know, is in a desperate situation the city
cven worse. .

Is it your recommendation that you think this plays a major factor
and that the Federal Government until such time as we have national
health insurance, should come up with 100 percent of the funding or a
larger percentage of the funding than they o at the present. time?

Mr. Conex. I will say this: If you are going to have the Federal
Government pay 100 percent of the cost, you will have to put more
kinds of controls in the program.

Let me first discuss the basic point you mentioned.

Yes; as long as this program is financed on a ronghly $0 to SO percent
Federal matching with the large State only getting about 50 percent
of the total cost, under present circumstances with medical care costs
rising so rapidly, they have been under o very, very dificult handicap
in improving or extending the medicaid program.

Now, let me tell you one thing, though, that happened. In that
original medicaid law in 1965 Congress adopted a provision that the
States had to show a continued increase in the program as part of the
condition of getting their Federal funds. a constant improvement.

The Ways and Means Committee and the Senate Finance Commit-
tee both accepted that amendment and it was in the law until about
either 1969 or 1970, after I left. It was then repealed on the recom-

60-800—75—5 L
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mendation of Governor Rockefeller on thé grounds that New York
could not possibly continue to implement progressive implementation
of the medicaid progrnm within its financinl budget and Congress
repealed the requirement.

Well, that gives yoit some indieation of the financinl problem, I
would therefore suy either the 50 percent must be raised to 73 percent,
as it is in other programs or yoir would have to design the progrum in
such o way that the Federal Government would pay more of the cost.
That is the only way I can see within its orbit of improving the cover-
age along the lines of what Congressman Metealfe would like to
achieve.

Mr., Orriveer. Let me ask one other question, and then T will turn
to the rest of the subcommittee members.

Doces it make any sense at all to penalize the state in either its
medicaid fund or its overall lmman services fund for failure to ade-
quately implement a statute such as this which was suggested by
one of the witnesses, that perhaps we should penalize some other
kind of funds.

Somehow, or other, it is Imrting the very children that your pro-
gram is intending to benefit. We scee this in 2 number of programs.

I know that vou have been the anthor of many of these programs
where remedy for failure of the State to tuke proper action is to ent
programs for poor people.

The Federal Government. is very reluctant to cut those programs
because it is the poor people who are going to he hurt and it does
not seem to he very effective,

I should like to put in the record at this poeint the record of that,
the actual assessments of penalties have been made but they have not
been enforced in many instances heeause of his reluctance,

T understand counsel has two documents to show that without
obiection I will put those in the record at this point,

[The documents referred to follow ]

SXHIBIT 4

STATEMENT BY CASPAR W. WEINBERGER. SECRETARY OF IHEALTH, EDUCATION, AND
. WELFARE, JUNE 2, 1975

As some of you are aware. the program of Early and Perindic Sereening, Diag-
nosis. and Treatment of low-income children is one of the highest prioritios of
this Department. The law preseribing the sereening and treatment was enacted
in 1967. When I joined the Department in early 1973, I found that few c¢hildren
had been sereened and treated any many States were moving slowlv, if at all,
to implement the law. I qunickly made the program a top priority of the Depart-
nient and undertook a personal commitment to get thege disadvantaged children
the medieal attention they need.

The Congress also put come new teeth into the 1w, and preseribed thnt. Le.
ginning this fiseal year., States which failed to fmplement the prozram nde.
auately for welfare children wenld be asses<ed a penalty of one percent of their
Federal share of costs under the Aid to Families with Dependent Children
program for each quarter of the rear in which thev failed. After careful review,
T am no'v applying the first penalties neder that low agninst seven States that
have fai'ed to carry ont one or more of three keyv aotions—informing, sereenine,
and treating—neceseary to bring medienl eare to eligible poor children during
the July throngh September quarter of this fiscal vear,

Hawaii, which failed its obligation to inform AFDC families. a penalty of

{847,

Indiona, which failed its oblizations to inform AFDC families and to sereen
children, a penalty of $143,516.

N
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Minngsota, whch failed its obligations to inform AFDC familics and sereen

AFDC children, a penalty of $280,997,
© Montana, which failed its obligution to Inform A¥DC families, a pennlty of

New :llez:[oo. which failed its obligation to sereen AFDC childven, a penalty of

North: Dakota, which failed its obligntion to Inform AFDC fomilics, o penalty
of $26,206.
Pemzylc(mm.‘whieh falled its obligation to inform AFDC familivs, a peuaity
of $1,048,441, ’
These States are not necessartly the only ones that falled to conduct the
three basie steps of informing thmities, sereening, and treating medienl defeets in
AFDC cilildren during the first quarter. Some other Stute programs are stil]
under review and penaitles ugninst them wmay be applied soon,

I hope that the seven Stntes cited today have or will net Dromptly to correct
their deticiencles. Our purpose is not to penalize but to bring medieal attention to
these children early so as to prevent long-term ineapacity and dependeney ax
- well as to avert suffering,

Most States are now moving ahead on the EPSDT program. Altogether, the
States screened and treated fewer than two million ehildven in the preceding
years, This fisenl year our gonl is to screen and trent three million but there
are a total of about 13 million eligible children in the country, and we have n
" formldable task nhead of us, I'm contldent it can be done, with incaleulable
long-term benetits to the nation,

HEW News RELEASE

California has been assessed n benalty in the tentntive amount of $£1,920,439 for
_ failure to tnke action required by Inw under the Federal-State medicg) program
. for low-income children during July to September 1974, HEW Secretary Caspar
© W. Weinberger announced today. Californin thus heesmes tiie cighth State (o
be penalized for not currying out requiremcents of the Early and Periodic
- Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT) program.
; John A, Svahn, Acting Administrator of Social and Rehabilitation Service,
, 8ald that Californin did not fully earry out aetivities With respect to the
- informing, sereening and treatment of its eligible poor children—all ol whieh
_are’ necessary to the delivery of both preventive and rewmedial health eare
- Services, That nssessment was based on the State's EPSDT program cowmpliance
in the first quarter of FY 19753.
Under the Iaw, States which fail to implement the EPSDT program ade-
- quately are penalized one percent of their Federal share of costs under the Al
~ to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) program for epech quarter of
inadequate performance. Californin will have ap opportunity to apply for
reconsideration of the ruling.

Other EPSD'I' penalties were announced June 2 by Secretary Weinberger
. against seven Stutes : Hawaii (372.004) ; Indiana (R143,016) + Minnesorn 18280, -
..007) ; Montana ($27.880%) ; New Mexico ($70.616) ; North Dakota (S24,200) ;
Pennsylvania ($1,048.411).

However. Secretary Weinberger stressed that the purpose of the progrim s
not to penalize States. but to provide needy children with medienl attention nt
an early stage to prevent long-term ill effects,

. Mr. Svahn emphasized that he considers the EPSDT progran one of the highest
- priorities of HEW.
* California was cited in part for the folowing reasons ;

Informing.—The Stote failed to inform all elisihle recipients of the availability
of EPSDT services. Althongh it mailed ont a “eheek stoffer” notice at the close
of the first quarter which met at least minimal regnlatory requirements. it fittled
fo inelude in that notice thoge AFDC eligibles who were members of Prepaid
Health Plans (PIIDPs). Notifieation to his group of recipients (which constitutes

“about 14 percent of the State’s eligible AFDC population) did not ocenr nntil
-November 13, 1974, The State admits that PHP members were not inelnded in
‘the first quarter mass mailing, but argues that notificition was aceomplisheqd,
‘nevertheless, through alternative menns, With few exceptions, however, the

State has failed to substantiate its rehuttal on this ssue,
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Screening.—Californla generally failed to make screening services available
to eligible recipients and in many cases did not undertake even the must rudimen-
tary steps to assure that where sereening was provided that it was done g0 o1t a
timely basis.

Treating.—California could not assure that treatment services wew: heing
provided on a timely basis after sereening results were complete, or thut there
were eomplete lists of treatment providers made available to those recipients in
need of treatment.

Mr. OTTiNGER. Tt does seem to me that we have to have some better
mothod of enforcement. I wonder if you have any i:leas on that?

Mr. Couex. First, I am not in sympathy with the idea of the penalty
provision in the form in which it is in present law.

T ean understand Secretary Mathews® point of view which T sup-
pose distresses other members of the committee about enforcing a
kind of penalty which may adversely affects the program and the
people it serves.

Now. if you were going to have it, I would apply. in my opinion
the penalty to Federal revenne sharing. That would be a much more
effective way to get state cooperation.

If vou want the Governor and the legislature to cooperate in doing
this. which is what von need. the budget director, the Governor, the
legislature, reduce Federal revenue sharing to the States abont 10
percent and yon will get them to cooperate in this program. They
probably might not care if vou reduce the aid to the families for
dependent children 1, 5. or 10 percent. They might be happy in
some States if von cut it 50 percent.

1 think therefore the penalty that is in the law is the wrong ap-
proach. Tt has not produced the kind of result that the Congress
wants or any of us wants in connection with the program. It puts the
penalty in the wrong place at the wrong time under the wrong
civenmstances.

T believe it oes back to the point T merntioned that if you want
to oot cooperation from the States to effectnate the program, then
von have to have a good rapport between the people who are admin-
istering the program.

T inst have to say this because I spent 25 vears of my life trving to
mulce the Federal-State program work., During the last § years it
has eollapsed in TTEW. There has been a virtual disintegration of
the cooperative appros «h hetween the Federal Government and the
Qtates under an administration which was committed to try to help
the States.

I don't understand it. T think it has been tragic. The best T can
aav is that 1f Seerotary Mathews can turn that aronnd in health and
in wdneation, he will be making a tremendons contribution in his
tenuve. That is where we ought to work on it—on the administra-
tive side of the State people in charge. They want to do a good job.

The State people ave not against the program. They have financial
problems, administrative j-roblems, staff probiems.

Tf von work with them, the program would be a lot better than
it i= today.

M. Orriserr. Thank yon very much. Mr. Seeretary.

T have a conflicting obligation. T will turn over the Chair to my

colleagme from New York, Mr. Scheuer.
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* Weappreciate your being with us.

Mr. Conex. Thank you.

~ Mr. ScueuEr [presiding]. I have a few questions for you, Mr. Sec-
retary, but before I ask them, I am going to recognize my colleagues

> on the Democratic side.

As an old friend, let me say that it is a great pleasure to see you

: and to have the benefit of your counsel and wisdom.

Congressinan Sharp.

Mr. Saare. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

I am very much concerned with what you have said about the
distintegration of the Federal-State cooperation.

I recently met with hospital administrators in my district, several
of whom said for years they have worked and actually looked rather

- favorably on what the Federal Government was doing.

In fact, several of them said : Now they are the enemy of the Fed-
eral Government and that from lere on out, they intend not to

- cooperate; they intend to frustrate, a couple of them indicate, the

efforts of the Federal Government because they said what they have
seen in recent vears is on again, off again reguliation, increased paper
work with little apparent result from their point of view of improve-
ment in basic health care delivery.
Essentially, all they have gotten is more penalties, more regulation,
I guess T am speaking of frustrations and asking you if you sece a

~way in which we can restore that cooperation.

I assume one problem is in personalties involved. Obviously, you
have to have that commitment. and that spirit but perhaps we have

- seen too much Feceral arrogance in process of defending tliese pro-
. grams and not enough understanding that somebody on the local

scene 1ight have some ideas and might be trying to do a good job.

Mr. Correx, Thave lots of suggestions; some of which T have already
passed on to Secretary Mathews at lis request.

Let me say. vonr point is absolutely well taken. It is not only the
hospital program. the lill-Burton program; it is not only the medi-
caid program. Tt is the AFDC program; the whole social service iin-
plementation of title XX that is now going on.

There is a kind of attitude of confrontation with the States and
the kind of adversary relationship that has permeated the situation
in the last 5 years, which I must say I never knew in the previous
20 vears that T was there.

I think it is very unfortunate. T will just give vou two illustrations:

Mr. Weinberger wonld issue regulations before any State person
ever was consulted in their formulation.

Now, there is no Federal law that savs he has to do it but T think
any goad administrator before he asks for more paper work and more
respnasibility, will get a better response from people if he consults
theas {5 forehand and irons out the bugs.

Th.: Tast two regulations Mr. Weinberger issued on the day he left
the States had never been secen by State agencies before.

I might add that this is a very nonpartisan thing because States
with Republican Governors feel exactly the same wav abont this
Democratic Governors. Tt is not a partisan thing that T am discussir
atall. It isa failure of participation.
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I think that overemphasis on paperwork, failure of consultation,
thinking of the States as if they were an adversary rather than a
partner, requires a tremendous change in the whole way in which
things are operating there.

My, Sitare. Thank you very much. Mr. Cohen.

T will grive miy colleague a chance to ask some questions.

Mr. Scureer. Congressman Santini, of Nevada.

My Savnmixe In summary, might we say, Dr. Cohen, that there has
been a deliberate sabotage on the part of at least some level of ad-
ministrative direction within ITEW in the past in terms of the health
services progriums that we are examining today ?

Mr. Conex. T don’t want to nse the word “sabotage,” because I
think it was a diflerent conception of their role. 'The major respon-
sibilitv. in my opinion for this failure is due to Mr. Dwight, who was
the SRS administrator during that peried of time.

He had a completely different coneception of what the Federal Gov-
crnment’s role and responsibility was. A=, for instanee. take a specifie
problem. in the ontreach, searching ont these children who are ehigible.
He =aid. no. that is not the Federal Government’s responsibility to try
to go ont and beat the bushes to see who is eligible. Allow the States to
do what they want.

My Dest xonree for that, by the way, is a very excellent article by
Joln K. Tglehart, National Jowrnal Reports, back in 1974, which
quotes varions reople,

[ an not making this np ont of my mind or experienee, But in there
you will findl that varvious things that were suggested Hy Mr. New-
nEn-——

Me. Saxrryn Me, Chairman, T ask nnanimons conszent that the doc-
wnent be identitied for the record initially and then admitted as part
of onr evidenee in this hearing,

Mr. Seneven, Withont objection, it is so ordered [see p. 67,

Mr. Conex. T think yonr will tind this docmment more revealing than
the (2. A O report heranse it eites people and quotations,

Mre. Sanrixn Wonld voridentify the document again?

Mr. Corex. This is an artiele by John K. 1glelint from the National
Jonrnal Reporis of June 29, 1974, entitled “Tlealth Report/TTEW
Stares Child Care Tiecord May Affect Azeney's Insnrancee Role.™

If vou will just ;rive me a second to answer your question. T will try
to wive yona quota:ion.

For instance. here is a quotation in here:

Mr Dwight says, “SRS has a primary interest and obligation under the law
to pssure the availability of FPSDT gervier,” but he maintained that the statute
doc< not require the kind of aggressive outreach pregram that Newman and
Rosoff envisioned.

Parenthetically. Mr. Newman was at. that time an administrator of
the medienid program. Mr. Tlosoff was the Aeting Director of the
Oftice of Child Development. ITe is the enrrent Deputy Director.

The Federal Government will not direetly engage in outreach and will not
require any Stiate to engange in outreach to secure additional eligibility for the
title 20 medieaid program, Dwight said in his memorandum dated February 14,
this i a prerogative and ehoiece which should be strietly limited to the States.
The States are the operator of title 19 aud their choice determines the scope of
service and eligitdlity for title 19.

l\}
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Now, I think it was that difference in philosophy about how you
work with the States to effectuate g Federal Government responsibility
that was largely the cause of o kind of lajssez-faire doctrine here whicl
resulted in exactly what Mr., Metealfe said was true and what the GAO
reported in its report.

Mr. Secar. Mr., Chairman, might I ask if the additional updated
article from the Nationa] Journal, the date I believe is January 11,
1975 [see p. T4]. also be put-in the record at this timoe.

Dr. Conuex.T think that would be good to put the both together,
You would havea very good story,

Mr. Iglehart, I might say, was a very conscientious investigator of
this, He did a very good job, I think.

Mr. Scuerer, Without objection, it is so ordered .
I Testimony resnmes o P78

[The National Journal Reports articles referred to follow :]
[From the Natlonal Journal Reports, Juge 20, 1974)

Hearriz REPORT/HEW, Statis’ CuILD CAnk Recowp May AFFECT AGENCY'S
INSURANCE RoLg

(By John K. Iglehart)

Nearly seven rears ago, Congress directed the Health, Fdueation and Welfare
Department to desigm a plan for finding poor chiidren with medieal problems
20d providing treatinent for them.

Two yenrs ago, HEW stifl had not come up with a workable program and
Congress imposed a July 1, 1974, deadline on the department, hoping to foree
faster action,

ut despite the personal interest and involvement of W Secretary Caspar
W. Weinberger, the department has no hope of meeting the deadline,

And its inabiiity to cope with a relatively smali sliee of the total national
heualth probiem ig raising doubts on Capitol Hill that it would deai effectively
with 2 national heaith insnrance progran,

The program in question is Early anad Periodic Screening, Dingnesis and
Treatment (EPSDT), a smalj clement in ITIEW's vust array of health missions,

It is difficuit to pinpoint any single reason for the department's failure to mect
the deadline.

Part of the delay has been caused by internal! IIEW bickering over the best
approach. States partly are reshonsible becanuse of 1heir eoncern that they cannot
afford a fully implemeanted brogram, which eventually conld cover as many as
13 million childrey.

Either way, the delay has hurt ITEW on Capitol ITin,

The department's nnwillingness to persuade stutes to comply with the law

Adses questions about the departinent's ability to launch a nationai health insyr-
ance plan. a medical task of far greater magnitude.

The unwillingness of Some states to implement EPSDT largely beeause of
potential costs works against the Administration's argnment that states should
play a major role in administering and monitoring nationnl health insurance.

*“The perforinance of HEW and the states on EVSDT doesn't leave much to
Four imagination on how they imight perform under heaith insurance.” said nn
aide to Sen. Abraham Ribicoff, D-Conn., who was a leading sponsor of the chiid
health plan in 1967,

“For all intents nnd purposes, Congress has siven up on IIEW's implementation
of EPSDT within the context of the present medicaid program,” siaid a IHouse
Ways and Meang Commiittee officiai, “Congress now ig brepared to federalize
medicaid.”

In its health insurance legislation (HR 12084, S 2970), the Administration has
cailed for establishing two finnncing Programs, one for the working popuiation
and another for nonworking and low-income groups,

The states would play a key role in financing the second program, a task that
wonldigivc them more incentive to control costs, according to the Administration
analysis. -
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Sen. Russell B. Long. D-La., chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, and
Rep. Wilbur D. Mills, D-Ark., chairman of the House Ways and Means Commit-
tee, are advocating health insurance bills that call for federal administration of
the program. States would have only 2 secondary role.

Mills told Welnberger at 2 health insurance hearing April 24:

“You are going to have a hard time convincing me that any state has adminis-
tered medicaid as well as the Social Security Adininistration has administered
medicare,” Mills said. The EPSDT program is a part of medicaid.

Standing.—On paper at least. the E1'SDT program enjoys priority standing
with Weinberger. lle has emphasized his interest in it at staff meetings and
voiced concern in private conversations with ranking department officinls that
HEW'’s programs may be overcmphasizing the older population at the expense
of the young.

Moreover, implementation of EPSDT is one of the Secretary’s program objec-
tives for fiseat $974.

In realtsr. though, the department never has committed the resources necessary
to nid or pred states to implement the program. A telling statistic is the number
of staff members which HEW has assigned to the task.

Seven pmfessionul staffers work on EPDST in Washington. but four have de-
cided to leave or have left HEW. In the department’s 10 regional offices. one
staffer. on the average, ix responsible for working with the states in each region.

HEW never has been able accurately to estimate how much states spend for
EPSDT because the funds flow from a general pot of medicaid money that will
total in excess of $10 billion in fiseal 1975. The department does estimate that
30 per cent of these monies are spent for children’s health services of nll kKinds.

Under the program, which was first aunthorized by the Social Security Amend-
ments of 1967 (81 Stat. 821), states must inform all recipients of Aid to Families
1With Dependent Children (AFDC) of “the availability of child health screening
services.” The eligible chila population is estimated to number 13 million.

States also must “provide or arrange for the provision of such sereening serv-
fces” and -arrange for . . . corrective treatment.” The services are financed
under a medicaid formula which obligates the federal govermuent to pay from
50 to 83 per cent of the cost ; the states pay the rest.

Pressures.—Pressures ire mounting on HEW to account for its efforts to im-
plement EPSDT six and 2 half years after Congress authorized creation of the
program.

Sen. Ribicoff asked Yweinberger in a letter dated June 11 to describe in detail
what the department has done to implement the program.

Further. court suits have heen brought against 10 states. clniming they have
failed to implement the progrmm fully. The states are California. Colorado, Con-
necticut, 11linois, Indiana, Michigan, New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania and Vermont.

Thus. with hope of meeting the statutory dendline of July 1 gone, with Ribi-
coff's expressed interest, and with the pending court suits, the department is
going to have to develop a strategy for enforcing the stiff penalty which Congress
mandated as a part of the Social Security Amendments of 1972 (86 Stat 1329).

Under the provision, HEW “shall” reduce by 1 per eent the federal payment
to the Aid to Familics with Dependent Children (A¥DC) program of any state
which fails to implement the EPSDT progratmn.

With federal expenditures of $4.1 bhillion provided for tiie AFDC program in
the President’s fiseal 1975 budget, the financial pain of a 1 per cent reduction in
a state’'s payment could he substantinl.

Problems.—Full fmplementation of EPSDT has heen stymied by a number
of factors. the most important being conceril at HEW and in the stiates over
the potential cost of screening some 13 million eligible children for medical
ailments and then providing corrective services.

States.—The federal-state medicaid program itself has heen a significant im-
pediment ‘to the full implementation of EPSDT. Although finaneed Drimarily
with federal dollars, medicaid really is a state program. or, more accurately, 50
stnte programs.

Within meneral federal guidelines, states select the kind and amount of serv-
fces they wish to provide. determine the groups eligible for asgistanee. dictate
the standards health-care providers must follows, set the levels of reimburse-
ment and administer the program.

The commitment that states have made to the medicaid program varies
widely. California and New York offer a broad range of bhenefits to medicaid
recipients. In New vork. the medicaid budget now exceeds that of the budget for
aid to needy children (AFDC).
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A number of states offer only the minimum range of benefits required by law:
inpatient and outpatient hospital care, skilled nursing home eare, plhiysieian eare,
home health services, laboratory and X-ray services, family planning services
and serecning and treatment of individuals under the age of 21.

Although EPSDI is one of medfenid's mandatory services, states have imple-
mented it with the same varying degrees of enthusiasm that they have shown
for the total medicaid program.

SRS.—The child health care prcgram fs only one of several that lias been
hind=red by bureaenratic warfare between the direetor of the Social and Reha-
bilitation Service (SRS) and his career staff.

SRS Administrator James S, Dwight Jr. has established priorities whieh fea-
ture efforts to improve management of the welfure systemn and to purge the
publie assistunee rolls of ineligible recipients of welfure funds. Dwight's pre-
seription inelndes relentless budget cutting, both within SRS and in the pro-
grams it administers,

The SRS career staff has a totally different sct of priorities, which favor liber-
alizing the ageney’s programs so that more, rather than fewer, low-income fami-
lies receive federal help,

The eonflict between Dwight and the SRS bhureanerney huas generated turmoil

~within the agency. Stafl morale is low and a nmmmber of recent resignations hnve

resulted, including thosee of Howard N, Newman, medicnid connnissioner;
Kuren F. Nelson, medicaid’s ehief of program, planning and evalnation ; Joseph
Manes., medienid’s long-term eare specialist; and Barney F. Sellérs, head of
EPSDT,

Congressional discontent with Dwight's stewardship of SRS also is mounting.
The best reflection of it was in the passage May 21 by the ITouse of u bill (HR
14225) that would remove the Rehabilitntion Services Administration, the most
popular SRS program, from that agenecy and place it in Weinberger's office. The
vote was 400-1.

Earlier in the year, Congress removed the Administration on Aging from SRS
and placed it in the Sceretary’'s office beeanse, in the view of legislators, Dwight's
support of the program was weak.

EVOLUTION

The history of the EPSDT program is a textbook example of what happens to a
program which Congress anthorizes-—and then rarely tends to—and to which the
executive bhranch never fally commits itself.

The problemns of a lack of financial resources. an absence of available screening
services and the inability of states eilectively to link eligible children with serv-
fees which are available all have stond in the way of fulfilling a commitment
which President Jeolmson first artienlated in a message to Congress on Feb. 8,
19G7.

Mr. Johnson ontlined a 12-point welfare program which ineluded a commit-
ment to “expand our programs for carly dingnosis and treatment of children with
handicaps.” .

The President noted that nearly 500,000 children were receiving treatment at
that time under IIEW's health prozram for erippled children. bnt he said “'more
than twice that number need help.” .

*The problem is to diseover. as carly as possible, the ills that handicap our
chililven. There must be a continuing follow-up and treatment so that handicaps
do not zo neglected.”” Mr. Johnson said.

EPSDT was sold to the President hy former ITEYW Seeretary (1068-69) Wilbur
J. C'ohen, when he was the department’s nndersecretary.

Chairman Mills schedaled hearings before the Ways and Means Committee a
week after the message. Amd by Aug, 17, the ITouse had passed the Social Sceurity
Anmendments of 19675, which included a provision that required states to sereen,
dinznose and treat the medieal ailinents of children of low income families start-
ing July 1. 1969.

The Senate Finance Committee approved similar legislation and the program
cleared Congress on Dee. 135 of that year. President Jolhnxon gigned the bill into
law Jan. 2.

ITEW drazzed its feet in developing regulations to implement the proeram. Dut
two and a half years later, the former SRS administrator, John D. Twiname,
proposed “tentative” regnlations for EPSDT which interpreted the law quite

broadly.
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The regulations stipulated that states were to provide sereening services for
all eligible children under 21. If ailments were found, the states were oblignted to
correet. them regardless of whether the necessary treatment was a serviee nor-
mally provided under the medieaid program.

States strongly objeeted to the proposed regulations, arguing that the eompre-
hensiveness of the serviees required would have a dramatie impaet on state
budgets.

As a result, HEW rewrote the regulations and watered them down. The new
regulitions instrueted states to provide serviees to children that normally were
a part of medicaid benefits which they offered.

HEW also said that states were oblizated only to sereen, diagnose and treat
children under age six at the start, eventually expanding the program to serve all
children under 21 years,

The Senate Finance Committee gave its blessing to the department's more
restrictive interpretation of the law by including a provision in the Social Secu-
rity Amendments of 1970 which conformed with the proposed regulations. These
amendments. however, never became law,

Finally, almost four years after President Johnson signed into law the Social
Security Amendments of 1967; former IHEW Seeretary (1971-1973) Eliot T.
Richardson approved EPSDT regulations on Nov. 4, 1571, to become effective 90
days later.

Congress showed its concern over the lack of movement on the part of HEW
and the states to impiement EPSDT when it approved as part of the Social Seeu-
rity Amendments of 1972 a provision imposing a tough penalty on jurisdictions
that did not meet the statutory requirements.

But, on the whole, Congress has paid little attention to the program. Resides
Ribicoff’s letter. the most recent expression of congressional interest in EPSDT
was voiced by Rep. David R. Obey, D-Wis,, a member of the ITouse Appropriations
Subcommittee on Labor-IIEW,

At o hearing April 24, Obey pressed Dwight to explain why HEW's imple-
mentation of EPSDT never has gotten off the ground.

CONFLICT

HEW policy makers always have been at odds over the degree to which the
department should commit itself to implementing the EPSDT progran, There nre
essentially two schools of thought on the question.

One sehool advoeates an agzressive approach to implementation, “beating the
bushes to link the children with the services,” said one 1IIEW official who supports
this approach.

The other sehwol frowns on <uch taecties and maintains that HEW shonld adopt
a passive role. not going out of its way to advertise the program and not forcing
states to implement it fully.

The two schools elashed last year throueh internal departnient memoranda and
the resnlt has been a middling approach to the implementation of EPSDT.

Neiwrman memo.—The seeds of conflict were planted by a memorandum dated
Dec. 12, 1973, from medicaid commissioner Newman and Sau! R. Rosoff. aeting
director of the Office of Child Development, to their program chiefs in IIEW's 10
regional offices.

Newman and Rosoff announced that they had agreed to fund some 200 demon-
stration projects that wonld utilize private, nonprofit Head Start agencies “in
making EPSDT scervices availuble to medicaid elivible childrin ages 0-6."

Newman and Rosoff noted that the medicaid and Ilead Start programs had
“rommon bases™ which could facilitate implementation of the EDPSDT program.
They econtined :

“Both agoneias cerve low income families. Both are coneerned with continuity
of health eare #rl have the similar objective of integrating services provided
through ail avai’sble state and loeai resources. These similarities cet o common
frame of reforence that can generate n wide range of loeal roilabhorative activities.
Therefore, me-ifcaid and Head Start are initiating a eollaborative effort.”

Although the language was bureaucratie, Newman and Rosoff were saying
that HEW would institute an aggressive program that wounld seek out low-income

necessary.
“Head Start will refer potentially eligible Head Start children to medicaid

for enrnllment and medieaid will pay for needed health services as required by
EPSDT regulations,” the memorandum said.
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Dwight rebuff—SRS Commissioner Dwight learned of the Newman-Rosoff
memorandum some weeks after it had been sent to the department's regional
offices. Several states, an IEW staffer said, including Connecticut and Texas,
had expressed concern to Dwight that the new EPSDT-Head Start project would
force these jurisdictions, against their will, to expand the sereening prograu.

On ‘Jan. 10, 1974, Dwight wired SRS's regional commissioners: *“Disregard
the 12-12-73 memorandum from Howard Newmar. and Saul Rosof¥, ‘collaborution

‘between selected Hend Start grantees and state local medicaid agencies for de-

livery of EPSDT services.’ That memorandum has not received SRS clearanee
and should be considered only as a recommendation to me.”

Dwight also asked regional commissioners to comment on the Newnmmesoff
proposal. One month later, he issued another memorandum to SRS resional
comimissioners which essentially outlined the passive approach toward imple-
mentation of the EPSDT program.

Diywight said that “SRS has a primary interest and obligation nnder the law
to insure the availability of EPSDT services,” but he maintained that the statute
does not require the kind of aggressive outreach program that Newman and
Rosoff envisioned.

“The federal government will not directly engage in outreach and will not
require any state to engage iu ountreach to secure additional cligibility for the
Title XIX (medicaid) progran.” Dwight said in his memorandum, dated Feb. 14.
“This is a prerogative und a choice which should be strietly limited to the states.
The states are the operator of Title XIX and their choice determines the scope

of service and eligibility for Title XIX.”
Dwight directed that the “primary emphasis” of the 200 Head Start demon-

- stration projects be to make EPSDT services “available to medicaid cligible

“deputy finanee director in the administr:

-to approve individual demonstration

children who are also envolled in Head Start” rather than encouraging these
chilifren to enlist in the program.

Bat recognizing., as Dwight put it, that “out reach iz inevitable in such a
project.” he directed that state medicaid divectors and Governors would have

projects “before this activity is initinted
in any state.”

Dwight oversees medicaid and SRS’ other programs while adhering to a view
that for ITEW to prod states to take actions they essentially do uot want to take
is an unproductive exercise,

“I have an aflinity for how to got states to do something—aotherwise T have
wisted five years of my life.” Dwight said in an interview. “If we start dietating
procedures fo the states then we will got ourselves in tronble.”

Dwight came to Washington in 1972 to work as an assoeinte direetor of the
Office of Managenient and Budget. Before that, he served in Californin as a
ition of Gov, Ronald Reagan, R.

Dinlogue.~Dwight's plan for limited implementation of the program. as ont-
linedd in his Feb. 14 memo and as evideneed in the number of people he has
assiened to the task, is the subject of mounting debate within IIEW.

The issue has been a topic of disenssion at two of the Secret:ary's recent man-
azenient meetings, Weinberger regularly bolds sueh sessions to keep track of
objeetives which TIFRW s azeneies establish threvweh a |ystem of manasenmoent
that the Administration has adopted in most exeentive departments. '

The system is known gs management by objective (MBO). Under MBO, the
departments each year must sot ohjectives and, once they are approved by the
Office of Management and RBudzet. mold their operaticas to accomplish the stated
goals. (For a report on MRO. see Val. 6, No. 17, p. 609.)

Weinberger meetings—At the Secretary's management. meeting Jan., 15,
Srnnlr‘,v_T’-. 'l‘hom.nx' Jr.. assistant IIEW sceretn ry for human development. bronght
Er[)'qﬂrx;’rl“uo which had arisen over utilizing I¥end Start grantees to implement
’ Dwight‘expminod that he had rescinded the Newman-Rosoff memo beeanse
of complaints from a number of states ahout the use of private Ilead Start
grantees as an outreach vehiele for state-run EPSDT programs, -

The en_sninf: diseussion revealed that the koy issue was the extent to which the
nvnilnhihr_\' of EPSDT services should be advertised by IIEW. and thys generate
additional demands on state medieaid programs withont state consent, ) ’
to Sectneiie Fhore ioraine disenssion by directing it momo.to e ezt
on the issucs Hneoleat , or, fr g that, snbmit a memo to the Secretary
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The concern expressed by Thomas abont the implementation of the EPSDT
progrant was echoed two and a half months later by Bernice L. Bernstein,
dircetor of IIEW’s New York regional office, at another management meeting
March 28,

Dwight led off the discnssion on EPSDT by reporting that his azency had beent
overly optimistic in setting a goal of screening two million children in fiscal
1974. A more realistic estimate, Dwight said, would be the screening of from
1.2.million to 1.4 million children, i

At that point, Mrs. Bernstein, who was speaking for all of HEW'S regional
‘directors, said that a lack of commitment on the part of SRS to provide adequate
field staff to implement EPSDT was a major problem, She also called for more
active involvement in the task by the office of Dr, Charles C. Edwards, assistant
‘HEW secretary for health. :

Dwight replied that SRS was not able, unfortunately, to provide additional
medicaid staff members to the regions beeanse all employees were fully committed
to higher priorities until July 1975. Ile said the sitnation could worsen for
EPSDT implementation.

weinberger concluded the meeting by emphasizing his strong commitment to
implement EPSDT. The officinl m'  es of the meeting read:

“The Secretary stressed that t . is an extremely important ohjective which
should not fall short of achievement due to inaction or delay on the part of
HEW. He expressed his strong desire that regional PIIS (Public Health Service)
personnel take an active role in assisting states to implement this program, . . A

Young memo.—More recently. John D. Young, FIEW’s assistant secretary-comp-
troller, also has questioned whether the department's implementation of the
EPSDT program complies with the law.

Young, according to several SRS stnffers. sent a memorandum to John R.
Ottina, assistant HEW secretary for administration and management. suggest-
ing that, in light of the July 1 deadline, SRS’s management ohjective for imple-
menting the EPSDT program he strengthened.

Young said in the June 5 niemo:

“The SRS proposal to make available EPSDT services to eligible children
and to ccreen three million children should he reconeiled with the lezat mandate
to provide screening for all children, in other words eight million plus.

»Now that push has come to shove, as far as the financinl penalty is concerned,
we sngzest that SRS invest mneh mnore than $10,000, which in budget terms rep-
resents two man years, in the effort.

"Also, the OPS (Operational Planning System) objectives should detail how
SIS will monitor EPSDT and apply finnneial sanctions where necessary. The
plan should also inclnde development of a tracking system to indicate whether
hiealth sereenings are actnally followed up with by dingnoesis and treatment.”

Young was making reference to the MBO muanagement system. Ottina and
‘Phomas 8. MeFee, his deputy for management planning and technology, are
responsible for administering the internal management system,

The implementation of the EPSDT program was a management objective
established by the SRS in fisenl 1074 McFee said in an interview that hecause of
Weinberger's eommitinent to the goal it likely would be upgraded in fiseal 1975.

Tt was SRS first erack at npgrading the objective which Young aquestioned.
Dwisht had snerested that the “resources required” ta operate EPSDT in fiseal
1975 totaled £2.6 million, including $40.000 for the snlaries and expenses of two
staff inembers,

BTATES

R W's grudging commitment to the children's health program lhias heen rein-
fareed to a large degree by the states, which have feared from the beginning that
FPSDT would only add to what was already an onerous financial burden—
medieaid.

States have recognized the problems which exist, according to Hlowawrl New-
man. but they have failed to correct most of them hecause of a eoncern over the
potential cost,

Tn a speech Mareh 12 to the National Henlth Forum. Newman said:

*There was universal acknowledgement of the need for comprehiensive health
services for poor children, and that snch services were not readily available or
neeecsible to the needy.

“Tadayr. many of those problems still exist. Tn certain areas. a ehild in a poor
family has only half the ehance of those with higher incomes to live to his or her
first birthday. Half of all poor children are not iinmunized against polio. About
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two-thirds ave never been to a dentist. And poor children have three times nwore
heart diseases, seven times more visual impairment, six times more hearing de-
fects, five times more mental illnesses than the more affluent,” Newman said.

He said that EPSDT got caught in the squceze between rising welfare expendi-
tures and the states’ conecern over the potential cost of the sereening prograu.

"States were reluetant to embark on this venture. and the federal government
was reluctant to insist, The number of welfare program recipients had been
increasing steadily and the bulk of this increase was in the addition of children
whose families needed public assistance. .. Despite its obvious long run, and
even short rum, benefits, EI'SDT poscd a problem for nublic budgets,” he said.

Links—Beyond the problem of its potentinl costs, EPSDT posed a signiticant.
obstacle for medicaid programs that never had been called upon to develop sepe-
ices. To make the vital link between providers of eare and the intended recipients
was a new and foreizgn task for sta) e medieaid programs.

Medieaid was established in 1963, primarily as a federnl-state mechanisn: to
finance the cost of the basic henlth needs of some 27 million poor Americans,
Many state programs are not cquipped to manage the development of new service
programs within the context of medicaid, even if they had the money.

But pressed by court suits, a number of states now are connmitting new re-
sources to develop the EPSDT program. The states which have most impressed
HEW with their efforts to implement EPSDT are Alabama, Iowa, Michigan,
Missouri, Mississippi and Virginia. :

In California, the EPSDT program helped influence the state legislature to
enaect i law whiel directed the state “overnment to make sercening services
available to all children.

Texas has made a special effort to extend dental services to children eligible for
the EPSDT program. Dental services are generaly the most diflicnlt to atinin of
those services provided under the prograin.

New York.—New York has decided to step up its implementation of EPSDT, in
the fuce of a court suit which charges the state with not developing a program
and, as the result of the recent appointment to a high state post of Beverlee A.
Mryers. a former HEW offeinl committed to EPSDD.

In a project that will start in September. New York State's Department of
Sacinl Services and Department of Health will strive to link children eligible for
EPSDT with a comprelensive range of health services.

“The program began in 1972 in New York. but to date it ins not been effective
in reaching the target population,” aceording to a state document which euntlined
plins to upgrade EPSDT implementation.

Throngh a marriage of New York's medieaid program and the regional medieal
program (RMDP). another HEW enterprise which seeks to improve the health
delivery system: in a variety of wavs, the state agency hopes to make the vital
link between eligible children and sereening services.

The agency plans to focns its efforts initially on approximately 430,000 eligihle
children in upstate New York, Medicaid funds would finance the sereening., ding-
nosis and treatment serviees, Put RMP monies wonld be used to identify the
children and edneate their parents to the merits of EPSDT.

New York spends more than 82 billion a vear to finance health services nnder
nmedicaid, It spends an average of £300 a year on individuals who participate in
mediecaid. .

Mrs. Mrers. a deputy commissioner of the State’s Department of Sacianl Sory.
ieex. rejects the notion that the EPSDT will be a costly endeavor for states,
“We nuty well he nble to reditee that $300 fizure, or at least control how it is spoent,
hetter. throngli EPSDT heeanse it will encourage the delivery of more prinary
eare and less hospital eare.”

“The program’ shonld demonstrate that a relatively small amount of floxible
RMP fands ean be used as leverage to make the expenditure of relatively Inrgee
amonnts of medieaid funds more effective,” Mrs. Myers said in an interview,

In New York City, the state azency plans to follow two approaches to imple-
mentation, One is to inform parents of preschool children through letters of the
nvailability of sereening services, whieh are provided by New York City's Ieatith
Denartiment.,

Second. New York plans to sereen older children throueh a linkage with the
sehools they attend. an approach which has not heen used widely in other jurijs.
dictions. Before New York ean move forward with thi. approach. thongh, HEW
must grant ite approval because it will require the department to waive a pro-

gram regulation.

-1
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OUTLOOK

Come July 1, Dwight said, HEW would be prepared to assess tl‘ie penalty pro-
vided by lngv on states that have failed to implement the EPSDT program, Bug
he said that “assessment of the penalty is an adwmission of faiiure” to put BEPSDT

in place. .
SIRS's apparent strategy, as reflected in Dwight's comments and the ageney's
MBO statement, is to grant states the be_:neﬁt of the doubt on the question of im-

on.
plesngggagroposed MBO statement on implementing EPSDT indicates that the
agency does not plan to move precipitately to impose the pe_nulty. .

Tor one thing, a lot of money is involved and u quick cut-off would bring
screams of indignation from the States and their represcentatives on Capitol Hill.

Second, a reduction in the funds would only hurt those individuals who can
least afford it—the welfare recipients. And third, Dwight is prepared tn? give
states every benefit in finding ways to comply with the law, such as phasing in
programs over time,

SRS's proposed MBO statement on implementing EPSDT shows that the ageney
plans to use the first three months of fiscal 1975 to assess which states have not
complied with the law. . .

On Capitol Hill, meanwhile, a spokesman for Sen. Ribicoff said that he is pre-
pared to take HEW to task if it fails to require states to comply with the EPSDT

law.

[From the National Journal Reports, Jan. 11,.1075]1

Heart Report/HEW Praxs To FINE STATES FOR NOT IMPLEMENTING PROGRAM

(By John K. Iglebart)

The Department of Health, Education and Welfare, though it has made only
a token commitment to implement a 1967 children’s health program, is preparing
to penalize a number of states for failing to develop fully the same program in
their owL jurisdictions.

HEW plans to impose the penalty, as required by the Social Security Act, on
about n dozen states which it believes have failed to implement the department’s
beleaguered Early and Periodic Screening, Dingnosis and Treatment (EPSDT)

rogran.
v In a separate development, the General Accounting Office (GAO) underscored
the problems of EPSDT implementation in a report released Jan. 8 which criti-
cized the efforts of HEW and some states in carrying out the program.

Rep. Ralph H. Metcalfe, D-111., who ordered the GAO examination, said in a
statement :

“(HEW) Secretary (Caspar W.) Weinberger owes the Congress an explanation
of why he did not sec fit to provide for the physical well being of these chil-
dren. . .. I intend to see to it that these children, their harents and the Con«ress
hear from the Secretary why this vitally importaut program was delayed for
so long.”

PROGRAM

Tnder the program. authorized by the Social Security Amendments of 1967
(81 Stat 821), states must inform all recipients of Aid to Families with Depend-
ent Children (AFDC) of “the availability of child health screening services.”
An estimated 13 million children are believed eligible for the program aimed at
detecting and correcting health problems. .

The law says the states must “provide or arrange for the provision of such
screening services” and “arrange for . . . corrective treatment.” The serviees are
finaneed under 1 medicaid formula that oblizates the federal government to pay
from 50 to §3 per cent of the cost.; the states pay the rest.

Weinherger.—HEW's lack of progress in implementing EPSDT is contrary to
a eomnitment Weinherger made five months 420 when he promised to step up
the department’s efforts to develop the program. Weinherger told state officials
at rezional meetings on EPSDT implementation that HEW would assign addi-
tional manpower for the task.

Then HEW Undersecretary Frank C. Carineei made similar promises Aug. 16
in a San Francisco speech to state health officials. “We have set aside 125 job
slots specifically for the medicaid children's program (EPSDT),” Carlucci said..__
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“We are making this commitment at a time when agency job ceilings are in effect
and positions are searce, so this should sive you an idea of our determination to
move this program ahead.”

Despite Weinberger's stated commitment, he declined on Dec, 24 to fulfill a
request to increase the EPSDT staff by 35 people, or a little more than half the
number he agreed to allocate three months earlier,

In early January, it looked gs though the program would get 35 new positions
anyway through the intervention of James S. Dwight Jr., administrator of HEW’s
Social and Rehabilitation Service (SRS).

Diwight allocated 90 new positions to medicaid, and its commissioner, M. IXcith
Weickel, said he would assign 35 of these slots to EPSDT, The positions were
authorized under the fiscal 1975 Labor-HEW appropriations bill. Under the logis:
lation, Weikel said, the positions must be assigned to HEW’s Wasbhington head-
quarters,

Weinberger's failure to approve the new positions himsel? reflects HEW budget
constraints and the Secretary’s apparent unwillingness to bolster EPSDT by
shifting manpower from other programs.

States.—While progress at HEW bas been negligible, a number of states that
previously neglected EPSDT has committed new resources to the program, al-
though HEW staff members who reported this could not immediately document. it,

One pressure pushing the states to gct is concern over the statutory benalty
HEW plans to impose and court suits pending in 10 states which claim these juris-
dictions have failed to implement the program fully,

A potential fallout from the failure to Implement the program is the effect it
has from the standpoint of influencing congressional attitudes on the role states
should blay in a national health insurance program. The Administration’s pro-
posal, which HEW developed, places states in a prominent role,

But Members of Congress who favor a progran dominated by the federal Zov.
ernment point to lack of EPSDT implemoentation to support their opposition to
the Administration’s plans to vest states with major Powers under national Liealth
insurance.

GAO REPORT

The program to detect and treat illnesses in poor children has been neglected}
since its birth in 1967 as part of amendments to the Social Security Act. (For de-
tails o)n EPSDT's early history and more recent problems, see Vol. 6, No. 26,
. 969.

The failure to implement FEPSDT moved Metcalfe to ask the Genaral Ac-
counting Office, an investigative arm of Congress, to examine the program. Be-
tween June and December 1973. GAO investigntors checked the EPSI'T program
in Alabama, Idaho, Illinois, Massachusetts, Oregon, Rhode Istand, Washinston
and Wisconsin, GAO investigators also reviewed the status of the prograwm at
HEW headquarters and at regional offices in Boston, Chicago and Seattle,

In its report to Metealfe, the ageney said:

“States are required to provide EPSDT under their medicaid pregrams, This
requirement is to get states to get more actively involved in preventive health
care by identifyinz snd treating medieal problems early. In the long run, the
EPSDT approach has great potential for reducing the incidence of long-term,
costly medical eare.

“ITEW has been slow in developing regulations, Also, HEW has not agRres-
sively tried to make states comply with the law and federal regulations. Both
HEW and the states have been concerned also with the potential cost of providing
EPSDT. As a result, only a small percentage of the cligible children have heen
screened.

“As of Tune 30, 1973, three of the eight states had not started EPSDT screen-
ing, and EPSDT screenings had heen provided to only 55.000 of the 1.8 miilion
eligible children in the eight states, EPSDT Screenings that have been performed
appear to effectively identify health problems.”

Outreach.—Guidelines issued by HEW recommended that each state actively
seek eligible children by :

informing parents that these services are available and when and. where they
can he obtajned ;

helping parents understand the nature and purpose of the screening program :

enlisting community agencies to locate children eligible for EPSDT services;

providing the neccssary transportation to the servlces,

The GAO said it found *q wide variety of outreach methods” and reported
that states with the most aggressive methods had higher screening rates.
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wpor example,” it said, “most of the areas in Idaho and Alahama were using a
variety of outreach methods and, statewide, had higher sereening rates than Illi-
nois and Washington whieh had done little more than mail EPSDT inserts to
families with eligible ehildren.”

Teras—The University of Texas Medieal Seliool's Regional Health Services
Researeh Institute conducted an EPSDT “jmpaet and evalnation study” in com-
munities in eight states. other than those examined by the GAO.

wThe (Texas) study showed that the average rate of children who appeared
for sereening was highest in those localities where families were personally eon-
taeted.” the GAO report said.

'Allied health.—EPSDT program euidelines promulgated by IIEW provide that
sereening should be performed under the supervision of, or with consultation
from, physicans, dentists, optometrists and other speecinlists. However, in some
states a lack of available personuel is gaid to have inhibited the development of
the program.

“Those shortage areas that extensively used allied health professionnls to per-
form LPSDT sereened more ehildren than shortage areas that used only physi-
cians.” the report said. “For example, in one area in Washington, few children
were being screened because only two doetors were providing EPSDT, and allied
health professionals were not being used.

“In contrast, in many areas of Alabama, doetors were not available so publie
health nurses were doing the sereening. The pereentages of ehildren sereened
in these areas were as high as 62 per eent.”

#The number of ehildren sereened eould he greatly inereased nationwide if
HEW would encourage the states to use more allied health professionals in the
sereening proeess.” GAO eoncluded.

Treatment.—The Social Seenrity Aet requires states to arrange treatwent of
medieal problems discovered through the sereening procedure. But heeanse most
states lack adequate tracking systems, most jurisdietions sroperally did not
know whether these ehilgren were heing trented.” the GAO said.

#Soveral states had plans for computerized systems which eonld monitor the
health eare reeeived by children, but at the time of our fleld work only Alabama
had an automated follow-up system which could be used statewide,” the re-
port said.

«yWe recommend that the Seeretary of IETW direet the administrator, SRS
(Soeial and Rehabilitation Serviee). to require the states to establish procedures
to follow np on children with problems identified during the sereening proeess
to insure that needed treatment is provided.”

HEW pcrfornmncc.—The GAO criticized HEW for its laek of commitment to
implementing EPSDT, the sereening and treatment program. “Ag o result of
this and the <tates’ econcern ahout the eost of providing FPSDT. the states have
been slowly implementing EPSDT and only a small pereentage of the eligible
ehildren have been sereened,” it said.

GAO also ehided HEW for its slowness in promulgating FPSDT program gaide-
lines. saying that only “growing eongressional eoneern and a conrt suit against
the Secretary enconraged HEW to issue final implementing regulations.”

“In those eases where the states are not eomplying with the law or SRS regu-
iantions. we recommend that the Seeretary require . . . ore aggressive action,
inclnding formal complianee hearings, to bring these states into eomplianee,”
he said.

Program impact.—The defieiencies in HEW's performanee have been reeog-
nized within the department for some time. ink'el," commissioner of ITW's
medicaid prograni., said in an interview. «Most of the things in the GAO report
we are trying to implement. Obviously the GAO made some valid points.”

An HEW official said privately. “The document will have <ome real value
because it will attract congressional attention. That will be helpful at this point.”

State recuction—Tefore the (A0 released its study, the eight states examined
by the agency werC granted the opportunity to comment on the report. “12ach
of the states responded and generally agrecd that our report was aeeurate as
of the time of our fieldwork. TIowever. they «nid that nmeh had been done sinece
that time to implement EPSDT.”

A lmbunm-—;\lnl»mn:l's medicaid director sagreed that the cost of the EPSDT
Progrin ConCerns all the states but he said that the major problem in Alabama’s
program finplomentation is the ineapacity of available providers to sereen. diag-
nose and treat the large number of eligible persons on 4 timely basis. . . A
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Idaho—&‘he Idalo administrator told GAO that the state's program “has been
expanded since the time of GAO's fieldwork and many of the problems cited in
the report have been solved.”

Illinois—1The dircctor of the Illinois Department of Public Aid told GAO that
muany children there “were receiving ndequaire medical attention under the state's
medieaid program and that there wis no need to sereen these children.”

Orecgon—"1The director of the Oregon Depurtment of Yluman Resources conceded
that the state had no programn. ~He pointed out that there was no statutory or
regulatory vequirement for outreach or followup until July 1, 1974, the effective
date of the Sucial Security Amendments of 1972,

Rhode Island—The divector of the Rhode Island Department of Social and Re-
habilitation Service told GAO that many children there were examined by phy-
sicinus working outside of EISDT.

Washington—Sinee the GAO's ficldwork, the director of the Washington De-
partment of Social and Iealth Services said the state “has 146 providers of
EPSDYL services and has achioved statewide coverage.”

Wisconsin—The seeretary of the Wisconsin Department of IHealth and Soeial
Services said that GAO's report generally retlected the situation then, “but a
great deal has been aecomplished since then.”

MANPOWER ISSUE

Within IIEW, a battle has been underway for five months to holster the
EPSDT implementation cffort through increasing the stafl, as Weinbuerger
pledgzed.

Since making his comumitment, Weinberger helld two minagement meetings to
discuss progress toward the goal. In the latest meeting Dee. 24, e declined to ap-
prove the alloecation of new positions to EPSDT.

Though he did not shut the door complotely to the refuest for new positions.
he apparently had fouud ne way to squeeze additional manpower from othier
HEW programs, and the Office of Management and Budget refused to alloeate new
positions for the program.

But now EPSDT apparently will be upgraded as a the result of a new commit-
ment of manpower that Jim Dwight has made to implenenting the program.

Mecting2.—IIEW's responsibility for implementing EPSDT has been debated
in 2 series of meetings Weinberger has held over the last rear.

During early diseussions. program chiefs said the department has a legal ob-
ligation to fully implement the prograw. This position was presed by Iloward N.
Newman., who headed medicaid for four yvears betore leaving in July 1974, and,
to a lesser extent, by Stanley I, Thomas Jr., assistant IIEW seeretary for human
development.

Dwight, administrator of the Social and Rehabilitation Serviee, the bhurenu-
eratic umbrella under which medicaid operates, was considered the najor shin-
bling block to aggressive hmplemeration of EPSDT. (For details on the carly
weetings and Dicight's role. sce Vol. 6. No. 26, p. 930 .

When Weinberger lea=nerd last June of the impediments to EPSDT imple-
nmentation—a personal goal of the Secretary’s—he sought an exmlanation from
Dwight. Tn the conrse of these diseussions, Weinberger direetod SRS to revise its
fiseal 1975 program objective for EP'SD'T so that more ehildren could be screened.

The revision in the objective. if rarried out. wonll mean a dramatic shift in
EPSDT implementation. The first EPSDT ubjective advaneed by SRS simply
said:

“Dy June 30. 1973 assist the states to make available EPSDT services to 13 mil-
Hon eligible children. and to sereen during that fiseal year at least three million
of those cligible.”

.«\]frm' Weinberger intervened. SRS upgraded its EPSDT program nbjective to
read:

“By June 30, 1975 assist the states to make available EPSDT services to 13 mil-
lion elizible children. and to bring inte the henlth care system for &creening,
dingnosis and treatment (where indieatod) during the first year for the first time
at least three million of those eligible. This will inerease the total number under
EPSDT or equivalent eare from 10 pereent of the cligible population (end of fiscal
1975) to more than 33 percent,” [

To finnce the greater effort, SRS estimated that salaries and o.\'lgnsos for the
necessiary staff would ecoxt $2 million, a sharp inerense compared with the funds
necded to nndertake the initially stated progriaan objecfive,

60-SO0 . TH- ..
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In line with Weinberger’s commitmeut to increase EPSDT manpower to 125
people, SRS identifed the need in September for 102.5 “man-years” to undertake
the task, But on Sept. 26, Undersecretury Carlucei told Dwight that “a total ceil-
ing of 65 positions for EPSDT could not be inereased.”

Dwight wrote an appeal to Weinberger. Respouding, Weinberger asked SRS to
justify an increase in the EPSDT staff, even though two montlis earlier he pub-
licly had committed the department to enlarging the staff. X

In a muanagement meeting with SRS No. 20. Weinberger expressed dissatis-
faetion with the explanation of Dwight and asked for more information, acecord-
ing to HHEW staffers who attended tl'e session.

In an internal department memorandum dated Dec. 20. 1974, John R. Ottina,
assistant IIEW secretary for administration and management, backed the request
by SRS for more personnel. The memo, prepared as a bricting paper for a meet-
ing Weinberger held Dec. 24 to discnss the EPRDT staffing issne, said:

“Throughout the eutire EPSDT effort, both at the central nnd regional office
level, inadenuate maupower bas caused implementation delays and, in some cases,
certain functions have received less than adequate attention.

“The present on board staff (15 central oflice, 20 rezional offices) caunot per-
form adequacely all the tasks which were originally projected to require a staff-
ing level of 100 positions. Inadequate stafing at Lheadquarters has citused prot-
lems in policy development, interagencey coordination and program planning but
inadequate regional stafing is especially critieal:

*uo regional office has its full eomplement of EPSDT personnel ;

< all bnt two regions have unfilled vacancies

“three regions (Boston, Atlunta, Seattle) have only one EPSDT persoz on
board.

“In addition to the other tiasks required of regional office personnel (technical
assistance, monitoring. penalty assessment. and reporting), the most immediate
need is persounel to assist those states which are not in compliance with the
EPSDT penalty provision to develop a eorrective action plai.®

Penalty.—In the face of a statutory requirement that states which failed to
implement EPSDT fully be penalized. HEW is determining which jurisdictions
have failed to abide by the Social Seeurity Act.

Under the Social Security Amendments of 1972 (8¢ Stat 1329), HEW “shall”
reduce by 1 pereent the federal payment to the AFDC program of any state which
fails t0 implement the EPSDT program by July 1. 1974, —

With federal expenditures of £4.1 billion provided for the AWDC program in
the fiseal 1975 budget, thefinancial penaity of a 1 percent reduetion in a state's
parment would not be cheap.

In New York, for example. 2 1 percent reduction wonld amount to 8.7 million.
Tn California it would amount to $8.3 million. in Illinoix $£.3 million. Michigan
$2.8 miltion, Tndinna 800,000 and Wroming :32.000,

Weikel said that “using the penalty is a denble edzed sword. The peaple who
-t hurt under it are most times the program reecipients. We would rather en-
conrage the states throngh a positive incentive.”

Bnt meanwhile, stafl members of the EPSDT program are determininz which
states SRS shonld recommend for penalties.

Mr. Saxtrzt. Prior witneszes indiecated that as a consequence of at
lTeast in part the failnre of ITEW to give any substantive reenforce-
ment of program and direction of the program that Congress instituted
with your gnidanee in 1965 that there would not now be 21.000, which
is 10 pereent of the 210.000, in State facilities for either the physically
or mentally handicapped. who wonld not be there had there been
adequate screening at the time ?

Mr. Conex, T don’t know what the exact fizgure is. T think i« is much
larger than 10 percent. myself,

Tean’t prove that by any immediate statisties T have,

I think. tomorrow. when the TTEW people and particularly Dr.
Kretchmer who, T think. will accompany them from the National
Institue of Child Henalth and ITuman Development will be here, you
will et a better estimate,

83



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

79

I have always assumed in my previous studies on this that there is
something in the neighborhood of 5 to 7 percent of the children born
with somne kind of physical, mental, or learning handicap, which could
be prevented or cause less trauma or difliculty for parents of the
children if there were early screening and diagnosis and treatment
before the age of 6, -

I think there i5 a whole host of areas. Let me give you one which is
touched on in my paper which I have received from studies of the
National Institute of Child Health and Human Development. Just
take low birth weight alone. If we could overcome by further research
how to raise the birth weight of children, it is possible, according to
the estimates, that we could save about $1 billion a year in cost to
parents and society, from just that one probiem alone.

I think the whole problem of further research on improving that
one aspect n early births, the problem of teenage mothers in assoein-
tion with that whole problem is well worth a good deal of further
research on prevention,

I think all the way along, that problem, the mental retardation
problem, dyslexia, you know, on the question of being able to read,
and learning disabilities, if you encompassed all of those in the totality
of physical, mental, educational and learning disabilities, in 1y opin-
ion the prospect of savings to the Nation runs into the billions of
dollars, Mr. Santini.

Mr. Sax1iNt Dr. Coher, T would like {o ask you if to vour knowl-

- edge—and you have already referred to the Comptroller General's

report to Ceagress dated January 9, 1975, and I am informed that
HEW has concurred in mmany of the revommendations contained in
this report—to your knowledge has HEW done anything ro date to
implement any of the recommendations contained in that report?

Mr. Conex. I do not know of my own direct knowledge whish they
have and which they haven’t. But I have not seen in the end product
any large scale result from that.

I think one of the problems involves the ineresse in the number of
personnel at the eentral and regional offices to make that work., = 7

I have a question in my mind whether that has been done. In any
case, I wonld wholeheartedly sunpori all of these recomimendations
foras prompt implementation s pessible,

Mr. Saxmiyt To your knowledee. Dr. Colen. has Health, Fdnea-
tion, and Welfare done anything to .mplement. widespread u-o of the
sereening procedures that were contemplated by both von i your
inspiration and Congress in its enactment 10) rearsagzo?

Mr. Cousw. I think that T would have (o sayv that my original
enthusiasm and optimism when I first recommended this to President
Jolnson, in 1966, was that this wonld he a starting program for just
what you talked about today, abont eliminating all the preventable
dizeases and disabilities that ocenr o these 10 to 15 million low-ineome
children. That has just not happened to the extent that I thought it
wonld be feasible 10 vears later.

I recognize the difliculties but T must say that we are very snb-
stantially far behind where T thought we wonld be by now,

Mr, Savriv, Wonld it be fair to say in summary, Dr. Colen, that
virtnally nothing of substance has been done to imnplement the screen-

ing procedures that were contemplated ?

84



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

80

Mr. Couex. T wouldn't want to go that fay 1 think what },q been
hildren, tpis last

done so Tar on the sereening—after all, 11 mjpjion elile
vear, received some kind of medical benelit yyder medieald_1 don’t
want to cimipish that—ont of 26 mnillion Degple that recivyg some
kind of medical benefit paid for under the Progpahi.
Recognizing the financial difficnlties © thy States and _ﬂl‘qse other
roblems. I think that is appreciable steP ory and, but not Significant

enongh in my opinion for the earliest dlugnmses and suljgtantial

treatment.

Mr. Saxtint. Dr. Cohen. T pm-timﬂ.‘lrl.v Way g to express my admira-
won and appreciation for the quality and sibgance of your togtimony
to this committee. It is helpful as a foundagion for furtheyjpquiry
with other roproscntati\‘es from the ngeney W0 may be aPbq, ping to
testify before us.

My, Cotex. Thank you. sir.

Mr. Sciever. Dr. Cohen, T would like t0 tyge yon up to tle monn-
taintop for a moment and ask of yon & sort ¢ philosoplica) psplan-
ation for one of the anomalies we face 1 € ogj oming 2 nafiony) health
program today. . -

In America we have something over 10 popcent of our 1)qu]ilt'10n
that is poor—that is 20 million Americans

Looking at the children of the poor. we fi,d that 30 Peregpt more
kids in poor families than in other pop1atiyy gronds are Nee jnimit-.
nized against polio. Nine percent are mentaly retarded bY nqe 13,40
percent have never seen @ dentist by age 11- Tjere are three tiy os more
leart attacks among the kids of the poor, ceven times Moy, visual
defects, six times more hearing defects ang five tames Moy, mental
illness. .

Now. my question to you is to what CXt(‘I\t, does the avallypte data
indicate that the higher incidence of (i£02%0 “and almost all e this is
preventable. is due 0 the lack of availabilij« of hiealth €apq to the
jower socioeconomic classes? To what exteng zthis due 10 thy Jack of
offective nse of the existing health care S¥stn anid to whas crent i5
this due to the personal behavior and life Sty op let ne =1 the differ-
enees in personal behavior and life style: of {j,¢ parents ot thee Kids?

I will remark parenthetically that there y.em to be enowy qas dif-
ferences in health aned infant’ mortality ir Tngland ,‘”“1 g(-()t];md
among varions socioeconomie gronps. even tj ongh public hegpeh serve
jees are available toall. '

In our own country. for example. there w, 5 one stndy dayq on the
nse of dental services by the peor as comMppad to the MidQ)e_ineomne
aronps. and the only dental service that Wy nged ore HY ihe pool
than by middle-income prople was tooth eXty ptions, whicht 1§ pvidence
of the failure of the system. ‘

All other services involving preventive heg el were uzed Ty more by
the middle-income members of this Joeal Jeulth serviees Jelivery
gvatent.

Tn designing a national health prograil Wy pow that we hy e a lim-
itation on our resources. We are alren ¥ Spouling N perteng of GNP
on health. and there must be some npper Hiyjt. T€ may e g pereenf.
or 12 percent, or it may be the 8 percent We e spending Moy e jt is
ccrtnin]_\' finite. :
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ur ‘te Pesourcos DI“ ri]y
&"ftg Or do we alg mt "o

. We ean't qo anything. Do e spend o
§ v
that arg ° 2

]1'1 providing more sophisticated health sef'Vig,s¢ OF
}e]p people use more effectively the health %c,-\'lce:»t on ings A :
il-“ilil:lbleg Or do we try to Jjave more of ay jmp1€ of 1\‘idﬂ"‘i’
o St}'lesa on diet, on eXercgise—for esdMyie. _t]lc lf?gn'l ajcoh9”’
t°1\.-m:0, drngs, and. of course, (iet of women d,,rmgx ’I”‘Lr o‘ll}o_

\ What 18 the mix, in other words, in the end y pduct: nameiy,

e lle:l p
NV hat prodiges good health? What should Oy, Pnorlm’s be iy b .3d-

N pore Sophisticated health .ervices. in tying to ut}h-feotxhﬁ S
‘@ pave Moye effectively, iy trying to bavy un impAact Ol yy v
Peygonal }’t(’}lm'ior and lite sty]e?”
Or 18 1t g jittle of everything? i ) .
Ar. CoBryx T thinlk I “'0“1(]1 ]15\-0 to sav 1t (28 lltf]f’] Ofﬁ; “‘j,\»thi{‘{"Z
n““uuse I Zuess I am the kind of person \vholl)\\lic\'es Ishou ql\-ersll}
Y pol‘tfollo if I could put jt in those ey
Q\\'c neleld ot more healt), education. }::‘l-fiClxla
v jnstalice. There 1s NO tilegtion in my MY ¢pat 2 ren 4
Yoplems .tl‘ﬂ;r\\‘(‘ are ]’WSOllt\t‘d in the child ll‘léld comit f“';'_:‘] biygh 1Y
R 15 10-yaq-0lds and the 1ow birth weight nﬂ‘l the “l(i“hl Vopqrdi”
loy and the other problems jack of parchity] responsibuity and £°
N, fgow fron there. S
T think thepe is a great deg] for parent oqeation in that . 1
\Ql\lld ]‘|° i lot about ttht. . | ;
-\t the same time, as I pointed ont. I wolly pn c MO\ oney
Mg more bagie research certati,,]\- to find Ouéll,ow to resoive qﬁite 2
Wy per Of the problems. ) _ C '
L woultd mygoa lot more mgpey info fatmi),. pl;mnln_{_' “'-CP"iQe ‘ 1f
¢ gre talking about what we were talking aout 2 f(“l‘ “_‘“l“lt_“s
ti'_‘hink the foilnre of IIEW put pore Moy v un:l ]rlelef‘.::ll]il}l satrd”
uj ) £0 P“t‘ more money info the implementagign of l-)l\‘ tren, DI
is hQ' ll"ro‘("l“lll where the COst_Lenefit l'csultb‘ are snupl lQndoum
]lnpol'fflnt-.
an Ve arg 1ot talking there abont billions. Iy, tall
ol.“rhcl' 229, 850, $75 million year which \\'“”]d b e bty 8
,$1.1 mitloy y veur more for NiCII[). These yre Not t ]]0 ]1.— '\hk‘nﬂi”g
th OupaIns. T‘he}. are putting meney into the Yo earch t e lFe":-]tll‘ odu”
‘l‘ll lon. :m(; the f:m_li]_\' planning arcas which [hmk]:lclr(z‘ ‘qre.\' conse”
IQtQm-l:l]' Pt that is not 0 sy in my opiltloy ghat t luxﬁ(; Of(lllif“ it
sor. OF 1OT people who are not wetting the ¢ me vo lealth
Uviees that peole with higler incomes get. L
]g\‘\\‘h('!l ."°})l stady that sittagion. anpnal U0 op \-;,,Hneg(‘fep(:‘l%on ir}
l)nl ', were 3.8 'fOl' ])00}. ])COI)IC ﬂ“(l 4’3 for Ilﬁn oor Fo P .)]§Q thil”
'ix% pcol’]Q were obviously oetting abouf a hf‘lf of one | Wrgjcial
Nt per Yeap Jess for all chilgren under the que of 1‘: y
thif_\]f- thyt that is relateq in part to lzlcl\\‘bf nnderstant lng nﬂd
) Sssﬂ?lh,t_._‘-' to the health system. o othe
Q]li]’llt it ]‘ algo related to _t]le lack of f:lcllltiog “'h(‘fs n]]“.lQI'S {lnd
a ‘rhven l.\ ¢ Iferc is my peint on that. The T‘o;lsnn Iha rﬁ]ﬂﬂ :\‘\.S peen
l\-“\ Ory Stl?ng snppor_tex Jor nei:."h])ol']loofl_ 11\,_.11”1 cenq;xea.)g\.l s 1
‘\.010\\' )-on}] lmm been, is bocan_sc {or many “O'ncrl.“'h_q: b%"nl. with
o Ing childrey, taking the chilq to get health yorvices 1S a 5 10.\,
Ing, espeClally if you have twg or three chlqqn and you ¢ on’t‘]

1‘]_" for tQQ qﬂers,
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gng there, po
e signifiey 15{.“:10
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né)n aygomobile, and you have to go to some place where you wait a

Nz time- . .

L tl:ink for child health services you must do even more than gou
do £o, adults to bring the healtl: services physically in proximiry to
tho £ mily- You can’t ask the mother or chird to @o 10 miles. Yon have
t0 hgyo those services in the community and they should be invested
With . high degree of health education, family planning, screening.
gy 05i5: and Preventive work.

So guess MY answer to yOuI question is that I think we conld do
SOmeyhat better on g}] the aspects you mentioned, particularly where
:Q‘: Federal Government’s role is in stimulating the access to those
STV ices. .

Ml‘.csc’mt*ﬂ“- T am particularly sensitive to what you say about the
Poor arformance of the administration in supporting the family
p Myjpg Program, )

I \vqs the House anthor of the 1970 Popnlation Rezearch and Family
Planying Act which had the support of George Bush. who was chair-
Man o¢ the Republican Honse Task Force on Population and Family

Inpning- and. of conrze, Joe Tydings in the Senate.

Bojpg the only supvivor of that trio in the Congress, it has fallen
t0 1y ¢o push Federq] appropriations for family planning and. par-
fienly, v to generate some enthusiasm for it in th» administrazion.

a8 jwrl’l“-‘:«':! as vou are as to why the aoministration has
bren so indifferens ¢3¢ and why it has imposed its poliey of henign

Tedle. .t enthe 1 SlanningZ Progran:.

' Doy B o arram today which will #o enormon-ly impzet
' . . R - . o ..

LU P gt S ouy cobntry 15 vears from now as famliy

I)]"“?xinﬁ"i'i‘l;"""‘ acrsnwinted bivths,

s g Sl B cospobenefit fa0ter of a dollar of Government invest-
Lrent 5y family plamnipe is sheelutely spectacular sshen yon consider
the A peret Oxpenditnres, ) '

L Ang this eost-benefit factor heromes overwhelming when you con-
£ oy the m,‘ii""nr cost of the uuwanted chilid to the Government. nnd
ﬂm‘. Probabilits that vours of mental retardation. physieal disabiliry.
M qpotional instahities will be concentrated i the low inconie
Sectey g the popnint g,

-“d“‘.on Yo extrapolate the cost to society of taking eare of thnse
kids and their 3pC il education. health, and honsing needs. and the
COSt oy the nmwanied ikids in broken families who mmp their heads
Mthey. edietably. e minst the eriminal justice system, it scoms ahaast
a mim]]pss abbent

wtion not to elp women whe dont want to have
ANY fupther off3] ing to achieve that goal o: te space children accord-
MLty (e 2o {eithee ~f the women.

Mope e uhywhers from 3 to 4 wiean women inoonr
coung,.. whi ctill earnpt get Giniily planning —Per the infermation
?r.ﬂ](‘ F('f‘}”‘i“}‘c’?“‘ a thelr noi;:hh:n‘hom]s. evor, ioach the goil o the
B Sppulazion Research and Family Planing Act was to reach
Witdiy, 5 Fears the sstimated  million women ¢f childhesring vears
who we felt then i pet have. this infermatict. We har e row rom-
Pletog sie Segear poriod and there are still at least 214 millien te
< Mil}ion Wemen M- g conntry Who desperately need family ploiming
and dop’t have it
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. Idid not nyean to make a long sneech, but I .Ji:i v 4vt to indicate my
sensitivity,

Mr. Lemov, do you have anything to ask?

Mr. Lestov:-No, Mr. Chairman,

Mr. ScueuER. Mr. Segal ?

Mr. Skcar. I would like to ask two questi- - 'l Seeretary: You
mentioned cost, containment as one of the issic ..t you felt should be
required as the Federal share inereased.

As you are well aware, this subcommittee looked extensively into
areas of unnecessary Surgery and the need for good utilization review
criteria, -

Would you think that that is an exanmple of the kind of cost con-
tainment possibility you were referring toin a very general sense ?

Mr. Congx. Yes; of counrse, I favor an effective program of utiliza-
tion review and professional standards review organiaztion.

I recognize the dxﬁiculty one has in persnading many physicians
to undertake that responsibility, but T helieve the two provisions in
thé existing law ought to be implemented more cooperatively with the
Physicians;

I would hope now that the AMA ease against HEW on the utiliza-
tion review has been withdrawn, HEW and the physicians can get
together and discuss what is an effective ntilization review standard

- and make that work. That, I think, is one of the big responsibilitics

for this next year or two.

Mr. Seear. Would you think ITEW and Congress ought to develop
stronger incentive programs than cnrrently exist, particnlarly in
Jine with your point about this program which is not an incentive
Program but g penalty Program, that States ought to be given incen-
tives to do things rather than penalties.

Mr. Courx. One of the things I wonld do is to give an incentive for
the program, talking about children, for payine srimary physicians
gn(l pediatricians on a per capita basis rather thui on a fee for services

asis.

I think one onght to be able to work out with the Awerican Acad-
emy of Pediatricians and Pediatrics in this conntry a kind of continu-
ous care program for children which is what Di. Green was really
talking about a couple of honrs ago, and pay the physicians not on a
fee for services basis. Let me give yonan illustration.

The average cost now would bé about $250 per year per child to the
physician: For every 12-month period, let us say $240 that is $20 g
month per child, for each month that you agree to be responsible for
the total basic prirary care of a child, we will pay vou $20 a month,
$240 or $250 a year, whatever is mutually agreed upon.

Mr. Scrrurr. What would his kid load be?

Mr. Comzx. I don’t kiosw., Every time I say that, I get complaints
from doctors who tell e it is too high,

I think on that professional question you ought to ask a pediatrician.

Mr. Scuever. Tlis question is too important to be left to doctors,

Mr. Conex, I understand. :

I would say that if you include, of course, well baby care as well as
sickness and so on—

Mr. ScuEuER, Also preventive.
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Mr. Couex [continning]. Roth for the kid and the parents—it is

entirely possiblo that 1 physician could care in the course of a year

for T30 persons.

Mr. Scnere. e would o well financially.

Mr. Conex. That means not. evervbody is in. T am nsing different
kind of concept over the years: depending on how frequently he calls
in a mother and ¢hild.

Mr. Scrrver. At $240 2 month for 750 kids, he would do consider-
ably better than a Member of Congress. : ‘

. Cotrey. I produce in my paper the relevant. fignres from the
Social Seenrity report which show that the health expenditures for
children nnder age 19 in 1974 was £183 for the TUnited States, for
evervbody under theage of 19.

Mr. Senever Wonld you repeat that?

M. Couny. Per capita expenditures for all personal health expen-
ditures varied widely with age.

Tor children under age 19. per capita expenditures in 1971 were
9183 compared to $120 for persons aged 19 to 64, and $1.218 for per-
sons aged 63 and over.

That is in my testimony, prodnced from the stndy, the Social Secu-
ity study on age ditferences "n health care spending whith you might
Yike to look at.

M. Sceneern, Eli Cohen. dean of the Columbia School of Business,
told me a few weelks hack. in New York City. that we are spending
Q2,500 a year per family on welfare for their health services.

Tow. that would include many sick and ciderly people, as well as
Woto-t with good sized faunilies.

Bat tie mix produces @ cost of $2,500 a year for the health eare
of people on welfare in New York.

M Coiiey. Conld T make this ohservation. too. considering the
three famihes that you had testifving this morning. My general
thonght is if evervhody were fo pay into some kind of fund over a
long period of time. you average out the highost en b0 S and the
Jow! eost risks. No parent. knows. and here 18 0 sienift ., ¢ point. no
parent knows. not. a ¢ingle one of those moihere chet vas hHafora yon
taday nor the father. knows whother thev are gnie £ have & inen-
tally retarded ¢hild or not when their ¢l i 7 bhoer <0 R ~hild with
a disability.

My, Senpren O W1t such of that e wind by tesls Juiinx
presmaney-—tes t 0ffe e tmiodie fluid?

My Coney. Theie om0 e lot ¢ things that conld he done, bat. basi-
eallv, what T am tro o te s 1e {1 1l of this tremendons econonie
and social trags iv i ae ihat. rons of us whe are parents really can
eav. beeane we u e +eh or hocanse we have snoneh income or heeause
we are healths. we 't know the impact of the genetic, environ-
mental. and other factors.

v, SenEreR. We mnst zocialize that cost.

My, Couey. TE you redistribute the cost over the gick and the well,
the poor and the Tich. the middle income and so on, we ii allbe better
off in the long vun than the swstem we have now. which says. finance
part of the cost for the poer alung the lines von have. 1et. somebody
else take care of their own. and if it is a really high cost we will
institutionalize the child.
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That is not u very sensible approach in dealing with this problem.

Mr. Srear. Could I just conclude from the point you made about
the capitation for a fixed annual amount for pediatricians, the next
evolutionary step you would purpose would be to cover a population
such as zero to age 6. This would provide for the Federal Government
to piek up the cost, at the same time alleviate the State budgets and in
the process provide the total comprehensive package of care necessary
for children?

Muv. Comex. Absolutely, Mr. Segal.

I think it would have thesc advantages: It wounld take part of this
burden of financial cost of the States off the medicaid program,

Second, it would put a preventive, as well as a curative, approach
into the total package, comprehensive range of medick} services.

Third, it would enable you to approach it on a per capita cost
rather than on a fee for service cost which I think would bring the
whole concept of the primary practice of medicine into focus, giving
an individual practitioner a comprehensive responsibility in giving
people a funily physician; the reuson I make this suggestion 1s
roughly, 18 million children up to age 6. That is a problem for size
and dimension that is possible for use to handie,

When I can think of, which is a desirable objective of de:inig every-
thing fo. 220 million people, very desirable objective, but when I think
how I would get from where I am now to that point, I can sec a lot
of obstacles.

But for 1§ million children, considering all the factors we dis-
cussed, there is & reasonable chance that we could do a reasonable
job within certain cost limitations, certain administrative limitations,
that are within the competence of the medical and health profe-sion.

I think it makes it a feasible incremental step in the objective that
everybody wants. ‘

Mr. Skcar. Do you feel the cost would be minimal or possibly
negligible beeause physicians would have incentive to cut down un-
necessiry procedures and at the same time provide a comprehensive
package of care?

AMr. Conex. For the children—Ilet me say this: T can’t quite agree
witlt this formulation for this reason: I don't tLink there are very
many urnecessary procedures for children und. ¢ ii.e age of 6 at the
present time.

There are, as T understsnd, too many tonsils 1.1 adenoids tuken ont
but one of the reasons why I favor a no deductible, no coinsurance
for medical care for children under 6 is that T on’t think the over
use, over utilization issue which applies to termiaal illness and eos-
metic surgery and all the other things, I don’t think that applies to
parents and children under age 6,

I can’t conceive of what you would normally eall abuse in {erms
of overutilization. What is an abuse? Genwr to the doctor every
week or every month?

Well. if the other is willing to cart the child to the doctor and wiit
in the waiting room, there ninst be something in her mind that she
would like to have satisfied, and, therefore, I think the overuse, over-
abuse factor is not so present in the early childhood thing as it might
be elsewhere, ’
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My argument would be that any sueh program would increase
utilization.

Mr. Scuroer. Would you also apply that to prenatal care?

Mr. Conex. Absolutely. T was going to suy my whole conception of
the idea is_prenatal, postnatal and delivery and to the extent that
onr scientific knowledge conld do the testing prior to birth as you
indieated, fine.

- Mr. Scuever. I think there is a doetor at the Rockefeller Institute

at New York. Rene dn Bois, who has done experiments on rats and

mice indicating when you extrapolate it to human beings, that if a

mother has had an inadequate diet during the prenatal period. or if

the child has an inadequate diet during the first vear of infancy,

E)hcl.‘(‘. is considerable. identifiable damage done to the cortex of the
rain.

When that child has an adequate diet. there is some recovery. But
>ven when the child gets a fully adeqnate diet. after the age of 2 or
3.there is much damage that is irremedial.

There is also some evidence that mothers who hate had children
horn substantially under normal weight, when their history is exam-
ined. the only single identifiable feature that joins all these women
is that they were born in a year, perhaps 15 or 20 or 22 vears before,
t;'_hon there was a depression in which these notheis had inadequate
dlets,

Inadequate diet dnring infanev not only has some irremediable
Tefects on the brain development of that child. but, if it is a female
“liild. on her ofspring as well. even thongh she has a normal diet and
dequate health care from infancy on. T don’t know of any more stark,
oathetic or dramatic instifieation for the total kind of prenatal and
nostnatal eare that vea are talkineg abont.

Mr: Conmx. T might say. Mr. Sehener, T read the same material
‘hat yon mu:- be quotine from and T was impressed by it. T came to
‘wo final conclhusions which might be well within *he parview of yonr
sthcommittee,

T think the HIEW program on nutrition

Mr, Senever. Would von repeat that?

Mr. Conex. HEW's responsibility in the field of nntrition which
['tried to st up when T was there. and T wish T had done more

Mr. Serever. We all wish we had done more.

Mr. Conex. Yes; but I think that the nutrition program onght
o be.examined to see where that can be strengthened because of the
int yon made. .

Second. T have snggested snd recommended. since the Secretary
'f Agricnlture has suzaested it. that the food stamp plan be trans-
‘erred to TTEW, which he recommended. and that vou take the food
tamp program. however Congress amends it. or does not amend it
n the future, and the nuntrition program that is in FILW and bring
hem together and really have an expanded and strengthened nntri-
ion program that wonld try to rifle into deal with the problem.

There is an area where incidentally, there is a areat deal of agree-
nent on what yon and T are talking uhout. but somehow nobody is
loing what evervhody agrees ought to he done.
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T think if that is withip your committee’s purview, You ought to
tako at%'ood look at that because I think g Jot could be done to im-
prove that, . .

Mr. Scugges. Dr. Cohen, we thank you for appearing before us.
Your 2Ppea;ances here arq always a Pleasure and u Privilege for us.

We_valug your counsel and wisdom as wel] as ¥our inexhaustible
fri[en(?hlp. 5ut

Wherenpon at 12:45 P.m., the meeting was adjourned, to recon-
vene at 10 3 ;. on October 9, 1075.] ,
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Sciences in 1971 and 1972, assessing the quality of medical care for
children.

The study, “Assessment. of Mediceal Care for Children,” was de-
signed as a field trial of a new methodology to measnre medieal care
quality. Quality assessment was at that time—and still is today—a very
primitive science. .All efforts ave beset by a number of problems: What
things to measime, how to measnre them, and how far to extrapolate
the findings. Nevertheless, progress is being made. Even while meth-
odologics are heing refined. we ean gain an important understanding
of problems in health eave delivery from studies such as ours so long
ns we understand their limitations and ave eareful in the kinds of con-
clusions we draw. .

Onv stucdy rests on the premise that one ean get indications of pax-
tienlar shortcomings or deficiencies in medical care gnality by looking
at what we call tracers, Tracers are medical problems and the speeific
medical services pertaining to those problems selected in snch a way
as to highlight common aspeets of the care process that are critieal
to its effectiveness. Onr study used four tracers—iron deficiency
anemia. middle ear disease, hearing loss, and uncorrected vision defeets,
Families with children between the ages of 6 manths and 11 years were
selected from three areas of Washington—the Congress Heights neigh-
horhood in the sontheast. the inner city neighliorhood of Cardozo, and
the Shepherd Park and Takoma neighborhoods in the northiwest. The
1,700 families inclnded had a wide range of incomes and a wide varicty
of sonrees of pedintric eave: namely, solo practitioners. small fee-for-
service groups, a prepaid group practice. a neighborhood health cen-
ter, hospital elinics and emergeney rooms, and city-run public health
clinies. .

The purposes of the study were to determine whether any significant
differences existed hetween the quality of medical eare and the type of
organization providing that care and whether such differences were
related to the ways in which the practices were managed. Our focus
was the general pediatric care given to children in the study popu-
lation,

Data were obtained from fonrsources: An interview with the ehild's
mother. a elinical examination of the child in facilities provided by
Children’s Hospital. a questionnaire sent to the physician named by
the mother as her child’s primary source of medieal care. and, for three
of the organizational groups. an abstract of the child’s medical record,

This research design limits the kinds of generalizations that can
he maite about medieal care for children :

Our subiects came from selected neighhorhioods of ane T8 ity

Joth afiluent and poor families were included but the populaticn
studied was predominantly black:

Data for comparisons among the provider groups did not in-
clude all providers in Washington. Those ineladed = =pro.
sented only by the portion of their patients whe lived oy
areas, i

Beeanse of logistical and cost considerations, medicar e urd
data on the adequacy of care was obtained from just three of the
six provider gronps: and

Only fonr tracers were used in making health statiis and ade-
quacy of care determinations,
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I understand that major interest of this subcommittee in schedul-
ing these hearings is the early detection and screening program for
medicaid patients,

ecuuse sereening techniques exist for three of onr four tracers, I
think some of our findings might Le particularly relevant to your con-
siderations, Qf special interest are the vision and hearing problems
which are so critical to the educability of school-age children,

One of the more striking findings was the high prevalence of all
four health problems: -

Middle ear disease in varying degrees of severity was found in
one-fifth of the children examined ;

Hearing losses were detected in 19 pereent of the - to 11-year-
old children. Over one-third of these Josses wore in the sound
frequencies relevant to understanding speech ;

Twenty-six percent of the school-age children failed a compre-
hensive vision screening test : and

Among the preschioul children, more than one-fourth were
aremic, :

Contrary to tecepted viewes, disense brevalence was net uniformly
related to social class, Except for hearing loss, we Jid not find lower
disease rates in chillven from higher income families, A more signifi-
cant determinant than income wus the edueational attainment of the
child’s mother. While the prevalence of both anemia an hearingr loss
decreased regularly with increasing educational levels, middle ear
disease or vision defeet tates did not,

An unexpeeted finding was that Prevalences rates for cach tracer
were the same regardless of the kind of organization providing the
child’s routine pedintrie care. Thus the proportions of children with
anemia, uncorrected problems of vision, ear disease an hearing Joss
did not vary according to whether their source of care was public or

* private, a single physician or a group of physicians, brepaid or paid

by a fec for cach service,

The adequacy of medica) care for each of these conditions was
judged by comparing in formation from the medical record on {he
care provided against a predetermined set of eritoria of adequacey, The
eriteria were developed by panels of primary eare physicians and
Specialists and specified what they considered to he standards for
minimally adequate care,

All three provider aroups melnded in thig phase of the studv—;
prepaid group practice, a neighborhood health center, and 12 los-
pitals—performed poorly in the areas of sereening and detection of
disease, -

Althoush 72 percent of their nreschool pationts N heen sereencd

or anemin, only 18 percent of school-age children hal Leen tested for
visual prohlems. The rimber of ehildren fonn by onr exanmiination to
have evidence of egnr disease was only slichtlyv lois than their medirn]

istory docnmoento over the whole periad of their eare, Less than 3
pereent of the childyon hyd received hearing testing even thongh the
medieal recards showe:] one-thind to have svmntoms of a diagnoesis of
ear infoetions, and thus to have a risk of heg rine loss,

Comnerndine the inadecnneies in sereenine we fonng frequent fail-
ares te follaw np abnormal sereening test rosults with treatment. Of
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the children screened for anemia, 36 percent had laboratory test ro-
sults below normal iimits; yet 2 in 3 of them were neither dingnosed
1s anemic nor given simple iron therapy. We did find considerably
better followup in referring vision and hearing test failures for
specialty care.

Aumong the children who actually did receive care for their problem,
cnses of mappropriate treatinent were also found. One-fourth of the
paticnts with dingnosed middle car infections were not treated ity
appropriate antibiotics. Among children who wore glasses, T2 pereend
were not corrected appropriately or adequately. We found cases where
glagses were worll whiceh were not needed and some children even had
poorer visual acitity with their glassest han without then.

The major findings of this study, which I've brietly summarized,
have provoked considerable disenssion and distress in the medieal comi-
nunity, especially here i1 Washington, Some may not agree with
our criteria for determining disease-nondisease Cises in the clinical
study and some may disngree with aspects of our standards for judg-
ing adequacy of medical care. However. nany of the more striking
results are not dependent on potentially debatable areas of medical
judgment, but rest on an aneontroversial fonndation of what consti-
tutes good medical practice.

\Without more efforts of this kind—which are expensive and require
vears to complete—we have no real way of knowing how widespread
sneh high disease rates ave or how frequently such defieiencies in the
aslequacy of wiare oeenr. Despite some met hodelogical limitations of
the study, which T have deseribed. T am confident: the findings are
valid. Since there is no reason to asstume there is anything pa rticnlarly
unigue abont the population stndied. we nmst"be concerned about the
Kinds of inadequacies in medieal eare for ehildren that this rescarch
doenments.

Mr. Chairman, this completes my prepared atatement. T would be
happy to answer any questions the ommittee might want to ask.

My, Orrisari These are startling results. They have frightening
implications.

Do yon have any sgrestions as 1o what Congress might do to help
ont in this kind of sitnat ion?

WWhat vonare suving iz, in effoet. if we go ahead and insizt that TIEW
implement_the sereening program to ite fullest. if 1t is done in the
manner it is done here i Washington it will not make any difference
anvway. it may malke things worvse.

Als, Sxow. T think we have 2 problem with the treatment and fol-
lowup of children who might fail sucha serconing program. We must
emsuntee that adeguate care will be provided for those children who
are referved.

M., Ornserr. Does this indieate that n major elfort onght to be
made on training people to Jdo the sereening proeess in conjunction with
«ereening effort !
1z=. Syow. T think in conjunction with any serecning effort we have
to insure that the system {0 which these ehildren are referred is going
to handle the problems aneovered in sereening.

A[r. Orrivcer, Was that where the failure was? Tt was not the fail-
are of the sereening te pick np the problems?

Ms. Syow. Ttwashath.

an-
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There were findings that a number of children siniply were not
screened at all, and of those who were screcned, niany with abnormali-
ties were not treated.

‘Our criteria perhaps are controversial but those children labeled as
anemic on the basis of hematocrit levels, often failed to receive appro-
priate attention. It appears that laboratory slips placed in the record
were never utilized.

Mr. OrniNcer. Mr. Sharp?

Mr. Suanr. Yes. .

You indicated that the education leve! of the mother was of eritical
importance.

One thing that keeps coming back to us is that at some point some-
body is not taking responsibility, whether it is the professional service
that is offered or the screening organization of the fumily parent.

I am wondering if you have some suggestions on how we can more
effectively reach these parents.

It obviously makes a difference, whatever socioeconomic level, as to
whether or not the parents are aggressive in their own health care or
for their children, it seems to me, and making sure they are getting the
best treatment.

Most of us in our own families have had experiences where we are
unwilling to accept an answer we are given and we press for another
answer or go somewhere else. Obviously that may not be an option
open to someone of a lower economic starta.

It sounds to me like we can make organizational reforms. We can
require certain things to happen, and at some point we have to do a Iot
of consumer education.

Ms. Sxow. Ithink we do; yes.

I understand Children’s Hospital plans a program here in Wash-
ington to do just that, to get the mothers involved in the system and to
educate them about the resources available and what to look for in
their child, what should prompt them to seek care.

]I\Ir.gslmm’. In your study, were you dealing with the parents, hem-
selves?

Did the people in the study have direct experience with these people
or is this a paper work kind of thing where you actually don’t com-
municate very closely ?

Ms. Sxow. We had home interviews with the mothers of all the
children. Then vwe brought the children to a clinic at Children’s Hos-
pital to be examined. Then we had followup contact with the mothers
to insure that all the children found to have screening abnormalities

ot care.

g We offered free medical care to children whose families could not
afford it if their child had some problem uncovered by us in our exami-
nation. Many times, even though the care was free and we offered to
provide transportation, people just simply didn’t take advantage of it.

Mr. Snare. Did you try to assess why that was the case, whether it
was negligence on their part, of whether they were intimidated?

. Ms. Swow. Or perhaps they didn’t understand that an untreated
ear infection could lead to serious consequences in terms of hearing Joss.

Mr. Snare. It is very clear that most of us have not been very aware
of how diet might affect our own health and I don’t profess to know
much about it. We hear startling kinds of statements made which most
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of us have ignored. Even though we consider ourselves reasonably
well-edneated. I am just. wondering how we can get beyond this posi-
tion that ultimately even where people have information they don’t act.

What can youdo? '

I feel some sense of responsibility toward the children. To an adult
who refnses to act on information and opportunity, it is very diflicult
to sense a areat deal of responsibility toward that person,

T cuess T am philesophizing.

YWhat was disturbing to the medical community? Yon said it created
qnite a controversy? What did the controversy surromnct? Are they
concerned that some medical professionals don’t believe that these
children are not getting service? What shook people up?

Mz, Sxow. I think it was a mixture of some defensive reaction and
some real concern, A common reaction was “It was not me: it was not
the children I took care of. but we have the problem in Washington.”

I think the medieal society i~ concerned. I don’t think any action at
that level has taken place,

Mr. Siare, Was there a resistance to the finding that in the prob-
lent of glasses, the problem of lack of treatment, lack of followap
that. there was resistance to the truth, and they wanted to ignore that ?

Ms. Syow. There was close inspection of the criteria and examina-
tion methods we nsed, T think they stood the test of that serntiny : now
there is acceptance that the findings are valid for the people included,

T am not sure there is acceptance that the findings might be valid for
a wider population,

Mr. Sirare, I wondered if yon came across any organizational
recommendation. :

Tt seems to me once the child is in school it wonld be fairly easy,
assuming that there is a decent attendance at school. to keep track of
a child’s medical record to gnarantee that they have certain kinds of
testing, certain kinds of follownp if you have r sponsible school
officials.

Obvionsly the real problem we are trying to get at is before school.

T wonder if von are aware of any way in which this might happen
that wonld snpplement parental responsibility. . .

Ms. Sxow, One thing we suspect in the finding that the pediatricians
cereen so fow of their children for vision is that perhaps they assnme
that the school is doing it and. therefore, it isn’t their responsibility.

Mr. Stiare. You are snggesting that professional people like pedia-
tricians nay not take serionsly the question of vision?

I mean. some of them, T assnme it is not universal. In other words,
the standards within the profession, itself. as to what they onght to
be concerned with vary and that one pediatrician may take very seri-
onsly vision and another may not sereen for that.

Ms, Sxow. Qr perhdps the pediatrieian assnmes that since the pa-
tient has glasses he must-he receiving vision care somewhere: it wonld
never ocenr to him to think that maybe these glasses were passed on
from the patient’s older sister. or were several years old,

Mr. Saare. So. nobody in the svstem ontside of the parent

Ms. Sxow, We have sich a mobile society that we have to focus the
responsibility in the familv. Perhaps there are ways that we can help
them manage that responsibility. It scems to me that is where it onght
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Mr. Smare. Thank You very much.
Mr. OrriNgeR. Mr, San- ni,
Mr. SanTINT. No que s,
Orringer. Counsel ¢
Mr. Seear. No questions, Mr. Chairman.

% Mr. Orrrveer. Thank you very much, Ms. Snow, for being with
s,

. You have given us a good deal to think about. We appreciate it.
“— - Ms. Sxow. Thank you.

©_Mr. Orrivges, Next we will have a panel of pediatricians: Dr.
+: George Lamb, Boston, Mass.; Dr. Frederick N orth, Pittsburgh, Pa.;
and Dr. Alfred Yankauer, W orcester, Mass,

Ye are going to put the time clock to you very severely. We would

Aoty

Ioeay

7 some opportunity for interchanee,

. < )Ve certainly ‘appreciate your taking the time and trouble to be
. with us. T have seen your statements. I think that they definitely
contribute to onr efforts,

== Whichever of you would like to proceed first may do so. T you
want me to resolve it, wi}l resolve it,

. STATEMENTS OF A. FREDERICK NORTH, M.D., PEDIATRICIAN,
- PITTSBURGH, PA.; GEORGE A. LAMB, M.D., ASSOCTIATE PROFESSOR,
DEPARTMENT OF PREVENTIVE AND S0CIAL MEDICINE, HAR-
VARD MEDICAT, SCHOOL, AND PEDIATRICIAN AT CHILDREN'S

Dr. Norrr. I am Fredericl North. T ama pediatrician.

;I have been concerned with the early and perindic sereening pro-
s gram in Pittsburgh, in Pennsylvania as a Stato, and heen a consultant
r.at the national level. Becanse T have written ahout sereening, I have
¥ also heard the stories of my colleagnes all over the country.,

ile T have no formal national role in ESPDT af the present
stime, T do tend to hear what is “oing on around the country,

. The committe has already heard from testimony: Yesterday that
searly and periodic sereening when followed bv diagnoses and’ treat.
Iment is one very important component of the health care of children.
#: Yon have also heard that when sereenine is not followed by diag-
inosis and treatment it is costly and meaningless and sometimes dan-
“gerous and demeaning.
" The testimony also hronght ont that such sereenine. diasnoses, and
wtreatment is most effective an economical when it ig provided in the
»direct context of comnrehensive health mbervision—the “medieal
:home” which was mentioned yesterday—shich also includes preven-
tive services, inclnding immunization, counsel; ne. and enidance—ner-
haps getting at the point of patient education that was mentioned in
the immediately preceding testimony—the care of acute illness and
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injury which is the most pressing need that most parents find for
health care of childien; the management of long-term illness and han-
dicapping illness which is the main thrust that the screening is really
designed to get at.

Any separation of sercening from this direct context of compre-
hensive care multiplies the cost and difficulties of providing preventive
sorvices and of insuring appropriate dingnoses and treatment.

Every time there has to be a ferral there is another opportunity
for broken appointment, another demand for expensive snpporting
services, unother opportunity for missed communication between
screener, patient. and consultant physician,

Qo that. any time that screenmg is taken ont of the context where
direct medical care can be provided on the spot, the complexity is
increased immensely.

ESPDT. the Federal program, as currently, defined and adminis-
tered, T believe, has beentand will continue to he a costly and ineffective
approach to getting these needed health services to the Nation’s
children.

In addition to the varions difficulties of administration that you
have heard so much about, T think there are some more basic fatal
flaws in EPSDT.

First. it is linked to the welfare bureaueraey which is already over-
worked. undertrained in health matters. and is constantly under polit-
ical pressure to reduce welfare rolls. not to serve all needy children.

You can’t find every child who needs sereening under EPSDT
without finding a lot of people who are eligible for welfare.

At best. 60 percent of those cligible for direct welfare payments
receive them: 40 percent of those who are eligible. do not. receive wel-
fare payments.

By defining an eligible child as one who is already reeeiving ATDC,
we have specifically inchuded 40 percent of the neediest. A child receiv-
ing AFDC probably has a medicaid eard in his hand and can receive
care. Others are nntouched and remain untonched as long as screening
is linked to the welfare system.

EPSDT is also linked to the special problems of medieaid with its
complex eligibility requirements, on and off cligibility, its endless
forms. and its late and inequitable payments. -

This is probably the main reason for the diffienlty in gotting physi-
cians to participate in EPSDT. We have had too much bad experience
with medicaid.

Tn those States in which medicaid has been administersd smoothly
and in an acceptable way. ESPDT has had greater Success.

The third difficulty with the present. EPSDT program is that it is
conceptualized and administered as n screening program, not as a
program of comprehensive health care.

There are a few bows in the direction of comprehensive health care
and prevention, but the statistics you have heard from GAO count
the munber of children screened.

If you are evaluating a progran on the basis of children screened,
what vou will get is children screened and not children taken care of.
So. even though there are some philosophic gesturcs toward preven-
fion. actually what is being demanded and measured, what the States
are being assessed on, is how many children are screened.
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As I mentioned before, screening in itself is a worthless exercise.
The only purpose is treatment,

With all these diffienlties, what might be an alternative?

The best estimates I have heard about the cost of ESPDT range
from $14 billion to $1 billion a year. I understand nobogiy has been
able to put a closer hand on thie nuinber,

The money now spent on ESPDT could be reallocated to provide
a basic minimum program of comprehensive health supervision for
all children in the United States, all 75 million, 0 to 21. Such a pro-
gram might take the following form:

w0 .4\ sct of vouchers would be issued to all parents for 14 health super-
vision visits in the first 21 years of life of each child, redeemable by

physicians or clinics who provide acceptable health supervision sery-
ices. Vouchers would eliminate complex and costly billing and pay-
ment procedures. Universal eligibility wonld eliminate costly and
demeaning enrollment procedures and wonld insure that services were
monitored, not only by poor and uninformed parents but also by
well-informed, articulate, and demanding parents who indeed insist
that the children get the kind of services they need, who don’t neces-
sarily accept what is available without questioning.

Vouchers would establish full freedom of choice between the patient
and parent and providers.

The cost of the redeemed vouchers would approximate $750 million
a year, well within the order of magnitude of what is being spent now
in attempting ineffectively to get such services for only a small pro-
portion of only the poorest children in the country.

What about the problem of getting parents to seck out this care?

We have heard that an army of outreach workers, people providing
transportation and so forth might be necessary.

I would suggest before we go into that we might attempt another
system. To offset part of the cost of transportation, babysitting and
so forth that is associated with getting children to regular health
supervision, a second set of vouchers redeemable by parents after each
completed visit might be provided, perhaps in the form of a food
stamp that could be redeemed in any supermarket.

With such a positive incentive, a inuch larger proportion of parents
would seek and obtain health supervision for their children.

The cost of outreach workers, transportation. and other facilities
and services to be provided by the Welfare Department could be
greatly reduced.

The annual cost for parent vonchers worth approximately $10 for
each visit would approximate §300 million, again within the range
of what is currently being spent.

The total administrative cost, which I think is at least 30 percent
of the total expenditures under the current ESPDT program, could
be reduced under such a program to something around 1 percent, the
basic cost of distributing vouchers which would be redeemable through
enrrently existing systeins.

I am concerned that such programs for preventive health care shonld
be financed through Federal general tax revenues, not through insur-
ance and tax mechanisins which impose their greatest proportional
burden on those least able to pay. Even greater equity could be
achieved if vouchers were regarded as taxable income so that those who
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have no taxable income get the full value, those who are well able to,
pay tax on it. This might help avoid the criticism that has been so
discussed in the school lunch program, of providing free services for
people who can pay.

A program such as I have described would not address payment for
maternity care, dental care, acute episotic care of illness, nor man-
agement of chronic illness. But, neither, in reality, does EPSDT. These
important services could be covered by the various service and insur-
ance programs that exist.

I think the program would provide a base of preventive care of all
children and thus reduce the cost which insurance and service pro-
grams must cover.

Thank you. )

Mr. Orrincer. Thank you very much for a very thoughtful state-
ment. That is a very interesting idea.

Dr. Lamb, would you care to proceed.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE LAMB, M.D.

Dr. Laym. Mr. Chairman, it is a great pleasure for me to be able to
be here to discuss such an important issue with all of you.

Mr. OrriNeer. Will you identify yourself?

Dr. Lays. Yes.

I am Dr. George Lamb. My present position is in the department
of preventive and social medicine at the Harvard Medical School, and
pediatrician at Children’s Hospital Medical Center in Boston.

My cominents are as follows:

First, it seems appropriate that the intent of the legislation to be
discussed, at least one major intent, is to provide the same kind of
prograins for the poor children as are now being accomplished for the
more affluent children, an issuc of equity. This is indeed a very desir-
able goal and one that should be vigoronsly pursued. The findings of
Project Head Start, particularly the medical component, and other
studies indicate that previously undetected health problems do exist
in the tareet population and that at least many of these can be remedi-
ated. It is my belief, however, that the screening component has to
hecome an integral part of some ongoing health service system, a
comment that T have heard repeatedly here as well as in the testimony
from vesterday.

Thus. T feel that separate systems such as that presently existing in
EPSDT is inefficient and costly in terms of reaching children and
Incorporating them into comprehensive health care. The priority,
therefore, should Le to provide an organizational framework for com-
prehensive health services to all children.

Second. a sereening by itself, as Dr. North mentioned, is of no bene-
fit. to children and their families. In this context, we must recognize
that many of our suggestions for screening, diagnoses and treatment
are presentlv based on relatively poor pieces of information scien-
tifically. Rather, they are hased on the state of the art and what, in
fact, ocenrs primarily in the private practice of pediatrics and the
general consensus of zood mnedical practice.

., Therefore, T would sngeest that a high priority be given to evalua-
- tion and/or research programs to accurately determine the payoffs
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of presently accepted and yet unproven and new screening and treat-
ment approaches.

ird, a monitoring of the implementation of a comprehensive
health care program for children should be accomplished in a man-
ner that mmintains confidentinlity. It also must not impose undue
amounts of paperwork or financial disincentives to the providers.
Heroe I would comment parenthetically that it seems to mo that much
of what Dr. North suggested would accomplish this,

At this point, the volume of paperwork and relatively low reim-
bursement eauses difficulty in follow-up, diagnosis and treatinent in
people who have consistently already experienced dificulty with ac-
cess to the system. It also imposes consic{emble financial cost on the
provider and in many local instances I am aware of providers are not
going through the EPSDT repoiting process, specifically to avoid
the cost of that kind of mechanism.

Fourth, it mnst be recognized that many health care roviders are
not presently able to deliver all the sereening programs desirable and,
in fact, sugwested under the regulations. Thus, there must be some
allocation of resources to the education of the health professionals
and some assistance in obtaining and using new screening procedures
and instruments. This will be an ongoing process and needs to be
coordinated through other ageneies such as American Medical So-
cieties, American Academy of Pediatrics, and so forth.

Fifth, in some instances, the prevalence of problems is so high that
sereening, itself, should be dispensed with completely and direct thera-
peutic services instituted. For example, in one group I was involved
m we found 62 or 63 children in need of denta] services, 31 of these
children had wreent problems in regard to their teetl Thus, any
further screening for tecth problems would be ineftective and inap-
Propriate. -

Sixth, attention should be given to the edncation of consumers re-
garding the need for screening as part of ongoing medical care. Recent
reports by Floltzman suggest, for instance, that the screening for
PKU can'be most productive if the consumer is involved g nd informed
in the sereening process, obtains assistance in making a decision rela-
tive to the sereening and is actively involved as a participant in all
phases of screening, diagnosis, and tiearment., :

Similarly, a program involved with early education for parents in-
volving over 300 famnilies in g local program starting at 2 weelss of age
indicates that famifies are receptive to more information around
health and edueation issues and can act on the information,

This particular program does involve low sociocconomic children,
as well,

Seventh, each area, town, county or region, needs to provide for
coorclination of services to children.

The Foltz report of the Connecticnt experience indicates that in-
consistencies of Federal regulations, lack of cooperation between State
agencies and the delegation of responsibility for health supervision

. to the Welfare Department was neffective. Another example might

be again in a local area I am involved with where EPSDT programs
are being delivered by local practitioners and local community hospi-

tal ambnlatory facilifies.
In addition, the towns are responsible for screening and interven-

3
!

103



Q

ERIC

r
Full Tt Provided by ERIC.

100

tion beginning at age 3 under the new Massachnsetts Law 760. They
are rcsponsibﬁs for sereening, periodic sereening, from age 3 to 21 or
graduation from high school.

It scems obvious that theve is a lnck of coordination between these
programs, creating costly duplications, gaps, and inconsistencies be-
tween these programs.

It is unclear in this instance wherve the rosponsibilit-v rests, the
Welfare Department, local practitioner, local hospital, local health
department, or local schools.

Thank you.

Mr. Ormiyger. Thank you very much, Dr. Lamb. We appreciate
your testimony. .

By the process of elimination, I assume we have next Dr. Yankauer. "

STATEMERT OF ALFRED YANKAUER, M.D.

Dr. Yaxkavrr, Mr. Chairman, I am Alfred Yankauver. T am 2
pediatrician, currently teaching community and family medieine at
the University of Massachusetts Medical School in Worcester, and
editor of the American Journal of Public Health.

I would like first to express not only appreciation for this oppor-
tunity to appear before the committee but also satisfaction that the
committee is gathering information about programs for children
that may have "pearing upon futnre health insurance planning and
implomentation. Children are not little adults. They have special needs
stemming from their growth and development and their future hu-
man resource potential. In spite of these obvious poiuts, the history of
health insurance both abroad and in this country displays_au ap-
Falling neglect of children. perhaps because they do not vote. 1 would

ike to return to the special needs of children later.

There ave many aspects of EPSDT which seem strange to me, but
the strangest of all is the fact that the legislation itself should have
been necessary in the first place. Medicaid was intended to mect the
health needs of the Ainerican poor. The Amervican trndition of health
care calls for the delivery of preventive and curative care from 2
single source. thus distinguishing it from the delivery systems of
IWestern European countries and cansing it to resemble those of East-
ern Enrope. Yet medicaid had to be snpplemented by special legislation
calling for a preventive program dirvected at children as if neither

revention nor children were considered in the original medieaid leg-
islation. It will clearly be important to avoid this sort of paradox in
the future health insnrance legisiation. ‘

I wonld like to leave the technical aspects of screening programs to
others except for the following broad generalizations:

1. Well prepared nurse practitioners. working with physician col-
leagucs, are probably superior to physicians alone in execnting those

arts of child health supervision usually associated with physicians—
the interview, history and routine physical examination. Future legis-
lation should take care not to discrininate against nurses.

9. Studies are_badly needed to improve the offcctiveness and effi-
ciency of child health supervision. EPSDT provided a magnificent
but lost opportunity to plan and execute such studies. Reseaurch and
development in health services administration should be considered
part of program costs as they are in industry.
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3. In spite of our lack of specific knowledge, inductive reasoning
and consumer and provider consensus demand that preventive care bo
covered in future health insurance planning.

4. Standurds for. the various components of a program like EPSDT

- can be set by consensus. More than that, they can also be rauked by
priority order of importance by consensus. Tlie order muy be different
in different parts of the country and for different ethnic or cultural
subgroups. Given the individual costs of the various components, and
the level-of expenditure set by economic constraints, decisions on im-
plementing program standards can be made at a local level with more
sensitivity than they have in the past.

I would like to devote the rest of this time to exploring what I seo
as the reasons for an almost universal dissatisfaction with the EPSD'T
program. Many of the expressed dissatisfaction are, I believe, merely
symptoins of violations of fundamental and long-known principles,
violations that were built into the EPSDT progran:

1. Detection, counseling, follow-up and treatment were not under
control of the same sonrce. The successful model liere is tuberculosis
screening by the health departments who provided follow-up and
trentment. themselves—although other treatment sonrces were not
prohibited. The failing models, known for many years, are in the field
of school liealth.

2. The means test of medicaid acts as a barrier to care through its
stizmatization of consumers, and providers as well.

3. Administration by a welfare agency focuses on financial controls
but even these have been poorly handled; turning off many potentially
interested providers.

4. Instead of building up a new program slowly on the basis of pilot
trinls—research and development—as would be dotie with antomobiles
or drugs or other products, we jump right into a major new cffort—
walking bravely but foolishly into the dark.

5. State and local government agencies were not strengthened to
help them face these new responsibilities yet in the end they must be
the responsible parties. ,

. 0. Grassroots, consumer feed-in, education and voice—that is, com-
munity involvement—were not built into the program.

7. Follow-up and outreach services, often more expensive than the

screening itseﬁ, were not provided for. '

Finally, T should like to point out that the special needs of children,
with which any health insurance plan must try to cope, are not only
the early widespread application of known preventive measures—
immunizations are the best known—not only the early detection of
handicaps such as a hearing loss, but also their follow-up and care.
The major problems of children tend to be problems that are health
related but which do not yield readily'to the simplistic meclical model
around which EPSDT is built. These are the chronic continuing con-
ditions, the physical and mental handicaps with which we are all
familiar. These handicaps cannot be cured—cure is the hallmark of
the medical model.

In spite of the fact that these conditions cannot be cured, there is
now abundant evidence indicating that their early detection and the
prompt application of rehabilitative educational, psychological and
social services together with medical services will result in very sig-
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nificant personal gains for the child and future cost savings for
society.

Such services applied as soon as they are needed—the earlier the
better—musi somehow be incorporated into or integrated with any
health insurance plans that hope to meet the needs of children. Often
enough, a8 in the case of the child with a sovere henving loss, the
non-medical services are moro important to the child and society than
the medical services.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Orrivegr. Thank yon very much, Dr. Yankauer, and the rest
of the pancl. “

Mr. Sharp, do yon have any questions?

Mr. Suare, Yes. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman,

Dr. North, I wanted to follow-up on your suggestion of the voncher
system. Are you awnre of anyplace where this has been tried? Ave
there any demonstration models of this?

Dr. Norrir, I have never seen the model of vouchers, Roth Finland

‘and France, each of which has superb infant mortality statistics, have

provided incentives for parents.

In France, you don’t get your baby bonus until you present your
completed health cettificate, Finland has the same kind of arrange-
ment. They instituted this shortly after the war. And it has resulted
in 95 to 98 percent. immunization and child health supervision.

This incentive to the parents—though I am not definitely com-
mitted to this particular form—is similar to the coupon boolk that yvou
get for your enr, that says this is for your 4,000, 8.000-mile checlup. It is
o statement of what vou wonld expect to be included in the checkup.
I have not seen this partienlar model tried and perhaps, as Dr.
ngl;"nuer suggested, it ought to be done “simall” before it is done
113 iﬂ. )

Mr. Suare. T was thinking it might be wise to try it out somewhere
for a trial run, One of the problems is that I still forget to take my
carin for a 4,000-mile checknp,

Obviously, it takes n bureaucracy to make sure that evervbody gets
a coupon book and if you have a bonus incentive plan where they can
get refunds, you can do that. '

I am wondering if we are not still stuck with the problem that in
order to make sure that people vou really want to help receive it.
We need to have an outreach program in which somebody takes the
coupon book, gives instructions on how it works, and follows up to
see that it is used, So we have not escaped some of the bureaucracy.

It sounds like with the voucher system, ultimately, we will have to

. come back with a system of financial controls, In other words, we will

be faced with a charge or fee or service plan—it varies from place to
place—some tend to use it and othersnot.

Dr. Norrir. I think the problem of reaching every person is simpli-
fied over time. First, vou do have almost universal contact with the
health system at the time of birth and a contact with a reasonable
health-related system at the time of school entry. Using these two
entrv points within a few vears the cost of distribnting such vouchers
becomes a very trivial one on an annual recurrent basis.
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Mr. Suar, Also, one of the universal complaints wo are hearing is
that of tho lnclk of a connectiop between the screening and follow-up
treatmont, tho kind of thing which sugaests the need for clearly loeal-
ized health care eenters or something in which one step clearly follows
tho othor,

Dr. Norrar, T think the solution lies mostly in avoiding setting up
any special screening, As Dy, Yankauer mentioned, our traditionn]
systems, including the newor models such as C&Y Projects and neigh-
borhood health centers, are comprehensive programs, The need s to
avoid settings such g unsuceessful school heltl or hontreatment pro-
viding baby clinics which we know are so ineflective in getting treyt-
ment and which have been specifically encournged the way KPSDT
has ovolved,

Federal regulations talk o little bit about comprehensive care and
then talk about using automatic equipment ang briefly trained person-
nel for large groups. So the States }mve been equivoeal. Tt is mostly
avoiding allowing the setting up of special screening clinies from
which you have to go someplace clse every time you want something
done,

Mr. Siare, Do the other two gentlemen want to comment ?

Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

Mr, Orrexarr, Mr, Santini,

Mr, Sanriny, Yes, Mr. Chairman,

I amn interested in your concept of redeemable vouchers despite my
own neglect of maintenance op my antomobile, Recognizing your “faty]
flaw™ comments with regard to EPSDT and its Iinkage “which vou
characterized with the welfare bureaneracy, do yon have any feeling
as to who conld best administer any new progrum including your
voucher concept ?

Dr, Norr, No; I don't, Tt may indeed be that the Social Security
Administration, accust omed to administering one large universy| pop-
ulation program, conkl o jt effectively for another, T can’t see that
Health Departments Lave had experience in mlministex-ing universal
Programs, Maybe the schools are the hest. They are another universal
servico agency.

Health’ Departments have never attempted to serve everybody, T

aven’t seen good experiences in either heglt) or welfare bureauernejeg
of serving everybody. T Suspect that any of them could do it a lot better
if the fatal flaw of specific eligibility veere removed,

Mr. OtTINGER, Would the gentleman yield?

Mr, SANTINT. Yes, ‘

Mr. OrTrxcEr. Do Yon have any idoa—perhnps the staff has some
idea—svhat Percentage of children iio born in hospitals in the United
States today?

Dr, Nortw, I think 98 or 99 percent. All of them are legally ident;-
fied through vita) statistics records, So birth is essentially a univereal
tabulating time for children.

Mr. OriTNGeR. Presumably if we were to go on this kind of program,
which I find very interesting, the hospital could administer it since
they have contact,
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Dr. Nowrir, Yes; on anl ongoing busis. There wonld be v firat-time
cost of renching averybody who has alrendy been born. After that, it
shonld be extremnely slmple, nysimple v ul noneont roversial as the mak-
ing out of birth certificate.

Dr. Yankaver Mr Chuirman, birth cortifientes are o universal
tf]mu-ti(m through the country and the linkage probably wonld he best

e,

Mr. Orrisoer. We don't lave a hinge administrative problem there.
Yon have somebody plrendy having to denl with it
. b Nonrr, That. isan exnmple in which henlth departments do their
job for every single person in the popuintion, 50 perhaps my previons
commient should {o purtintly retracted,

My, OTTINGER, Thank yon, gentleen.

Mr, Saynmint Tam concerned in the testimony so fur that there does
not appear that there is nny available duta or study on the (nestion
of follow-up, which you sugrgeest ns one of the futal fluws. Iinve you
scen on the basis of yonr own individual experiences the success or
failure of the followup petivity in yonr own enviromuent?

Dr, Nowrr, T lmve seen anecess ) follow-up. not in KPSDT but in
a variety of others: Here nguin, the key fenture seoms to be personal
linkage between the nurse practitioner or physician who is providing
the cure and the purents of children.

My colleague in Pittshurgh 18 punning a study on tonsils and
adenoids, The patients rofuse but fare “because you are giving us good
service. Weare coming back.” ’

1Vhenever you avord the necessity for referral—whenever the ding-
nosis and treatment can be done at the same gite and same time us the
need for it is discovered, yon have eliminated immense costs, :

Tvery time you mnke n referral there is n B0-pereent loss. Any time
another appointment is needed, 70 percent koep it. 30 percent ave lost,
To my mind. this is one of the most hmportant aspects. Whenever
sereening is divoreed from the follow-np and {reatiment. yon are bnild-
ing in defeat.

Mr. SaxtiNt Dre Lamb, Tam intevested in your obgervation concern-
ing education of the consumer about the availability of the sereening
process.

We were advised yesterday by a witness who appeared hefore this
committee, Dr. Cohen. who was formerly Secvetary of TTealth, Fduca-
tion, and Welfave. that it is Tealth. Eneation, and Welfave's respon-
sibility to make the services available. Int not to go out and entice
them. )

In the face of that administrative enlightenment, what direction or
conrse of action woul d you suggest ¢

Dr. Lawn. Wheve the rosponsibilit v for this edueational program
rosts 1 think would depend on how the program was sot np. It seems
to me that many of the pm'ticn\nrl_\- lower socioeconomic gronb, heing
lower edneated, partienlarly related again to the naternal edneational
Jovel. do not have the information or the resonrees to he able to reach
ont and effectively get any of the screening. dinemoses, and trentment
programs that we have talked about. and thiz would have to be a ve-
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sponsibility of some kind of program. Thus there needs to he a further
reaching out to these particular people, not just availability.
Again, perhaps, the incentive approach would be more effective.

By doing this, showing your coupon that you. have gotten your car

checked and tires checked and fixed, that in fact vou could get more
food stamps, which is the kind of approach that Dr. North was sug-
gesting, would make it more effective. To some extent, many of the
people who are unable to do this have more pressing problems such
a8 where is the supper for my child coming from, not where am I going
to 2o next week to get my eyes checked or my child’s eyves ¢hecked.

If the two were incorporated into a meaningful ineentive for the
particular kind of person we are discussing, then in fact the people
might be more apt to get the services.

I might comment on the other question. This might be the kind of
situation where multiple trizls on a small hasis wonll be very appro-
priate. tu have the incentive system or this kind of system tried in one
conununity or one area through the health departimment and another
area through the school department, so that we conld get some experi-
ences in terms of what is effective in terms of the incentive and the
followup that one conld get.

Mr. SANTINL One of the witnesses was exitical of the attempted
screening and medienl assistance that was offeied at the school level
to date. Now that may be because of an infirmity within the adwinis-
trative process of the school or within the existing program offered
in the school. Whicl is it, Doctor ?

Dr. Yaskaver. I thiink I made that eritical statement. The major
issue here is the separation of preventive and sereening services from
the treatment sources. Schoo! health services are the illnstration of
that problem.

Mr. SaxTiNe So deficiency was not administrative in terms of the
school, it was inndequate in terms of service offered ?

Dr. YaNKACUER, If the school were in a position to provide fnll com-
prehensive treatment services, which is a little questionable, then the
problem presumably would not arise. That is the supposition. It is ad-
ministrative because it is administ ratively not feasible,

Mr. Ormivaen. All of us wonld like to pursne this more beeause it
is very .interesting, I think it is very important that we get an op-
portunity to hear from people who can do something about some of
these problems.

Therefore. I am going to lave to ent this short. Thank yon very
nuch for taking the time and trouble to he with us and for your very
interesting ideas. We will try to pursue them. »

Wo next have representatives from the Department of Health. Ed-
ucation, aud Welfure, Dr. James F. Dickson, Acting Deputy Assistant
Secretary for Health. Department of ITealth, Education, and Welfare,
and the collengues that he has brought with him.

Because of what we ave about to engage in is controversial as opposed
to the previous witnesses, I will revert to the original practice and
ask that you be sworn. If you will stand and raise your right hands.

['The panel of witnesses as set ont below were sworn. ]

Mr. OrriNger. Dr. Dickson, will you first identify the panel.
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TESTIMONY OF JAMES F. DICKSON, M.D., ACTING DEPUTY ASSIST-
ANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDU-

CATION, AND WELFARE, ACCOMPANIED BY ROBERT VAN HOEK,

M.D., ACTING ADMINISTRATOR, HEALTH SERVICES ADMINIS-
TRATION; M. KEITH WEIKEL, PH. D., COMMISSIONER, MEDICAL
SERVICES ADMINISTRATION; NORMAN KRETSCHMER, M.D,
DIRECTOR, NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF CHILD HEALTH AND HU-
MAN DEVELOPMENT, NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH;
CHARLES U. LOWE, M.D,, SPECIAL ASSISTANT FOR CHILD HEALTH
ATFFAIRS, OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH;
DALE W. SOPPER, ACTING DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
LEGISLATION (HEALTH): AND IRA LURIE, M.D, NATIONAL
INSTITUTE OF MENTAL HEALTH

Dr. Dicksox. Yes, Mr. Chairman.

The other members of the Department who accompany me are on
my far right. Dr. Norman Kretchmer, Director of the National In-
stitute of Child Health and Fluman Development, National Institutes
of Health. On my immediate right, Dale Sopper, Acting Deputy As-
sistant Secretary for Health Legislation. On my left, Dr. Robert Van
Hock, Acting Administrator of the Health Services Administration.
To his left, Dr. Keith Weikel. Commissioner of the Medical Services
Administration. To his left. Dr. Charles Lowe, Special Assistant for
ﬁhilldl Tlealth Affairs in the Office of the Assistant Secretary for

ealth. .

There are some other members of the Department behind us who
have come today to be certain that any questions you and the other
members of the subcomrmittee may have are answered in detail.

Mr. Orrixcer. Dr. Dickson, we have heard over the past few days
a litany of testimony that the screening program is inadequate, that
it does not reach but a small percentage of the people for whom it is
intended, that because it. is not followed np with care it is inadequate.
We have seen a number of examples of children who are mentally
retarded who are handicapped for the rest of their lives, who cannot
see adeqnately, who cannot hear adequately, with health problems that
could have been avoided if these defeets were detected in an adequate
preventive medieal program.

I am very mich concerned indeed that vou have presented us with a
41-page document here which I will put, in the record if you insist
that. it he pnt in the record but. which I find totally inadequate be-
cause it does not address itself to any of these problems. It looks to
me like it was produced by the Department in order to describe in a
general way the programs which exist. in the Department.

If T were in vour position I wonldn't want it in the record, but I
will he served by vour preferences in that regard. We certainly do not
want to hear it. We would like vou to address the problems that have
been brought to the attention of the committee and with which the
committee i= concerned.

Dr. Dicksox. Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that I feel at this
time personally that we do have in the Department a very positive pro-

)
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. 8ram and a positive outlook with respect to it. I recognize it is also

a complex and difficult situation, I feel that one of the reasons that it
is complex is because jt is a combination of initia] legislative problems

_.Yith respect to the program, problems of economics, availability of re-

Sources, and I believe it is also administrative problems within the
epartment.

We are certainly not without fault. T don’t mean to suggest that
wWe are.

Mr. OrrrNger. Caspar Weinberger, the head of the Depuartment
immediately provious to the current Secretary, described this effort ut
preventive health for children a5 the top priority of the Department.
Is that still the assessment of the Department ?

Dr. Dicksox. Mr. Chairman, before going to that question, if I may,
I would like to ask whether You choose that I read an abbreviated ver-
sion of our statement? :

Mr. Orrizger. I prefer not. I will put whatever You like in the
record, but I am very, very much concerned to see to it that the prob-
lemslthat We are very much concerned about do get addressed by the

anel.
P Dr. Dicksox. Mr. Chaiiman, we will proceed as vou direct. We feel,
however, that this is a positive statement we would like all members
of the subcommittee to hear jt,

Mr. OrriNaen. I will he glad to insert. it for the record at this point.
You can distribute it so that the meinbers can read it.

Testimony resumies on p. 117].
[Dr. Dickson's prepared statement follows <]

STATEMESNT oF JaMes F. Dickso~ III, M.D,, Actrve DepvTy ASSISTANT SECRE-
TARY For HEALTH, DepARTMENT OF Heavrrs, Ebtcation, aNd WELFARE

Mr. Chairman and members of the Ssubcommittee, 1t 1s g pleasure to have
this opportunity to appear before you today to discuss the Department's programs
and accomplishments in the aren of child hiealth, It Is particularly appropriate
In vlew of the President’s proclamation which designated this past Monday,
October 6, as Child Health Day, and the U.S. Center for Disease Control’s desig-
nation of October gg Immunization Action Month,

The Department has a commitnient to maintain and Improve the health of all
children in the country. In the areas of research, regulatory actlvitles, quality
assurance and public education benefits are not llmited to any one category of
children. In thie heaith scrvice delivery programs, however, benefits are made
available to groups of children who, for a variety of reasons, would otherwise not
receive much needed health services., The categorical nature of many of the
programs I am about to describe results in overlaps In sonie enses and Zaps In
others, In addition to a distribution of manv child health authoritles in different
offices throughout tie Department. Recognlzing that 1t is necessary to coordinate
these actlvitles, the Department has recently cstablished an Office of Child Health
Affalrs within the Office of thie Assistant Seeretary for Health. This office will, ns
one of Its funectlons, coordinate and maintain liaison with all chilq heglth
activities within the Department,

This morning I will bricfly discuss the background of the programs, thelr
accomplishments and thelr present activitles, First, howerer, I would like to
take a moment to Indicate the present activitles and project goals and dircetion
that the Departinent has selected for child health activities In the Forward Plan
for Health, FY 1977-81.

The Department plans a coordinated health perspective on all ageney actlvitics
that are closely Interrelated. One of the major priorities of this thieme s pre-
vention with a focus on chilldren. Thus, the agencles of the Public Health Service
Involved in such activitles as child menta] health, accident Dreventlon, and
dnutrltion wlil devote special attention to an ongoing Interchange of ideas and

ata.
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A number of important child health initiatives are being developed within .
the Department which deserve special mention. They are identified in the For-
ward Plin for IHealth. For example, the foeus on reducing infant mortality
continues not only in the Maternal and Child Health Programs bnt is beglnning
in other program areas. The availubility shortly of up to date data pinpointing
high risk areas will mean more informed planning in such efforts as tlie Rural
Iealth Initlative. In addition, efforts to improve dental health will be lnereased
witl emiphasls on preventing tooth deeay thirough the promgtion nnd umlutenuncew
of optimal luoride levels of community and school water supplies.

In addition to the major coordinated activities and initiatives, the ngencxm
serving substantial populatlons of ehildren will of course focus on thvlr individual
efforts 1 child health, In some cases this will mean a strengthening of already
initinted efforts, and in others it will mean undertuking new challenges or us-
fir new perspeetives.

The Maternal and Child Health programs, which have heen making sizeahle
contributions over the years, will coutinue a special emphasls on infant and
preschool health,

The Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Iealth Adwinistration will emphasize
new aectivities related to ileohol use aniong adolescents: it will develop new ap-
proaches In prevention-related efforts within the mental health area, and as a
means of contimiing the efforts to combat drug abuse, priority wiil be given to
projects that nurture healtly family life, such as family counseling and child
development.

The National Institute of Child Health and IHuman Development will em-
phasize activities in the reduction of infant mortality and of low birthi-weights,
as well as understanding the cnuses of econgenital malformation.

The Center for Disease Control plans to assist in the effort to stimulate and
support water fluoridation. In addition, the Center along with the other agencies
involved in serving children will coutinue their combined efforts in immuniza-
tion programs including cooperative activities with the Early and Periodic
Screening, Dingnosis and Treatmoent program.

Now turning to the programs themselves. T will indieate within the context of
this broad subject aren how the many and varied child health activities of the
Department have progressed and at the same time discuss the extent of our
current activities. ~

HEALTH SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

The Ilealth Services Administration largely through tite Burenu of Community
Health Services conducts various programs which provide services to and which
impact on the heaith of ¢hildren.

Maternal and child health and crippled childrens programs

The eveation of the Children’s Burean in 1912 marked the major beginning for
involvement of tlie Federal government in the field of child health, That Bu-
reau’s investigations into such problems as infant and maternal mortality was
largely respousible for the enactment on November 23, 1921, of the Maternity and
Infaney Act (Sheppard-Towner Act) providing grants-in-aid to States to demon-
strate the value of providing local health services to mothers and children. Al-
though the annual amount was small, $1,240,000, and the Act tself expired in
1929, it paved the way for inclusion of maternal and child health and medical
care of crippled children in the Social Secnrity Act of 1933, Since then, under the
authorities of Title V of the Socinl Security Act, Congress has appropriated funds
annualiy for the continuation and expansion of both programs amnd, from time to
time, has nuthorized the addition of specinl project grant entegories,

Title V of the Social Security Act nuthorizes annunl formuln grants to thc
State Maternal and Child Health and Crippled Children's agencles.

In order to receive Federal funds from an allotment for maternal and child
health and erippled children’s services anthorlzed under Title V of the Social
Sceurity Act, n State must prepare and have availalle for review a State plan
which contains information which meets the requirements speecified in Title V
of the Act and the related regulations. Federal regulations also require assur-
ances of cooperation with the State agency sliich adniinisters tlie medieal as-
sistance program establishied under Title XIX of the Social Security Aet and
with the State agency which administers the State laws providing for vocational
rehabilltation of physically handienpped children. Additionally. there are statu-
tory requirements under Title XIX of the Socinl Security Act which mandate
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- that the State Title XIX ageney utllize a1l relmburse as may Le appropriate

* the State Maternal and Child Henlth and Crippled Children’s programs for those
services which are normally reimbursed by State Medicald programs and which
are provided by Maternal and Chlldren Health and Crippled Childrens Serviee

= .. programs under their State plans.

Crippled Children’s programs and Children and Youth Projeets provide, in some
States, both the clinic sereening site and the source of referral for followup and
treatment of elilldren found in need of enre under the Euarly and Periodic Sereen-
ing, Diagnosls and Treatment (EPSDT) program.

Maternal and child health scrvices

The Maternal and Cbild Henlth program Is responsible for extending and im-
proving health serviees for mothers stnd children, especially in rural areas. These
progras are designed to reduce inlant mortality and alse to provide matermnl
and child health care, with gy emphasis on preventive services in low income
areas.

The provislon of maternal and child health services hegins priov <o the birth
of a child by providing n complete range of health care to women early in
bregnancy in order to prevent adverse outeomes lu preguancey for the mother and
her infant; and after birth, by providing preventive health care and services
for women and children with the lutent of curly detection of disense and wn-
favorable health conditions aud increasing thelr own capacity to maintain and
fmprove their health. The majority of funding to the 50 States, the District of
Columbla, and the Territorles 1s u<ed to support Stare directed progrians which
provide n broad raage of maternal and child bealth services including prenatal
eare, postpirtum care, maternity and Infiant eare. lutensive Infaut cire and well-
chlld eare, The services offered include health sereening, preventive, diagnostie
and treatment serviees incluldng geueral health, visual, dental, and hearing eare,
as well as immunization serviees.

Virtually all State maternal and ehild heaith agencies provide physiclan di-
rected well-child eonferenees, ‘Iiese enuferences are designed to conduct periodie
assessments of the way children are developing. screen them for eonditions thar
may require medieal Intervention, and to malnthin an appropriste level of
innnunization against infectious diseases, Adrlitional services inelude pediatrle
clinles that provide ecounsultatlon, dlagnosis, treatment. and follow-ap eare for
siek ehildren and speeialty clineis that provide similar types of services for sueh
conditions as rlieumatic fever or hearing impalrments.

As examples of the magnitude of eare provided under these programs in fiscal
Year 1975, there were 568,000 ehildren registered for eomprehensive services amd
$1,805,000 children attending well-child con ferences. )

‘The most eommonly provided direet services for women are the inaternity
medical elinle services, maternity nursing services, and family planning serv.
fces. Nationwide. about 600,000 mothers reecive prenatal and postpartum eare
in these maternity clinles. Maternity nursing services were provided to about
2,000,000 new mothers in FY 1975. It Is estimated that over one million women
in 1975 received family planniug services through the State maternal and ehild
health servlees program,

The program activities of hoth maternal and ehlld heaith and erippled ehil-
dren have evolved and expanded as national awarencss of problems grow and
as the medieal technologles developed to treat these problems. For exampie:
in 1951 Reglonal Centers for the treatment of congenital heart disease were
established ; in 1963, in an attempt to reduce infant and maternal mortallty and
the incidence of mental retardation in high risk groups, maternity and infant
care projects were initiated; In 1965 ehildren and youth projects were begun:
newborn intensive care projects were added in 1967; enrly detection, expanded

~outreach, and dental care, were added to the authoritles under Title V in 1067
and in the early 70's Family Planning prograras were ineluded in the aggregate
of service programs provided to mothers and children.

Congress, through Public Law 93-53, directed conversion of various speeinl
Project grants to a formula grant program by July 1, 1975, This included the
project grants for Maternity and Infant Care (MIC), Children and Youth
(C and Y). Dental Care, Family Planning, and Intensive Infant Care.

The Maternal and Chiid Heailth program has taken on an inereased emphasis
In recent years. Maternal and Child Health programs were originally involved
primarily in providing preventive health services. Currently the programs are
focusing treatment services to assist States in the delivery of curative and

060-800—75——8 1 1 3



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

110

‘clinical services and have exanded their provision of health care services for

high risk mothers and their children, much the same as the Crippled Children's
program.

In addition, the Maternal and Child Health program is an active and crucial
participant in the Department of Agriculture’s Specinl Supplemental Food
I'rogram for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) which provides cash grants
to make food avnilable to pregnant and lactating women and to infants and

children up to four years of age.

Crippled children’s services

Formula grants are awarded to State crippled children agencies for loeating
-children who are crippléd or -who hanve conditions leading to erippling, and to
provide them with medical, surgical, corrective, and other care and- services
‘that are necessary.

Every State has a crippled children’s services program, and State law either
defines the crippling conditions to be included or directs the crippled children’s
agency to define them. All States include children under 21 years of age who
have some kind of handicap that needs orthopedic or surgical treatment.

As iIs the case with the State Maternal and Child Health Services program,
each State Crippled Children's Services Program must be under the direction
of a physician and must comply with Federal regulations inclnding several
designed essentially to assure (1) a high standard of care, including bhigh
standards for those personnel and facilities which nre to be used in the provi-
sion of services; (2) that health care services to be Drovided are compre-
hensive in nature nnd (3) that there will be development, strengthening and
improvement of standards, techniques, and services.

Since care of a handicapped child mas be a financial burden greater than the
parents can bear, the agency will help parents with financial planning and may
assume part or all of the cost of care, depending on the child’s condition, the
family's resources. and the funds available to the State agency.

Approximately 10 percent of the Maternal and Child Health budget is devoted
to research and training efforts to improve delivery of services to mothers and
.children. Research grants are authorized nnder Section 512 of Title V and
are made to public or other nonprofit institutions of higher learning and public
or uonprofit private agencies. The nim of the research program is to improve
the operation, functioning, general fusefulness and effectiveness of maternal
and child health nnd crippled children’s services. The research program through
its projects is focusing on improving henlth and medical services to mothers
and children. For example, one ongoing project is in the area of the design
and_development of new Drosthetic devices for child amputees. The Pproject
also incorporates a stndy of the needs and prohlems of child amputees, and is
preparing a new manuscript for a texthook on the treatment of the limb-

-deficient child.

Training programs, authorized nnder Section 11 of Title V. nre designed to
improve health and medical services to mothers and children through training
of personnel involved in providing health care and related services to mothers
and children, particnlarly mentally retarded and multiple handicapped children.
A major proportion of the funds support university-affilinted centers for the de-
velopmentally disabled and mentally retarded where primary effort has heen
given to interdisciplinary training of multidisciplinary service providers. Grants
to these institutions of higher learning provide support for faculty. trnineeships,
services, clinieal facilities and short-term institutes and workshops. These cen-
ters provide specinlized clinical training in a multidiseiplinary setting for phy-
sicinns and other maternal and child health personnel who focus their actlvity

on the multiple handicapped child. Emphasis in the centers is on the provision ..

of excellent quality health care condneted in a training setting. Pediatric Pnl-
monary Centers have been added to the training in the past year.
Sudden infant death syndrome

In coordination with the National Tnstitutes of Health research effort in Sudden
Infant Death. the Maternal and Child Health program, under Title XTI of the
Public Health Service Act. carries out a program of counseling, information
dissemination. education, and statistical reporting relating to SIDS.

Community health centers program

In the late 1960's, under anthority of the Public Health Service Act, the De-
partment began focusing support on ambulatory comprehensive health care
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programs for medically underserved conimunities. The subsequent development'
of community health centers has had n substantial impact on improving the

- health of children within the program’s target population. In 1975, it was esti-

-mated that 488,400 children received services out of the 1.7 million chiidien
:estimated to reside in the 157 medically underserved areas where Community
Henlth Centers have been established. These children had access to a full range

-of health services including medical, laboratory, mental henlth (including al-

cohol and drug addiction programs), dental, physical or speech therapy, social
services, and hospitalization. Under the new legislation authorizing expansion of
the CHCs program, P.L, 94-63, primary health services which a center must

-offer must include preventive health services, including children's eye and ear

examinations to determine the need for vision and hearing correction and well-
child services. In addition, physician, preventive dental, diagnostic laboratory
and radiologie. emergency medieal, and transportation services must be offered.
Supplemental health services. which mnst be provided directly as necessary to
support primary health services, or which may be oifered by referral include
mental health, dental, hospital, vision, health education, pharmaceutical and
rehabilitative services. .

Migrant nealth centers

In 1962, the Public Health Service Act (PHS) was amended to specifically
authorize health services to domestic migrating farm workers and their families,
"Today, Migrant Health projuets provide a wide range of health services such
as those inclnded in CHCs. Many of the projects are actively participating in
‘the Department of Agriculture's Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC).

Indian health gervice -

The Indian Health Service provides direct liralth services to children of Indian
and Alaska Natives through a network of 51 hospitals, 99 health centers, and
300 health stations in 23 States,

Comprehensive health service formula grants

A portion of the formuly grants to States for comprehensive henlth services
under section 314(d) of the PHS Act is used for the provision of maternal and
child health services and dental services to children.

National Health Service Corps program

Over 270 National Health Service Corps sites provide increased access to
Physician services and other medical servlces for families who live in medically
underserved areas.
Health maintenance organization program

Health Maintenance Organizations Supported by the Department gre required

to offer as primary and supplemental services a wide range of screening, dingnosis
and treatment services for children.

Family planning program s

v In fiscal year 1974 approximately 299 of the estimated 2.2 million served in
all organized family planning programs were 19 years of age or under. Family
planning serviceg ag provided through Title X of the Public Health Services
Act anid through Maternal and Child Flealth programs under Title V of the
Socinl Security Act tnelude a variety of health services in addition to family
planning literature, counseling and contraceptive devices. Most of the users of
family planning services receive complete medical examinations which ipclude
pap smear and other lnboratory tests gnd pelvic and brenst examinations, All

~elements of the family planuning delivery system provide a high level of diagnostic

ALCOHOL, DRUG ABUSE AND MENTAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

Although the problems addressed by this Agency are generally found through-
out the population, the lives of a significant number of children are touched,
Some tragically. hy the contemporary pressures attendant to their daily survival.
The three Institutes which comprise this Agency, the National Institute on
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Aleoliol Abuse and Aleoholisin (NIAAA), the National Institute on Drug Abuse
(NIDA). and the Nafiemal Institute of Mental Health (NIMH). have made
firm and major, commitments to the health of our children. Through a number
of crentive means and viable mechanisms, the Aleohol, Drug Abuse and Mental

Health Administration (ADAMHA) has committed substantinl Federal funds -

for.nyriad juvenlle programs in connection with intrnmural research, training

-grants. hospital improvement grants. fellowships, consultation and edueation,

staffing grants to commmmity mental health centers. and inmunerabie other
aetivities. For example. in FY 1975 the budget level for ADAMIIA programs
identified as including activities affecting children approximates $148.5 million,

National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism

The National Institute on Aleohol Abuse and Aleoholisin (NTAAA) is cur-
rently supporting, directly ‘ov indirectly, nearly $4.5 million of activities and
programs which benefit childven. These activities include eounseling and referral
serviees at 19 youth education programs, some of which vary in content and
approach. Certain projeets seek to enhance the leadership potential of parents,
children. and other commumity members, particularly regarding their decision-
making behavior in the use and nonuse of alcohol. Other programs provide pre-
veniive and supportive services for elementary *school children of alcoholie
parents.

The nse of aleohol by children and youth is recognized as a growing problem
of major proportions. The Forward Plan highlights this problem with greater
foous. NIAAA now identifies and treats approximately 2,300 youth aleohol abusers
mder soven grants approximating $1.7 million. These treatment projects are
tocated in several States.

Eight research grants have been awarded by NIAAA at a FY 1975 cost which
approximates $460,000. One of the most pertinent aleohol studies seeks to identity
the effects on the fetus of pregnant women who drink.,

National Institute on Drug Abuse

In FY 1975, the National Institute on Drng Abuse (N1DA)Y expended approxi-
mately $39 million on programs and activities supportive of youth. Nearly 821
million aungmented programs which provided services, and £11 million was
employed for public informnation activities and consumer education, ’

Certain activities of NIDA supported the development of a profile of adolescent
nmitiple drug users, and listed the residential and nonpesidentinl treatment
facllities and youth outrench faeilities in the Nation. In gddition, this Institnte
has funded a number of innovative projects concerning|prevention. treatment.
and research. Some of thiese projects foens on pregnanf addiets and addieted
mothers : otliers consist of studies which compare the Affspring of mothers re-

. eeiving methadone treatment with a nonaddict eontrol group. NIDA also provides

prevention services for over 10,000 individuals ranging in age between § aud 14
years. .
National Institute of Mcntal Health ,

During FY 1975, the total amonnt of money spent on child mental health
related activities approximated $105 million. Of this amount. $19.405.000 was
spent on research grants and $2.045.000 on intramural research. Training grants
and fellowships accounted for $20.285.000 (approximately $5 million of this for
the training of child psychiatrists).

The bulk of FY 1975 NIMH funds. 836 million ($28 million through Part F.
Community Mental Health Centers Act) went to fund Chlld and Youth Services
in_cortnin Commmunity Mental Health Centers. These Centers provided basle
services to over 132.000 children last year under the age of 18. Some of these
actlvities are nimed at preventing institutionalization’and enhaneing commimity
outreach programs.

NIMH has continned its support of program activitles in basie research of the
biological and genetic aspects of child mental illness. as well as the developmental
behavior of infants and young children. Further. this Institute also supports the
training of specialists in mental health of children and youth. has foenses on
SIDS (Sudden Infant Death Syndrome), runaway youth, and has awarded four
contracts which foeus on collecting incidence data on abused adolescents and
supporting a national conference on this relevant subject.
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NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH

: National Institute of Child Health and Human Derclopment

The Nationanl Institute of Child Health and Human Development (NICIID)
serves as the focal point for DHEW biomnedical and behavioral research relating

. to.the health of mothers, children, and families.

The mission of the NICHD is to contribute to the good health of all citizens
through research to expand the knowledge of family plaaming, child health,
maternal health, and human developmment, I'he primary goal of Institute efforts
ix resenrch in developmental processes so as to improve our ability to prevent
disense and disability. It is our feeling that the etiology of adult diseases, par-
ticularly degenerative disenses, begin in children. The underlying rationale is
that success achieved by the NICHD in assuring healthier children will result
in the long range benefit of a healthier adult population for this Nation.

Among the recent NICHD research advances which are likely to help mvet the
health needs of children are:

NICHD seientists have developed a vacelne whieh has the potential to prevent
a type of meningitis which is the leading canse of acqnired mental retardation.
Hemophilug influenzae meningitis may be fully preventable if findings of the
Institnte's scientists are borne ont in a recently initiated clinical trial of thiy
viceine nnder the Institnte’s anspices;

In part through Institnte research, 2 nnmber of maternal disenses, complica-
tions and environmental factors that can incrense infant morbidity and mor-
tality have becn identified. Tnfant morbidity and mortality can be increased by
maternal diseiase and complications of pregnancey sich as poor nutritional status,
diabetes. high Wood pressure, anemia, drng addiction. smoking, and the psychic
stress of pregnaney. Prenatal care practices have im proved gignificantly in recent
years as a direct result of this research ;

NICHD research has identified possible causes of the sudden infant death syn-

" drome (SIDS), Until this decade, SIDS, or crib death, was a complete mystery,

Recently, however. some of this obseurity has been eliminated as new leaas
have evolved that indicate that SIDS might be related to: apneg, infection, ana
heart rate changes: developmental maturationnl lag; oxygen deficiency: lack
of sleep: nbnormality in the brain stem; immaturity of the nervous mechanism
controlling heart function; and inadequate Inng responses. Until 1974, it was
believed that SIDS victims had been basically healthy babies. From data ob-
tained and evalunted in 1974 and 1975, it now appears that SIDS victims had
not been completely healthy. All of these leads may eventnally provide clinical
opportunities to save up to 10,000 infants per year: and

Identificntion has been made of relationships of nutrition to hmman develop-
ment. NICIHID research has resnlted in new knowledge regaurding the adverse
impnct of malnutrition in pregnancy in terms of the development of the progeny,
and data are now becoming available concerning the beneficial effects on child
development of nutritional supplementation during pregnancy, .

CENTER FOR DISEASE CONTROL

One of the most dramatic achievements in child health has been the reduction,
and in some cases the ncar elimination of childhood ‘diseases sueh as measles,
rubella, pdlio, whooping cough and diphtheria through vaccination programs.
Moxst of these diseases are at their lowest level ever. but they still ocenr. The
status of these diseases is ax follows: 22.094 measle cases in 1974, down 70.7 per-
cent since 1971; 11,917 rubella cases, down 73.8 percent since 1971; 7 polio ecases,
down 66.7 percent since 1971: 2.402 cases of whooping congh, down 20.0 percent
since 1971; and 272 cases of diphtheria, up 26.5 percent since 1971. with most
cages oceurring among adnlts.

‘Paradoxicnlly, the success of these programs also poses a danger. With the
sharply reduced incidence of these diseases, the population has become apathetic
and high immunization levels are difficnlt to maintain. This creates n potential
for the introdnction of disense and epidemics. Becnuse of this, the Department
is contimiing a strong campaign to rednce thix threat. .

The Department’s campaign has three chief featnres: (1) the provision of com-
plete immmunization protection to children receiving care in HEW supported
child henlth programs; (2) the support of State and community immunization
programs; and (3) a pnblic cdncation campaign which premoted Oetober as
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Immunization Action Month. These efforts, as I have indicated, involve the co- -
operation of several agencies.

The Center for Disease Control has also made substantial progress in the
following areas:

Assisting communities in developing programs aimed at the prevention of
poisoning from ingesting lead based paint;

Monitoring the incidence of birth defects aimed at preventing epidemics caused
by new environmental agents;

Analytical investigations seeking to discover the etiology of birth defects which
are not now epidemic;

A population.based study seeking to demonstrate that technical assistance to-
State and local health departments can greatly increase the number of women
who have Inboratory testing to determine if a fetus has a chromosomal disorder
like Down'’s Syndrome (mongolism) ; and

Incrensed surveillnnce activities to monitor the effectiveness of RH hemolytic
disease prevention efforts.

CDC recently was given responsibllity for the Publie Health Service's apphcn-
tion programs dealing with prevention uand control of dental disegses. A key
fenture of this program is the revitalization and furtherance of the epartment’s
efforts to extend the benefits of fluoridation to all children on community water
supplies.

This is the most effective dental preventive mensure yet developed, and it is
the easiest to implement and the cheapest to maintanin. At the present time,
however, more than half of onr children who could he drinking flnoridated water
are not doing so. Thus, the Department views this endeavor as uanother of its
ongoing priorities,

SOCIAL AND REHABILITATION SERVICE—EPSDT

The Early Periodie Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) program
represents a major effort to provide preventive and comprehensive quality health
care to disadvantaged children. The purpose of the program is to identify and
treat handicapping or potentially handicapping conditions eurly, before they
become severe or irreversible problems, endangering the child's future health
and well-being—and before they hecome more costly to treat.

The bmsic concept underlying the EPSDT program is one of preventive and

comprehensive healthh care. ‘Children served by the program have usually never
had contiet with an nngoing health cure system. Thus, EPSDT generally provides
their first introduction to preventive medicine and often their first experience
with health care other than crisis care.

I would like to review brietly the hackground of the enactment of EPSDT
and the steps the Department is taking to see that the program is implemented,

The amendment was added to conform with chunges made in the Title V
(Medicaid) of the Socinl Security Act.

The nmendment was added to conform with changes made in the Title V

- erippled children prograin which required States to provide for early identiflca-

tion and treatment of children in need of henlth care and services. In discussing
these amendments, the Committee on Wayrs and Means stressed their intent
that States make more vigorous efforts to screen, diazgnose, and treat children
with disabling conditions, and carry ont “organized and intensified casefinding
procedures,” including follow-up visits and related activities.

The law requires that States must make provision in their Medicaid plans
for providing or arranging periodic health sereening for all eligible children
under 21 and for follow-up treatment of conditions discovered through screening.
The screening process must assess u child's physical health and his or her growth
and development. Treatment covered under the State plan for conditions found.
throngh screening is required by law, except that treatment for hearing. vision
and dental defects must be provided whether or not otherwise covered in the
State plan. States must alse inform all families receiving payment under the
Aid to Families with Dependent Children program of the availability of EPSDT
services. tell them where and lhow these services can be obtained, and, upon
request, provide transportation services,

EPSDT is administered by the States, and in the early stages of implementation
there were few resources and little experience in the States to establish and
administer a child health care program of the scale and scope contemplated by
the legislation. Each State developed its own administrative and policy solutions.
to program implementation, resulting in a wide variety in the scope and emphasis
given to the EPSDT program,
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Further, there was no firm consensus aniong health care professionals regard-
ing appropriate Dreventive services and techniques or the frequency with which
8ervices should be provided. Also, adjustments were necessary in the existing
health care system to provide tecessibility and availability to tle program
and avoid duplication of services while integrating BPSDT into ongoing systems.

S Thie_very scope and complexity of EPSDT and the issues raised by sueh g

Program in the areas of quality of care, organization of service delivery, and
appropriate utilization of services raise obstneles to easy or timely implementq-
tion.

Final regulations, published in the Federal Register on Noventber 9, 1971, and
effective February 7, 1972, requireq States to provide. in addition to those services
normutlly provided under States” Medienid plans, eveglasses, hearing aids, other
visual and liearing trentment, und dental enre, Final guidelines were Dublished
in June 1972,

Title II of the Socinl Security Amendments of 1972 required the Secretary of
HEW to reduce Federal Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC) by
1 percent if a State fails to inform eligible families of the availability of screen-
ing services or to provide or arrange for screening and treatment services. Regu-
lations to implement this provision were published on Angust 2. 1974,

As you are aware, the Department has othicially found eight States to be out
of ecompliance with the mandatory penalty requirements for the first qnarter
of FY 1975—California. Hawaii, Indiana, Minnesota, Montana, New Mexico,
North Dakota, ang Penngylvania. This wils the first “penalty” assessment for
noncomplianee with o Medicaid brogram provision,

Signiticant new regulations were bublished in the Notice of Proposed Rule-
Making on Aungust 20, 1975 which would revise the eurrent peualty regnlations,
Our intent is to ¢l rify the Department s expectation with regard to State aetions
to implement EPSDF and to improve the Department’s ability to assess State
compliance fairly ang objectively. The revisions are designed to do this, Further.,
we believe the proposed chiunges wilj strengthen basie struetural support for
an effecrive program by acding minima) Case management and follow-up require-
ments, turther specilying informgtion dissemination requirements, angd requiring
a minimum sereening packase,

Other efforts which we have initiated in the areas of program improvement and
development include ) -

the provision of 75 bereent Federgl nuatening funds as a finaneial incentive
for health-relateg SUDDOrE services ;

working with States to develop specitie program improvement goals;

providing substantinl technical issistianee ;

funding researel and demonstration projects : and

inereasing daty acquisition required by management information needs.

Tnterdepartmental coordination exists between the Oflice of Edueation, the
Office of Human Development and the Publie ITealtly Serviee in bringing together
Tesources that will enyhle EPSDT programs to more adequately meet the needs
of the eligible inds viduals,

As an indieation ot the potential size of the program. there are approximately
13,000,000 children eligible for EPSDT. The Federal share of EPSDT is approxi-
nuitely $500 million per year. The Federal Mwlieare expenditures for those under
21 in non-EPSDT Programs requires approximately $1.5 billion, The combined
Federal and State Medicaig expenditures for those under 21 iy approximately
$3% billion.

We believe that the basie concept of EPSDT—nsxnring early and preventive
heaith care services, follow-up treatment ang establishing patrerns of continual
periodie contact with health care providers—ig the major strength of the pro-
gram. Although this concept of Lealth care is not new to the medieal professinn,
it is Innovative ax a bart of a national program of finanecial assistance for the

" é0sts of medicul eare,

In a larger sense, we see EPSDT as an ongoing demonstration to deterniine how
our governmental and heitlth enre system resources ean best accominodate the
special health needs of children and soutls, particularly those in low income
families. Many States now have good operational EPSDT programs. Adminijs-
trative systems and provider resources are in place in many areas where previong-
Iy none existed. Tow ineome children are heing sereened ang introduced into the
health care system. Cleg rly. this has not heen an easy task and much remaing
to be done. IHowever, we know that comprehensive ehild health eafe programs
can be establishedq with eontinuing conmmitment on tiie part of Federal and
State administrators and health care providers,
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OFFICE OF IUMAN DEVELOPMENT
Ifend Start

Turning now to the henlth services component of the Head Start program I
shall begin by indicating the progrnm’'s general objectives :

- to- provide -a comprehensive Dbealth services program which includes-a--
broad range of medical, dental, mental health-and nutrition services to pre-
school ehildren, including bandicupped children, to assist the child's physienl,
emotional, cognitive and socinl development toward the overall gonl of so-
cial competence;

to promote preventive health services and early intervention ; and

to provide the child’s family with the necessary skills and insight and
otherwise attewpt to link the family to an ongoing health care systemn to
ensure that the ¢hild contimies to receive comprehensive health care even
after leaving the Head Start program.

The henlth services component of lHead Start (medienl, dental. nutrition and
mental health) provides that for ench child enrolled in the IHead Start program,
a complete medical, dentil, and developmental history will be obtained and
recorded. a thorough health sereening will be given, and medical and dental ex-
aminations will be performed. These services were provided to approximately
330.000 preschool children in Head Start in 10974,

OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Several programs of the Federal government in the fiold of edueniion assist
financially limited school distriets in providing health serviees. For example,
thix year the Title I program of the Elementary nnd Secondiry Education Aet
will provide £1.9 billion for services to the educationally disadvantaged voung-
stoers neross the eountry. Health and related services are eligible for support under
this program. Beeause of the Title [ forinula, a major portion of the fi
into school distriets where there is n lnrge coneentration of economienll
advantaged students, Therefore. in general, the school distriets which have_
maximnm need for finnneinl assistance stand to benefit the most under the Ti
I program. Other federally funded programs under whieli school health servides
are eligible for receiving financial support are: Title 111 of the Elementary apd
Secondary Edueatton Act (Supplementary FEduciational Centers and Serviees).
Title VIL (Bilingnal Edneation) : Title VIIT of the same Aet (Iealth and Nu-
trition. and Dropont Prevention Programs) : the Follow Through Program (a
program to ¢ontinue the IHead Start activities) ; and Edneation of the Handi-
capped Aet.

I am herewith submitting a table showing the estimated munber of students
served and the federally approprinted dollars expended in the category of health
services for FY 1973 nnder the eduention programs enumerated.

PROGRAM

Educa-
tion  Emer-
. . of the  gency
Low  Title Title  Title Follow  handi-  school
Total Migrant income i vil Vill  Through capped sid

P

Federal expendi-
K ..x.p. ....... $27, 891,000 $2, 189,000 $22,764. 000 $225.000 $25,000 $148,000 $2, 400, 000 $110,000 $30.000

tures
Students served.... 2,064,900 162,000 1.686.000 16,000 1,800 10.960 178,000 8,000 2,200

Conclugion )

Mr. Chairman, we In the Departinent who are eoncerned with programs affect-
ing our Nation's childrven are dedieated in a special way—not only to the fulfill-
ment of our direct respomsibilities but to the role we play in helping them to
achieve optimum health and” well-being. T beliove we have demonstrated today
that we aré nsing our resonrces to the hest of our ahilities. As we have shown
in onr diseussion of the programs themselves, the Forward Plan and our new
Oflice of Child ITealth Affairs, we are striving to improve onr child health
reseireh and service efforts in overy way that we can.

Mr. Chalrman, this concludes my statement, My eolleagues and T will he
pleased to try to answer any questions which yon or other members of the

Subepmmittee may have,
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- ‘Mr. OrTiNGER. 1s this matter of highest priority in the Depnrtment?“
- Dr. Dicxsox. I would like to turn to Dr. Weikel, if I may.
- Mr. WeikErL. Yes, I think it clearvly is one of the highest. priorities

f this program.
Mr. NGER. If this is a matter of the highest priority, why isn't
-the Secretary here, or cven the Assistant Secretary? It seems to mie
hat this involves the health of the children of the country, involves
‘the waste of billions of dollurs in wasted treatment for diseases that
;- -could have been prevented. I personally, and I think the members of
""" the committee, consider it the highest priority. It scems to me worthy
;. of the Secretary’s consideration.
' Dr. Dicgsox. The Assistant Secretary, Dr..Cooper, is in St. Louis,
Mr. Chairman.

The program does have the highest. priority. There are other prior-
ities that the Secretary has to attend to beyond health per se. Ie
adjusts his time according to the relative priorities across the
Departinent. .

Mr. Orrixcer. I consider it an indication of the priorities to have
the Administrator of the programs before us. We are dealing with
major policy questions here, If this is a high priority matter on behalt
of the Secretary it wonld have been incumbent on the Secretary to be
. here. I hope you will transmit to the Secretary that we on this com-
" mittee feel this is a matter of paramonnt importance.

A vast amount of Federal money is being wasted. and is not reach-
;. ing the very important goals that it should be reaching. and we wonld
=" like to see this matter corrected, and would like to sce the Department
“ address itself in action, not just in words to male this « high prioriy
. of the Government.
© . Mr. WeIkEL. M., Chairman, I think whether this is a high priovity

is illustrated in the nctions. I think the actions that the Department
. has taken over the pust year clearly illustrates it is a high priority.,
. I think the actions that, the Secretary is continuing to take to support

the program indicate that it is o priority.
. There are clearly a lot of problems associated with the implemen-
=~ tation of this program. I think there has been clear progress mace
during the past year by the Department in the implementation of this
' program.
©_Mr. OTTINGER. Reaching only 15 percent of the childrer who are
- eligible. That is a rvelativel ¥y small percent.

Mr. WerkeL. That is correct.

Mr. Orrixeer. With the screening program. And then needing
~_treatment, less than half of those. It does not seem to me to spell out
Fvery great success.

Mr. WeikeL. First of all T would hope that since the referral rate

- only indicated a need to treat 0 perecent we not waste additional
- money by treating people who don’t need referral for diagnoses or
. treatment.
- Second. in terms of the record on screening. I want. to emphasize
- we don’t believe the value of this program is in sereening, the value
- of this program is in seeing that children ultimately get treated for the

‘conditions that are identified. I think if you will look at the record,
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the record indicates through July 1, 1974, we screened 1.5 million

children. I think all of us believe that record is inadequate. It is not

an acceptable level of performance.

On the other hand, during the past year in a single year we have
‘sereened 1.5 million children, and those are very hard numbers. We....
have eliminated a lot of numbers that were reperted by States that. .
we didn’t think were valid numbers. So we have screened last year -
1.5 million children ont of approximately 9 million children who

are eligible for the services.

In addition, that 1.5 million does not include any of the data for
the equivalence to screening. There are a lot of children under medicaid -

who ave receiving services under the program through private practi-
tioners. If they are being scen by a pediatrician on a regular basis we
believe that counts as the equivalent of a screen, again emphasizing
- that the issue is not screening it is whether the children ave treated.
We think we have a major initiative that is needed in that area, and we
are undertaking a number of activities to make sure that the children
are followed up and treated.

Dr. Dickson. Mr. Chairman

Mr. OTTInGeR. Is one of the important elements of preventing
handicaps and illnesses in children, nutrition?

Mr. WeIkEL. Is it nutrition ?

Mr. QrTINGER. Yes.

Alr. WreikeL, Obviously I think it is nutrition. Housing. is also .

another element. ; ‘

Dr. Dicksox. I think Dr. Lowe might comment on that.

Dr. Lowr. AIr. Chairman, I think it would be only fair to say that
there is evidence that there are nutritional problems in the United
States. The Department, as' you know, mounted a 10-State survey,
and this certainly confirms the suspicion that there was malnutrition.

These issues are being addressed, but only partially by the Depart-
ment. The Department of Agriculture. as you know, has a major role
in the alleviation of some of the malnutrition. The forward plan
of the Department. addresses nutritional issues in what I believe to
be n constructive and forward looking fashion, and an attempt is

being made to identify throngh more sophisticated methods than -

presently available, malnutrition which is incipient.

There is no art in identifying broad malnutrition. The impor-
tance is to dotect children who give evidenece of incipient malnu-
trition,and this we propose doing.

Mr. OFTincEr. It is very hard to conceive of an administration
which calls child health top priority in the health field, says this is

going to be the year of the child, and then vetoes 2 nutrition program. -

I find in every respect that the,actions simply don’t follow the words

with respect to giving what I consider a most important program the

kind of priority and attention it deserves.

I don't want to monopolize all the time. At this point let me recog-
nize my collengne, Mr. Sharp.

\Mr. Sranre, Mr. Chairman, I wonder if it could be useful if they
could specify what actions have been taken? My concern is that the
charge has been made in this hearing and articles in the National
Journal that there has been a gross absence of commitment in pri-
marily the Nixon administration, and perhaps that is carried over in
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the Ford administration on this very program which has been on the
ks since 1967. Now that is a very serious kind of charge.
e second i3, you heard this morning, if you weren’t already plain-
Iy aware of it, that there are many serious questions about whether
we should implement this particular program, whether it really can
do the job we need to do, and maybe what we ought to be doing is
drawing up a different program.

You have indicated there are specific actions being taken. I would
like to know what those are in terms of implementing them and what
should be changed. I don’t sit on the authorizing subcommittee, so I
:Ifnay be ignorant of this. I would appreciate if you would clear it

or me. ..

Mr. WeREL. You referred to the National Journal articles which
were written on the basis of the way the program was prior to 1974,
I think a tremendous amount has happened since that time.

As of the end of last July there were approximately five people
involved in the implementation of the EPSD program. As of today
there are approximately a hundred people involved in the implementa-
tion of that program. T think that clearly demonstrates some commit-
ment on the part of the Department,

As of last July, there was very little ir: the way of technical assist-
ance available. We are spending $3.5 million with varions contractors,
many of them professionals. snch as the Community Health Founda.
tion, to provide technical assistance to States that have not developed
an adegnate program. We have a commitment to provide in depth
technieal assistance to nine States under that contract.

We Lave contracts with the American Medical Association to deter-
mine how we can oct more cooperation on the part of the providers.
I might indicate that over the past vear there has been a tremendous
commitment on the part of the AMA and on the part of the Academy
of Pediatrics.

We also have a contract with them trying to provide us with tech-
nical assistance. working with onr regional offices in each of the re-
gional offices. working with the States to try to improve participation
of providers in this program,

One illnstration, the testimony earlier. was that we shounld not con-
sider mass Screening clinies. In term of implementing the program
we would like to have all these children treated in the private prac-
tice if that is most cost effective and most beneficial in terms of their
health. But in onr project that is being sponsore by the AM.A in TJi-
nois where the county medieal society is intimately involved, where
their commitment was to fry to get private practifioners to take the
children as part of their regnlar patient mix, they have had difficulty
getting physicians to take the patients.

It is not an all black or white sitnation. There i3 difficulty involved
in providing the proper providers. The reason in that case was not that

~providers did not want to take patients. they were overloaded with
their present population. They did not have capacity to absorb addi-
‘tional children. That is jnst one example.

I could go on laying out other technical assistance contracts. dem-
onstration contracts, that have been initiated and implemented dnr-
ing the past year.

Mr. Srare. Could you give us a couple more examples?
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Mr. WemkeL. We have a rural health project that we are involved
with in Cuba, N. Mex.. where the problem is how can we provide
EPSDT service to our rural popatlation as well.

We have a project in San ‘Antonio, Tex., barrio project. attempting
to provide health services, that is jointly funded by ourselves and the
Robert Johnson Fonndation. The Lodge Foundation is involved as
well, So we are involved in joint projects.

Mr. Suanre. These are experimental projeets?

Mr, WrikkeL, They are a series of research and demonstration proj-
ects. There is also a series of five or six specific contracts which have
been implemented during the past 6 months to provide technical as-
sistance to the States to improve their progran.

Dr. Dicksox. Tn respect to this question the activities in the past
vear in the health services administration ae pertinent. 1 would ask
Dr. Van Hoek to comment with respect to those.

Dr. Vax Iorx. I would like to address the seccond question that you
raised. which is with respect to how we can improve the delivery of
health care servives to children. One more progrum that we adminster
is title  of the Social Seenrity Act, the maternal and child health and
crippled children program. This program over the years has Jdirvected
itself to doing exactly what you heard the pediatricians on the panel
prior to us describe as to what the nature of screening, referral, com-
prehensive care for children shonld be. and the fact that yon have to
link the screening program with the delivery system in settings. This
is exactly the approach that the maternal and child health and crippled
children program has taken in the States.

Tt is a program formmlas grant to the States, ensrently rnnning at
approximately §300 million per year in total. inelnding some research
and training funds. and providing services to approximately 8 million
mothers and children at the present time. targeted largely to the jow-
income families.

Mr. Suare. Can vou tell me how that wonld work from a mother’s
point of view? What wonld be her experience on the receiving end?

Dr. Vay Hork. If eligible as 2 Jow-income mother from a low-in-
come family. yon can come to one of these projects or programs. It may
be operated by the State or loeal health department. Tt may he on-
erated nnder agreement or contrict by medical schools. hospitals.
group practice programs. or clinic programs. The mother and child
receive prenatal carve. care throngh maternity. post-natal care. well
child conferences, immunization, subsequent sereeuing as the child
grows and complete pssessmnent, not just of vision sereening and hear-
ing but complete assessinent of the growth and development of the
child. Not only that. it either directly or throngh other arr ngements
sees that any nutritional problems arenet.

There is a significant follow-np ‘component of the programs which
is education of the mother and family to maintain adequate nntrition
and assistance in carrying ont these activities,

Mr. Sirare. Is there a great deal of flexibility as to how the pattern
of administration works? Tn most of these programs it is my impres-
sion that is left for local decision. What you people do is serntinize
just to see that they meet general guidelines.

Dr. Vax Hork. We set minimnm standards as to thetypes of services
that are to be provided, how they ave organized and carried ont is at
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the discretion of the program. I would also point ont that this pro-

gram has significantly focused on the truininF and improvement of
nonphysician personnel to carry out many of the progrums functions.
We are attempting to solve the problems of shortage of physicians or
maldistribution of physicians by, using other personnel adequately
trained to carry out these functions, including nurse practitioners
mentioned by an earlier testiinony.

Mr. Suare. Thank you.

Mr. OTTINGER. Mr. Santini.

Mr. SaxTrxt. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I will address my questions to whichever member of the panel wishes
to respond.

First of all, T am concerned by the faet that we are looking at what
the chairman and Mr. Weinberger and you have acknowledged is a
top priority program. As Dr. Weikel appropriately observed, a high
priority is indicated by the actions.

Now, in the law enacted in 1967, July 1. 1969, was the effective date.
By February 1972, almost 3 years later, for this top priority prograin,
we have imnplementing regulations. In view of the fact that this is a
top priority program that tools almost 3 years to get regulations, wliat
was the reason for the delay ?

Mr. Weiker. T think first of all it was not probably established as a
top priorit» * 269, I think Secretary Weinberser clearly did later
establi = 3+ -, . top priority. Former Secretary Weinberger has indi-
cated thexe 1s cnsugh blanie in terms of the slow implementation to go
around te all of us, the Department. the States. and anyone clse who
was involved. I do not think it benefits us to say who was at fault for
the slow implemenation.

Clearly, I think during the past year there has been rapid imple-
mentation and we have begun to address some of the real problems that
we are confronted with in the implementation of this program.

Mr. SaxTizi. Should not the Department be the one to bear the
primary blame or responsibility or credit for the success or failure
of tlis particular problem in view of the fact that ITEW is the imple-
menting agency ?

Mr. WeikEr. I think that is correet. Also it obviously involves par-
ticipation with the States. The State governments have the prineipal
responsibility for implementing the medicaid program in EPSDT.

Mr. SaxTiNt On that point, Dr. Weilel. Dr. Cohen, former Seere-
tary of ITEW. testified yesterday that one of the principal failures
of this particular program, and I am sure you have had a report on
his testimony, was the fact that FIEW has established an adversary
confrontation relationship with the States. and that even to the last
week of Secretary Weinberger’s service he issued two regulations
without any consultation with the States. The States are rebelling in
response to this program because they feel it is being crammed down
their throats as opposed to being implemented as a joint effort be-
tween Health, Education, and Welfare and the States concerned

Mr. WEIkEL. T could recite here a litany of our efforts today along
with the States. First of all, last August we had a conference where wo
invited the Governors, representatives of his office, the Dircctor of
Social Services of the State agencies, Director of Medicaid, to tell them

about the commitment of this Department to implement this program.
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We followed that np with a whole series of correspondence to the
States. I have personally been involved in numerous conferences with
the Health Subcommittee of the Ameriean Public Welfare Association
that has responsibility within that orgnnization for representing the
States in \'lejlshington and meeting ‘with them on issues. I have met
with them just recently on the new regulations that were proposed to
implement the penalty.

I think the reeord indieates we have worked with the States. We
have cooperated®ivith them. Within the Medical Services Administra-
tion we are not. publishing regulations nnless we have previously con-
sulted States abont those regulations.

Mr. SaNTINL Your testiniony at this point is that every regulation
that is implemented concerning
Mr. Werker. I did not finish.

Mr. Saxrive It is not every regulation then ?

Mr. Weiker. In the case of the regulation on the penalty that vou
were referring to that was published. the revised penalty regulafion
for EPSDT. that regnlation was not discussed in any amonnt of detail.
Small parts of it were disenssed with individual people and States.
but the reaulation itself was not discnssed because we felt there was
a real need to make some clarification. to elear up some of the eonfusion
that existed with the first penalty regulation that we diseovered as a
result of trying to implement. We have tried to correct it throngh thas
new regulation. Becanse Secretary Weinberger wanted to corvect that
hefore e left, he did publish those withont our consulting with the
States. ,

Mr. SavTive May T nail down one thing before we @0 much further?
It is your sworn testimony as to all implementing regulations, I appre-
ciate your heing as precise as you can on this point—that you confer
with the States or consult with the States prior to the implementation
of those regulations.

M. WerkEer. Absolutely. So there can be no confusion. T eannot
testifv as to what happened in terms of the eriginal implementing
reaulations since I was not involved in the program in any way at
that point.

I am saying in reeent history there clearly has heen a record of
consultation.

Mr. Santive. What is recent history ?

Mr. WEikkr. Within the last vear.

Mr. Saxrnivr. That is 6 years after the so-called effective date,
Julv 1. 1969,

Mr. WrmkeL. If we are truly interested in whether this program
has a potential we ean recite past history over the last 3 or 6 vears,
or we can look at what has been done by the Department to move ont
agaressively to implement this program,

I also want to make clear that the reenlations von are talking abont
being published in Augnst were elearly not regulations that were just
Inid on States. That was a notice of proposed rulemaking that “the
States and every other interested party has 30 days to comment on,
after which we will consider their comments. In that interim period I
have already discussed those regulations with State officials. with the
American Pubiic Welfare .\ssociationy and their representatives.
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- Mr. Santixr. You feel that the record of Health, Education, and
Welfare has been a counmendable one in terms of its relationship with
the States? )

Mr. Wemker. In terms of the EPSDT program, I think that is

"clearly true. I think that we feel the need within medicaid within

RS, and within the Department to have more dialog with the States

. rather than Jless.

We clearly can’t solve these problems from Washington. We believe
they can only be solved by working cooperatively with the States.

I think I can give you a specific list of regulntiors that have been
published within the medicaid program, within SRS and the Depart-
ment in the past 6 months where the Stutes have been consulted even
before the notice of proposed rulemaking.

Mr. SanTINL Dr. Weikel, I would appreciate your comment, too—
48 you observe the value of the program is not in screening, it is in
children treated—can you advise this committee, in view of the fact
that this is the value of the program, how many children were treated ¢

Mr. WeIkEL, That is clearly one of the problem areas in administer-
ing the program. When the program was originally implemented there
was too much emphasis, 1 believe, speaking us a professional, on the
screening component. ‘I'he only data required from the States was
oriented around the number seréened and the nuiber that are referred.
We recognize this problem, and we have begun to do something abont
1t '

We have changed our reporting requirement. We are in the process
of getting that cleared through the Oflice of Management and Budget,
and we are requiring them not only to report screening data but to
develop some mechanism for following up to make su.e that the
children are treated.

One of the major provisions of the revised penalty regulation is
require documentation on the part of the States to determine whether
or not the children were treated.

Mr. SaxTINT Your answer is that we eannot assess the value of the
program because we don’t know how many children have been treated
6 vears after the program was to he implemented?

Mr. WekerL. That is correct. T think the mechanisms are in place
clearly to correct that,

Mr. Sanrrnt. Coneressman Metealfe testified, with regard to the
actions on this top priority program:

In 1972 I requested the 1.8, General Acconnting Offire to investigate the
EPSDT programs to determine the extent of its implementation in my home State
of Tllinois and throughout the Nation. In January of 1975 the GAO issned a
report. Their findings and conclusions made it clear that despite the law, and
despite the obvions human need that program ean serve, HEW has all hut iznored

-the existence of ESPDT for more than five years,

Ts that an acenrate conelusion ?

Mr. WerkeL. T think in our comment on that tle Department indi-
cated we did not have any real problem with that conelusion.

Mr. SAxTINT. You agree with that conelnsion ?

Mr. WEIKEL. Yes, sir. The Department officially responded to that
effect.

Mr. Orrincer. T am ooing to have to eut the gentleman off, bt we
will get back to yon. I think vou are doing a good job,
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The administration has vetoed a health bill that would provide for
the training assistanee to medical schools, additional assistance to
medical schools, to provide the doctors that are needed. Then it vetoes
the Child Nutrition program. They have announced that we should
not bother to pass a national health insurance program, all that costs
too much money.

We had strong evidence in these hearings that the States were not
responding enthusiastically at least in part because they are suffering
severe financial stringency, and they are not anxious to put up a very
substantial share of the funding that is required. Iow would the
Department look upon our increasing the Federal shave 100 percent,
or perhaps 90 percent, und could we anticipate a veto if we went ahead
and did that?

I think the Secretary probubly ought toanswer that as it is a question
of departmental policy.

Mr. Sorrer. Mr, Chairman, obviously yon are making a proposal
which the Depmtment wonld have to consider and disenss in the
context of its place in the execntive brauch. We cannot tell yon now

“what the President wonld do if the Conaress were to send him

legislation which would change the EPSDT program.

Mr. Orrivaer. Is it your opinion that the inability of the States to
finance the program isa problem?

Mr. Wemker. T wonld like to comment on the different types of
implementation of this program. Tf yon look at the medieaid program
historically. that s, been a program that las had principally one
obiective. providing payment or paying bills for low income indi-
viduals who are eligible to providers from whom thev receive services. ,
The EPSDT program gave the States an entire different set of ve-
snonsibilities that they never had hefore, they could look at a single
bhill in isolation and sav that is a valid bill, and pay it.

With the implementation of the EPSDT program it put on a
Aifferent set of responsibilities, responsibility for outreach. and fol-
lownp, a responsibility to make sure that children get in to be treated.
That was not the responsibility that the traditional nmiedicaid ageney
had prior to the enactment of the EPSDT. That is quite different,

The reason T mention that is that funding is only one of the prob-
lems T think that the States have,

o are addressine the need for ontreach, The need for followup.
and tracking throngh some of our technieal assistance, some of our
chanees in reportine, and some of onr other contracts to develop track-
ine svstems for the States, So, money is only one problem.

T amn sare if von asked the States if they wanted more money the
answer wonld be yes,

Mr. OrrixaeEr. What is needed here is a comprehensive health pro-
gram for children as T see it here, Perhaps if the administration was
not prepared yet to go for a national health insurance program that
covers evervbodv it might at Jeast, as has heen snggested in testimony
here. o for a national health insurance program that covered children
in their earlv childhood vears, The testimony T think was that it would
be very desirable to have this from birth to 6 vears old,

Can you give ns any indication of how the Department would view
this?

Dr. Dicksox. No, sir. T have no comment to make on that. T heard

the proposal,
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"« "Mrs OTTINGER. Can we get some comment from the Department on

. those two questions in writing ¢ ‘ ‘

- Dr. Dickson. Yes, sir.

%... [The information requested was not available to the subconunittee

; at the time of printing—November 18, 1975.]

_. Mr. Orringer. Counsel, I will give you an opportunity for some
_questions,

. Mr. Skear. Last year there was an indication that there were 13
million EPSDT eligible children. Is that correct ?

Mr. WEIKEL, Yes.

Mr. SEgarL. Approxinuately 1.5 million were screened ?

Mr. WeikeL. That is correct.

Mr. Secar. Therefore, that would leave approximately 11 million
or 11.5 million not screened ?

Mr. WEIkEL. Who were not screened that Jyear; that is correct. There
isa total of 3 million children screened to dafe.

. Mr, Skcar. Could I ask, Mr. Chairman, that we insert in the record
‘at this point a preliminary report that was done by the staff by re-
questing States for information on EPSDT.

Mr. OrriNeer. Without objection, that will be so ordered. T think if
you are %oing to question the witness about it, you had better make
1t available to the witness. :

[The document referred to follows |
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PRELIMINARY REPORT OF THE RESULTS OF A QUESTIONNAIRE SENT T0 STATE MEDICAID
AGENCIES CONCERNING EARLY AND PERIODIC SCREENING, DIAaNOBIS, AND TREAT-
MENT (EPSDT)

(Prepared by the Staff of Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee, Com-

mittee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce

EPSDT - FY 1975

PROGRAM
ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Total Eligibles
(12.8 million)

l

PROGRAM
FAILURES

Screened

(1.9 million
14.8%)

A\ N

Need Treatment
Y N Total

|

Not Scrcened
(10.9 million
85.2%)

N 45.1% 850,000)*
\ \\ SN ( l ) (850,000)

h S * . '
Treated % \\ N, Not Treated
(60.4%) . \ AN (39,69
(510,000)* * \\ N (340,000) *

lu. 'k_Need Treatment
“‘ v - Vision
e (12.0%) (230,000)%
. I :
: L
Treagéd . . s Trea;ed
(67.6%) (32.4%)
(150,000)* Y 78,000} *
“ Need Treatment
Hearing
. (5.1%) (100,000)*
\ | |
Treaéed B Not Treated
(28.5%) \ 571.:%)
(29,000)* ?\ (71,000)*
Need Treatment
Iron-deficiency Anemia
(4.0%) (76,000)%
P . .
Treaeed Not Tgeated
(958.5%) (1.5%)
(75,000)* (1,00n0)*

*Staff estimates
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EARLY AND PERIODIC SCREENING, DIAGNOSIS, AND TREATMENT

On September 10, 1 75, the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations of
the House Committee on Interstate and Foreign Commerce surveyed the States
for certain basic statistical information on the Early and Periodic Screening,
Diagnosis, and Treatment program (EPSDT) required under Title 19 [Medi-
caid] of the Social Security Act. A total of 35 States responded. The results of
that survey form the basis for this preliminary report on EpPSDT.

The following sections examine the number of children eligible for screen-
ing, and the number screened, needing trentment, and treated for general condi-
tions and for specified visual, hearing, and anemin problems, The report focuses
on ehifdren receiving such services, and more importantly, on children who are
not receiving such serviees when they should be,

Eligidle population

Based on the responses of 31 States Providing information on the eligible
Popuiation, an estimuted 12.8 million children were eligible for EPSDT at some
time during fiscal year 1975. The methodology used in arriving at this estimate
is as follows;

Data on quarterly eligibles was provided by 30 States, indicating a quarterly
avernge of 4,084,545 eligibles during FY 1975, These States included approx-
imately 459, of Medicaid recipients under 21 years of age during May, 1975
(excluding New York for the reasons noteq below). Assuming that the same
ratio holds true, 4,084,545 would be 45% of eligibles in FY 1975, yielding ay
average quarterly estimate of 9.1 million eligible children ;

Eight States provided information on both the quarterly eligibles and the
total yearly number of eligibles. In these States, the yearly total was 1.28 timey
higher than the quarterly average, Multiplying this 1.28 yearly turnover factor
times the 9.1 million average quarterly number of eligibles yields an estimated
11.6 million eligibles at some time during FY 1975; and

New York reported 1.2 million eligibles during the year, and no quarterly
number, and thus has been excluded from the above computations. Adding the
1.2 million New York eligibles to the 11.6 million yields a nationwide estimate
of 12.8 million children eligible at some time during FY 1975,

General screening package

Data on the general screening package wag reporteG by 34 States, with g
total of 1,162,589 screenings reported in those States. These 34 States included
approximately 61, of Medicaid recipients under 21 in May of 1975. Assuming
that the same ratio holds true for the entire fiscal year, an estimated total of

" 1.9 million children were screened during FY 1975,

States were also requested to provide information on the number screened
specifically for visual, hearing, and iron-deficiency anemia problems. In general,
for most States, vision and hearing screens reported were the game as total

- general screening, Fewer States reperted screening for iron-deﬂciency anemia.

The results of screening for these specific problems are as follows:
33 States reported 1,115,223 screenings for vision ;
2} States reported 1,111,060 screenings for hearing; and
20 States reported 886,971 screenings for iron-deficiency anemia.

Public accountability questions
Since the total eligible population was estimated to be 12.8 million, approx-
imately 10.9 million children were eligible for screening services but were pot

-screened during FY 1975.

What are the consequences of 10.9 million children not receiving this basic
preventive health care?

How many of these children were screened in previous years? For example,
if 3 million children were screened in all previous Years, does than mean
almost 8 million eligible children have ncver been screened under this program?

Can one expect a greater Proportion of eligibles to be screened in the future

years? How many ?
What is the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare doing to increase

‘the pace of screening?

Numbder needing treatment )
States were asked to provide the number screened who were identifled as
needing treatment.

.
3}
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32 States reported the total number needing some form of treatment as
a result of the general sereening package. Of the 1,008,400 screened in those
States, 405,471, or 45.1% necded treatwent,

32 States reported the nwmuber needing treatment for vision probiews, with
12,09, (133,589 of 1,113,201 wereened) needing such treatinent,

39 States also reported those needing trentmeut for hearing problems, with
5.19 (56,747 of 1,110,778 screened) needing such treatment,

13 States reported those needing treatuent for iron-deficiecney anemia, with
407, (24,417 of 608,821 gereened) ueeding such treatwment,

Assuwming that the percentages of those needing treatwent would apply to
the entire eligible population of 12.8 wiiliou, the following can be derived:

45.1%, or 5.8 wililon chiidren, nced some form of inedical treatwent;

12.0%, or 1.5 miilion children, need treatnent for vision problems:

5.19,, or 650,000 children, need treatment for hearin® probiems; and

4.0%%, or 510,000 childven, need trentment for iron-deliciency ancmia.

- Publie accountability questions

What are the eonsequences of ns many as 5.8 miilion children actually need-

ing some form of medicai treatment when only 1.0 million are being sereened

each year? )
How can the Department of ‘Henlth, Edueation, and Welfare justify its ac-

Jans Jn.'lum}gmc_ntlug EPSDT when the program falls so far short of the need?

Number trcated® :
A small number of States were able to report the number of those nceding

treatment who were netually trented. )
0 States reported all treatments as a result of the general seréening package,

‘with 60.4 percent (80,454 of 133,117 needing trentent) actually receiving treat-

went. .
5 States reported the number recelving treatment for vision problems, with

67.09% (8357 of 12,368 ueeding treatment) actually receiving treatment,

5 States reported the number receiving treatment for hearing problems, with
28.5¢, (622 of 2,180 needing treatment) actually receiving treatment.

3 States reported the number receiving treatment for iron-deficiency anemia,
with 98.3% (8,401 of 8,527 needing treatment) actunily receiving treatent.

Applying these percentages to the total number of children reported as need-
ing treatment in this survey yields the following: .

60.49, of the 495,471 children reported as needing treatment, or approximately
209,000 chiidren, actually received such treatment. Approximately 196,000 were
identified as needing edical treatment but were not treated: .

7.65% of the 133,580 chiidren reported as needing trentweir for vision prob-
lems, or approximately 90,000 chiidren, actualiy received such treatment., Ap-
proximately 43,000 children were sdentified as needing treatment for vision prob-
lemns but were not treated ;

28.5¢% of the 56,747 children needing trentment for hearing problems, or ap-
proximately 16,000 children, actually received such treatment. Approximately
50.000 were identified as nceding treatment for hearing problems but were not
treated . and

98.5%% of the 24.417 children needing treatment for iron-deficiency anemia, or
abont 24.000 ehildren, actually received such treatment., while approximately

400 did not.

Public accounlability qucstiohs

Ilow can one justify identifying medical problems and then not treating
themn?

Why are so few States nble to report important link between screening and
trentment? Do the other States not know how many were treated?

How ean the Department of Health, Edueation, and Welfare assure that the
trentment component of EPSDT is being carried out, when most States eannot
even provide information on treatment, and those that do provide such infor-
mation indicate that only 60.4% of the total problems identified are actually

being treated?

t Bocause of the limited number of States responding these figures must be used with
enutlon in considering national extrapolation.
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Additional dala needed . . .
Dation the ntimbers sereened, and nnmbees nweeding teeatment for speelfled
conditious appenr fo he ndequute nt the present thue. However, the remainder
of the data on EPSDT neads marked fmprovement. o
“Information on the eligible population ean’ only he deseribed as grossly in-
Adegnate. The Subcommittee staff eucountered similar problems on- the eligihle
Population n the survey -of surgery under Moediceald, It iy tmperntive that: the
Depurtwent of Health, Equention, and Welfare develop acenrate information
on the number of Medieaiq eligibles. . . . ] . -

The Survey requested information on the number of those informed of the
the availanility of sereening gervices, and the nnmber requesting and declining
shieh yervices. A miiimber of States were unable to identify those 'informed, and
Most States were unable to fdentify those requesting. and.declining such sevvices,
Sueh Information should be kept up to date at the Federal level, and must he
kept at the State level sinee States are required ‘to inform oligibles, and must
be ahle to {dentlfy requests for sereening in order to provide service. .

DPublie peecomntability vequires that a data collection gystem he available that
wlll link trentment to sercening. : o :

- Mr. Sgaar. I have a conple of additional questions. Let us focus on

_those who were not sereened, the 11 million approximately,

We have heard testimony over the past conple of days that a unmber
of disorders such as vision disorders and hea ring disorders and anemia
are prevalent among the population. Wonld you say that an estimate
of 10 percent of those children sereened would he likely to have a vision
disorder? T think it might be appropriate ta hear from onr pediatri-
cians who are here.

Mr. Wekrn, T will tel] you what we have discovered in the 8 million
children we have screened. That is somewhere in the neighborhood-——

Mr., Orriveer, Excuse me. T heard yon say before that you screcned
about 1 million childven.

© Mr, Weiken. T think T said previously we sereened throngh July 1
of 1974, 1.5 million. We screened during the past vear, in fiscal 1975,
1.5 million, for a total of 3 million children sereened.

Mr. Skear. Since 1969 there have been 3 million screened ¢

Mr. Werket. There have been 1.5 million children sereened during
the last fiscal year. '

My, Orrixeer. 1.5 million during the past fiscal vear.

My, Wiiker, That. is correct. T think that clearly demonstrates soma
increased growth in the implementation of this program.

Mr. Srgar. Using the ficure that you indieated that there were 8 per-
cent of those who had been sereened had visnal problems, would von
think then it would be a fair extrapolation to look at the 11 miliion

~who had not been sereened and assume that 800.000 of them wonld have

visual disorders?

Mr. Weigsn. No. sir. First of all. we at this point unfortunately do
not know how many of the remaining 11 million children have received
services that are equivalent to screening throngh being treated hy a
neihhorhood health center., ’

Mr. Srgar. Conld we have Dr. Lowe answer that question on his pro-
fessional judgment ?

Dr. Lowe. T would have to defer to Dr. Weikel. There are aood fig--
ures on the prevalence of a large variety of important defects in chil-
dren. This would be one of them. T think it is an opportunity to gain
hard numbers on the prevalence of visnal defects. T am afrajd T can’t-
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Mr. Seear. Have you seen any studies on visual disorders and the
percentage of children that have been determined to be having defects
or disorder problems?

Dr. Lowe. Yes, sir; there are studies and the National Center of
Health statistics has prepared some. The problem is that these figures
tend to be distorted because children wit}‘x) very obvious defects show
up before children with more subtle defects. The caveat I think that
Dr. Weikel inserted is one that should be kept in mind.

Mr. Sgean. What about the National Academy of Science study?
Would that be a study that you would consider appropriate in any
w%? What of the epidemiology of the study’s results?

r. Lowe. I am not sufficiently familiar with the study to comnment.

Mr. WeIREL. I am familiar with the study.

Dr. Krerciser. The answer is yes.

Mr. SeeAL. 11 million individuals who are not screened, if they were
screened what percentage might you expect would have visnal dis-
orders? :

Dr. KXrerciuMeR. I have no idea really. I think what Dr. Lowe said is
quite true. As you screen you are going to get a miniinum figure which
is comprised of those children who have outstanding disorders. That
is 2 minimum figure. Then a maximum figure builds up as you begin
to count minimal or mild disorders. I don’t think there are sufficient
data now available that would give an accurate percentage figure of
visual disorders which one could expect.

There are data, for example, on mental retardation.

Mr. Secar. Could you cite those, please ?

Dr. Krercayer. Yes. The data on mental retardation, which have
been gathered primarily by the National Foundation as well as other
foundations, would indicate that about 7 percent of the children
would fall into an area from mildly to severely retarded. This is a fig-
ure. by the way, that was given to you yesterday also.

Mr. Secar. That is right. So, you would expect out of that popula-
tion of unscreened ; namely. 11 million, that 770,000 of them might very
weéll'Be mildly to severely retarded ¢ :

. I?rilKnx'rcnmm. Yes; or with some kind of learning disability ; that
1sright.

Mr. SecaL. Conld I ask one more question along that line? As part
of the methodology for the study that we did of the State agencies it
was determined out of 1.9 million screened there were 12 percent that
had visual disorders. Is there someone here who feels that is an inap-
propriate figure to have be determined by the States?

Dr. Lowe. With your permission I would like to go back to the
question on mental retardation because I think it would be helpful to
clarify one point. The prevalence of mental retardation is a function
of the age at which you make the assessment. The best single study,
for example, done in Maryland shows that if you detect mental
retardation at birth you start with about 1.5 to 2 percent. If you move
up through various ages you can reach 7 to 10 percent. But it is not
valid to extrapolate that figure to a population age under 5.

Mr. Orrixger. In the National Academy of Sciences study I take it
the conclusion was that the screening process simplv was not valid,
the screening that is being done is inadequate, and the followup that
is being done on that is even more inadequate. That seems to be con-
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firmed by the GAO study as well. Is this piecemeal approach to the
problem worth it? Is it worth our putting more efforts in a simple
screening program ¢ '
. Mr. Werker. T would like to comment on that. I think I am aware
of the National Academy of Sciences study you are talking about.
“: That wag predominantly ‘funded by the Department. I was one of the
.- officers to that particular contract. As I recall that contract, it did not
pertain to the effectiveness of screening under the early and periodic
screening, diagnostic and treatment program but screening per se,
whether done in the school program, neighborhood health clinic, or
in a private physician’s office, It is not an indictment of the EPSDT
program. Tt says something on a broader basis about our ability to
screen and pick up some of these conditions,

To answer your question in terms of tracking, yes, there have been
problems in terms of tracking and following up to make sure the
children are actually treated. Again I think the States over the last
Year have made significant Progress in putting into place systems
that will begin to track. .

There are two particular approaches that can be used. T can dis-
cuss those in detail if you wouls like to follow up and track children,

Mtr. OrriNger. Why don't you discuss thein briefly and perhaps com-
ment as well on Dr. North’s suggestion on supplying vouchers?

Mr. WEIkEL. I have not thought about that approach at all, and I
refer not to comment at this time. -

In terms of followup treatment there are two approaches. One in-
volves a case management of an individual, to have responsibility on
the part of the Government or administerir}g agency to make sure the

witnesses have testified to.
" Then after the individual is screened, whether it is by a private
. Physician who will follow up on the diagnosis and treatment, that case
worker would need some verification that the treatment is provided.
Some States are presently implementing that system.

The second system of tracking and follownp comes about as a result
of a claims process, a process for paying medicaid claims. In that
process the physician reports a procedural code. If the State runs a
Patient profile, they obtain the patient’s name, the names of the pro-
viders that are servicing that patient, and the names of every service
provided, every diagnosis, every treatment that is provided, every
service provided for that individual patient. Through that mechanism
we can check back to see whether g condition was identified during
screening and whether he is receiving subsequent treatment.

Mr. OTTINGER. Are any of these things being done now ?

Mr. WEIREL. Yes, sir.

Mr. OTTINGER. On a universal scale?

Mr. WEIKEL. On a universal scale the answer is no because we have
53 States and jurisdictions operating this program and they have their
own methods. Some of the methods are nonexistent. I don’t want to
imply there are 53 States and jurisdictions that have a tracking system
and followup. Texas has put in a patient profiling system. They have
had that in recent years, but now they have a means of identifying
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whether ihe child received treatment as-a result of sereening, 1ne
State of Michizan has_pnt n system in place invelving more of a
ease management systent’ which involves the public health department.

Mr, Orrinaer. I recogmize Mr. Wunder, the minority connsel,

M. Wuospkr. Thank-yon, Mr. Chairman, - :

Dr. Waikel..would it be fair to say abont the Departinent's position !
in regard to this program that, yes, yon acknowledge there have been
probleins ‘and; yes, von acknowiedge there have heen delays but yon
are now taking affirmative action to alleviate the problems and delays
that existed in the past?. . . '

My Wiiker: T think that is clear. : :

Mr. Wuxper, Wounld it also.be fair to say that the screening of
3 million children in the last 2 years evidences the Department’s posi-
tion to take o more affirmative action?

Mr. WreikrL The screcning of a million and a half children dnring
the past year indicates the affirmative action. The 3 million screened
was from the beginning of the progrumn in 1969. So that we have
sereened 3 million thronghont the entire programn; one and o half
million since last July indicates affivinative action, A

Clearly those of us who are involved in adininistering the progran
are not satisfied with the one and a half million. We believe we have to
get. up to a maximum implementation of the program which is some-
where in the magnitude of screening on an annual basis of 3 to 4 mil-
Jion children, but never inore than that. It nmst be remembered in this
program we are not screening every child very year. That is not a re-
quirement of the program. It wonld be a waste of the taxpayer’'s
monev, We are moving np to get the programs implemented so that
we will get the maximum screened and treated,

There is another caveat, this prograimn cannot be one of coercing the
recipients to hring their children in. It has to be a voluntary program
on the part. of the recipient coming in for the service. We are aware
that. we are screening the recipients right now. We are getting the’
casiost recipients. those who happen to be most. health conscions. into
the program. :

. \s we go down the road it will be mneh are diffienlt, require mnch
more outreach service. which is very castly to the Federal Govern-
mnent and the State to get a larger nimber sereened. Congress shonld
e aware of that potential difficulty. We don't expect these figures to
jump up magieally hecause we inust still depend on the cooperation of
the parent or gnavdian to get the children in despite the easeworkers
going ont and Public Tlealth nurses trying to tell about the impor-
tance of preventive health and getting screened. :

Mr. Ovrineer. Tf T may intrade here, on cost eftectiveness there is
no dispute on your part at all, is there, that the cost of providing the.
tests or dingnoses of diseases that children mav have, insipient diseases
that they may have. is just a fraction of the cost of treating those
problems when_they heeawe acute if they are not diagnosed?

Mr. Weiker. We believe, T think, that this program is cost effective.
Tarly intervention in some of the types of discases we are talking abont’
has imblieations not only for futnre health costs bnt also- for cost of
odneation. throngh special edneation classes. for examnple,

We think it is cost effective. We wonld not conclude by that that
every possible clinical test or ovaluation that wonld be included in the
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-screening package is in itself cost effective. We think the total program
.can be cost effective.

Mr. Orrivger. Have you done any actual computations projecting
¢

-what the costs of a coml')lete program that would cover every chil
-would amount to, versus the present cost of treatment ?

Mr. WeikeL, First of all, I wonld start with this caveat. Qur cost
data .in terms of data that has been reported specifically from the
States is very poor. We have not previously asked for the States to
report the cost of doing a screen or the cost of treatment becanse of the

.conditions identified during screening. That hus to do with our re-

porting system.

We have corrected that now. In the reporting, as soon as we get the
form cleared, we are requiring them to report to us the cost of Screen-
ing and the cost of treatment for conditions identified.

Mr. Orrixcen. Are you getting also the cost of institutionalizaticn
of children who are retarded, and particularly being able to catego-
rize those who might not have had a retardation problem had they
been properly identified ?

Mr. Wraikre. I don't really know methodologically how I would
get that, We can tell vou how mmnch we are spending in the intermediate
care facilities for the mentally retarded. ITow much of that could

have been prevented would require a massive clinical evaluation which

I don’t think we are prepared to do, nor are the States.

Mr. Ormiveer, Do you have the fizure for how much is presently
being spent under medieaid for the mentally retarded ?

Mr. Weiker. For the ICFMR I don't have it at my fingertips. As I
recall, the total budget for the intermediate care fucilitios is approxi-
mately $2.2 billion. T think it would be roughly a quarter of that, let's
say in that neighbohood. But we can supply that to yon.

[The information requested was not available to the subcommittee
at the time of printing—November 18, 1975.]

Mr. Orrincer. Thank you, Mr. Weikel.

Mr. Wunder.

Mr, Wexper. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The point I was trying to make is that in the last year yvou have
sereened as many people in that program as vou have sereened in all
the previons years combined.

Mr. Wencer. That is corvect. Not only that. but the sereening data
includes none of the equivalents to sercening, Tt says nothing ghont
all those medicaid recipients who are getting services from the private
pediatrician, practitioners, from the neighhorhood health clinic, ot
cetera,

Mr. WoNper. Are there any statisties or data that wonld indicate
whether or not. or what percentage of the remaining 11.5 million who
have not been sereened have received comparable treatment ?

Mr. Wriker. We do not have good data on that. We are at the pres-

ent time again working with the States to try to improve that. We

have developed a nnmber of papers on the subject of the equivalence
to screening. That has heen reviewed with the Statoes. Every State has
received copies of that docnment and asked whether they have addi-
tional thonghts on how we can measure equivalence. what areas have
not heen inclnded for those who have eriticized ns for not involving
the private practitioner. which we want to include in this program.
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We are telling the States if they can document to us that a certain
number of individuals are being treated in the neighborhood health
center or receiving screening services in their school system then this
is equivalent to EPSDT screening. Someone mentioned earlier the
State of Massachusetts where they mandate a requirement that their
children be screened prior to admission to school.

I think every year some of the States have that requirement for
up to age 12, some of them tirough high school. But we are telling
the States that if the requirements, if the scliool health program in
that case meets the requirements of the EPSDT screening criteria,
and the element of the various tests laid out in their screening pack-
age and State plan meet our criteria, then that is acceptable. Tﬁey can
count those as an equivalent of having been screened, but they must
have mechanisms available to follow up the children.

We are not going to count screening 1f they only denlonstrate screen-
' ing has been done with no ability to follow up.

Mr. OrriNger. Mr. Sharp.

Mr. Suarr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. ‘

I would like to ask if, under present authority, that you have could
you let contracts to try the voucher system, to demonstrate it?

Mr. WeikeL. I don’t honestly know.

Mr. Suare. Can you find out and let us know if you have the legal
authority nnder whicl you might experiment with this program?

Mr. WeigEL. Yes.

[The information requested was not available to the subcommittee
at the time of printing—November 18, 1975.]

Mr. Secar. What about section 222 and section 4027

Mr. WrrkeL. Section 222, as T understand it, I do not believe would
cover it. Section 402 I frankly don’t know what it is.

Mr. Snare. Dr. Weikel. my concern is this: It secrs to me apparent
fron: the testimony we got tliat one of the essential problenis we have
throughout so mnch of the Federal Government. this particular pro-
aram as well as thie problein of our bureancratization, cveryone agrees
with that. that in itself lias to be one of thie essential concerns of those
of ns with any responsibility in the Federal Government. Yet it wor-
ries me that maybe we are not being experimental enough. that we
are not trving to find better ways—perhaps yon people are and T am
not aware of it—in which to simplify. not complicate but simplify
the wavs in which we urge people to take a service. the ways in which
von provide it.

I guess I want to tell you that I think one of the chief responsibili-
ties we have is to do some of these experimentations in order to find
in the next few years thie best simplest method. T am worried about
all the auestions about data. that we will end up with body counts
as we did in Vietnam, and we will miss the forest for the trees.

Mr. Wik, T mm afraid there is no best. simple method. The hest,
simple method is to get thein treated by a private practitioner or
pediatrician and seen on a regnlar basis. If we don’t have an ade-
quate number of pediatricians in a geographic area it is impossible.

To answer vour question. I think we have a number of demonstra-
tion projects looking at varions components. Whether it is the screen-
ing. whether we can do that in private practice versus a clinic. the
tracking system. we are experimenting with that. e are experiment-
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ing with Outreach. We have one project in Portsmouth, Va., where
we have involved Public Health nurses going out and talking to the
recipient’s family, talking nbout health education, the importnnce of
preventive medicine. That has been effective. It is also very costly.

Mr. Suare. Do you know of any instance in which a project has not
been entered into of this sort that someone in the Department has rec-
ommended because of fear that it nught develop into a full-fledged
program?

What I am indicating here is an ideological opposition to experi-
menting with some orgnnizational procedure becnuse whatever you
don’t want it to work. .

Do you know of any discussions witlhin the Department where the
policy decision was that 2 . .

Mr. Werker. What is the question ?

Mr. Suare. Any time a policy was made in which an element of
consideration was that we shoufd not try that because the AMA is
n.otl goi(xllg to like it or because some philosophy about distribution is
violated. .

Mr. WeigeL. Clearly I can sy without fear of contradiction during
the past year when I have been associnted with this program that I
know of no discussion of that consideration within the Department.
There have been discussions about the cost of the program and some of
the States’ concerns about the cost of implementing this yrograin
within that. It isnot that it does not agree with somebody’s phi osophy
et cetera. I know of no demonstration projects that have been turned
down even on a cost basis. We have one demonstration project here
in \Vashin%ton thnt we have implemented that I personally feel is
very costly because it is putting into place all of what we think should
be the ideal system in EPSDT if you are going to deliver it through
a clinic, not through private practitioners. But that is one experiment.
Thnt is costing three-quarters of a million dollars.

Dr. Vax Hoax. I believe we have g number of prograins already in
existence which are not intentionally designed as research. but ‘can
provide us with information. What we need to do_is more effective
evaluation studies of impact. We can make comparisons between the
ESPDT program and some maternal and child health programns
where the mechanism of financing is differcut in ome case, one in es-
sence providing nn insurance program und in another you are giving
a formula grant to the State and allowing it tn organize services.

There are other different approaches to organizing health care such
as the health maintenance organization progmm which we need to
evaluate in terms of its effectiveness, There are a number of prograins
under way which should give ns answers to lead to some decisions on
your part.

Mr. Sirare. Generally my philosophy is that we are better off trving
a variety of things and we will pro{))ably always have a variety. I am
not advocating a system.

Second, the question of HEW enforcement of these kinds of things.
My State is one of those that mny take penalties on this and if they
are guilty, they should pay. the penalty. My only concern is that the
penalty tends to play in the hands of those who don't like the pro-
gram anyway. It simply says we are going to cut vou back on funds.

Very frankly, we suspect that some people in our Stute Departinent
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"of Welfare in Indiana are delighted. They are opposed to providing
.gervices. So the penalty system works against the program instead of
forit. '

There has been some suggestion in hospital utilization review and

_this program that you may have some effective people 1n regional of-
‘fices and yon may have somne who aren’t doing a darn thing about the

prograni.

One area of the country may not be getting the benefit of the pro-
cam and discipline ; another area may be getting more discipline tlh:m
1t deserves, :m(i action is taken by HISW in order to see that uniform
enforcement is carried out in this country.

AMr. Wenger. I think those of us who are administering the program
are very concerned about the implementation of the penalty for the
renson von mention. It is 2 donble-cdge sword. It does have the poten-
tial of unpacting negatively on recipients. It is because of that that 1
think the present Secretary. Sceretary Mathews, has ordered a study
examining the whole gnestion of penalties. Those of ns who are in-
volved in administering the programn are concerned with trying to de-
velop positive ineentives for the States, and providers and recipients
for that matter, but in this case specifically, the States, to implement
the program agaressively.

Mr. Suaee. When do you expect to have n proposal on penalties?

Mr. Weiken, The study on peualties T think is scheduled to be
completed somewhere in the heginning of January. That 1s jnst an
estimate,

Mr. Siare. Tt will probably take a legislative proposal to change it.

Mr, Wriker. It elearly wonld take a legislative proposal if there
is to be a change in the penalty sitnation. On the other hand, you
know sometimes we need some incentive to get the programs nuple-
mented. Whether that shonld be a positive incentive, providing a({di-
tional funds or a negative penalty, T think we conld elearly discuss.

Mr. Sitaee, What do they do to see to it that varions regional offices
are doing ronghly the smme Kkind of enforeement?

Mr. Weker. Whenever you liave more than one individnal involved
in anything, it is diffienlt to got nniformity. Ve do take certain steps
but we are econcerned as well. and T think the Secretary is concerned,
at these charges of lack of mmiformity from one region to another in
the implementation of the pemalty, We basically take steps to lay ont
what they are supposed to look for.

For examiple. we have Iaid ont in great detail what onr regional of-
fice people shonld look at in making the penalty snrvey. We have had
training sessions, bringing together all the regional people involved
in the EPSDT program to tell them what we are looking for. T think
there is a record there of having made some attempts to bring abont
uniformity.

Mr. Sirane, T think that is fine but T serionsly believe that tongher
management has to be exereised in almost all of these ageneies.
share yonr frustrations with trving to do some of that.

Ane Orrseer. The eentleman's time has expirerd.

My, Santini was just getting warmed np. so we will let him warm
up amain,

Mr. Savtixt. The able questioning of other members of the com-
mittee has taken come frel ont of mv five, M. Chatrman.
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I will follow up with some of the questions und concerns I did have.

I would like to ask you, Mr. Dickson, in my questioning yesterday
directed to Dr. Cohen he responded in part to a question that I posed
with regard to attitndes within the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare, about the program we are examining today. He com-
mented on an attitnde that existed there. e said, and I quote now
from page 76 of the transcript of onr committee hearings of yesterday :

Dr. Coner. The major responsibility in my opinion to Mr. Dwight—

Istherea Mr. Dwight on the scene at the present time ?

Mr. WerkeL. There is not.

Mr. SaNTINT (continuing).

Who was the SRS Administrator during the period of time who came from
California, previous experience, cume from the Budget Bureau and was made

the Administrator of this program. )
He had a completely different conception of what the Federal Government's

role und respousibility wus. As, for instance, take a specitic problem in the Out-
reach ; searching out these children who are eligible. He said no, that is not
the Federal Government’s responsibility to try to go ont and beat the busles
to see who is eligible. Allow the Stutes to do what they want.

I would ask you in view of the fact Mu. Dwight is no longer there,
1s there any residue of that profound administrative judgment re-
maning in Health, Education, and Welfare?

I wonld ask yon, Dr. Dickson, to answer that question.

Dr. Drckso~. I don't believe so.

.. Mr. SanTiyt. That the Health, Education, and Welfare now views
1ts role as at least in part to comnumicate the availability of the serv-
1ces that they are statntorily directed to mmplement. Is that true, Dr.

- Dickson 2

Dr. Dicksox. Yes.

Mr. WesEL. I wonld like to comment on that further.

Mr. SantiNe. I was afraid of that.

Dr. Dicisox. Only if you would like to get the answer,

Mr. Werker. Ithink it'is important that the record is clear.

Mr. OTTINGER. Let’s have Dr. Dickson reply first, if he can.

Mr. Drcrsox. I could not hear you, sir. Excuse me.

Mr. OrriNGer. I just said to avoid conflict among the panel that
youshonld reply first and then Dr. Weikel.

Dr. Dicksox. Yes. What was the question %

Mr. Santrvi. Health, Education, and Welfare then views as one

- of its primary responsibilities the communication to those whom the

services are intended to reach the information that is necessary for
them to obtain them.

Dr. Dicksox~. That is my understanding.

Mr. SaxTINt Is that the policy of the Department?

Dr. Drcrson. Yes, it is.

Mr. WeIREL. Yes, it is clearly the policy of the Department. I have
some video tapes here, if you would }iike to see them, and some radio
spot announcements that we have distributed throughout the Nation
asking television stations and radio stations to play them. These spot
announcements tell recipients where they should go for service or to
ask about receiving service.

These are being played around the conntry. They have been devel-
oped by the administration. We have numerous mannals that we have
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provided to the medical societies who are involved in participating
in the progran from whom we are trying to get to greater participa-
tion. We have various brochures announcing the program.

Mr. SaxTini. The record is clear, you are right, Dr. Weikel.

Mr. WeIkEL. I think it is a good record.

Mr. SanTINL You have the tapes?

Mr. WEIKEL. Yes.

Mr. Sastini. To play on radio. You have the brochures that are
given to doctors?

Mr. WEIKEL. Yes, sir.

Mr. SayTizt. And you do have regular public service television
announcements?

Mr. WerkeL. That is correct.

Mr. Saxtint. When was this information program put into effect?

Mr. WemkeL. This information program has been operating over the
last year. The video tapes were available prior to the past year. I
can’e tell you when the first one was available but they have been
sent out several times during the past year to all television stations
around the Nation.

Mr. SanTINT. Do you contemplate any further efforts?

Mrv. WerkerL. Yes, sir. We have an active program in the public
information field trying to make recipients aware of this. Also within
the Medical Services Administration we have appointed someone to be
lead of consunier affairs to be more of an advocate for recipients, in-
cluding this progran.

Mr. Saxtizt. Dr. Dickson, the point of inquiry that I was develop-
ing before was, as Dr. Weikel characterized it, the value of this pro-
gram was in the number of children treated.

We don’t have any information on the number of children treated,
so we don't have any basis for judging the value of the program at
this point. Why nof include a question in the multitude of forms
that asks the question, “Was there any treatment ?”, which is the basis
on which we value the program. Why not include a question which
savs something to this effect. That is not really expert bureaucratese
but was there any treatment in the forms the States receive and doc-
tors receive?

Dr. Dicksox. T don’t know the answer to that.

Mr. SaxTINT. Dr. Weikel, do you have an answer?

Mr. WermkEee. I should. I am in charge of the program.

Clearly the new reporting requirements do require that.

M. SANTINT. When are the new reporting requirements in effect?

M. WErREL. As soon as they are officially cleared through the Of-
fice of Management and Budget.

Mr. SaxTint. They are not in effect now.

Mr. WemkeL. They are not. I did not imply they were in effect. They
have been developed by the Department and they are in the clearance
?l‘OCeSS. TWe must get clearance before we can use any reporting

orm.

Mr. SanTint. Can we get any rough idea when we might expect
this question to be in the field? i

Mr. WerkeL. We would expect it within the next month or so.

Mr. SanTixt. Finally, Dr. Dickson, what concerned me particularly
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i+ yesterday was testimony by Dr. Cohen that we have approximately
210,000 children in our State mental or comparable facilities in tlis
country, and he' concluded that 10 percent of those children that are
in those mental facilities today, or 21,000 children, need not have
been there if they had had proper screening diagnoses and treatment
after the effective date of this particular program.

Would you care to comment on the accuracy or validity of that
conclusjon? _

Dr. Drckson. Yes. I would like to have Dr. Lurie answer that state-
ment, if I may.

Mr. SANTINT. You do not have any individua] response to it ?

Dr. Dickrsox. Idon't know the answer to it. no.

Mr. OrrxGER. Would you identify yourself.

HDII‘.1 Lourte. Yes. Ira Lurie, from the National Institute of Mental
ealth,

Mr. Orrineer. Would You stand to be sworn.

Do you solemnly swear that the testimony You are about to give is
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God ?

Dr. Lurte. Yes: I do.

Mr. OtriNGeR. Please proceed.

Dr. Lorme. Would you repeat the question, please.

Mr. SaNTINT. Yesterday in his testimony before this committee Dr,
Cohen testified that in our country today it was his estimate that there
were 210,000 children presently housed in State facilities for the men-
tally retarded, or comparable facilities; that it was his estimate that
had the proper screening, diagnoses and treatment been implemented
at the time that was intended by Congress to he implemented ; that 10
percent of that 210,000, or 21.000 children, would not be in those facil-
ities if this program had been implemented at the time designated by

Congress.

Dr. Lurte. I am not sure I can respond directly to the numbers, I
would assume-that given proper screening in the area of mental health
and behavioral disorders that a certain percentage of those youngsters
would not be in institutions. .

In many ways we don’t have facilities bevond institutions, That is
a very difficult kind of question. We have estimates which are kind of
soft in terms of their data.

Mr. SaxTINT. We are trying to measure the im pact of the dereliction
here in the hopes that we can avert it in the future with some construc-
tive action, .

Dr. Lurie. One of the major programs in HEW is the Co~munity
Health Centers Act in which a large number of children have been
diverted from such institutions over the last 10 or 12 years. Under the
new legislation each one of these centers across the country, in order
to fulfill requirements, was to have children’s services which would be
able to move more and more of these children into proper kinds of
services. It is not a matter of screening that children with emotional
problems end up in institutions. They have already been screened by
some force. What puts them in institutions is lack of services which
HEW through NIMH has been working on actively.

Mr. OrriNeer. Am I correct in my recollection ‘that the adminjs-
tration proposed that the Community Health Centers be clesed out?
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Dr. Lore. That was the last administration. I am not sure what
the administration is doing on that. '

Mr. Soprer. Mr. Chairman, the administration’s position is not that
they should be closed out but that the 500 or so community mental
lealth centers that have received Federal assistance should continue to
receive Federal assistance through the entire grant cycle, which the
statute stipulates, but that the Federal Governinent should not begin
to support any new community mental health centers, that is, the
consent had been demonstrated to be successfnl and that States and
local facilities ought to decide on their own whether or not they want
to continue the priority and set up community mental health centers
in the model that the Federal Government has supported, not that the
530 should be closed. )

Mr. Orrincer. The Federal funding for them should be ended, is
that correct?

Dr. Lourte. That there should be no new Federal funds for new com-
munity mental health centers but that those who have been getting

assilstnnce should get assistance throughout the period of their grant
cycle.

’ No center, for example, that was in the third year should be termi-
nated. It should receive the full 8-year funding that the statute entitles
it to.

Mr. Orrrxcer. What was the percentage cutback recommended by
~ the administration for neighborhood health centers and community
health centers this year as opposed to last year?

Dr. Lore. I think Dr. Van Hoek can answer that.

Dr. Vax Hoeg. ' <imately 20-percent reduction based on the
premise that Statc . 1 resources and third party payment woul
pick up the differen:. .he tota] cost of operating the centers.

Mr. OrrixGEr. Anybody in the administration, I suppose they don’t
veally care but certainly, speaking for the city of New York with
9 million people, the State of New York with better than 18 million
people, the chances that they are going to be able to come np with
additional resources to pick np this kind of cost are rather slim.

1 think that is being seen throughont the country with the economic
recession. So the effect of what the administration is doing is to say
that we are going to cut back our priority in this area. Tsn't that so?

“\fr. Santini. do you have another question?

\Ir. Savrixt. The Maguires testified yesterday about their children
suffering from that particnlar ailment, that with proper sereening
and diagnoses and treatment they would not be in that facility—it
was simply a transfer of bodies—if that had been detected.

Apparently it isa subject of a sizable law snit now. That is the kind
of himan problems we want to reach out and try to resolve.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. OTTINGER. Mr. Segal.

Mr. Secar. T would like to ask a couple of legal questions relating
to the imposition of the penalty.

On June 2 of this year the Secretary announced seven States were
out of compliance, and in July an eighth State was added. Werve all
of these for the first quarter of fiscal year 1975, namely, July through

September of 19747
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Mr. Drcksox. Yes; they were.
. Mr. Secar. Have all other States been ruled in conipliance for that
time period ?
" Dr. Dicksox. Please repeat that.
Mr. SeeaL. Were all other States runled in compliance? In other
. .words, were the eight the universe of those who were penalized for
.that one quarter?

Dr. Dicksox. I don’t believe so.

Mr. ‘SeGar. There may be additional States penalized?
: Dr. Dicksox. There may be, is that what you said, for the first
~ quarter? '

Mr. Seear. Yes.

Dr. Dicksox. The answer to that is yes.

Mr. Skcar. Were these penalties imposed on the States where the
press announcement said that penalties would be assessed ?

Mr. WemkeL. The penalty announcement——

Mr. Srear. I think a yes or no answer——

Mr. WemeL. I don’t think a yes or no is clearly indicated because
there is a precedence. There is such a thing as due process to the States.

~ We announced to the States that we were assessing the penalties
against them, but the States have 30 days in which to ask for an
appeal. If they ask for an appeal, you have to go through the appeals
process prior to the time that the actual reduction is made.

Mr. Secar. Could you cite the regulations that say that that must
be the case? \

Mr. Werker. That has been the practice of the agency.

Mr. SecaL. For audit exceptions?

Mr. WEIkEeL. For any audit exception.

Mr. Secaw. Is this an audit exception or a mandatory statute calling
for a penalty?

Mr. WemReL. This is a mandatory statute calling for a penalty.

Mr. Seear. Do you treat it the same way as an audit exception?

Mr. WerkeL. We believe the State should have an opportunity to
appeal in case there has been some error made.

BIS.’SEGAL. How can they appeal a penalty that has not been ini-

osca ¢ °
P Mr. WeikeL. They have been notified that unless there is an appeal
request made officially of the Department within 30 days the penalty
will be taken and there will be a, reduction in their Federal grant the
next quarter, and they have all been notified of that by letter.

Mr. Seear. Again von have no regulation that cites that such a
penalty will be held in abeyaunce while there is an appeal process for
something that has not been imposed ?

Mr. WEIKEL. As of August 18, 1975, there is in the Federal Register
a notice of proposed rulemaking.

Mr. SEGAL. So vou have nothing in effect ?

Mr. Werker. There is nothing in effect in terms of the whole recon-
sideration process other than the traditional practice of the Depart-
ment and agency in terms of disallowances or andit exceptions. That
1s correct.

Mr, Secar. With respect to the question on staffing you indicated
before that there were 100 positions that were made available, Was
that in the regional and central offices for EPSDT?

060-800—75——10
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Mr. WeireL. That is a combination of regional office, central office
within the Medical Services Administration, plus any of the personnel
within the Social and Rehabilitative Services offices.

Mr. Sgear. I think you might want to amend your previous state-
ment because that was in relation to the program of EPSDT and not
in relation to the Social and Rehabilitative Service.

Mr. WeigeL. Social and Rehabilitation Service does have responsi-
bility for the EPSDT program. The Medical Services Administra-
tion is one of the programs within the Social and Rehabilitative
Services.

Mr. Srcean. That is right. But that was not the question posed to
vou. The regional offices were listed in a letter from Secretary Wein-
berger to GAQ in response to a letter of ;theirs indicating that 56
positions in the region had been assigned to work on EPSDT. Is that
a fact that it is still in effect 2

Mr. WeIkeL. That is correct.

Mr. Segar. Is that 56 full-time equivalents?

Mr. WrIkeL. No, the individuals assigned there were on a full-time
basis, the 56 people in the regional offices. The regional offices in addi-
tion to that had been reporting 10 people prior to being given the 36,
that were working on a part-time basis.

Mr. Skear. You mean full-time equivalents among the 56¢

Mr. WeiIkeL. Fifty-six.

Mr. Skcar. Working full-time on EPSDT programs?

Mr. WeIkEL. That is correct. :

I know what you are leading to—the 20-percent figure that was
reported in the work plans of the regional offices. I want to make very
clear that those work plans have not been accepted on the part of the
central office as they were reported from the regional office.

Mr. Secar. I would like to ask specifically about a couple of States.

The State of Indiana—one of those listed to be penalized—their
director of the program, Wayne Stanton, indicated that HEW has
now completely approved their program. He also indicated that In-
diana has the most comprehensive medicaid program in the Nation.

Has Indiana been cleared?

Mr. WeIkEeL. Indiana has been assessed the penalty.

Mr. Seaan. You have proposed to assess the penalty ?

Mr. WeimkerL. We are in the due process of application of that
penalty. They have appealed that, and that appeal is being considered.
After that appeal is completed, the penalty will be assessed. Tt is dur-
ing that reconsideration process that the determination will be made
whether or not their program was in compliance not at the present
time, but during the first quarter for the year when the penalty was
assessed.

Mr. Seear.. Why should they be able to put in a press statement,
“At Indiana’s request, including Governor Bowen’s personal interven-
tion, the threatened fiscal penalty was later subject to reconsideration,”
and then further on a statement that I quoted to you before, that they
were absolved of this?

Mr. WEIKEL. I can’t speal for the State in this case. I can tell you
they are referring to a stndy that was done. an evaluation of their
third and fourth quarter compliance. That report was submitted to
our office. : ’

n
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I have informed the regional office in Chicago that that report is
inadequate based on our standards, and, therefore, additional work
needs to be done in the State of Indiana. I think Indiana, s we do
‘with every State, had an o portunity to review the results of the
reglonal office evaluation. T ey obviously took that and decided on
- that basis that they should make a press release. I think that is In-
diana’s choice. We are still considering the situation.

Mr. OrrinGER. We have been joined now by my esteemed colleacue
-~ from New York who is 2 member of the subcommittee that deals with

this situation, as well as this subcommittee,

Tecognize the gentleman from New York, Mr. Scheuer.

Mr. Scuruer. Mr. Chairman, I have g few questions. I suppose that
we Will be breaking in 6 or 8 minutes, I will ask unanimous consent
to submit the questions to these gentlemen.

Mr. OrTrxger. Without objection, it is so ordered.

Mr.1 Scuguer. And I hope they will be included in the permanent
recorg,

[ Testimony resumes on ), 153,

| The following letter and enclosnre was subsequently received for
the record :]

DEPARTMENT oF HearTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY,
Washington, D.C., November 5, 1975.
Hon. Joux E, Moss,
Chairman, Oversight and Investigation Subecommittce, Commiittee on Interstate
and Foreign Conuneree, U.S, House of Representatives, Washington, D.c.

DEAR CHAIRMAN MoSS: Thank you for your letter of Qctober 21, 1975, Iam
Dleased to Provide you with the information requested by Representative James
H. Scheuer for the record of the October 8 beariog on child health.,

Please let me know if Sou need additional information.

Sincerejy,
STEPHEN Kunzaax,
4assistant Seeretary for Legislation,

Enclosyre.

Question 1. How can the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare
(DHEW) penalize states retroactively to July 1, 1974 when the regulations were
not issued unti] August. and the states were allowed no lead-time to meet the
regulation requirements? .

AnsWer, The penalty provision was enacted in October 1972, giving states 20
months lead-time until the effective date, July 1, 1974. Further, the nine states
that have been determined out of compliance with the penalty provision for the
first quarter of FY 1975 failed to meet very basic and minimal criteria under the
penalty statute, The final regulations contnined no new or unusual requirements
about Which the states had not otherwise been informed, through the legislation,
proposed rules, and regional office correspondence.

Question 2. Ig it appropriate for DIEW to penalize States for failing to In-
form families in writing by September 30, 1974, when Federal regulations ingi-
cate that this must be done within a year from July 1, 1974, the time the regula-
tions became effective ?

Answer. This jpterpretation of the regulation conflicts with section 403(g) (1)
of the Social Security Act. This Section clearly contemplates that the penalty bhe
taken for the firgt quarter of FY 1975 if a State fails to undertake its basic re-
sponsibility to inform all AFDC families of the avaijlability of EPSDT services
during that quarter. Indeed, the statute could be read to require States to repeat
this funiction with regard to aj] AFDC families in cvery succeeding quarter. Short
of this Stringent standard. however, a reasonahje reading of the statute requires
at least that each AFDC family be properly informed by no later than the end of
the quarter in which it becomes part of the caseload. The regulation which must
be read consistently with the Statute, speaks to a State's responsibility to renotify
each AFDC family no less than annually after the initial notification. It can-
not be read to excuse a State from complying with the underlying statutory
requirement, . -

147 -




Q

ERIC

r
Full Tt Provided by ERIC.

144

To argue that the regulation authorized a State to wait until June 30. 1075, to
aceomplish its initinl notification wounld be to ignore the existence of section
403(g) (1) of the Act through the first three quarters of FY 1975, and would
legitimize a State’s practice of keeping its AFDC caselond uninformed, of the
EPSDT program for & full year after a Congressional dictate that States have -
their programs fully operative or be penalty liable.

Question 3. In applying these penalties to the states. what evidence is there
that DHEW has applied 2 standard methodology so that all states irrespective
of DIEW region or political party of the Governor of the state, are treated
equitably ?

Answer. A penalty reporting form with instructions for its completion was
issued to nll HEW regional offices in August 1974 in order to assure that gather-
ing of information related to making determinations regarding penalty states
would be uniform in all states. (See Attached Form.) .

In addition, based on our initial experience with the penalty determinations,
we are in the process of issning a wore detailed revised reporting format to the
regional offices.

DEPARTMENT OF FIRALTIT, EDUCATION. AND VWELFARE,
S0CIAL AND REITABILITATION SERVICES.
Trashington, D.C., August 8, 1974.
To: All SRS Regioml Commissioners.
Subject : Field Stafr Intormation and Instruction Series FY 75— EPSDT Ienalty
Reporting Form.
Cleared by : OFO. .

The directives of the guidelines for iinposition of the penalty (MS:\—I’RG—S‘.’)
(45 CFR 205.146(c) ), call for the Regional Offices to collect information for 2
narrative report to be used to determine whetlier the penalty should be applied
to a particular State.

The first quarterly report for FY 1975 (TJuly 1-September 30, 1974) istobe 2
one-time report requiring detailed information on existing State EPSDT yro-
grams, should be completed during September and October. and must be based
on actual State practice during the first quarter of FY 1975. Subsequent quar-
terly reports will be updates ard modificntions to the program described in this
first report. .

Attached is the penalty reporting formn with a covering explanation of the
eontents of the reporting form, giving instructions for its completion and an
outline of questions to be answered in the parrative. All of the questions for the
narrative must he addressed in the report submitted by the Regional Offices.

Please submit the first report by November 15 to Division of Program Moni-
toring MSA, Room 4628, Switaes ¥

Subsequent reports should 5.~ ~eepiiiad within 30 days of the end of the

quarter. )

ALBERT J. RICHTER.
Associatc Comm issioner.

Attachinent. .
EPSDT NARRATIVE REPORT

Explanation of report fgrm
The gnidelines for the penalty provision (45 CFR 205.146 (¢) ) call for a narra-
tive report to be submitted by the Regional Offices deseribing actual methods of
implementation in the States during the first quarter of FY 1975, which will be
used for initial determinations on application of the one percent reduction in
AFDC funds. This first report should describe fully the State's method of achiev-
ing funll compliance. Subsequent quarters’ reports will deseribe only program
modifications and corrections.
This report form was developed to facilitate the preparation of the narrative

report requested in the guidelines. It is divided into four sections:

Section I—Statistical Data.

Section II—Instructions for Narrative.

Section TII—Validation Visits.

Section IV—RO Assessment.

Sceetion 1. —Statistical Data
This seetion requests information on the number of individuals eligible and
the number receiving EPSDT serviees in the program. {Ve have asked fora break-
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down by AFDC and others of the total nnmber of eligibles and number of oligibles
informing requirement for the penalty is the AFDC). For the

other data requested (screened, referred, and diagnosed/treated), we did not

" request a breakdown because of the limitations of State reporting systems.

Scetion IL—Instructions for Narrative
. This section provides instructions for a narrmtive report on State activities to
be completed throngh interviews with staff of the title XIX and other responsible

Agencies. Thé Section is further divided into three subseetions ;

A. Informing Procedures.
B. Screening Arra ngements. . cot
C. Dingnosis and Treatment Arrangements
Each subsection inclndes: . : .
1. Statement of requirements to avoid imposition of penalty
2. Instructions for information to he included in the narrative
3. Instructions for documentation to be submitted with the narrative
report
Because of the diversity of methods the States are using to implement the
EPSDT regulations, the report formn must, of necessity, be general to allow for
the differences. We have tried to give as explicit instructions as possible within
that limitation. Except where otherwise indicated. ench question must he an-
sweved. The inability to do so may be considered indientive of a problem in a
State.
Section IT A—Informing Procedures

In light of individnal State differences, questinns 8 through 11 may not he

i appropriate for all State reports. If the Sta te is using written materials that give

. specifie information on where screening services are available, then the narriative

shonld address questions 1 throngh 7. If the written wmaterials give genernl in-
formation. indieating where specific information is available (e.g., contact your

i easeworker or welfare office. ete., for details on EPSDT services available in your
conmunity), the narrative should address gquestions 1 through 11.

« 8cetion IT B—Sercening drrangements

The questions request informsntion on the kinds of arrangements the State
has made with sereening providers so that families requesting sereening can

- receive these serviees within a reasonable period of time.

8ection IT C—Diagnosis and Treatment A rrangements
The questions request information on the State’s arrnngements for referral to

diagnosis and treatment providers, provision of those services, and follow-up.

Seotion ITI—Validation

In order to assure that services are provided as the narrative describes, visits
need to be made by RO reviewer to selected loeal sites. These visits should be
made to county/loeal welfare offices and loeal sereening or EPSDT providers
in at least six counties selected randomly by RO reviewer throughout the State.

" During these visits, RO staff shonld determine whether or not the local sites are

informing, screening, and following up as ountlined in narrative report.

Section IV—Regional Ofiice Asscssment
If the State has met the requirements of the penalty regulation, then the RO

‘should check Section IV A of the report forin to indicate that the State is in

compliance with Federal regulations.

If the RO assessment is that the State has not met the requirements and
therefore the penalty should be imposed. Section IV B should he completed in
full and the findings reviewed with the State. A recommendation for the penalty
shonld be submitted to the Administrator, SRS, as per instructions in FSIIS-T5-
(to be issned). Regional Office staff should also complete Section IV C or

IV D as appropriate.
Signature

The report is to be signed by the reviewer, the Associnte Regionnl Commis-
sioner for Medical Services (if appropriate) and the Regional Commissioner.

149



146

RARLY AND PEZRIODIC SCREENING, DLAGNOSIS AND TREATENT

PEMALTY REPORTING FORM

Date _ Region

Individual complating report

SECTION T - Statistical Data S
o ) As of 9/30/74 .
A. Eligible AFDC Others Total 3

Total ‘
0-5
6-20

B. ,Iaformed*
" Total

0=5

6-20

July '73-June ‘74 | july '74-September ‘74

C. Screened
Intal
0-5
6-20

D, Referzed
Total
0-5
6-20

E. Diagnosed/Treated”
Total
0-5
6-20

F. Are the figuras for numder of children screened ind raferred based om
NCSS 116/120 repnrts? Yes Ne

G. Does the number of children screcned, referred, and diagnosed/treated
include others in addition to ASDC (e.g., individuals uvader 21)? If.so,
vlease-list .

*Whare data are available.

SectIoN IT—NARRATIVE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS
SECTION II A—INFORMING PROCEDURES

Requirements L
State must be able to document that all AFDC families have been informed: "'
1. At least once annually or during the period of eligibility if shorter.
2. In writing (pamphlets, brochures, other written materials, in English and = |

in foreign languages where required). "
3. By other methods where written materials are inappropriate. ‘

150"

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

. 147

4. Of what services are avajlable (screening examinations and diagudsis and

treatment services),
5. Of where and how services can be obtained,

Description

The report must describe the following :

1. How present recipients and newly eligible recipients are informed of services
available and names and locations of screening providers.

2. How the written materials are distributed,

3. How often they are distributed,

4. Who 18 responsible for distribution (e.g., State XIX agency, State welfare,
county welfare, health departments, ete.).

5. Concise summary of information Included in brochure.

6. How Individuals for whom printed material is inappropriate are informed.

7. Whether foreign language materials are provided and in what localities,

If written materinls give general information and refer reciplents elsewhere
for sxpecin ific information, then the narrative report must also include the
following:

8. Who is designated to povide specific information.

9. How those persons have been prepared to carry out this function (written
instructions in administrative handbook, organized training, ete.).

10. How these persons communicate specific information to recipients,

11. Whether these persons or offices have a list of participating providers avail-
able upon request,

Supportive Documentation

This must include :

1. Examples of written materials,

2. Instructions or training materials for items 3, 6,9, and 11 under “Descrip-
tion” above.

SecTIoN 11 B—SCREENING ARRANGEMENTS

Requirements

State must be able to document that for all families with eligible children
requesting screening services the State has:

1. Informed these families of names and location ot screening providers.

2. Informed these families of transportation available.

3. Made agreements with providers to make screening services available to
eligible children throughout the State, normally within 60 days of request.

4. Defined screening package and informed screening providers about its
contents.

§. Taken steps to assist recipients requesting services to be able to receive
them (e.g., transportation, health education, child cure, provider availability).

Description

The report must deseribe the following: -

1. What State has included in its screening package (procedures and periodicty
schedule for rescreening).

2. Who provides screening services (number gapng types of providers) and
whether these services are available to all recipients throughout the State.

3. What arrangements and/or agreements State has made with these
providers.

4. How State informs participating providers of jts program requirements for
screening (e.g., mandated and optional screening procedures, referral procedures,
fee schedule estublished for screening services, and other case management
requirements). .

5. How State monitors providers to assure that services are delivered as out-
lined by State.

6. How State informs recipients of avajlability of transportation services and
assures that transportation is in fact #vaflable and provided as needed,

7. How State follows up on individuals requesting screening services to assure

received services to do so.
Supportive Documentation
This must substantiate jtems 1 through 6 above and include (but is not limited

to) )
1. State regulations, program standard manuals, staff instructlons.

‘2. Sample provider iist.

.
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8. Billing and reporting forms.
4. Other appropriate materials.

SeEcTION IT C—DIAGNOSIS AND TREATMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Requircments P : : . I
State must be able to document that for children needing diagnosis -or cor-
rective treatment for conditions found dnring screening, the State has: .
1. Informed these families of names and locntions of providers.” -
2 Informed these families of transportation available. - o
3. Made arrangements with diagnosis and treatment providers so that services
are available normally within 60 days of a screen. This includes:
Establishment of referral procedures.
Provision of diagnosis for all conditions. -
Provision for trentment within limits of State plan except eves, hearing,
and dental, which are mandatory. -
Establishment of agreements with providers so that services are available
to eligibles throughout the State.
4, Taken steps to assist recipients requesting diagnostic and treatment services
to be able to receive them (e.g., transportation, child care, provider availability).

Description

The report must describe the following:

1. Who provides the diagnostic and treatment services.

2 Whether sufficient providers are available to all recipients throughout the
State so that initintion of treatment can begin within GO days. o

3. How families are informed of names and location of these providers.

4. How State informs recipients of the availability of transportation and
assures that such transportation is in fact available and provided as needed.

5. How State follows up on chilldren found in need of treatment after screen-
ing to assure that they have had access to those services and to assist those who
have not received services to do so. (Description of process for notifying the
State that treatment has been provided—Dbills, receipts, follow-up procedures).

6. How vision, hearing, and dental treatment is provided.

7. What limitations to treatment exist, (indicate limits in plan and utilization
controls).

Supportive Documentation

This should include:

1, State regulations, staff instructions, provider manuals,

2. Snmple provider list.

3. Billing and reporting forms (including case management forms).

1. Other appropriate materials.
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Serasaing or IPEIT

Comments including

- Welfars Ofic2 (idantify)
TR 30 53] _(Adnntife) N

prodlems encountersd during wigics

County 1fare 0ffice (identify)
Scraening or 1107 3 13_(identisv)

Cozmants irnclviing predlems encountered during =wisits

County Welfare C2fice (identify)
Ssreening or LFSIT » 5’ (identifv)

Camienss Including enzrunzesald desing Les

County

Welfare Cffica (identify)

Screening or EPSDT
Comments including

provider(s) f{idonzifv)

prodlems encounterad during visics

Councy

Uaifare

Screening or TPSLI

Comments including

(icentilsr)
S encountrred during vwisits

County

Welfare 0ffice (identify)

Sox2eniag or

-~
Comments including

PIT

problens sicountersd during visits

(Zranzide)
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Secticon IV - Regional 0Sfice Assassment

A. State's EP3LT program has mat the raguirznents of
hs 2F2 2031041 A) -
=, State has *:iled to meet the requirerments of %5 CFR
e T I
205,150} in tha aves of:

Informing Procedures
Scraaning Arrengamants
Treatcent Arrangexents

. - Descriptiza of pretlams onéd mnjor. obstacles to Tull compliance:

Conelse account of 32 2ffcrts to bring Stat2 into compliance:

c. __ State has mat reguirements of 43 CFR 249.10(a)(3)
D. ?t?(:e\has Failed to meet requiremsnts of L5 CFR 249.10
a)(3: °

Description o Trctlems and major chstacles to fuil compliaznce:

Azzocicie Regicnel Commissioner:

Tor Madizal Servizas

Zegicnal Comaissicner

10TE: Receormmendations for applicatinn of the venalty should follcw
. progadurss cutlinad in FSITS FY-T5- (to b2 issved

TRy o

Question 4. Do you feel the current and proposed regulations provide for the
most effective methods of informing.eligible clients of availability of EPSDT
services, i.e., written notification?

Answer. A good deal of evidence exists from EPSDT demonstration projects
that written materials informing families of the availability and nature of
EPSDT services are less effective than personal contact and home visits. How-
ever, in developing both the current penalty regulation and the proposed
revision, the Department has required and proposed only written notification in

“recognition of the significant increases in staff and administrative resources that
many states would have to make to carry out the more effective outreach activi-
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ties and to document reliably that all AFDC families had been informed by such

" methods. Further, it must be recognized that the penalty provision represents

only the minimum requirements of the program and the Department has not
thought it appropriate to consider all methods that would contribute to an
optimally effective EPSDT program as penalty issues. However, in the SRS
Program Regulation Guide (MSA-PRG-21, June 28, 1972) for EPSDT, the
importance of a variety of casefinding and outreach methods is discussed and

‘ -Deronal contact is emphasized. Even though not required by the penalty pro-

vision, many states do currently use methods of personal contact for explaining
EPSDT in addition to written informing materials. Further, a recent policy
clarification makes 75 percent federal matching available, rather than the usual
50 percent for administrative costs, for health related support services, including
notification through* personal contact and other forms of outreach, for EPSDT.

Question 6. How many childen who were eligible for EPSDT died from com-
Dlications of communicable diseases that simple immunizations could have pre-
vented for each of the last five years?

Answer. It is not possible to determine the number of EPSDT-eligible children
dsing from complications of communicable disease. For comparison, the total
number of individuals under 20 years of age dying as a result of childhood,
vaccine-preventable diseaases in the United States was 132 in 1969, 175 in 1970,
145 in 1971, 68 in 1972, and 45 in 1973.

Question 7. The Forward Plan for Health indicates that you will emphasize
Infant mortality, particularly in the 3,000 counties that have a mortality rate of
33.4 while the rest of the country has a mortality rate of 17.3. Do these 3,000
counties have a disproportionately high percentage of EPSDT eligibles?

Answer. Actually, as the Forward Plan indicates, ten percent of the total 3,000
counties in the country have the higher mortality rate you mentioned. Althiough
we do not have data on the number of EPSDT eligibles in the countles with high
infant mortality rates, we would assume that such counties do have a relatively
high percentage of EPSDT el*gibles since infant mortality tends to be higher for
fow-income populations and in poor rural areas. :

Question 8, How many of.the approximately 180,000 children who suffer
annuaily from diseases that simple immunization can prevent are EPSDT
eligibles?

Answer. During 1974, approximately 98,000 cases of common childhood
diseases were reported for which preventive immunizations are available. Al-

" though disease occurs across al socioeconomic boundaries, immunity levels are

lower in the poverty areas throughout the nation, compared with non-poverty
areas, suggesting that disease incidence rates would be greater in these areas.
While the disease reporting system does not identify cases according to EPSDT
eligibility, a study of selected EPSDT sites indicated that 25 to 81 percent of
children receiving screening under EPSDT needed immunization services:

Question 9. On page 35 of the Dr. Dickson prepared statement, dated October
§, 1975, it was indicated that $3.5 billion was spent for those under age 21. Could
you please provide a breakdown of these dollars, including:

(2¢) How much was spent for affiictions such as polio, vision, and hearing
disorders?

(b) How much was spent for institutionalization for mental retardation?

() How much was spent for hospitalization?

Answer. The National Center for Social Statistics reporting system does not
include disease specific information. However, in FY 1973, the latest year for
which Medicaid expenditure information for children under 21 is available, the
total Federal and State Medicaid expenditures for this population was $3,431,030
for inpatient services in mental hospitals, and $16,456,049 for institutional inter-
mediate care services for mentally retarded people under 21. Total FY 1973 ex-
penditures under Medicaid for inpatient hospital services in general hospitals for
people under 21 were $404,797.517.

Question 10. A memorandum of understanding, dated August 28, 1975, between
DHEW and the State of California indicates that, regarding AFDC penaities
and sanctions, the Secretary will consider a major revision in the penalty struc-
ture. Could you please indicate what is meant by this?

Answer. The Department has in progress an in-depth examination of its sanc-
tion, enforcement and incentive activities. From this examination, we are con-
sidering proposed changes in legislation, regulations and administrative pro-
cedures to make sanctions more effective, more rational, more equitable, and less

complicated,
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The- dirst .phnse of this study, to be completed early Jannary, 1976, will foens
un State-reluted enforeemnent mcclmnisnm with emphaxis on formula grant pro-
gram programs, e, Medicaid, Ald to Familics with Dependent Children, Sociul
Services (Title-XX), and Edneation for the Disadvantaged (litle 1, Flementary
and Secondary Edueation Act).

In onr examinition, we are uttomptmg to seeure relatively wide participa-
tion—-lm.luding Stute staff, pnblie interest gronps, Congressional stafl, ete. We.
intend to;reflect in the study a broad speetrum of opinion. .

Question 11, Have similar memoranda of nnderstanding, as with California,
heen established with other States” Would yon please forward all memorunda
of nnderstanding.in existence.

Answer. There have been no similar memoranda of nndvrstandmg. althengh
we have advised n number of States, interest: groups, and private individuals
that we are.undertaking the study outlined in the response to gunestion 10.

Question 12 Item 9 of the memorandinu of nnderstanding, dated- Augnst 28,
for its noncompliance regarding the early childhood screening program.” Conld,
1075, indientes that DHEW will “sympathetically consider California’s appeal
Fun please indiente what “technieal noncomplianee” means in that statement?

Answer. The Department understunds “technical non-eompliance™ to mean,
simply, non-complinnee. Californin offiials felt the gualilier “technical” hetter
expressed their pesition on the compliuncu questions under disenssion, and so
that language was inelnded,

Question 13, The andit report of FPDST fm Alabama, for the period October
1. 1971 throngh March 31, 1975, dated Angnst 11, 1973, signed by Emil A, Trefzer,
Jr,, indicates that 81 pereent of all treatment based on a ssunple analysis was
provided after 60 days between the date of screening and the date of diagnosis
and treatment. Is this a violation of the regnlations ro":mhng the time frame in
whiich treatmtent must be provided after such treatment is fonnd necessury by
scereening (45 CFR 205,146 (¢) (ifi) (13))?

Answer, Under the law, compliance with the EPSDT penalty prn\i~i¢m must
be determined for each quarter after Jnly 1. 1974, The andit report giving agzere-

gate data for the period of October 1971 through March 1975 wonld thus not be
:lppli(.-nhlv. Further, even if the 81 percent were true for any given gnarter since
the effective date of the penalty, the regnlations provide tlat initial diagnosis
and trentment must he available normally within G0 days of the sereening. In
determining compliance with this provision snch conziderations as the avail-
ability of specialists or the tite within whieh the necessary treatizent service is
wenerally available to the population at large in the area are taken into aceconnt.
Thnx we wonld look beyond a general percentage such o5 the one sited in the
andit. report in assessing compliance with this provision.

Question 14 How can you ensure, under the Angust 20, 1975 Notiee of Pro-
posed Runlemaking, that treatment will be given in timely fashion? Scetion
205,146 (¢). (3) seems to allow states to absolve themselves of possible penalty
liability, - while recipients risk not being provided their regnired- trmtmout
Shounid not the states assume a larger burden to insure that treatment be pro-
vided within a reasonable time,

Auswer. The proposed revision to the penalty regulation provides that Stites
must assure that treatment services are provided or initiated within GO d:
a ~erecning finding that indicates a need for such services exeept in vases where
the State can show that failnre to do so is not the result of State Inaction, Rather
than allowing States to absolve themselves of possible penadty liability this
provision wonkl make States liable for imetion in assuring tinely delivery of
treatment. The exception is provided in order not to penalize States for cir-
cmustances bevond their control in mecting the G0 day requirement, sneh as a
sovere scareity of dentists, specialists or other providers or a recipient wmissing
the appointrent despite State assistance in seheduling ond trapsportation.

Question. 15, Is the Maternal and Child IHealth program ander Title V
considered n Departmoental priovity ?

Answer, Yes, The Department’s Forward Plan for ITealth, published in June
of this year. states that child health is a “major priovity” of IHEW. The Depart-
ment's child health strategy will be foensing on reducing infant mortality and
low birth weight and on maternal health services, The XICIT program will con-
tinue its special support of basic and preventive services of prenatal and post-
natal care. infai't and preschool healtls snpervision, school hein'th serviees, and
contraception, with cmphasis on health assessment, sersening, teaching, and
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v Oumiﬁoﬁ 16. Why did the President propose to cut the Maternal and Child

Health program by $80 million, a 35 percent cut?
Answer. The proposed reduction of $83 million from $295 million in FY 1975
to $212 million in I'Y 1976 represents a 28 percent reduction for Maternal and

Child Health.
The Maternal and Child Health program is not singied out among Federal

programs for budget reductions. Such rednctions are part of the overali objective
of the Administration to limit Federal deficits in an overall attempt to control

inflation.
The Maternal and Chiid Heaith hudget reflects the decision by tlie Department

to require local governments, private Institutions, and third-party payors to
contribute a greater share of the cost of the heaith care programs. The effective-
ness of special projects over the past two decades has demonstrated to local
communities how to reduce the Incidence of disorders and handleapping con-
ditions in children. The Department has chosen to advance progressively forward
from a focus on demonstration under Title V to promoting and providing needed
maternal and child henlth services throngh Federal and private sector pnyment

programs.

Mr. ScueuEr. First. Dr. Kretcluner, in connection with our keen
interest in doing more in terms of maternal and child health, as I
understand it, there is almost nothing that is more important to infant
and maternal health than the ability of a mother to space her children.
Wonld that be correct ? :

Dr. Krercuyer. Certainly that is one of tlie most important aspeets.
© Mr. ScueuEr. T was the anthor of the 1970 Population Research and .
Family Planning Act. To put it at its most charitable. Federal support
for family planning services and for funding family planning services
has been faint-hearted and reluctant, o

I feel the Federal Govermment, instead of looking at the family

lanning program as perhaps the most cost-effective single program
in achieving maternal and child health, had had to be dragged kicking
and screaming into the 20th century.

T)o you have any explanation as to why the Federal Government
is failing to support this most cost-effective of all health programs, and
whether there is any intention to do better in the future ?

Dr. Vax Iorix. Mr. Schener, T am Acting Administrator of the

"Health Services Administration which administers the family plan-

ning programs under title Vand title X.
*As yau know, in the appropriations processes the President in fiseal

1976 recomniended 20 percent less for family planning. That was not

to indicate that the Department or the administration felt that family
planning was not an important service and that we should not con-
tinue to support the program but rather within the total Federal
expenditures that perhaps the State and local agencies conld make up
some of that difference in fnnding to maintain the level of operation.

Mr. Scrrerr. It would take a Martian to helieve that New York
City and State, as well as other cities and States similarly situated.
are eapable of filling in the funding gap by substituting their funds
for Federal funds. Do you really think such a plan is feasible?

Dr. Krercuaen. It has to be taken in light of one other factor, and
that is that there are other Federal funds available for family plan-
ning through title XTX and title XX is which there is preferential
matching to the States for the support of those services.

Mr. Sonever. All the evidence indicates that there are perhaps 3 to
4 million women of child-bearing years in this country who do 1ot
have available to them family planning services. If we are talking
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about infant and maternal health there js absolutely nothing, including
EPSDT, that will do as much, for as little expenditure of funds, as
making family planning information available to mothers.

~_Now the 1970 act established a S-year program for bringing family
Planning services to every single woman of child-bearing years in this
country. <

Do .}iou feel that we have accomplished this?
Dr. KrercHyER. N 0,sir.

Mr: Scueuer. What plans do yon have to accomplish this congres-
sional goal ? -

Dr. Vax Hoex. It scems to me we have to look at the program from
several perspectives. It is not just Federal family planning program
legislation and appropriations which can meet the needs of family
planning services. In addition to the family planning legislation, we
have authority under alinost all our other health service programs to
provide family planning service. ‘

Our neighborhood health centers, our maternal and child health pro-
grams ang our direct service programs all provide family planning
services to individuals. If there is a guap it may not just be a lack of
legislation or appropriation but the way services are organized in the
local communities.

Mr. ScueUER. Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent that the
witness may be permitted to complete his answer to my question and
also that he be given some additional questions on the penalty of .
some $21% million which has been assessed against New York State,
If you would answer these questions for the record I would appreciate
it very much.

Mr. OrriNeer. Without objection we will ask the Department to
answer those questions for the record.

[See letter dated Nov-. 5, 1975. p- 143, this hearing.]

Unfortunately there is a recorded vote. ‘

Mr. Orrixcer. We would like to express our real concern on this
committee that the program for child health be carried out. That this
has been given the kind of priority which is said to be given by the -
administration certainly is not reflected by what I understand is a 35-
percent cut in the funds for the whole series of maternal and child care
programs within the budget.

I hore you will carry that message baclk as well as onr dissatisfac-
tion. The fack of priority for this program is reflected in the top people
of the Department not being represented at this hearing.

This conclndes 2 days of hearings on “Shortchanging Children.”
This is the second series of hearings held as part of an overall stndy of
the Subcommittee on “Getting Ready for National Health Insnrance.”

We have heard distressing testimony of public witnesses who could
have and should have been screened and treated in programs mandated
by the Social Security Act and funded under medicaid, but who were
not. Their loss of good health can never be recovered. Instead of being
able to lead normal, Productive lives and be future taxpayers to our
government, they instead have been mistreated and maltreated and
will need to be supported by society. The tragedy is that their ailments
could have been avoided if they had received the early diagnosis that
- is provided for in existing child health legislation. )
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We have heard from pediatricians and researchers who examined the
aspects of the problem and indicated the benefits of early screenin
and preventive medicine and the lnge costs of the absence of such
screening trentment. For example, a simple PIU test that costs 30 or
30 cents may save $20.000 a year for an institutionalized nmentally re-
tarded victim. Their testimony was convincing both in dollar costs and
in human costs. They indicated that are snbstantial benefits to be
gained by such programs as early and periodic sereening dingnosis and
treatment (EPSDT). There appear to be much better ways to man-
age such a progran than what is currently being done by HEW.

It is clear that wide gaps exist in the execution of this program as
intended by the Congress. This is another example of the lack of
broper administration of the medicaid program by the Department
of Health, Education, and Welfare. -

The House of Representatives throngh rules X and XI has em-
powered this committee with oversight responsibilities over health
programs not supported by payroll taxes.

In order to execute this responsibility in the manner intended, T will
transmit to the President of the United States details of the deficiencies
and costs found in the implementation or rather lack of implementa-
tion of these child health programs. Further the committee will re-
quest from the Secretary of HEW a report indicating the steps they
intend to take to bring the program into conformity with the statutes
of the United States.

In order to protect the consumers of health care in this country we
need to close the gaps of the health care delivery system. We must be
able to provide quality medical care to all Americans at a rensonable
cost. The evidence-of why this should be done in the area of child
health is overwhelming. The evidence of the gaps in this program are
also overwhelming. We have a responsibility to close these gaps. We
intend to see that this is done.

The hearing are concluded.

[Whereupon, at 12:45 p.m. the committee was adjonrned.]
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